# **Oracle FLEXCUBE Core Banking**

Term Deposit User Manual Release 11.10.0.0.0

Part No. F44734-01

August 2021



Term Deposit User Manual 8/23/2021 Oracle Financial Services Software Limited Oracle Park Off Western Express Highway Goregaon (East) Mumbai, Maharashtra 400 063 India Worldwide Inquiries: Phone: +91 22 6718 3000 Fax: +91 22 6718 3001 www.oracle.com/financialservices/ Copyright © 2021, Oracle and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved. Confidential – Oracle Internal Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its a

Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, delivered to U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, shall be subject to license terms and license restrictions applicable to the programs. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate failsafe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications applications.

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information on content, products and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services.



# **Table of Contents**

1. TD	Account Opening-Maintenance	5
1.1	8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening	6
1.2	TD020 - TD Account Master	11
1.3	TD021 - TD Deposit Details	19
1.4	TDM24 - TD Lien Master	36
1.5	TD028 - TD Block/Unblock Account Status	45
1.6	TD043 - TD Certificate Printing	47
1.7	TDM05 - TD Account CBR Codes Maintenance	58
1.8	TDM48 - TD Backdated Interest Rate Change Maintenance	60
2. Pa	yin Processing	64
2.1	1007 - TD Quick Payin By CASA	65
2.2	1021 - TD Quick Payin By GL	72
2.3	1402 - TD Quick Payin by Cash	79
2.4	6505 - TD Initial Payin by Cheque	87
3. Int	erest Payout Transaction	94
3.1	7018 - TD Interest Payout Enquiry	95
3.2	TD029 - TD Interest Adjustments	118
3.3	TD039 - TD Multiple Payout Instructions	121
4. Re	demption	150
4.1	7201 - TD Redemption Enquiry	151
5. Re	newal	173
5.1	7202 - TD Renewal Enquiry	174
6. Ot	her Transactions	180
6.1	7020 - TD Balance Enquiry	181
6.2	TDM07 - TD Investment Calculator	185
6.3	TD023 - TD Account Rates History Enquiry	192
6.4	TD026 - Annuity Deposit - Payout Schedule Enquiry	196
6.5	TD031 - TD Audit Trail Enquiry	199
6.6	TD037 - TD Account Ledger Enquiry	207
6.7	TD040 - TD Maturity Amount History	214
6.8	TD041 - TD Deposit Certificate Enquiry	219



6.9 TD042 - TD Interest and Principal Payment History	
6.10 TD050 - TD Interest Enquiry	
6.11 TD044 - TD Transactions Enquiry	238
6.12 TD030 - TD External Lien History Enquiry	241
7. Tax Processing	244
7.1 TDS03-TDS Tax Waiver	
7.2 TDS10-TDS Remittance	
7.3 TDS11-TDS Enquiry	
7.4 TDS12 - Tax Recovery	
7.5 TDS14 - Deposit Tax Refund	
7.6 TDS21-TDS Enquiry Date Based	
7.7 TDS30 - Tax Code - Reason Code Cross Reference Maintenance	



# 1. TD Account Opening-Maintenance



# 1.1 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

Using this option you can open a new time deposit account.

The ideal procedure followed during Time Deposit Account Opening is as follows:

- Check for customer existence: Check for all customers linked to the account.
- Open TD Account
- Specify Account Operating Instructions.
- Add Account Memo (if any).
- Customer Account Linking: A Maximum of three customers can be linked to the account using this option. If there are more than three customers, the same need to be linked to the account.
- Add MIS information to the account, if applicable.
- Add CBR Codes / other user defined information to the account, if applicable.

**Note**: Tax rates are subject to change if any special tax code is maintained at the customer level. You can view the special tax code from the **Customer Special Tax Code Maintenance** (Task Code: TDS05) option.

## **Definitions Prerequisites**

- BAM17 Branch Type Maintenance
- TDM01 TD Product Master
- BAM30 Tax Codes Maintenance
- 8053 Customer Addition
- CI142 Customer Account Relationship Maintenance
- BA524 Product Code Product Type Cross Reference

## Download

Not Required

## Modes Available

Not Applicable

## To open a new TD account

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code 8054 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Customer Transactions > Time Deposit Account Opening.
- 2. You will be navigated to **Time Deposit Account Opening** screen.

## Time Deposit Account Opening

<sup>3054</sup> × Time Deposit Account Opening	g			Val. Customer OK	Close Clear
Branch 98001     Product Name     Acct No.     Acct Open Data 30/11/2018 Customer Information	MUMBAI Q	Acct Title		Product Ccy  Serial No.	
* Customer IC	* Category	IC Type Short Nat	me Birth / Reg Date	* Relations Customer ID	
	▼		01/01/1800		
	<b>T</b>		01/01/1800	•	
	•		01/01/1800	¥	
Taxable Customer ID Base Tax Code 1 Base Tax Code 2 * Tax rates will be subject to change if any s	r      v	Waive Service Charge			

Field Name	Description
Branch	[Mandatory, Numeric, Four, Search List] Type the branch code under which an account is to be opened and select it from the Search List. The name of the branch is displayed in the adjacent field. It is possible for a branch to open an account on behalf of another branch. The branch name as per the SMS set up of the user is defaulted.
Product Name	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the appropriate product name, available for the selected branch, from the drop-down list. The product is selected for which the account has to be opened.
Product Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the time of product definition. This is the default currency for the product defined in <b>Customer</b> <b>Addition</b> (Task Code: 8053) option.
Acct No.	[Display] This field displays the account number at the time of account opening, if the account number generation is set as "Automatic" in the system pre- load. The structure of the account number is flexible and can be defined based on the requirements of the bank.
Acct Title	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the suggested title for the account. This field defaults the full name of the primary customer if you select an existing Customer in Customer IC field and click <b>Validate Customer</b> option. The account title can be different from the full name of the customer entered during customer



	creation.
Serial No.	This field is for future use.
Acct Open Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the date, on which the account is opened, from the date editor. The system by default displays the posting date as the account open date. The system allows backdated account opening of TD.
Restricted Acct	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>Restricted A/C</b> check box if the customer is a restricted customer or vice versa. This field is enabled if the customer is not restricted in <b>Customer</b> <b>Account Restriction</b> (Task Code: CIM21) option. Select the check box if you want the account to be treated as restricted account used only in the home branch. Only tellers with suitable capability will be able to inquire and post transactions into restricted accounts. Normal tellers will not be able to transact on the account.
Customer Information	
Customer IC	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the identification code of the customer from the Search List. A customer IC along with customer type is a unique method of customer identification across the bank (covering all branches). Based on the combination, the system can identify the customer as an existing customer even when the customer opens a new account in another branch. A social security number, passport number, birth certificate, or corporate registration can be used as a customer IC.
Category	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the category of the customer from the drop-down list. For example, Tax Paying Individual, Church, Foreign Corporate, etc. You can choose to set up multiple customer types to segregate the customers using the <b>Customer Type Maintenance</b> (Task Code: CIM08) option. Further processing such as tax applicable, service charges, etc. are levied based on the customer type.
ІС Туре	[Display] This field displays the IC type of the customer, based on the category to which the customer belongs. This is maintained in the <b>Customer Type Maintenance</b> (Task Code: CIM08) option.
Short Name	[Display] This field displays the short name of the customer. The short name of the customer is defaulted from the <b>Customer</b> <b>Addition</b> (Task Code: 8053) option.
Birth / Reg Date	[Display] This field displays the birth or registration date of the customer after validation. If the customer already exists, then the Birth/Reg Date will be automatically defaulted. Otherwise, the <b>Customer Addition (Task</b>



	<b>Code: 8053) option</b> will be invoked where more details about the customer need to be entered. For more information, refer to <b>Customer Addition</b> (Task Code: 8053) option.
Relations	<ul> <li>[Mandatory, Drop-Down]</li> <li>Select the appropriate relations from the drop-down list.</li> <li>The customer is linked to the account by way of a relations tag.</li> <li>This list contains different relations. For example, Sole Owner, Joint</li> <li>And First, Joint and Other and other relations.</li> <li>For successful account opening transaction, a customer with primary relationship viz. Sole Owner, Joint And First, or Joint Or First must be linked. If primary relationship linked is Joint And First or Joint or First, customer with secondary relationship viz. Joint and other or Joint or other must be linked to the account.</li> <li>A maximum of three customers can be linked to an account in the account-opening screen. Customer Account Relationship</li> <li>Maintenance (Task Code: C1142) option can be used to attach additional customers to the accounts.</li> </ul>
Customer ID	[Display] This field displays the ID of the customer. A customer ID is an identification number generated by the system after customer addition is completed successfully. This running number, unique to a customer across the system, is generated after the system has identified the Customer IC and Customer Category combination to be non-existent in the system. This ID is used for searching and tracking the customer in the system.
Taxable Customer ID	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the taxable customer ID from the Search List. By default it displays the ID of the primary customer.
Waive Service Charge	[Optional, Check box] Select the <b>Waive Service Charge</b> check box, if you want to waive the service charge for the TD account.
Base Tax Code 1	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the tax code 1 set by the bank that will be applicable to the account from the drop-down list.
Base Tax Code 2	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the tax code 2 set by the bank that will be applicable to the account from the drop-down list.
IBAN	[Display] This field displays the new International Bank Account Number generated by the system. The IBAN <sup>1</sup> mask is defined in the FCCORE - Bank Parameters Maintenance (Task Code: STDFCBNK) option in the Corporate module.

<sup>1</sup>International Bank Account Number: It is a unique account number that is used to identify a customer's account in a financial institution internationally.



- 3. Select the branch name and product name from the list.
- 4. Enter the account opening date.
- 5. Select the customer IC from the Search List.
- 6. Select the appropriate category and relations from the pick list. Enter the search criteria and then click **Find**.
- 7. Select the row from the list. you will be redirected to the main page.
- 8. Click the **Val Customer**. The system validates if the customer is an existing customer or a new customer.
- 9. For an existing customer, the system displays the message "Existing Customer Proceed with data entry".
- 10. Click **OK**.
- 11. The system displays the message "Authorisation Required. Do You Want to continue". Click **Continue**.
- 12. The system displays the Authorization Reason screen.
- 13. Enter the relevant information and click Grant.
- 14. The system displays the account number. Click **OK**.

The above screen displays the TD account opening for a customer, Mr. John Smith. The customer ID of Mr. Smith is 600970 and he is opening the account at the Kansas branch. He is opening the account under the product code 21 and the product will be held in USD.

The account is a sole owner type of account, which means that there will be a single person who will be operating the account. All the customer information is populated form the customer master database.

The product is attracting tax under tax code 2, which is selected in the **Tax Code 1** field, whereby he will be charged at 20% and will have an exemption of USD 5000.00.

On the basis of the date of birth of the customer the account will be classified as a major account.

## Exercise

For your own customer create a term deposit account using a suitable product. On the basis of the customer type, a suitable tax code will be populated for the customer.



## 1.2 TD020 - TD Account Master

Using this option you can change the attributes of a term deposit which has been opened through the **TD Account Opening** (Task code:8054) option.

The system lists the details of the term deposit account in the **Account Details** tab and lists all the deposits opened under the term deposit account in the **Deposit Details** tab.

**Note**: Tax rates are subject to change if any special tax code is maintained at the customer level. You can view the special tax code from the **Customer Special Tax Code Maintenance** (Task code: TDS05) option.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - TD Account Opening

#### **Modes Available**

Modify, Cancel, Amend, Authorize, Enquiry, Copy. For more information on the procedures of every mode, refer to **Standard Maintenance Procedures**.

#### To modify the TD account master

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task CodeTD020 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > Time Deposit Account Master.
- 2. You will be navigated to **TD Account Master** screen.

## **TD Account Master**

D Account Master A					Delete	Cancel	Amend	Authorize	Enquiry	Сору	Ok	Close	Clea
	* Account No.	0				С	ustomer Na	ime					
	Customer ID						Proc	luct					
	Currency	Ŧ					Bra	nch		Q.			
	Language	v					Account Sta	itus			•		
Account Details	Deposit Details												
	Joint Customer 1						Relatio	n					
	Joint Customer 2						Relatio	n					
	Joint Customer 3						Relatio	n					
	Account Title					Minor A	count Statu	JS			•		
	Opening Date	30/11/2018					Offic	er					
	Search Criteria	Customer Short Name					Search Strir	ng	0				
Ta	axable Customer ID				т	axable Cu	stomer Nam	ne		]			
	Tax Code 1					Tax Exer	nption Limit	1	0.00				
	Tax Code 2					Tax Exer	nption Limit	2	0.00				
	Reason Code	<b>T</b>				Pas	sbook Statu	IS		•			
	Blocked					Restr	cted Accou	nt 📃					
	Employee Account					Service C	harge Waiv	er 📃					
	IBAN				Prematu	ire Redem	ption Allowe	ed 📃					

#### **Field Description**

Field Name

Description



Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer or select from the search list.						
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account						
Customer Id	[Display] This field displays the ID of the customer who holds the TD Account.						
Product	[Display] This field displays the product code and name under which the TD account is initiated.						
Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.						
Branch	[Display] This field displays the name of the home branch where the TD account is opened and maintained.						
Language	[Display] This field displays the language code in which the transactions and correspondence for the account will be performed. For example, language will be displayed as ENG where the account language is English.						
Account Status	[Display] This field displays the current status of the account. The options are:						
	<ul> <li>Regular – This account is a regular account opened for various transactions.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Account Opened Today - This account is opened on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Closed – This account includes those deposits which have matured and redeemed. Thus this account is closed.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Account Closed Today - This account has been closed on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Unclaimed - This account has remained unclaimed by the customer.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Matured - This account has matured.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Account Blocked - This account is blocked.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Forced Renewal - This account is marked for lien and thus has been force renewed.</li> </ul>						

- 3. Click Modify.
- 4. Enter the account number and press the **Tab or Enter** key.

5. Modify the required information in the various tabs.

#### **Screen Description**

The preceding screen displays all the account level details for TD account no 70300000000044 for Mr. Sudhir. The account is opened under product code 341. The Account details tab will display information like what is the tax code attached, if there are any other account holders attached etc.

## **Account Details**

The Account Details tab includes the details of the TD account.

* Account No. 7	7030000000000044 🔍			Cus	stomer Name	MADHUR	NIKAM		
Customer ID 9	990100007				Product	341 - FCN	IR USD	•	]
Currency	USD 🔻				Branch	98001	Q		
						MUMBAI 9	98001		
Language	ENG 🔻			Ac	count Status	ACCOUN	T OPEN REGU	ILAR 🔹 🔻	]
count Details Deposit Details									
Joint Customer 1					Relation				
Joint Customer 2		_			Relation				
Joint Customer 3					Relation				
Account Title	MADHUR SUDHIR NIKAM	_		Minor Acc	ount Status	Major		•	
Opening Date	18/07/2018				Officer	OJSUDHIR	T2		
Search Criteria	Customer Short Name V			Se	arch String		Q		
Taxable Customer ID	990100007		Ta	xable Custo	omer Name	MADHURN	IKAM		
Tax Code 1	201 \(10.0000	0		Tax Exemp	tion Limit 1		10,000.00		
Tax Code 2	999 0.0000	0		Tax Exemp	tion Limit 2		0.00		
Reason Code	•	]		Passi	oook Status	Not Issued			
Blocked		-		Restrict	ed Account				
Employee Account			s	Service Cha	arge Waiver				
IBAN	IN9510997030000000		Premature	e Redempt	ion Allowed	✓			

Field Name	Description
Joint Customer 1, 2, 3	[Display] This field displays the names of all the account holders, if the TD account is a Joint account.
Relation	[Display] This field displays the relation of the joint customer to the account, whether it is Joint and First or Joint or Other, as specified at the account level.
Account Title	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 120] Type the account title.
Minor Account	[Optional, Dropdown]
Status	This field displays the account status
Opening Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the TD account is initiated.



Officer	[Display] This field displays the officer who is assigned to the TD account. This officer acts as the relationship manager for the TD Account.
Search Criteria	[Optional, Drop down] Select the search criteria to search for the customer from the drop-down list. The options are: • Customer Short Name
	• Customer ic - Customer identification chiena (iC) arrived at by the bank during customer addition.
	Customer Id - Unique identification given by the bank
Search String	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40, Picklist] Type the search string to search for a customer, corresponding to the search criteria selected in the Search Criteria field. If the search criterion is specified as customer's short name or IC then any of the letter(s) of the letter of the short name or IC can be entered. The system displays the Search List of all those customers having those letters in their respective criteria. Choose the appropriate customer from the existing customer list. For example, The customer's short name is George Abraham. One can search the above customer by entering 'Geo' in the search string field.
Taxable Customer ID	[Display] This field displays the taxable customer ID. It is the tax payer's customer ID. The customer ID is displayed depending on the customer searched in the search criteria.
Taxable Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the taxable customer name. It is the tax payer's customer name.
Tax Code 1	[Display] This field displays the tax code 1 applicable to the TD account, as specified at the account level.
Tax Exemption Limit 1	[Display] This field displays the limit for tax exemption 1. If the interest accrued for all the deposits in the account is within this limit, no tax is deducted. The tax exemption limit 1 depends on the tax code 1 selected.
Tax Code 2	[Display] This field displays the tax code 2 applicable to the TD account, as specified at the account level.
Tax Exemption Limit 2	[Display] This field displays the limit for tax exemption 2. If the interest accrued for all the deposits in the account is within this limit, no tax is deducted. The tax exemption limit 2 depends on the tax code 2 selected.
Reason Code	[Display] This field displays the reason as to why a particular TD Account is



	blocked.
Passbook Status	[Drop-down] Select the passbook status from the drop-down list. The options are: • Lost • Not issued • Not Applicable • Issued
Blocked	[Display] This field displays the TD account block status.
Restricted Account	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>Restricted Account</b> check box, if the TD account is restricted.
Employee Account	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>Employee Account</b> check box, if the account belongs to an employee of the bank.
Service Charge Waiver	[Display] This check box displays the status of service charges waived for a particular TD account.
IBAN	[Display] This field displays the <mark>IBAN</mark> <sup>1</sup> .
Premature Redemption Allowed	[Check Box] If the check box is selected, then premature redemption is allowed else deposit is not allowed for premature redemption.

**Note:** These fields enforcement authority name, address line, city, state, country, zip, contact number, letter reference number, letter issue date, transaction code can be displayed only if the TD is blocked due to any Legal Reason as specified in Reason Code maintenance (BAM40). For TD accounts which are not blocked due to Legal Reason these fields will be blank and non editable.

## **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the information like what is the tax code attached, if there are any other account holders attached etc.

## **Deposit Details**

The **Deposit Details** tab displays the original deposit number, renewal deposit number, value date, etc. of a TD account.

<sup>1</sup>International Bank Account Number: It is a unique account number that is used to identify a customer's account in a financial institution internationally.



TD Account Master Add Modify Delete Cancel Amend Authorize Er				thorize Enquiry Copy	Ok Close (		
	* Acco Custo C	unt No. 7030000000000 mer ID 990100007 urrency USD V	44		Customer Name Product Branch	MADHURNIKAM 341 - FCNR USD 98001 Q MUMBAI 98001 ACCOUNT OPEN DECIL AD	Y
Accoun	nt Details Deposit	Details			Account Status	ACCOUNT OPEN REGULAR	•
Ori	iginal Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Value Date	Deposit Status	Maturity Date	Term
	1	1	1	25/07/2018	Account Op	en 25/07/2019	12Mon - 0Days
	2	1	2	01/08/2018	Account Op	en 01/08/2021	36Mon - 0Days
<b>∢</b> Page	e 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 ite	ns) K < 1 >	ĸ				ŀ
∢ Page * Tax r	<ul> <li>1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 ite rates will be subject to</li> </ul>	ms) K < 1 > change if any special tax cr	Hold Hand At the custom	ier level.			•

Column Name	Description
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The original deposit number is the source or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Value Date	[Display] This column displays the value date of the TD. The value date signifies the date from which the life of the TD starts i.e. the date from which the TD is effective. The interest calculations for a TD will start from this date.
Deposit Status	[Display]

	This column displays the deposit status of the TD account.
Maturity Date	[Display] This column displays the maturity date for the deposit.
Term	[Display] This column displays the deposit term. The term of the deposit is the duration or the period in months and days, for which the TD is initiated.
Principal	[Display] This column displays the principal amount of the TD account.
Flg Base For Rate	[Display] This column displays the base amount parameter for calculating the interest. The base option for the deposit is displayed as symbols.
	I indicates Incremental Amount
	S indicates Cumulative for the deposit
	C indicates Cumulative for all deposits
Payout Frq	[Display] This column displays the payout frequency, i.e. the time interval at which the interest earned on the deposit is paid out.
Compounding Frq	[Display] This column displays the compounding frequency i.e. the time interval at which the interest earned is compounded to the principal.
Interest Index Code	[Display] This column displays the interest index code applicable to the TD. The index code is defined at the product level against the slab in which the TD principal, and term fits in.
Rate Interest	[Display] This column displays the interest rate.
Rate Variance	[Display] This column displays the interest variance specified at the time of initiating the deposit. The new value should be within the minimum and maximum values defined at the product level.
Prod Variance	[Display] This column displays the product variance. The product variance is the interest variance defined at the product level for the slab in which TD principal balance and term fits in.
Effective Rate	[Display] This column displays the rate at which interest is paid for the deposit. Effective Rate = Interest Rate (at deposit level) + Interest Variance + Product Variance The net rate should be within the minimum and maximum interest rate specified at the product level.
Annual Effective Rate	[Display] This column displays the annual effective rate.



Renewal Date	[Display] This column displays the renewal date.
Certificate No.	[Display] This column displays the certificate number
Renewal Type	[Display] This column displays the renewal type.
Amount	[Display] This column displays the amount in the account.

- 6. Click OK.
- 7. The system displays the message "Record Modified Authorisation Pending". Click OK.
- 8. The account master details are modified once the record is authorized.

The above tab screen displays all the deposit details for TD account no 70300000000044 for Mr.Sudhir.

The customer has two deposits for which information such as date of opening, deposit status, maturity date and principal amount is displayed.

#### Exercise

For an existing customer of your bank, check the information that is displayed when enquiring on the **TD Account Master** (Task code: TD020) option. The information displayed will be at account level with a synopsis of the deposits under the account.



## 1.3 TD021 - TD Deposit Details

Using this option you can view the attributes for all individual deposits held under a term deposit account. You can also view the customers association with the account and individual deposits, pay in and payout patterns and redemption details.

The **Balances** tab provides balance, interest and tax details.

The deposit level interest variance can be changed in the **Interest Rate** tab. If any RP plan is attached to the deposit, the RP details will be displayed in the **RP Variances** tab.

## **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

## Modes Available

Modify, Cancel, Amend, Authorize, Enquiry. For more information on the procedures of every mode, refer to **Standard Maintenance Procedures**.

#### To modify the deposit details

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TD021 and click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Deposit Details.
- 2. You will be navigated to TD Deposit Details screen.

## **Deposit Master**

<u>TD021</u> ×					
TD Deposit Details		Add Modify Delete Ca	ancel Amend Autho	rize Enquiry Cop	/y Ok Close Clear
* Account No.	٩.	* Org Deposit No.		Q,	
* Deposit No.		Renewal No.			
Customer Name		Customer ID			
Taxable Customer Name		Taxable Customer ID			
Product	Ŧ				
Currency	T	Branch	Q		
Original Receipt No.		Original Receipt Issue Date	01/01/1800		
Current Receipt No.		Current Receipt Issue Date	01/01/1800		
General Interest Rate Balar	nces Payout Payin Redemption Details RP Variances	Rule Doc Additional Detail	s		
Status Passbook Status Flag Discounted Amount Lien Amount Blocked * Certificate issued * Groce Renewal Term Special PMI Processing Blocked status Forward Contract Status Old Forward Contract Reference Note	V           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00           0.00	Reason		T	
Maintained Date	01/01/1800	Revoked date	01/01/1800		!

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number for which you want to check the details.



Org Deposit No.	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the original number from the Search List. The original deposit number is the source or the parent deposit no from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit. Note: The first stage list will display the latest deposit numbers for each deposit under that particular account. A check box has been provided on the top of this pick-list, on selecting which the second stage pick-list will be invoked. This will display all the deposit details such as original number, renewal number, etc.
Deposit No.	[Mandatory] This field displays the running term deposit number. It signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Renewal No.	[Display] This field displays the renewal number. The renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number explains the chronology of a particular deposit.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Customer Id	[Display] This field displays the customer ID on selecting the account.
Taxable Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the taxable customer name.
Taxable Customer ID	[Display] This field displays the taxable customer ID.
Product	[Display] This field displays the name assigned to the TD product, as defined at the product level. This is the product under which the TD account is opened.
Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example: If the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.
Branch	[Display] This field displays the name of the home branch where the TD account is opened and maintained.
Original Receipt No.	[Display] This field displays the first receipt no for the selected Deposit No.
Original Receipt	[Display]



Issue Date	This field displays the first receipt no issue date for the selected Deposit No.
Current Receipt No.	[Display] This field displays the current receipt no for the selected Deposit no.
Current Receipt Issue Date	[Display] This field displays the current receipt no issue date for the selected Deposit No.

- 3. Click Modify
- 4. Enter the account number and press the **Tab or Enter** key.
- 5. Select the original deposit number from the Search List.
- 6. Modify the required information in the various tabs.

The above screen displays the master details for deposit number 1 held under account number 99910400000230.

The "general" tab displays that the account is regular and there is no passbook/certificate issued or lien marked on the account.

There is a force renewal term of 5 months that has been defined which will be activated and override all maturity instructions if the deposit is marked under lien or blocked.

## General

This tab displays the status of the account.

TD021 ×				
TD Deposit Details		Add <u>Modify</u> Delete C	ancel Amend Authorize	e Enquiry Copy Ok Close Clear
* Account No.	703000000012502	* Org Deposit No.	5	
* Deposit No.	20	Renewal No.	6	
Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Customer ID	990100538	
Taxable Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Taxable Customer ID	990100538	
Product	304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp 🔻			
Currency	INR T	Branch	98001 🔍 MU	MBAI 98001
Original Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Original Receipt Issue Date	15/09/2018	
Current Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Current Receipt Issue Date	15/09/2018	
General Interest Rate Ba	lances Payout Payin Redemption Details RP Variances	Rule Doc Additional Detail	s	
Stati Passbook Status Fit Discounted Amou Lien Amou Block * Certificate Issu * Force Renewal Ter Special PMI Processing Blocked status Forward Contract Reference Note Maintained Da	ACCOUNT OPEN REGULAR V Pasbook Not Issued V nt 0.00 d d Not Issued V m 36 Months 0 Days s Not maintained V te 01/01/1800	Reason Forward Contract Reference Note Revoked date	01/01/1800	

Field name	Description
Status	[Display]



	This field displays the current status of the account. The options are:
	<ul> <li>Regular - This account is a regular account opened for various transactions.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Account Opened Today - This account is opened on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>
	Closed - This account is closed.
	<ul> <li>Account Closed Today - This account has been closed on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Unclaimed - This account has remained unclaimed by the customer.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Matured - This account has matured.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Account Blocked - This account is blocked.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Forced Renewal - This account is marked for lien and thus has been force renewed.</li> </ul>
Passbook Status Flag	[Display] This field displays the status of the passbook.
Discounted Amount	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the discounted deposit amount.</li> <li>For discounted deposits, the customer wants the deposits to receive a pre-defined maturity amount.</li> <li>For example, a customer wants to earn a maturity amount of 10,000.</li> <li>The bank will consider the interest adjustments and calculate the initial payment amount, which the customer needs to make. In this case, the maturity amount and the interest are fixed.</li> <li>There are two types of product discounting. They are as follows: <ul> <li>Normal Discounted – In normal discounted deposit, the maturity amount is defined along with the interest rate and the initial amount is deposited. Only the principal amount is discounted. Maturity value is decided based on the interest calculation.</li> <li>True Discounted – In true discounted deposit, even the interest which will be received will be discounted further, and reduced from the initial deposit amount of the normal discounted TD.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
	opened is of the discounted type.
Lien Amount	[Display] This field displays the lien amount, if there is a lien marked on the deposit. As the deposit is a part of an account, lien on deposit will automatically imply as a partial lien on an account.
Blocked	[Display] This field displays whether the TD account is blocked or vice versa.
Reason	[Display] This field displays the reason for a blocked TD account as specified while blocking the account.
Certificate Issued	[Conditional, Drop-Down]



	Select the certificate issue status from the drop-down list. This field is enabled if the <b>Certificate</b> check box is selected in the <b>Advices</b> tab screen in the <b>TD Product Master</b> (Task Code: TDM01) option and certificate has to be issued in the <b>TD Certificate Printing</b> (Task Code :TD043) option.
Force Renewal Term	[Optional, Numeric, Four] Type the force renewal term as defined at the product level. The force renewal term will be applicable if there is a lien marked on a deposit. The amount which is marked for lien will be automatically renewed after maturity for the period mentioned in this field. The term can be specified in months, days or in a combination of both as defined at the product level. The term unit is specified next to this field.
	C - Combination
	M - Months
	• D - Days
Special PMI Processing Blocked status	[Display] This field displays whether the special PMI processing blocked status is to fulfill the TD conditions after the TD maturity.
Forward Contract Status	[Conditional, Drop-Down] Select the status of forward contract from the drop-down list. The options are:
	Not Maintained
	Maintained
	Revoked
	This field is enabled for FCNR deposits.
Forward Contract Reference Note	[Conditional, Alphanumeric, 50] Type the forward contract reference number. This field is enabled if the <b>Maintained</b> option is selected in the <b>Forward</b> <b>Contract Status</b> drop-down list.
Old Forward Contract Reference Note	[Display] This field displays the old forward contract reference number.
Maintained Date	[Display] This field displays the date when the forward contract status was maintained.
Revoked Date	[Display] This field displays the date when the forward contract status was revoked.

The above tab screen displays the master details for deposit number 1 held under account number 703000000012502.

The "general" tab displays that the account is regular and there is no passbook/certificate issued or lien marked on the account.

There is a force renewal term of 5 months that has been defined which will be activated and override all maturity instructions if the deposit is marked under lien or blocked.



## **Interest Rate**

This tab displays the interest rate details of an account.

#### TD021 × TD Deposit Details Add Modify Delete Cancel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close Clear \* Account No. 703000000012502 🔍 \* Org Deposit No. 5 \* Deposit No. 20 Renewal No. 6 Customer Name AUTO PERSON1 Customer ID 990100538 Taxable Customer Name AUTO PERSON1 Taxable Customer ID 990100538 Product 304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp Branch 98001 Q MUMBAI 98001 Original Receipt Issue Date 15/09/2018 Current Receipt No. 1809980010001827 Current Receipt Issue Date 15/09/2018 General Interest Rate Balances Payout Payin Redemption Details RP Variances Rule Doc Additional Details Interest Index Code 4001 15.00000 Interest Rate 0.00000 \* Interest Variance Product Variance 0.00000 0.00000 Scheme Rate Scheme Variance 0.00000 Net Effective Rate 15.00000 Annual Equivalent Rate 16.07550

Field name	Description
Interest Index Code	[Display] This field displays the interest index code applicable to the TD. The index code is defined at the product level against the slab in which the TD principal and term fits in.
Interest Rate	[Display] This field displays the interest rate linked to the interest index code.
Interest Variance	[Mandatory] This field displays the interest variance specified at the time of creating the deposit. Interest variance change for fixed as well as floating rate for TD products can be carried out using the <b>Backdated Interest Rate</b> <b>Change</b> (Task Code: TDM48) option. This field can be amended and modified. The new value should be within the minimum and maximum values defined at the product level.
Product Variance	[Display] This field displays the product variance. The product variance is the interest variance defined at the product level for the slab in which TD principal balance and term fit in.
Scheme Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of interest as per the scheme.
Scheme Variance	[Display]



	This field displays the scheme variance.
Net Effective Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which interest is paid for the deposit. Net Effective Rate = Interest Rate (at deposit level) + Interest Variance + Product Variance The net rate should be within the minimum and maximum interest rate specified at the product level.
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. AER (Annual Equivalent Rate) is the annualized rate of return which the bank pays to the customer. The calculation of the AER depends on the number of compounding cycles and also the rate of the deposit. AER is calculated at the time of account opening. AER is re-calculated whenever there is a change in the interest rate for the deposits.

The above tab screen displays the master details for deposit number 1 held under account number 703000000012502.

In the interest rate tab the deposit rate is displayed as 15% + 0% variance and a net rate of 15%.

## **Balances**

This tab displays the balance details of an account, interest details, tax withheld, etc.

Dopoole Dotallo		
* Account No.	703000000012502	* Org Deposit No. 5
* Deposit No.	20	Renewal No. 6
Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Customer ID 990100538
Taxable Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Taxable Customer ID 990100538
Product	304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp	
Currency	INR T	Branch 98001 🔍 MUMBAI 98001
Original Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Original Receipt Issue Date 15/09/2018
Current Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Current Receipt Issue Date 15/09/2018
General Interest Rate Bal	ances Payout Payin Redemption Details RP Variances	Rule Doc Additional Details
Interest Accrue	0.00	
Interest Withheld (Carry	0.00	
Forwarded)	0.00	
Projected Tax1 on Accrued In	t 0.00	Interest Withheld (Total) 0.00
Tax Withheld 1 (Total	0.00	
Projected Tax2 on Accrued In	t 0.00	Interest Compounded to Date 0.00
Tax Withheld 2 (Total	0.00	
Balance Uncollected Interes	t 0.00	Interest Paid to Date 0.00
Balance Interest Due	0.00	Balance Uncollected Principal 0.00
Unclaimed Interes	t 0.00	Balance Principal Due 0.00
Tax on Accrual	0.00	Unclaimed Principal 0.00
Tax on Accrual 2	2 0.00	Interest Capitalized to Date 0.00
PMI Accruo	0.00	Year End Principal Balance 0.00

Field Name	Description
Interest Accrued	[Display] This field displays the interest accrued on the current principal balance. The interest is calculated from the date of last interest payout or



	capitalization, or from the date of initiating the TD.
Interest Withheld	[Display] This field displays the interest that is withheld. The part of total due interest amount for the current payout cycle held by the bank, in case the customer has to pay interest to the bank.
Interest Withheld (Carry Forwarded)	[Display] This field displays the interest that is withheld. The part of total due interest amount for the current payout cycle held by the bank, in case the customer has to pay interest to the bank.
Projected Tax1 On Accrued Int	[Display] This field displays the tax 1 calculated on the accrued interest. It is calculated on the basis of the amount accounted and the amount in the accrued interest bucket.
Interest Withheld (Total)	[Display] This field displays the total interest withheld amount to date.
Tax Withheld 1 (Total)	[Display] This field displays the total tax 1 deducted from interest against the TD recovered from the customer. This tax is accrued but not remitted to the government. The tax 1 is deducted on the basis of <b>Tax Deduction at Source Flag</b> defined at the product level and the <b>Tax Code</b> attached to the account at the time of account opening.
Projected Tax2 On Accrued Int	[Display] The tax 2 calculated on the accrued interest. It is calculated on the basis of the amount accounted and the amount in the accrued interest bucket.
Interest Compounded To Date	[Display] This field displays the total compounded interest. Interest Compounded to Date = Accumulated Interest earned on the Principal + Interest to Date
Tax Withheld 2 (Total)	[Display] This field displays the total tax 2 deducted from interest against the TD recovered from the customer. This tax is accrued but not remitted to the government. The tax 2 is deducted on the basis of <b>Tax Deduction at Source Flag</b> defined at the product level and the <b>Tax Code</b> attached to the account at the time of account opening.
Balance Uncollected Interest	[Display] This field displays the interest for which the payout mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer. Interest amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, should be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field.
Interest Paid To Date	[Display] This field displays the total interest paid till date to the customer.
Balance Interest Due	[Display] This field displays the interest amount for which the <b>Payout Option</b> is defined as <b>No instructions</b> at the product level, and the proceeds are



	not collected by the customer.
Balance Uncollected Principal	[Display] This field displays the matured deposit amount for which the redemption mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer. Amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, are to be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field. For example, a deposit has matured and the payout mode is defined as cash. The redemption procedures are complete but the cash is not collected by the customer. In this case, the amount is displayed as uncollected principal.
Unclaimed Interest	[Display] This field displays the interest which is due, but not collected by the customer after the grace period. The interest, which is due and is not collected by the customer, gets transferred to the unclaimed GL after the specified grace period.
Balance Principal Due	[Display] This field displays the matured deposit amount for which <b>Maturity</b> <b>Option</b> is defined as <b>No instructions</b> at the product level, and the proceeds are not collected by the customer.
Tax On Accrual 1	[Display] This field displays the tax amount 1 on the last interest accrued.
Unclaimed Principal	[Display] This field displays the principal which is due, but not collected by the customer after the grace period. The principal, which is due and is not collected by the customer, gets transferred to the unclaimed GL after the specified grace period.
Tax On Accrual 2	[Display] This field displays the tax amount 2 on the last interest accrued.
Interest Capitalized To Date	[Display] This field displays the interest that is capitalized till date.
PMI Accrued	[Display] This field displays the accrued PMI. It is the amount accrued after the maturity of deposit in special PMI processing condition. It is displayed as '0', if PMI Accrual is selected as none.
Year End Principal	[Display]
Balance	This field displays principal balance as on financial year end.
Stamp Tax Amount	This field displays principal balance as on financial year end. [Display] This field displays the documentary stamp tax amount calculated by the system.

The above tab screen displays the master details for deposit number 1 held under account number 703000000012502.



The screen displays information related to balances in the account and the interest accrued till date. This figure and any other information will be updated during various transactions during the life cycle of the Term Deposit.

## Payout

This tab displays the interest payout details.

rd021 ×			
TD Deposit Details		Add Modify Delete Can	cel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close Clear
* Account No.	703000000012502	* Org Deposit No.	5
* Deposit No.	20	Renewal No.	6
Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Customer ID	990100538
Taxable Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Taxable Customer ID	990100538
Product	304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp		
Currency	INR T	Branch	98001 Q MUMBAI 98001
Original Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Original Receipt Issue Date	15/09/2018
Current Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Current Receipt Issue Date	15/09/2018
General Interest Rate Bal	ances Payout Payin Redemption Details RP Variances	Rule Doc Additional Details	
* Payout Frequenc Compoundin * Next Payout Dal Next Compoundin * Anniversary Start Da * Anniversary Start Mont	y At Maturity V g Monthly V te 14/12/2018 m y 29 V h November V		

Field name	Description
Payout Frequency	[Conditional] This field displays the payout frequency for the deposit. Payout Frequency will be enabled for Payout type TDs.
Compounding	[Display] This field displays the time interval at which the interest is compounded to the principal, as specified while initiating a TD. For example, if the compounding frequency is specified as <b>Quarterly</b> then the accumulated interest will be added to the principal every three months.
Next Payout Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the date, on which the subsequent interest is due to be paid from the pick list. Next payout date will be editable for Payout type TD. For example, the interest payout frequency is specified as quarterly. If the interest is paid on 31st June '18, the next payout date will be after 3 months i.e.30th September '18.
Next Compounding	[Display] This field displays the date on which the accrued interest is added to the principal. For example, the interest compounding frequency is specified as



	monthly. If the interest is compounded on 30th June '09, the next compounding date will be after 1 month i.e. 30th July '09.
Anniversary Start Day	[Conditional, Drop-Down] Select the anniversary start date from the drop-down list. For example: If a TD is created on 5th of August then the Anniversary Start Day will be 5th. If the next interest is due after a quarter then the <b>Next Payout Date</b> will be 5th November. This field is enabled if <b>Anniversary</b> option is selected in the <b>Interest</b> <b>Payout basis</b> and <b>Interest Compounding basis</b> in the <b>TD Product</b> <b>Master</b> (Task Code: TDM01) option.
Anniversary Start Month	[Conditional, Drop-Down] Select the anniversary start month from the drop-down list. For example, if a TD is created on 5th of August then the Anniversary Start month will be August. This field is enabled if <b>Anniversary</b> option is selected in the <b>Interest</b> <b>Payout basis</b> and <b>Interest Compounding basis</b> in the <b>TD Product</b> <b>Master</b> (Task Code: TDM01) option.

The above tab screen displays the master details for deposit number 1 held under account number 703000000012502.

The screen displays that interest on the deposit will be paid every half year. The compounding will be taking place on a quarterly basis.

## Payin

This tab displays the deposit details.

TD021 ×			
TD Deposit Details		Add Modify	Delete Cancel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close Clear
* Account No.	703000000012502	* Org Deposit No.	Q
* Deposit No.		Renewal No.	
Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Customer ID	990100538
Taxable Customer Name		Taxable Customer ID	
Product	304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp 🔻		
Currency	INR T	Branch	98001 🔍 MUMBAI
Original Receipt No.		Original Receipt Issue Date	01/01/1800
Current Receipt No.		Current Receipt Issue Date	01/01/1800
General Interest Rate Balances	Payout Payin Redemption Details RP Variances Rule Doc Addit	ional Details	
Principal Balance	e 0.00	Value Date	
Deposit Term - Montr			
	Days		
Deposit Da	s Days 01/01/1800	Base Amount for Deposit Rate	<b>v</b>
Deposit Dar Deposit Maturity Dar	s Deys 0/10/1/800	Base Amount for Deposit Rate Balance For Rate Earned	V 0.00
Deposit Da Deposit Maturity Da Interest Start Da	Ovjo         Ovjo           0 01011800         Image: Constraint of the second sec	Base Amount for Deposit Rate Balance For Rate Earned Cheque No.	v 0.00
Deposit Da Deposit Maturity Da Interest Start Da	Days 010011800	Base Amount for Deposit Rate Balance For Rate Earned Cheque No.	v 0.00
Deposit Da Deposit Maturity Da Interest Start Da	Days           010111800         100           010111800         100           010111800         100	Base Amount for Deposit Rate Balance For Rate Earned Cheque No.	<b>v</b> 0.00
Deposit Da Deposit Maturity Da Interest Start Da	Days           01/01/1800           01/01/1800	Base Amount for Deposit Rate Balance For Rate Earned Cheque No.	• 0.00
Deposit Da Deposit Maturity Da Interest Start Da	Days 010011800 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 0000	Base Amount for Deposit Rate Balance For Rate Earned Cheque No.	v 0.00

Field name	Description
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the principal amount of the TD. It shows the latest principal on the TD. This is the sum total of the principal amount at the time of initiating, and the compounding interest earned.
Value Date	[Display]



	This field displays the value date of the TD. The value date signifies the date from which the life of the TD starts i.e. the date from which the TD is effective. The interest calculations for a TD will start from this date.
Deposit Term - Months - Days	[Display] This field displays the term in months and days for which the TD is being created.
Deposit Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the TD is created.
Base Amount For Deposit Rate	[Display] This field displays the base amount as specified while initiating a TD.
Deposit Maturity Date	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the maturity date for the new deposit.</li> <li>This date is arrived at by adding the deposit term to the interest start date of the TD.</li> <li>For example, if the interest start date of the TD is 1st January '04 and the TD term is two months, then the maturity date will be 29th February '04.</li> <li>1st January '04 + 2 months = 29th February '04</li> </ul>
Balance For Rate Earned	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the base principal amount, which determines the rate of interest applicable for the deposit.</li> <li>This amount depends on the option selected as Base Amount for Deposit Rate.</li> <li>For example, if the Base Amount for Deposit Rate is selected as Incremental, the deposit amount will be displayed.</li> </ul>
Interest Start Date	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the current process date as the interest start date, by default.</li> <li>The interest start date is the date on which the bank starts accruing interest for the TD.</li> <li>For payin by Cheque, DD or BC, the interest start date is by default the value date of the instrument.</li> <li>An interest start date can be any date on or after the value date of the deposit, and on or before the maturity date of the deposit.</li> </ul>
Cheque No.	[Display] This field displays the DD or BC or Cheque number through which the TD amount is paid. When the cheque is deposited into any payee's account, the cheque number is used to ensure that duplicate entries are not made in the system (that the same cheque is not deposited multiple times in the system.). On every deposit of a cheque, cheque number along with the routing number and drawer account number (all the three are present on the MICR line) is/are used to check for the presence of any duplicate instrument. If duplicate instruments are found, cheque deposit will be rejected unless the earlier cheques are all marked as Returned.
Screen Description	

The above tab screen displays the master details for deposit number 1 held under account number 703000000012502.

The screen displays all the details of the deposit at the time of account opening. The principal balance of ₹ 11,000.00 was placed for a period of 12 months. The deposit start date was 16/03/2018.

## **Redemption Details**

This tab displays the details of redemption of a deposit.

Account No. 703000000012502      Paposit No. 20     Customer Name AUTO PERSON1     Customer Name AUTO PERSON1     Customer ID     990100538     Taxable Customer Name AUTO PERSON1     Customer ID     990100538     Product 304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Compr     Currency INR     Currency INR     V     Currency INR     Product 304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Compr     Current Receipt No. 1809980010001827     Current Receipt No. 180998001001827     Current Receipt No. 18099800100198     Current Receipt No. 180998001001927     Current Receipt No. 180998001001927     Current Receipt No. 180998001001927     Current Receipt No. 18099800100192     Current Receipt No. 18099800100192     Current Receipt No. 18099800100192     Current Receipt No. 18099800100192     Current Receipt No. 180998001     Current Receipt No. 180998001     Current Receipt No. 180998001     Current Receipt No. 18000     Curren	Deposit Details				Add Modify Delete C	ancel Amend Autho	rize Enquiry Copy	Ok Close C
* Deposit No. 20 Renewal No. 6 Customer Name AUTO PERSON1 Customer ID 990100538 Taxable Customer Name AUTO PERSON1 Taxable Customer ID 990100538 Product 304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Compr ▼ Currency INR ▼ Branch 98001 Original Receipt No. 1809980010001827 Current Receipt Issue Date 1509/2018 Number of Redemption Data 0 0 Last Redemption Penalty to Date 0.000 Early Redemption Penalty to Date 0.000	* Account No.	703000000012502			* Org Deposit No	. 5	9	
Customer Name       AUTO PERSON1       Customer ID       990100538         Taxable Customer Name       AUTO PERSON1       Taxable Customer ID       990100538         Product       304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Compr ▼       E       Branch       990100         Currency       INR       ▼       Branch       99010       MUMBAI 98001         Original Receipt No.       1809980010001827       Current Receipt Issue Date       15/09/2018       15/09/2018       15/09/2018         eneral       Interest Rate       Balances       Payout       Payin       Redemption Details       RP Variances       Rule Doc       Additional Details         Number of Redemption Amount to Date       0	* Deposit No.	20			Renewal No	6		
Taxable Customer Name       AUTO PERSON1       Taxable Customer ID       990100538         Product       304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp ▼       Branch       98001       MUMBAI 98001         Curreny       INR       ▼       Branch       98001       MUMBAI 98001         Original Receipt No.       1809980010001827       Current Receipt Issue Date       15/09/2018       15/09/2018         eneral       Interest Rate       Balances       Payin       Redemption Details       RP Variances       Rule Doc       Additional Details         Number of Redemption Amount to Date       0	Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1			Customer II	990100538		
Product       304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Compt ▼         Currency       INR       ▼         Original Receipt No.       1809980010001827       Current Receipt Issue Date       1509/2018         Current Receipt No.       1809980010001827       Current Receipt Issue Date       1509/2018         eneral       Interest Rate       Balances       Payout       Payin       Redemption Details       RP Variances       Rule Doc       Additional Details         Number of Redemption Amount to Date       0	Taxable Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1			Taxable Customer II	990100538		
Currency     INR     Image: Currency     INR     Image: Currency     INR     Image: Currency     Image: Curren	Product	304 - FD-Resident - Monthly C	ompi 🔻					
Original Receipt No.       1809980010001827       Original Receipt Issue Date       1509/2018       Image: Date Issue Date       1509/2018       Image: Date Issue Date	Currency	INR 🔻			Branc	n 98001 🔍	MUMBAI 98001	
Current Receipt No.     1809980010001827     Current Receipt Issue Date     15/09/2018       eneral     Interest Rate     Balances     Payor     Payin     Redemption Details     RP Variances     Rule Doc     Additional Details       Number of Redemption Amount to Date     0	Original Receipt No.	1809980010001827			Original Receipt Issue Dat	e 15/09/2018 🗰		
Interest Rate     Balances     Payout     Payin     Redemption Details     RP Variances     Rule Doc     Additional Details       Number of Redemption A Date     0        Last Redemption Amount     0.00       Redemption Date     0/10/1/1800       0.00     Early Redemption Penalty to Date     0.00	Current Receipt No.	1809980010001827			Current Receipt Issue Dat	15/09/2018		
Number of Redemptions to Date     0     Last Redemption Amount     0.00       Redemption Amount to Date     0.00     Early Redemption Penalty to Date     0.00       Last Redemption Date     01/01/1/300     0.00     0.00	eneral Interest Rate Ba	ances Payout Pavin	Redemption Details	RP Variances	Rule Doc Additional Details			
Number of Redemptions to Date     0     Last Redemption Amount     0.00       Redemption Amount to Date     0.00     Early Redemption Penalty to Date     0.00       Last Redemption Date     01/01/1800     0.00     0.00								
Redemption Amount to Date     0.00     Early Redemption Penalty to Date     0.00       Last Redemption Date     01/01/1800     Imite Date     0.00	Number of Redemptions to Da	e 0			Last Redemption Amount		0.00	
Last Redemption Date 01/01/1800	Redemption Amount to Da	e	0.00		Early Redemption Penalty to Date		0.00	
	Last Redemption Da	e 01/01/1800 🛗						

## **Field Description**

-

Field name	Description
Number of Redemptions to Date	[Display] This field displays the number of redemptions up to the Enquiry date. This is equal to the number of times the principal or interest is renewed.
Last Redemption Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount which was last redeemed as a part of the principal.
Redemption Amount to Date	[Display] This field displays the total amount redeemed from the account as a part of the principal.
Early Redemption Penalty to Date	<ul><li>[Display]</li><li>This field displays the penalty amount, if penalties are charged for an early redemption.</li><li>When a deposit is redeemed before maturity, the bank may charge a customer penalty interest. The penalty variance rate and the process of calculation are defined at the product level.</li></ul>
Last Redemption Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the last redemption has taken



#### place.

#### **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the master details for deposit number 1 held under account number 703000000012502.

The screen displays the redemption details for the deposit. it will be updated if the deposit is redeemed partially or completely.

## **RP Variances**

This tab displays the relationship pricing variance. For e.g.: If the relationship value is more than 1 crore, additional interest of 0.5% is to be given to the customer.

D Depo	osit Details					Add Mo	dify Delete	Cancel Ame	nd Autho	orize Enquiry Copy Ok Close
	* Account No.	703000000012502	Q				* Org Deposit N	No. 5		Q.
	* Deposit No.	20					Renewal N	No. 6		]
	Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1				]	Customer	D 9901005	38	]
1	Taxable Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1				]	Taxable Customer	ID 9901005	38	]
	Product	304 - FD-Resident - M	onthly Comp							
	Currency	INR 🔻					Bran	nch 98001	Q	MUMBAI 98001
	Original Receipt No.	1809980010001827				Origin	al Receipt Issue Di	ate 15/09/20	18	
	Current Receipt No.	1809980010001827				Curre	nt Receipt Issue Di	ate 15/09/20	18 🛛 🧰	]
General	Interest Rate Bala	ances Payout F	Payin Redemp	otion Details	<b>RP Variances</b>	Rule Doc	Additional Detai	ils		
	Variance Package	Interest T	ype	RP Variar	ice Rate	Rule	Pac	ckage Dev Ru	е	Benefit Plan Dev Rule
No dat	ta to display.									
Page	1 (0 of 0 items) K	(1)								

## **Field Description**

Column Name	Description
Variance Package	[Display] This column displays the variance package applicable to the deposit.
Interest Type	[Display] This column displays the interest type applicable to the deposit.
RP Variance Rate	[Display] This column displays the rate of the RP variance.
Rule	[Display] This column displays the rule applicable to the deposit.
Package Dev Rule	[Display] This column displays the package deviation value applicable to the deposit.
Benefit Plan Dev	[Display]



This column displays the benefit plan deviation rule applicable to the deposit.

## **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the master details for deposit number 2 held under account number 703000000012502.

The screen displays the various relationship pricing parameters if they are defined for the said TD account number.

## **Rule Doc**

Rule

This tab allows you to view the rule applied on the deposit.

D Deposit Details		Add Modify Delete C	ancel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close
* Account No.	703000000012502 🔍	* Org Deposit No.	5
* Deposit No.	20	Renewal No.	6
Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Customer ID	990100538
Taxable Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Taxable Customer ID	990100538
Product	304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp 🔻		
Currency	INR 🔻	Branch	98001 Q MUMBAI 98001
Original Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Original Receipt Issue Date	15/09/2018
Current Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Current Receipt Issue Date	15/09/2018
ieneral Interest Rate Bal	ances Payout Payin Redemption Details RP Variances	Rule Doc Additional Details	6

## **Additional Details**



TD021 ×			
TD Deposit Details		Add <b>Modify</b> Delete Can	ncel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close Clear
* Account No.	703000000012502	* Org Deposit No.	5
* Deposit No.	20	Renewal No.	6
Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Customer ID	990100538
Taxable Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	Taxable Customer ID	990100538
Product	304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp		
Currency	INR T	Branch	98001 🔍 MUMBAI 98001
Original Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Original Receipt Issue Date	15/09/2018
Current Receipt No.	1809980010001827	Current Receipt Issue Date	15/09/2018
General Interest Rate Bal	ances Payout Payin Redemption Details RP Variances	Rule Doc Additional Details	
Account N Ccy Cod Branch Cod Pay Mod Initial Deposit An Initial Maturity Dat Initial Payin / Deposit Dat Description Description	0. 703000000012502 e INR ▼ 98001 e ▼ 14/12/2018 ∰ 29/11/2018 ∰ 1 2	]	

Field name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the TD account number.
Ccy Code	[Display] This field displays the currency code.
Branch Code	[Display] This field displays the branch code.
Pay Mode	[Display] This field displays the pay mode of the initial payin.
Initial Deposit Amt	[Display] This field displays the initial deposit amount. It shows the original TD deposit principal amount.
Initial Maturity Date	[Display] This field displays the maturity date of the initial deposit.
Initial Payin/Deposit Date	[Display] This field displays the initial deposit/payin date.
Description 1	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 100] Type the first instruction maintained for the deposit.
Description 2	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 100] Type the second instruction maintained for the deposit.



- 7. Click OK .
- 8. The system displays following message: "Record Modified Authorisation Pending". Click OK.
- 9. The deposit master details are modified once the record is authorised.

The above tab screen displays the master details for deposit number 1 held under account number 703000000012502.

The screen would display the various rules that would be defined for the said account.

#### Exercise

For any existing TD account, select the deposit for which details are required. On the basis of the explanation provided.



## 1.4 TDM24 - TD Lien Master

The bank can mark a lien on the term deposit as a security for a loan or an overdraft. If the lien is marked against a term deposit, customer is not allowed to withdraw the amount from the term deposit which lien is marked.

The different kinds of lien marked are:

- Internal Lien The internal lien is automatically marked by the system on the term deposit which is kept as collateral. The two types of internal lien are:
- Overdraft This lien is system-initiated and is marked for online transaction done against a Current and Savings account, which is having insufficient funds and has overdraft facility against a term deposit account.
- Loan / APS This type of lien is marked as a security for Loan or Loan application. This lien is
  marked automatically by the system on the deposit when the customer specifies that the term
  deposit will be kept as collateral against the loans.
- External This type of lien is marked for external reasons.

A deposit marked for lien will be force renewed on the maturity date irrespective of the maturity instruction specified. This is done as security against the loan or overdraft taken by the customer from the bank.

You can view the different liens which are marked against an individual deposit along with details like the start and expiry date of the lien, the lien amount, type of lien, reason for the lien and the account or instrument number against which the lien is marked. If the internal lien is placed on the principal or the principal + interest amount the system displays the lien marked on the principal and the interest. The propagate option increases the drawing power of the customer for the Current and Savings account.

You can place an external lien on a deposit. The lien will be placed when there is a court order or the term deposit has to be blocked for some external reason. You have to specify the lien amount, the description and the reason for the lien. The start date, end date and the maturity instruction is defaulted by the system.

## **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

## Modes Available

Add, Modify, Delete, Cancel, Authorize, Enquiry. For more information on the procedures of every mode, refer to **Standard Maintenance Procedures**.

## To add a lien

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TDM24 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TD Lien Master.
- 2. You will be navigated to **TD Lien Master** screen.

## **TD Lien Master**


TDM24 ×						
TD Lien Master			Add Modify Delete C	ancel Amend Authorize	Enquiry Copy	Ok Close Clear
* Account Number Q Original Deposit Number Q Lein Instrument / Account No.	Account Title Lien Type * Lien Status	Beneficiary CASA Account Enquire Details				
Customer Name		Lien	Amount 0.0	0		
Original Deposit No. Renewal No. Deposit No. Lien	No. Type Amount Acct No. / Description Start Date Expiry Date	te Maturity Instr. Reason Propagate	Lien Principal Amt Lien	Int Amt Department In Fav	vor of Facility Code	Link Ref Srl No.
No data to display.						
Page 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1 > X						,

Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the valid TD account number of the customer.
Account Title	[Display] This field displays the title of the account.
Original Deposit Number	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the original deposit number, on which the lien will be marked for the TD account, from the Search List.
Lien Type	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the lien type from the drop-down list. The options are:
	• APS
	External
	Corporate
	Stock Invest
	• Loan
	Overdraft
	Sweep-In
	This field is enabled in the <b>Enquiry</b> mode.
Beneficiary CASA Account	[Display] This field displays the Beneficiary CASA account.
Lien Instrument/Account No	[Display] This field displays the lien instrument / account number.
Lien Number	[Display] This field displays the lien number of the TD account. This field is displayed in the <b>Add</b> mode.



Deposit Number	[Display] This field displays the deposit number that signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal. This field is displayed in the <b>Add</b> mode.
Renewal Number	[Display] This field displays the renewal number that signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit. This field is displayed in the <b>Add</b> mode.
Lien Status	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the lien status from the drop-down list. The options are: • Live Liens, • Expired Lines • All Lines By default it displays "Live Lines". This field is enabled in the <b>Enquiry</b> mode

- 3. Click Add.
- 4. Type the account number and press Tab or Enter key.
- 5. Select the original deposit number from the Search List.

# **TD Lien Master**

TDM24 ×													
TD Lien Master						Add Mod	ify Delete	Cancel	Amend	Authorize	Enquiry	Сору	Ok Close Clear
* Account Number 703000000012882 Orginal Deposit Number 1 Deposit Number 1 External Lien Maintenance All Lien Enguin	् <b>२</b>	Account Title Lien Number Renewal Number	AUTO PERSON1 1 1	Beneficiary CA Account	SA								
Lien Lien Exproj Lien Am Becro Matarby Intro Decom	ype Esternal				Denartment N	ame							
In Favour of													
Internal Extension     Search Crit Customer N	rnal eria	•			* Search S Custome	tring		٩					
Facility Code													
Collisteral * Reason for Propa Principal Lien Am Interest Lien Am	odeQ	T			Collateral N Link Ref Serial Serial Purpose of	ame I No Lien							

6. The system enables the **External Lien Maintenance** tab. Enter the required information in the tab.

## **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the lien placed on account no 703000000012882 for which a lien is being placed. The lien is being placed on the 1st deposit under the account. This is the first lien on the deposit and is displayed in the lien number field.

# **External Lien Maintenance**

This tab is used to mark external lien on deposit.

TDM24 $\times$																	
TD Lier	Master							Add	Modify	Delete	Cancel	Amend	Authorize	Enquiry	Сору	Ok Close Clear	
	Account Number	03000000012882		Account Title	AUTO PERSON1			_									
Original	Deposit Number	্		Lien Numbe	1	Beneficiary CASA Account											
	Deposit Number			Renewal Numbe	1												
Externa	al Lien Maintenance	All Lien Enquiry															
		Lien Type	External v														
		Lien Date	15/12/2018														
		Expiry Date	18/07/2023														
		* Lien Amount	₹0.00														
		* Description															
		Maturity Instruction	Force Renew V														
		Department Code		~			Department Nar	ime									
In Favo	ur of																
۲	Internal	C External															
		* Search Criteria					* Search Stri	ring			Q,						
		Customer Name					Customer	r ID									
Facility	Code																
		Collateral Code		2			Collateral Nar	ime									
		* Reason for Lien															
		Propagate					Link Ref Serial M	No.									
		Principal Lien Amount	0.00				Serial M	No.									
		Interest Lien Amount	0.00				Purpose of Li	ien									

Field Name	Description
Lien Type	[Display] This field displays the lien type. The field takes a default value as <b>External</b> . Only an external lien can be added. An internal lien is marked automatically by the system.
Lien Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the lien is marked. The system by default displays the current date as the lien start date.
Expiry Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the lien will expire. The system by default displays the deposit maturity date as the expiry date.
Lien Amount	[Mandatory, Numeric, 13, Two] Type the lien amount for which the lien will be marked on the TD.
Description	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the description of the lien.
Maturity Instruction	[Display] This field displays the maturity instruction as <b>Force Renew</b> , by default. A deposit marked for lien is force renewed on maturity irrespective of the maturity instruction defined at the product or account level.
Department Code	[Optional, Search List]



	Select the department code from the Search List. The department code is maintained using the <b>LOB Master</b> (Task Code: BA431) option.
Department Name	[Display] This field displays the department name based on the department code selected in the adjacent field.
In Favour Of	
It is mandatory to select e	ther the <b>Internal</b> or <b>External</b> option.
Internal	[Optional, Radio Button] Click <b>Internal</b> , if the lien details are to be maintained for an existing customer.
External	[Optional, Radio Button] Click <b>External</b> , if the lien details are to be maintained for an external entity.
Search Criteria	[Conditional, Drop-Down] Select the search criteria from the drop-down list. The options are:
	Customer Short Name
	Customer IC
	Customer ID
	This field is enabled if the <b>Internal</b> option is selected from the <b>In Favour Of</b> section.
Search String	[Conditional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the search string, to search for a customer, corresponding to the search criteria selected in the <b>Search Criteria</b> field. If the search criterion is specified as customer's short name or IC then any of the letter(s) of the short name or IC can be entered. The system displays the Search List of all those customers having those letters in their respective criteria. Choose the appropriate customer from the existing customer list. For example, The customer's short name is George Abraham. One can search the above customer by entering 'Geo' in the search string field. This field is enabled if the <b>Internal</b> option is selected from the <b>In Favour</b> <b>Of</b> section.
Customer Name	[Conditional, Alphanumeric, 120] Type the customer name. This field is enabled and optional if the <b>External</b> option is selected from the <b>In Favour Of</b> section. If the <b>Internal</b> option is selected from the <b>In Favour Of</b> section, then this field displays the full name of the customer.
Customer ID	[Conditional, Numeric, 10] Type the customer ID. This field is enabled and optional if the <b>External</b> option is selected from the <b>In Favour Of</b> section. If the <b>Internal</b> option is selected from the <b>In Favour Of</b> section, then this field displays the customer Id.
Facility Code	

Collateral Code	[Optional, Search List] Select the collateral code from the Search List.
Collateral Name	[Display] This field displays the collateral name based on the collateral code selected in the adjacent field.
Reason For Lien	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the reason for the lien to be marked from the drop-down list.
Propagate	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>Propagate</b> check box for lien other than an external lien.
Principal Lien Amount	[Display] This field displays the principal TD amount on which the lien is imposed. If the lien is imposed on the principal + interest, this column displays the principal amount on which the lien is imposed.
Interest Lien Amount	[Display] This field displays the interest earned on the TD amount on which the lien is marked. If the lien is marked on the principal + interest, then this column displays the interest amount on which the lien is marked else it displays the value as zero.
Link Ref Serial No.	[Optional] Enter the link reference serial number
Serial No.	[Optional] Enter the serial number
Purpose of Lien	[Optional] Enter the purpose of lien

The screen displays the lien placed on account no 703000000012832 for which a lien is being placed. The lien is being placed on the list of deposit under the account. The amount of the lien is displayed for each of the deposit under Lien Principal Amount.

- 7. Click OK.
- 8. The system displays the message "Record Added Authorization Pending". Click OK.
- 9. The lien details are added once the record is authorised.

#### To view the liens marked on an account

- 1. In the Lien Master Maintenance screen, click **Enquiry**.
- 2. Enter the account number and press Tab or Enter key.
- 3. Select the original deposit number from the Search List and the lien type from the list.
- 4. Click Lien Enquiry to view lien master details.

## All Lien Enquiry

All types of lien are maintained in the account.

TD Llen Master       Ad Moth Deele Cancel Annul Aubrices       Concer Cancel Cancel Annul Cancel Cancel Annul Cancel Canc	TDM24 ×				
*Account Number 10000000012882 Account Tile AUTO PERSONT User horverse / Let myse Account Tile AUTO PERSONT * Len Type Account Tile AUTO PERSONT * Len Type Account Tile AUTO PERSONT * Len Type Account Tile AUTO PERSONT * Len Status Live Liens * Creare Details External Lien Maintenance Cuttomer Name AUTO PERSONT Cuttomer Name AUTO PERSONT Cuttomer Name AUTO PERSONT Cuttomer Name AUTO PERSONT Len Annount Len Maintenance Page 1 (0 of 0 Bants) K < 1 > xi	TD Lien Master		Add Modify D	elete Cancel Amend Authorize Enquiry	Copy Ok Close Clear
Customer Name     AUTO PERSON1     Lien Amount       Original Deposit No.     Renewal No.     Deposit No.     Lien No.       Type     Amount     AcctNo./Description     Start Date     Expiry Date       Maturity Instr.     Reason     Propagate     Lien Principal Amt     Lien Int Amt       No data to draping.     -     -     -       Page 1 (0 of 0 items)     K < 1 > xit	* Account Number 7030000000012882 Original Deposit Number 1 Lien Instrument / Account No. All Lien Enquiry	Account Title AUTO PERSON1 UenType   * Len Status Live Liens * Len Status	say CASA d Neo Delais		
Original Deposit No. Renewal No. Deposit No. Lien No. Type Amount Acct No./Description Start Date Expiry Date Maturity Instr. Reason Propagate Lien Principal Amt. Lien Int Amt. Department In Favor of Facility Code Link Ref Sr No. Purpose Of Lien No data to display.	Customer Name AUTO PERSON1		Lien Amount		
Ne data b display. ← Page 1 (0 or 0 (8mms) K < 1 > ×	Original Deposit No. Renewal No. Deposit No. Lien No. Type Al	nount Acct No. / Description Start Date Expiry Date Maturity Instr.	Reason Propagate Lien Principal Amt Lien Int Amt	Department In Favor of Facility Code Link	k Ref Srl No. Purpose Of Lien
Fage 1 (0 of 0 Rems) K < 1 > 3	No data to display.				
Page 1 (0 of 0 fems) K < 1 > 2	<ul> <li>4</li> </ul>				•
	Page 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1 > >				
	Page 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1 > X				
	Page 1 (0 of 0 mms) K < 1 > 1				
	Page 1 (0 of 0 femi) $K < 1 > X$				
	Page 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1 > 3				

Field Name	Description
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Lien Amount	[Display] This field displays the total lien amount placed on the deposit.
Column Name	Description
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit number of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. The renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals, or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number on which the lien is marked.
Lien No.	[Display] This column displays the sequence in which the lien is placed on the deposit.
Туре	[Display] This column displays the type of lien, which is marked on the deposit.
Amount	[Display] This column displays the lien amount marked on the deposit.
AC No / Description	[Display] This column displays the appropriate beneficiary account number in case of internal lien.



	For external lien this field displays the description entered at the time of creation of lien.
Start Date	[Display] This column displays the start date of the lien. The start date is the date on which the lien is marked on the deposit.
Expiry Date	[Display] This column displays the expiry date of the lien.
Maturity Instr.	[Display] This column displays the maturity instruction. A deposit marked for lien is force renewed on maturity irrespective of the maturity instruction defined at the product or account level. The system displays the default maturity instruction as Force Renew.
Reason	[Display] This column displays the reason for the lien to be marked on the deposit. This column displays the reason if the lien is external.
Propagate	[Display] This column displays the propagate option. If the propagate option is enabled for the lien, then the field displays Y. If the <b>Principal + Interest</b> option is selected in the <b>Lien Allowed</b> field at the product level and the <b>Propagate</b> check box is checked at the <b>Collateral</b> level, then this option increases the drawing power of the customer.
	For example, a lien is marked on a TD of 1,00,000 against the drawing power of the CASA account. The drawing power is specified as 50% of the TD. The compounding frequency is yearly and payout is at maturity. For the first year the drawing power of the customer will be 50% of 1,00,000 i.e. 50,000. At the end of the year the customer earns an interest of 5,000, which will be added to the principal because of compounding effect. The principal will now be 1,05,000. Thus, the drawing power will increase to 50% of 1,05,000 i.e. 52,500.
Lien Principal Amount	[Display] This column displays the principal TD amount on which the lien is imposed. If the lien is imposed on the principal + interest, this column displays the principal amount on which the lien is imposed.
Lien Interest Amount	[Display] This column displays the interest earned on the TD amount on which the lien is imposed. If the lien is imposed on the principal + interest, this column displays the interest amount on which the lien is imposed. If the lien is not imposed on the interest this column will be blank.
Department	[Display] This column displays the department name corresponding to the department code maintained for the lien.
In Favour Of	[Display] This column displays the customer name and Id.
Facility Code	[Display]



	This column displays the collateral code and collateral name.
Link Reference Serial No	[Display] This column displays the link reference serial number.
Purpose Of Lien	[Display] This column displays the purpose of lien.
Serial No.	[Display] This column displays the serial number.
Maker ID	[Display] This column displays the maker ID.
Checker ID	[Display] This column displays the checker ID.

The above tab screen displays the amount that is placed under lien. As the deposit is being placed under lien, the maturity instructions is automatically changed to Force Renew.

#### Exercise

For a customer in your bank, select a TD account and for a suitable deposit to be placed under lien. Add the lien and check the lien enquiry screen after approval.



# 1.5 TD028 - TD Block/Unblock Account Status

Using this option you can change the status of the term deposit account using this option. The account can be marked as blocked and the reason for the same can be specified. A blocked account can be unblocked along with the reason for the action.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To block/unblock the account status

- In the Dashboard page, Enter Task code TD028 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TD Block / Unblock Account Status.
- 2. You will be navigated to TD Block / Unblock Account Status screen.

#### TD Block/Unblock Account Status

0028 ×		
D Block / Unblock Account St	atus	Ok Close
* Account No.	703000000019757	
Account Status	Account Open 🔻	
Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1	
Currency	INR 🔻	
Account Blocked		
Reason	12-BANK DECISION	

Field Name	Description	
Account No	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer.	
Account Status	[Display] This field displays the current status of the account. The options are:	
	<ul> <li>Regular - This account is a regular account that is opened for various transactions.</li> </ul>	
	<ul> <li>Account Opened Today - This account is opened on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>	
	Closed - This account is closed.	
	<ul> <li>Account Closed Today - This account has been closed on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>	



	<ul> <li>Unclaimed - This account has remained unclaimed by the customer.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Matured - This account has matured.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Account Blocked - This account is blocked.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Forced Renewal - This account is marked for lien and thus has been force renewed.</li> </ul>
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.
Account Blocked	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>Account Blocked</b> check box to block the account.
Reason	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the reason for blocking the account from the drop-down list. This field is enabled when the Account Blocked check box is selected. The options are:
	Loan Non-repayment
	Others
	Special Customer
	PA Customer

**Note:** The details of the enforcement agency will be displayed, but user can modify the details. If the enforcement agency details are not captured for the old account number then the enforcement agency details will be enabled only when the TD is blocked for legal reason.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **Tab or Enter** key.
- 4. Select the account blocked.
- 5. From the **Reason** list, select the reason for blocking and then click **OK**.
- 6. The system displays following message: "Transaction is complete". Click OK.

#### Screen Description

The above screen displays the current status of TD account no 703000000019757. The account is currently in an unblocked state. By selecting the **Account Blocked** check box the account can be blocked. To unblock the account, the clear the **Account Blocked** check box.

#### Exercise

For an existing account perform a blocking transaction by selecting the **Account Blocked** check box. The maturity instruction of this account will change to Force Renew. Check the maturity instructions after the account is unblocked, it will have the original maturity instructions.



# 1.6 TD043 - TD Certificate Printing

Using this option you can print a certificate of the deposit under a term deposit account. The deposit can be issued and printed denomination wise, either for entire deposit amount or part deposit amount.

For example, For a deposit worth 5000, you can have a single certificate printed in single denomination for full amount or multiple certificates printed in denominations of 500 for entire amount.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### **Modes Available**

Not Applicable

#### To view the TD certificate printing

- In the Dashboard page, Enter Task code TD043 and click Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Certificate Printing.
- 2. The system displays the TD Certificate Printing screen.

#### **TD Certificate Printing**

TD043 ×			
TD Certificate Printing			Print View Ok Close Clear
* Accour	t No. 703000000012862	Account Title	AUTO PERSON1
B	anch MUMBAI 🔻	Product	302 FD-Resident
Principal Ba	ance 5,300.00	Account Currency	INR 🔻
Customer Details Deposit E	etails Certificate Details Denomination Details Inventory Details		
Customer	Name 1 ALITO PERSON1	Sole Owner	
Customer	Name 2	Sole Owner T	
Customer	Name 3	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
N	lominee		
Non	iinee ID		
DO	B Minor		
Curre	unt Date 15/12/2018		
	Address ADD1		
	City PUNE		

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer.
Account Title	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Branch	[Display] This field displays the name of the home branch where the TD account



	is initiated and maintained.
Product	[Display] This field displays the code and name assigned to the TD product, as defined at the product level. This is the product under which the TD account is opened.
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the TD account principal balance i.e. the sum total of the principal balance of all the term deposits held under the TD account.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.

The above screen displays the TD certificate printing details for TD account no 0033200001882 for Mr. John Smith. the certificate is being printed for a deposit under product code 320.

The Customer details tab displays customer name and address information.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the <Tab> or <Enter> key.
- 4. Modify the relevant information in the various tab screens.

## **Customer Details**

The customer details tab provides details of the customer and their relationship with the account.

D043 ×			
TD Certificate Printing			Print View Ok Close Clear
* Account No. 703000000012862	Account Title	AUTO PERSON1	
Branch MUMBAI 🔻	Product	302 FD-Resident	
Principal Balance 5,300.00	Account Currency	INR 🔻	
Customer Details Deposit Details Certificate Details Denomination Details Inventory Details			
Customer Name 1 AUTO PERSON1	Sole Owner 🔻		
Customer Name 2	•		
Customer Name 3	<b>.</b>		
Nominee			
Nominee ID			
DOB Minor			
Current Date 15/12/2018			
Address ADD1			
City PLINE			
City PONE			

#### **Field Description**

Field Name

Description

Customer Name 1	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer and the relationship to the account, as specified while opening an account.
Customer Name 2	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer and the relationship to the account, as specified while opening an account.
Customer Name 3	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer and the relationship to the account, as specified while opening an account.
	[Display]
Nominee	This field displays the name of the nominee, as specified while opening an account, if customer is minor.
	[Display]
Nominee ID	This field displays the id of the nominee, as specified while opening an account, if customer is minor.
DOR Minor	[Display]
DOB Minor	This field displays the date of birth of minor.
Current Data	[Display]
Current Date	This field displays the current process date of the system.
Address	[Display] This field displays the address of the customer.
City	[Display] This field displays the name of the city of the customer.

The above tab screen displays the customer name and address information.

# **Deposit Details**

The deposit details tab provides details of the deposit renewal number, status, deposit amount, etc.



Sertificate Prin	nting								Print View OK	Jose
	* Account No.	70300000001286	2			Account Title	AUTO PERSON	11		
	Branch	MUMBAI	v			Product	302	FD-Resident		
Pr	rincipal Balance	5,300	00		Acco	unt Currency	INR 🔻			
stomer Details	Deposit Details	Certificate Det	ails Denomination Details	Inventory Details						
ficiary Account For	Payout M	ode For Interest	Beneficiary Account For	Selected	Interest Rate	Maturity A	mount in Words	Deposit Term	Annualised Interes	st
ipie			interest	N	3.50	INR Five Th	ousand One	12 Months 12 Days	Tiona(70)	2.6
						Hundred Fi	niv Four Univ			3.0
	Ż			Ν	3.50	INR Three I Only	Jundred Eleven	12 Months 0 Days		3.
				N	3.50	INR Three I	Aundred Eleven	12 Months 0 Days		3.
4				N	3.50	INR Three I	undred Eleven	12 Months 0 Days		3.6
◀ Page 1 of1 (1-2 c	of 2 items) K	<1> х		N	3.50	INR Three Only	undred Eleven	12 Months 0 Days		3.6
◀ Page 1 of 1 (1-2 c	of 2 items) K	< 1 > X		N	3.50	INR Three Only	undred Eleven	12 Months 0 Days		3.6
◀ Page 1 of 1 (1-2 c	of 2 items) K	< <u>1</u> > 3		N	3.50	INR Three I Only	any Four Only	12 Months 0 Days		3.6
◀ Page 1 of 1 (1-2 c	of 2 items) K	< <u>1</u> > X		N	3.50	Hundred El INR Three F Only	any read One	12 Months 0 Days		3.6
◀ Page 1 of 1 (1-2 d	of 2 items) K	K < 1 >		N	3.50	Hunded El	any read One	12 Months 0 Days		3.6
◀ Page 1 of1 (1-2 (	of 2 items) K	< <mark>1</mark> > X		N	3.50	Hunded El	ind year One	12 Months 0 Days		3.6
◀ Page 1 of 1 (1-2 (	of 2 items) K	K < 1 >		N	3.50	Hunded EH INR Three H	In Four Day	12 Months 0 Days		3.6
◀ Page 1 of 1 (1-2 c	of 2 items) K	< 1 > x		N	3.50	Hunded EH INR Three I	in rou Live	12 Months 0 Days		3.

Column Name	Description
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number. The Deposit Number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Status	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the current status of the deposit.</li> <li>The options are: <ul> <li>Open – This deposit is open for various transactions.</li> <li>Opened Today - This deposit is opened on the day of the transaction.</li> <li>Closed - This deposit has been redeemed and thus is closed.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>



	<ul> <li>Closed Today - This deposit has been redeemed and closed on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Unclaimed - This deposit is matured and the grace period has ended. Thus it is transferred to the unclaimed GL account.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Matured - This deposit has matured.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Marked for Lien - This deposit is marked for lien.</li> </ul>
	Blocked - This deposit is blocked.
	<ul> <li>Forced Renewal - This deposit is marked for lien and thus has been force renewed.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Cheque Pending Clearing – This cheque deposited during the TD Payin is pending for clearing.</li> </ul>
Deposit Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the deposit is initiated.
Value Date	[Display] This column displays the value date of the deposit.
Maturity Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the deposit will mature.
Deposit Amount	[Display] This column displays the available principal balance of the term deposit.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This column displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any.
Payout Mode For Principle	[Display] This column displays the payout mode for the principal.
Beneficiary Account For Principle	[Display] This column displays the beneficiary account number for the principal amount.
Payout Mode For Interest	[Display] This column displays the payout mode for interest.
Beneficiary Account For Interest	[Display] This column displays the beneficiary account number for the interest.
Colorated	[Display] This column displays the certificate printing status of the deposit.
Selected	<ul> <li>r - indicates that the deposit is selected for certificate printing.</li> <li>N - Indicates that the deposit is not selected for certificate printing.</li> </ul>
Interest Rate	[Display] This column displays the Interest rate of the deposit.
Maturity Amount in Words	[Display] This column displays the deposit maturity amount in words.

Donosit Torm	[Display]
Deposit renn	This field displays the term of the deposit.
Appualized Interact	[Display]
Yield (%)	This field displays the annualized interest yield for deposits with compounded interest .

The above tab screen displays TD certificate printing details for TD account no 0033200001882 for Mr. John Smith. the certificate is being printed for a deposit under product code 320.

The deposit details tab displays all information on existing deposits, like date of opening, maturity date, maturity amount and current status of the deposit.

The deposit due for printing can be selected by checking the "selected" Tab.

5. Double-click a deposit in the Deposit Details tab to view the Certificate Details tab.

#### **Certificate Details**

The certificate details tab provides various details of the certificate like the date of issue, the type, amount, etc.

TD043 ×	:								
TD Ce	ertificate F	rinting						Print View	Ok Close Clear
	* Account Nie, 70300000002862 Account Tile AUTO PERSON1 Branch MUMBAI								
TD Certificate Printing									
Custo	omer Details	Deposit D	etails Certificate Details	Denomination Details II	nventory Details				
Cer	tificates								
		Deposit I	Number 2						
	Certificate Is	sue Date	Certificate Type	Certificate No.	Deposit Amount	Certificate Amount	Print?		
15	/12/2018		1	1	5000.0	5000.0	Ν		
Pa	ae 1 of 1 (1	of 1 items)	K Z T N N						
•		or ritema)							

#### **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Certificates	
Deposit Number	[Display] This field displays the deposit number. The Deposit Number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.



Column Name	Description
Certificate Issue Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the certificate is issued.
Certificate Type	[Display] This column displays the certificate type. The options are:
	<ul><li>Initial (I)</li><li>Duplicate (D)</li></ul>
Certificate No.	[Display] This column displays the certificate number as specified in the Denominations tab.
Deposit Amount	[Display] This column displays the available principal balance of the term deposit.
Certificate Amount	[Display] This column displays the amount for which the certificate is issued.
Print?	[Toggle] Click the toggle status to Y to print a certificate for a deposit. The default value for toggle status is N.

The above tab screen displays TD certificate printing details for TD account no 0033200001882 for Mr. John Smith. the certificate is being printed for a deposit under product code 320.

The certificate details tab displays inventory details like certificate inventory number, date of issue and amount that will appear on the certificate.

6. Click the + button to navigate to the Denomination Details tab to add a new denomination.

## **Denomination Details**

The denomination details tab provides details of the serial number of the TD amount, denomination of amount, etc.



TD043 ×										
TD Certificate Printing							Prin	t View	Ok Close	Clear
* Account No.	* Account No. 703000000012862 Account Title AUTO PERSON1									
Branch	MUMBAI	T		Pr	oduct	302 FD-	Resident			
Principal Balance	5,300.00			Account Cu	irrency	INR 🔻				
Customer Details Deposit Details	Certificate Details	Denomination Details	Inventory Details							
Original Deposit Numbe	2			Deposit An	nount 5	5000				
Denomination	Series Number	Start No	End No	Total Certificates		Net Amount				
0	0		0 (	0		5000				
Page 1 of 1 (1 of 1 items) K	< 1 > ⊣									
+ Validate										

Field Name	Description
Original Deposit Number	[Display] This field displays the original deposit number. The Deposit Number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Deposit Amount	[Display] This field displays the available principal balance of the term deposit.
Column Name	Description
Denomination	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the denominations of the TD certificate. The certificates will be issued for the specified denomination. For example 500, 100, etc.
Series Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the serial number of the TD certificate. This is the series of the inventory for the certificates you want to print.
Start No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the start number of the series, from which you want to print the certificates. For example, TD certificates for the inventory are in the series of AS123. You want certificates starting from the number 150.
End No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the end number of the series. The system by default displays the start number as the end number.



	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the number of certificates.					
	The system calculates the total certificates based on the start number and end number of the certificates.					
Total Certificates	For example, if you want the certificates in denomination of 500 for a deposit of 5000. You can specify the start number as 100 and the end number as 109. The system calculates the total certificates as 10. This field is editable. The End Number column gets updated if there is any modification in this column.					
Net Amount	[Display] This column displays the net amount for which the certificates will be issued.					
	Net Amount = Denomination X Total Certificate.					

The above tab screen displays TD certificate printing details for TD account no 0033200001882 for Mr. John Smith. The certificate is being printed for a deposit under product code 320.

The "denomination details" tab displays the various denominations in which the certificates are being issued. The deposit is currently being partly held in denominations of 10,000 each.

#### Exercise

For an existing TD account select a deposit for certificate printing. The deposit can be printed on the basis of denominations that have predefined or as a single certificate or the entire amount.

## **Inventory Details**

The inventory details tab displays information about the stock code, issuer code, etc.

0043 ×									
D Certificate Printing						Print	<b>View</b> Ok	Close	Clear
* Account No. [ Branch [ Principal Balance [	70300000012862 MUMBAI • 5,300.00 Cardificato Detaile	Inventory Details	Acc Account	Product 302 Currency INR	PERSON1 FD-Resident				
Stock Code Issure Code	<ul> <li>TD</li> <li>98001</li> </ul>		Stock S Curren	ub Type 0 cy Code 1					

#### **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Stock Code	[Display] This field displays the stock code of the TD certificate.
Stock Sub Type	[Optional, Numeric, 40] Type the sub type of the stock.
Issuer Code	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 22]



Type the code of the issuer who has issued the stock.

[Optional, Alphanumeric, 22]

**Currency Code** Type the code of the currency in which the stock is issued.

- 7. Enter the required information in the Denomination Details tab and click the Validate button.
- 8. The system displays the Certificate Details tab. Click the OK button.
- 9. The system displays the message "Authorization required. Do You Want to continue?". Click the OK button.
- 10. The system displays the Authorization Reason screen.
- 11. Enter the required information and click the OK button.
- 12. The system displays the message "Authorisation Successful". Click the OK button.
- 13. Click the Print button to print the certificate. For reference, below is the print certificate. OR

Click the Close button.



Deposit Value Date :01/11/2018

Date of Maturity :13/11/2019

Time Deposit Term :12 Months 12 Days

Product Name :FD-Resident

Branch Code: 98001

Branch :MUMBAI

Deposit Amount :INR5,000.00 Maturity Amount :INR5,184.00 Certificate Amount :INR5,000.00 FIVE THOUSAND ONLY INR Five Thousand One Hundred Eighty Four Only FIVE THOUSAND ONLY

Rate of Interest : 3.50% Annualised Interest :3.57%

Certificate No: 1 Deposit No: 2 Org Deposit No:2 Account No: 703000000012862 Cust Id: 990100260 ADD1, PUNE AUTO PERSONI - Sole Owner



# 1.7 TDM05 - TD Account CBR Codes Maintenance

CBR Codes are user-defined categories to classify customer i.e. accounts for Central Bank reporting purpose. Defining these categories facilitates generating exclusive MIS reports over and above the standard reports available within **Oracle FLEXCUBE**.

Using this option you can link the accounts of customers to the defined categories or CBR codes, as for example Customer Code, Region, Sector, etc.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- CHM01 CASA Product Master
- BA080 CBR PickLists Maintenance
- BA078 CBR Label Maintenance
- After defining the TD Product, TD Product Rates must be defined for the newly defined TD Product.

#### Modes Available

Add, Modify, Delete, Cancel, Amend, Authorize, Enquiry. For more information on the procedures of every mode, refer to **Standard Maintenance Procedures**.

#### To add a TD account CBR code

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code TDM05 and click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TD Account CBR Codes Maintenance.
- 2. The system displays the **TD Account CBR Codes Maintenance** screen.

#### **TD Account CBR Codes Maintenance**

TDM05 ×		
TD Account CBR Codes Maintenance		Add Modify Delete Cancel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close Clear
* Account No 703000000011539 Account Currency INR V Account Status Account Open Regular V		Customer Name         AUTO PERSON1           Branch Name         99001         MUMBAJ           Product Name         304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp.         ▼
Label Id	Descriptio Label	Date
Label Id No items to display.	Description         Label           No flems to display.         No flems to display.           Page 1 (0 of 0 flems)         K < (1)	Date

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number for which you want to assign a CBR code.



Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the customer name based on the account number
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the TD account currency.
Branch Name	[Display] This field displays the branch code and branch name where the TD account is opened and maintained.
Account Status	[Display] This field displays the account status. For example, Account Opened Today, Account Closed, etc.
Product Name	[Display] This field displays the product name under which the TD account is initiated.
Label	[Display] This field displays the description of the CBR label. The system maintains a Search List of the labels.
ID	[Editable/ Search List] Enter or select the ID from the Search List.
Description	[Display] This field displays the description for the selected Id.
Label	[Display] Label is a description of the CBR label.
Date	[Search List] This field displays the date maintained for the TD.

- 3. Click the Add button.
- 4. Enter the account number and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key.
- 5. Enter the required information in the various fields.
- 6. Click the **OK** button.
- 7. The system displays the message "Record Added...Authorization Pending...Click Ok to Continue". Click the **OK** button.
- 8. The account reporting codes are added once the record is authorised.

The above screen displays the central bank reporting (CBR) codes for term deposit number 703000000011539 for Mr. Auto Person 1. The account is held at the Mumbai branch and the currency of the account is INR.

On the basis of the CBR requirements for the bank the suitable CBR codes can be attached to the account. These CBR codes can be used to pull data for various regulatory and internal reporting processes.

#### Example

For an account created by you, attach the predefined CBR codes. These codes can then be used to pull data for various reporting purposes.



# 1.8 TDM48 - TD Backdated Interest Rate Change Maintenance

Using this option, you can change the interest rate variance of an existing deposit with effect from a back date or from the current date. You cannot change the interest rate to be effective from a future date. You have the option to give a positive or a negative variance on the existing deposit rate in the screen.

This variance has to be within the interest variance limit defined at the product level. Also, after giving the variance the new interest rate should fall within the minimum and maximum interest rate range defined at the product level.

The backdated interest rate change will not be permitted prior to the following

- Last Interest Payout date
- Last Interest Compounding date
- Last Financial year end
- On the day of Pay In of a deposit.
- Value date of the deposit- The date from which the interest will be calculated for a deposit (in case of backdated account opening )
- Deposits with 'Open Today' status
- Interest start date The date from which the interest calculations will start from a new TD
- · Last part Redemption date of the related deposit.

The system will allow both backdated interest rate change and the term deposit redemption on the same day. However, backdated interest rate change will not be allowed for Annuity Deposit products. PMI rate changes will not be allowed for this type of change. If a sweep in maintenance exists on the deposit i.e. if the deposit is linked as a sweep in provider to a CASA account, the backdated interest rate change will not be allowed for such a deposit.

**Example**: Consider the interest rate details for a deposit are as follows:

- Interest Rate 6% Interest Variance +1%
- Product variance +2% Net Effective rate 9%
- Interest Variance set at Product level -5 to +5 (In Percentage)
- Minimum & Maximum Interest rate for the Product 2 to 12 (In Percentage)
- · Accrual Frequency Monthly · Interest Payout Frequency Quarterly
- Last Accrual date 31st Oct 2019
- Last Interest Payout date 30th Sep 2019
- Current date 15th Nov 2019
- On 15th Nov 2019, the user wants to change the interest rate for the said deposit with effect from a back date i.e. from 20th Oct 2019. The user increases the interest variance by 2% w.e.f. 20th Oct 2019 and the Interest variance field will be modified to +3%. The Net Effective interest rate will become 11% for the deposit. In the EOD process, FLEXCUBE will recalculate the accrued interest as per the new interest rate for the period from 20th to 31st Oct, and the adjustment entries will be passed. On 30th Nov, the regular accrual will happen for the month of November with the new interest rate.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### **Other Prerequisites**

Not Applicable



#### Modes Available

Add, Delete, Cancel, Amend Authorize, Enquiry, Copy. For more information on the procedures of every mode, refer to **Standard Maintenance Procedures**.

#### To add backdated interest rate change details

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TDM48 and click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TD Backdated Interest Rate Change Maintenance.
- 2. The system displays the TD Backdated Interest Rate Change Maintenance screen.

#### **TD Backdated Interest Rate Change Maintenance**

TDM48 ×												
TD Backdated Interest Rate Change Maintenance			Add	Modify	Delete	Cancel	Amend	Authorize	Enquiry	Сору	Ok Close	Clear
* Account No.	703000000020218	AUTO PERSON		* De	posit No.	2		٩,				
* Effective Date	15/12/2018	0,			Product	301-FD-R	esident					
Customer Name	AUTO PERSON			Cus	stomer ID	99010001	1					
Branch	Demo				Currency	INR						
Last Compounding Date	30/11/2018		La	ist Redemp	tion Date	01/01/180	0 🛗					
Last Interest Payout Date	30/11/2018			Interest S	Start Date	30/11/201	8 🛗					
Interest Rate	20.00000	20.00000		Scheme Rate		0.00000		1				
* Interest Variance	1.00000		Scheme Variance		0.00000		Þ					
Product Variance	2.00000			Net Effective Rate		23.00000		)				

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer.
Deposit No.	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the deposit number from the Search List for which the backdated variance has to be applied. The system will show a Search List of only those deposits of the chosen account which are existing (regular, blocked/lien). Closed or matured deposits will not be available in the Search List.
Effective Date	[Mandatory, Date Picker] Select the date from which the backdated interest rate change should be applicable from the Date Picker. The date can be modified to a back date, but not to a future date. In Enquiry mode, user will be able to choose a date from the Search List. The Search List will only have those dates on which the interest rate change has been done for the deposit.
Product	[Display] This field displays the product under which the TD account is opened.
Customer Name	[Display]



	This field displays the name of the customer.
Customer ID	[Display] This field displays the customer Id of the entered account number.
Branch	[Display] This field displays the branch of the TD account.
Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency of the entered TD account.
Last Compounding Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the last compounding occurred.
Last Redemption Date	[Display] This field displays the last part redemption date for the deposit.
Last Interest Payout Date	[Display] This field displays the last interest payout date for the deposit.
Interest Start Date	[Display] This field displays the interest start date for the deposit.
Interest Rate	[Display] This field displays the interest rate linked to the index code attached to the deposit.
Scheme Rate	[Display] This field displays the interest rate applicable on the scheme.
Interest Variance	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three, Six] Type the interest variance. This field by default displays the deposit level variance given at the time of deposit opening. For doing a backdated interest rate change, enter a positive or a negative variance in this field. Positive or negative variance given in this field has to be within the variance defined at the product level. If a variance already exists which is to be modified, the new data input will override the existing variance.
Scheme Variance	[Display] This field displays the interest variance applicable on the scheme. For more details, Refer to <b>Relationship Pricing User Manual</b> .
Product Variance	[Display] This field displays the interest variance defined at the product level for the slab in which TD principal balance and term fits in.
Net Effective Rate	[Display] This field displays the net interest rate which is paid for the deposit. Net Effective = Interest rate + Interest Variance + Product Variance
3. Click the Add buttor	ì.

4. Type the account number and select the deposit number from the Search List.

TD Backdated Interest Rate Change Maintenance



TDM48 ×												
TD Backdated Interest Rate	Change Mainter	nance	Add	Modify	Delete	Cancel	Amend	Authorize	Enquiry	Сору	Ok Clos	e Clear
* Account No.	703000000020218	AUTO PERSON		• D	eposit No.	2		0				
* Effective Date	15/12/2018	0			Product	301-FD-F	tesident					
Customer Name	AUTO PERSON			Cu	istomer ID	9901000	11					
Branch	Demo				Currency	INR						
Last Compounding Date	30/11/2018		La	ist Redem	ption Date	01/01/18	00					
Last Interest Payout Date	30/11/2018			Interest	Start Date	30/11/20	18 🛗					
Interest Rate	20.00000			Sch	neme Rate		0.0000	D				
* Interest Variance	1.00000			Scheme	e Variance		0.0000	D				
Product Variance	2.00000			Net Effe	ctive Rate		23.0000	D				

- 5. Enter a positive / negative variance in the Interest Variance field as required.
- 6. Click the **Ok** button.
- 7. The system displays the message "Record Added....Authorisation Pending". Click the **Ok** button.
- 8. The backdated interest rate change details are added once the record is authorised.



# 2. Payin Processing



# 2.1 1007 - TD Quick Payin By CASA

Using this option you can transfer funds from the customer's CASA account to fund a plain transaction for a term deposit account. This option offers a quicker solution to the pay-in requirement for the teller.

Based on the computed transaction amount, **FLEXCUBE** will check funds availability in the casa account. In case of insufficient funds in the casa, **FLEXCUBE** will demand a supervisor override for creating TOD / Overline in the casa account.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening
- 8051 CASA Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To make quick payin through CASA

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code 1007 and click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Transfer > TD Quick Payin By CASA.
- 2. You will be navigated to the TD Quick Payin By CASA screen.

## TD Quick Payin By CASA

TD Quick Payin by CASA				Close Clear
* Account Number		Account Ccy	•	
Principal Balance	▼	* Acy Rate		
* CASA Account Number		C Txn Amount		
* Txn Coy	¥	* Txn Rate		
* Payin Amount		* Int Payout Frequency	•	
* Base for Rate	Incremental Amount	* Compounding Frequency	•	
Maturity Date Factor	Term Maturity Date			
Term		Rate		
* Value Date	15/12/2018	Interest Rate		
* Term	Months Days	Product Variance	0.00000	
* Int Start Date	15/12/2018	* Deposit Variance	0.00000	
* Maturity Date	15/12/2018	Net Rate		
Next Int Pay Date	15/12/2018	Scheme Variance	0.00000	
Maturity Amount		Scheme Rate	0.00000	
Deposit Number		Annual Equivalent Rate		
User Ref No.		Next Int Comp. Date	15/12/2018	
* Txn Narrative	Initial Payin FD -			
* Business Acquirer ID	TRANGA03			
# Maturity Amount is calculated without consid	lering tax.			
Payout Instruction Details				
* Interest Payout Mode	¥	* Maturity Instructions		¥
* Pay Mode	¥			



Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number in which you want to do payin.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the available principal balance of the deposit.
Acy Rate	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three] Type the rate at which the TD account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. If the TD account currency is INR, this field displays the rate at which the TD account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank.
Casa Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 14, Search List] Type the CASA account number or select it from the Search List. The name of the account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the transaction amount.
Txn Ccy	[Display] This field displays the amount in the transaction currency.
Txn Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank.
Payin Amount	[Mandatory, Numeric,13,Two] Type the payin amount to be debited from the CASA account in the TD account currency.
Int Payout Frequency	[Conditional, Drop down] This field displays the Payout Frequency as per the product level. Payout Frequency will be enabled and mandatory for Payout type TDs only. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Monthly and disabled.
Base for Rate	[Mandatory, Drop down] Select the base for rate. The options are: Incremental Amount
	Cumulative For The Deposit
	Cumulative For All Deposits
	If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Incremental Amount and disabled.
Compounding	[Display]

Frequency	This field displays the Compounding Frequency as per the product level.
Maturity Date Factor	[Mandatory , Radio Button] Click on the required maturity date factor. The options are:
	• Term
	Maturity Date
Term	
The below fields are enable	ed if <b>Term</b> option is selected in the <b>Maturity Date Factor</b> field.
Value Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the value date of the TD from the Date editor. The value date signifies the date from which the life of the TD starts i.e. the date from which the TD is effective. By default it displays the process date. It can also be a previous date.
Term	[Mandatory, Numeric , Four] Type the term in months and days for which the TD is being created. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits and should be equivalent to the incremental term that is specified at the product level.
Int Start Date	[Display] This field displays the date which is same as the <b>Value Date</b> .
Maturity Date	[Mandatory, dd/mm/yyyy] Type the maturity date of the TD. This field is enabled if the <b>Maturity Date</b> option is selected in the <b>Maturity Date Factor</b> section.
Rate	
Interest Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of interest for the new TD account.
Product Variance	[Display] This field displays the product variance. The product variance is the interest variance defined at the product level for the slab in which TD principal balance and term fits in.
Deposit Variance	[Mandatory, Numeric, Two, Five] Type the interest variance for the new term deposit created under the new TD account. The variance specified should be within the minimum and maximum variance specified at the product level. Based on the product definition made for the field <b>Auto/ Force Renew</b> <b>With Deposit Variance</b> in the option <b>TD Product Master</b> (Task Code: TDM01), the deposit variance will be carried forward to the deposits created by auto / force renewal.
Net Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the interest is paid against the deposit. Net Rate = Interest Rate (At deposit level) + Deposit Variance + Product Variance



	The net rate should be within the minimum and maximum interest rate, specified at the product level.
Next Int Pay Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest payable date.
Scheme Variance	[Display] This field displays the scheme variance.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This field displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any. This field will be displayed as zero if the product Class is annuity.
Annuity Amount	[Display] This field displays the annuity amount that will be payed to the customer on the payout frequency for the annuity deposit type of account.
Scheme Rate	[Display] This field displays the scheme rate.
Deposit Number	[Display] This field displays the deposit number. The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate.
User Ref No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number.
Next Int Comp. Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest compounded date.
Txn. Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration for the transaction. By default, the system displays <b>Payin By CASA</b> .
Business Acquirer ID	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the business acquirer ID, to save the business acquirer details for the particular transaction, from the Search List. The system by default displays the ID of the teller who has logged in. The Search List displays the list of users linked to the system.
Payout Instructions Deta	ails
Interest Payout Mode	[Mandatory , Drop-Down] Select the interest payout mode from the drop-down list. The options are:
	Pay By Cheque
	Transfer to CASA Account
	Transfer to GL Account



Interest Payout CASA	[Conditional, Numeric, 14] Type the CASA account number to which the interest payout is to be transferred. The name of CASA account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to Savings Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Interest Payout Mode</b> drop-down list.				
Interest Payout GL	[Conditional, Numeric, 10] Type the GL account number to which the interest payout is to be transferred. The name of GL account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to GL Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Interest Payout Mode</b> drop-down list.				
Maturity Instructions	[Mandatory , Drop-Down] Select the maturity instructions from the drop-down list. If it is an interest payout product, (interest payout frequency other than at maturity), then, The options displayed will be:				
	No Instructions				
	<ul> <li>Redeem Principal - In this case, Principal will be redeemed at Maturity</li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>Renew Principal - In this case, Principal will be renewed at Maturity</li> </ul>				
	If interest payout is at maturity), then, The options displayed will be:				
	No Instructions				
	<ul> <li>Redeem Principal and Interest - In this case, Principal and Interest will be redeemed at Maturity</li> </ul>				
	<ul> <li>Renew Principal &amp; Interest – In this case, principal will be renewed. Any pending interest will get added to principal provided flag 'Add pending interest to Principal on Maturity' is checked.</li> </ul>				
	Renew Principal and Redeem Interest - In this case, Principal will be renewed and Interest will be redeemed at Maturity.				
	Maturity amount gets captured at the time of payin to TD account. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Redeem Principal and will be disabled.				
Pay Mode	[Conditional, Drop-Down] Select the mode of payment from the drop-down list. The options are:				
	No Instructions				
	Pay By Cheque				
	Transfer to Savings Account				
	Transfer to GL Account				



	This field is enabled, if <b>Redeem Principal</b> option is selected from the <b>Maturity Instructions</b> drop-down list.
	If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.
Payout CASA	[Conditional, Numeric, 16] Type the CASA account number to which the payout is to be transferred. The name of CASA account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to Savings Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Pay Mode</b> drop-down list. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.
Payout GL	[Conditional, Numeric, 14] Type the GL account number to which the payout is to be transferred. The name of GL account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to GL Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Pay Mode</b> drop-down list. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **<Tab>**/Enter key.
- 4. Select the CASA account number from the Search List.
- 5. Enter the payin amount.
- 6. Click on the appropriate maturity date factor.
- 7. Enter the other relevant details in the Term and Rate tab.
- 8. Enter the relevant information in **Payout Instructions Details** tab.

#### **TD Quick Payin By CASA**

<u>1007</u> ×				
TD Quick Payin by CASA				Close Clear
* Account Number		Account Ccy	•	
Principal Balance	<b>T</b>	* Acy Rate		
* CASA Account Number		C Txn Amount		
* Txn Ccy	•	* Txn Rate		
* Payin Amount		* Int Payout Frequency	•	
* Base for Rate	Incremental Amount	* Compounding Frequency	•	
Maturity Date Factor	Term Maturity Date			
Term		Rate		
* Value Date	15/12/2018	Interest Rate		
* Term	Months Days	Product Variance	0.00000	
* Int Start Date	15/12/2018	* Deposit Variance	0.00000	
* Maturity Date	15/12/2018	Net Rate		
Next Int Pay Date	15/12/2018	Scheme Variance	0.00000	
Maturity Amount		Scheme Rate	0.00000	
Deposit Number		Annual Equivalent Rate		
User Ref No.		Next Int Comp. Date	15/12/2018	
* Txn Narrative	Initial Payin FD -			
* Business Acquirer ID	TRANGA03			
# Maturity Amount is calculated without consi	dering tax.			
Payout Instruction Details				
* Interest Payout Mode	T	* Maturity Instructions		¥
* Pay Mode	<b>*</b>			



- 9. Click Cheque button. The system displays the Cheque Details screen.
- 10. Click the **Validate** button. The system displays the message "Validation Procedure Completed".
- 11. Click the Ok button. The system displays the Quick payin By CASA screen.
- 12. Click the **Ok** button.
- 13. The system displays the transaction sequence number. Click the **Ok** button.
- 14. The system displays the **Document Receipt** screen.
- 15. If you want to print the receipt, select the record that needs to be printed. The system displays the message "Do you want to print the document". Click the **Yes** button. OR
  OR

Click the Cancel button.



# 2.2 1021 - TD Quick Payin By GL

Using this option you can transfer funds from GL account to make a pay in to a term deposit account. The GL account will be debited for the transaction amount in the TCY.

This option offers a quicker solution to the pay-in requirement for the teller.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening
- GLM02 Chart of Accounts

#### **Modes Available**

Not Applicable

#### To transfer fund from GL account

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code 1021 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Transfer > TD Quick Payin By GL.
- 2. You will be navigated to the TD Quick Payin By GL screen.

#### **TD Quick Payin by GL**

1021 ×				
TD Quick Payin by GL				
* Account Number			Account Ccy	v
* Principal Balance	v		* Acy Rate	
* GL Account Number			Txn Ccy	•
Txn Amount			* Txn Rate	
* Payin Amount			* Int Payout Frequency	•
* Base for Rate	Incremental Amount		* Compounding Frequency	•
Maturity Date Factor	Term Maturity Date			
Term			Rate	
Value Date	30/11/2018		Interest Rate	
* Term	Months	Days	Product Variance	0.00000
* Int Start Date	30/11/2018		* Deposit Variance	0.00000
* Maturity Date	30/11/2018		Net Rate	
Next Int Pay Date	30/11/2018		Scheme Variance	0.00000
Maturity Amount			Scheme Rate	0.00000
Deposit Number			Annual Equivalent Rate	
User Reference No.			Next Int Comp Date	01/01/1800
* Txn Narrative	Initial Payin By GL			
* Business Acquirer ID	TRANGA03			
# Maturity Amount is calculated without	ut considering tax.			
Payout Instruction Details				
* Interest Payout Mode	<b>T</b>			
* Maturity Instructions	<b>T</b>			
* Pay Mode	•			

Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number for which the pay-in is to be done.
Account Ccy	[Display]


	This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the available principal balance of the deposit. The principal currency is displayed in the adjacent field.
Acy Rate	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three] Type the rate at which the TD account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. If the TD account currency is INR, this field displays the rate at which the TD account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank.
GL Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric] Enter a valid GL account number. The TD payin amount will be transferred from this account.
Txn Ccy	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the GL account currency in which the pay-in will be done from the drop-down list. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the GL account currency is converted into the account currency, based on the defined transaction rate.
Txn Rate	[Conditional, Numeric, Three] Type the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. If the transaction currency is set to non INR, this field will default to an appropriate exchange rate with respect to local currency. If the transaction currency is INR and EUR this field will not be allowed to be edited. This field is default to 1 when transaction currency is INR. This field is enabled for editing if the option other than <b>INR</b> and <b>EUR</b> is selected in <b>Txn Ccy</b> drop-down list.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the transaction amount.
Payin Amount	[Mandatory, Numeric,13, Two] Type the payin amount to be debited from the CASA account in the TD account currency.
Int Payout Frequency	[Conditional, Drop down] This field displays the Payout Frequency as per the product level. Payout Frequency will be enabled and mandatory for Payout type TDs only. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Monthly and disabled.
Base for rate	[Mandatory, Drop down] Select the base for rate value. The options are:
	Incremental Amount     Cumulative For The Deposit

	Cumulative For All Deposits
	If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Incremental Amount and disabled.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the Compounding Frequency as per the product level.
Maturity Date Factor	[Mandatory , Radio Button] Click the required maturity date factor. The options are:
	• Term
	Maturity Date
Term	
The below fields are enable	ed if the <b>Term</b> option is selected in the <b>Maturity Date Factor</b> field.
Value Date	[Mandatory, Date editor] This field displays the value date of the TD. The value date signifies the date from which the life of the TD starts i.e. the date from which the TD is effective.
Term	[Mandatory, Numeric , Four] Type the term in months and days for which the TD is being initiated. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits and should be equivalent to the incremental term that is specified at the product level.
Int. Start Date	[Display] This field displays the interest start date which is same as the value date.
Maturity Date	[Display] This field displays the maturity date. This field is enabled if <b>Maturity Date</b> option is selected in <b>Maturity Date</b> <b>Factor</b> field.
Rate	
Interest Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of interest for the new TD account.
Product Variance	[Display] This field displays the product variance. The product variance is the interest variance defined at the product level for the slab in which TD principal balance and term fits in.
Deposit Variance	[Mandatory, Numeric, Two, Five] Type the interest variance for the new term deposit initiated under the new TD account. The variance specified should be within the minimum and maximum variance specified at the product level. Based on the product definition made for the field <b>Auto/ Force Renew</b> <b>With Deposit Variance</b> in the option <b>TD Product Master</b> (Task Code: TDM01), the deposit variance will be carried forward to the deposits created by auto / force renewal.
Net Rate	[Display]



	This field displays the rate at which the interest is paid against the deposit.
	Net Rate = Interest Rate (At deposit level) + Deposit Variance + Product Variance
	The net rate should be within the minimum and maximum interest rate, specified at the product level.
Scheme Variance	[Display] This field displays the interest variance applicable on the scheme.
Scheme Rate	[Display] This field displays the interest rate applicable on the scheme.
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. AER (Annual Equivalent Rate) is the annualized rate of return which the bank pays to the customer. It is a regulatory requirement that the bank publishes the AER for the entire deposits product as a part of the product brochures as well as when interest is finally paid out to the customer, the AER is to be published along with the actual interest rate which is paid to the customer. So for all deposits, including CASA, Term Deposits, Notice and structured deposits AER should be computed and displayed. The calculation of the AER depends on the number of compounding cycles and also the rate of the deposit. AER is calculated at the time of account opening. AER is re-calculated whenever there is a change in the interest rate for the deposits.
Next Int. Pay Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest due date. Depending on the Interest Payout Frequency interval specified, the system calculates the next interest due date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Payout Date = 31/03/2019.
Next Int. Comp Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest compounding date. Depending on the Interest Compounding Frequency duration specified, the system calculates the next interest compounding date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Compounding Date = 31/01/2019.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This field displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any. This field will be displayed as zero if the product Class is annuity.
Annuity Amount	[Display] This field displays the annuity amount that will be payed to the customer on the payout frequency for the annuity deposit type of account.
Deposit Number	[Display] This field displays the deposit number. The Deposit Number signifies the number of deposits opened in an



	account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
User Reference No.	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number in this field.
Txn. Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 120] Type the narration for the transaction. The system displays the default narration "Payin By GL". You can modify the narration, if required.
Business Acquirer ID	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the business acquirer ID, to save the business acquirer details for the particular transaction, from the Search List. The system by default displays the ID of the teller who has logged in. The Search List displays the list of users linked to the system.
Payout Instructions Det	ails
Interest Payout Mode	[Mandatory , Drop-Down] Select the interest payout mode from the drop-down list. The options are:
	Pay By Cheque
	Transfer to CASA Account
	Transfer to GL Account
Interest Payout CASA	[Conditional, Numeric, 14] Type the CASA account number to which the interest payout is to be transferred. The name of CASA account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to CASA Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Interest Payout Mode</b> drop-down list.
Interest Payout GL	[Conditional, Numeric, 10] Type the GL account number to which the interest payout is to be transferred. The name of GL account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to GL Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Interest Payout Mode</b> drop-down list.
Maturity Instructions	<ul> <li>[Mandatory , Drop-Down]</li> <li>Select the maturity instructions from the drop-down list.</li> <li>If it is an interest payout product, (interest payout frequency other than at maturity), then,</li> <li>The options displayed will be: <ul> <li>No Instructions</li> <li>Redeem Principal - In this case, Principal will be redeemed at Maturity</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
	Renew Principal - In this case, Principal will be renewed at Maturity



	The options displayed will be:		
	No Instructions		
	<ul> <li>Redeem Principal and Interest - In this case, Principal and Interest will be redeemed at Maturity</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Renew Principal &amp; Interest – In this case, principal will be renewed. Any pending interest will get added to principal provided flag 'Add pending interest to Principal on Maturity' is checked.</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Renew Principal and Redeem Interest - In this case, Principal will be renewed and Interest will be redeemed at Maturity.</li> </ul>		
	Maturity amount gets captured at the time of payin to TD account. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Redeem Principal and will be disabled.		
Pay Mode	[Conditional, Drop-Down] Select the mode of payment from the drop-down list. The options are:		
	Pay By Cheque		
	Transfer to CASA Account		
	Transfer to GL Account		
	This field is enabled, if <b>Redeem Principal</b> option is selected from the <b>Maturity Instructions</b> drop-down list. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.		
Payout CASA	[Conditional, Numeric, 16] Type the CASA account number to which the payout is to be transferred. The name of CASA account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to Savings Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Pay Mode</b> drop-down list. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.		
Payout GL	[Conditional, Numeric, 14] Type the GL account number to which the payout is to be transferred. The name of GL account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to GL Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Pay Mode</b> drop-down list. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.		
3. Enter the account nu	imber and press the <b><tab> or <enter></enter></tab></b> key.		
4. Enter the GL account	it number.		
5. Enter the payin amo	unt.		
6 Soloct the compound	Calact the compounding frequency, interact negative traditional and have for rate from the draw		

- 6. Select the compounding frequency, interest payout frequency and base for rate from the dropdown list.
- 7. Click on the appropriate maturity date factor.

- 8. Enter the other relevant details in the Term and Rate tab.
- 9. Enter the relevant information in **Payout Instructions Details** tab.

# TD Quick Payin by GL

1021 ×					
TD Quick Payin by GL					Close
* Account Number	703000000012872	AUTO PERSON1	Account Ccy	INR <b>v</b>	
* Principal Balance	INR 🔻	₹77,000.00	* Acy Rate	1.00000	
* GL Account Number	244200204	NEFT Inward Settlement GL	Txn Ccy	INR 🔻	
Txn Amount	₹10,000.00		* Txn Rate	1.00000	
* Payin Amount	₹10,000.00		* Int Payout Frequency	At Maturity 🔻	
* Base for Rate	Incremental Amount	•	* Compounding Frequency	Quarterly 🔻	
Maturity Date Factor	Term	Maturity Date			
Term			Rate		
Value Date	30/11/2018		Interest Rate	3.50000	
* Term	12	Months 0 Days	Product Variance	0.00000	
* Int Start Date	30/11/2018		* Deposit Variance	0.00000	
* Maturity Date	20/12/2019		Net Rate	3.50000	
Next Int Pay Date	20/12/2019		Scheme Variance	0.00000	
Maturity Amount	₹10,375.00		Scheme Rate	0.00000	
Deposit Number			Annual Equivalent Rate	3.54621	
User Reference No.			Next Int Comp Date	28/02/2019	
* Txn Narrative	Initial Payin By GL				
* Business Acquirer ID	TRANGA03	0			
# Maturity Amount is calculated without	it considering tax.				
Payout Instruction Details					
* Interest Payout Mode		•			
* Maturity Instructions	Renew Principal and	interest v			
		Ŧ			

- 10. Click **OK**.
- 11. The system displays the message "Deposit Number has been created". Click the **OK** button.
- 12. The system displays the **Document Receipt** screen.
- If you want to print the receipt, select the record that needs to be printed. The system displays the message "Do you want to print the document". Click Yes.
   OR
   Click Cancel

Click Cancel.

14. The system displays the serial number. It is generated by the system. Click **OK**.



# 2.3 1402 - TD Quick Payin by Cash

Using this option, you can deposit cash in the customer's term deposit account as pay-in. Depending on the transaction amount computed, **FLEXCUBE** will validate if the cash amount received in the TCY breaches the drawer upper limit set for the teller performing the transaction set at the teller template. **FLEXCUBE** will give an alert after the transaction completion to the effect that the excess cash would need to be sold to the vault teller

This option offers a quicker solution for term deposit pay-in.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

## Modes Available

Not Applicable

## To perform quick payin by cash

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code 1402 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Cash > Quick Payin by Cash.
- 2. You will be navigated to the Quick Payin by Cash screen.

# **Quick Payin by Cash**

<u>1402</u> ×					
TD Quick Payin by Cash				$\equiv$	Ok Close Clear
* Account Number		Account Ccy	•		
Principal Balance	<b>*</b>	* Txn Ccy	Ŧ		
Acy Rate		* Txn Rate			
* Payin Amount		Txn Amount			
* Compounding Frequency	T	* Int Payout Frequency	Ŧ		
* Base for Rate	Incremental Amount	Existing PAN/Aadhaar Reference:			
PAN/Aadhaar No. for Transaction:		Form 60/61 :	Ŧ		
Maturity Date Factor	Term Maturity Date				
Term		Rate			
Volue Date	15/100000	interest Date	0.00000		
value Date	15/12/2018	Interest Rate	0.00000		
Let Oted Date	0 Months 0 Days	Product variance	0.00000		
Int Start Date	15/12/2018	Deposit Variance	0.00000		
Maturity Date	15/12/2018	Nel Rate	0.00000		
Next Int Pay Date	13/12/2018	Scheme Variance	0.00000		
Maturity Amount	0.00	Scheme Rate	0.00000		
Deposit Number		Annual Equivalent Rate	0.00000		
User Rei No.		Next Int Comp. Date	01/01/1800		
Dusiana Association ID					
# Maturity amount is calculated without cons	idering tax				
Payout Instruction Details					
* Interest Payout Mode	<b>.</b>				
* Maturity Instructions	τ				
* Pay Mode	Ŧ				

Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number in which you want to do the pay-in from CASA account. The name of the account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
Account Ccy	[Display]



	This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD, the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the principal balance of the TD account. Principal balance is the sum of the principal amount of all the deposits, falling under a single TD account. The account currency is displayed in the adjacent field.
Txn Ccy	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the TD account currency where the payin is against cash or GL from the drop-down list. This is the currency in which the transaction has to be done.
	Note: In case the TCY is not linked to the GL for GL as a payin mode, <b>FLEXCUBE</b> will give appropriate error message on tab out of the field
Acy Rate	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three] Type the rate at which the TD account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. If the TD account currency is INR, this field displays the rate at which the TD account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank.
Txn Rate	[Conditional, Numeric, Three] Type the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. If the transaction currency is set to non INR, this field will default to an appropriate exchange rate with respect to local currency. If the transaction currency is INR and EUR this field will not be allowed to be edited. This field is default to 1 when transaction currency is INR. This field is enabled for editing if the option other than <b>INR</b> and <b>EUR</b> is selected in <b>Txn Ccy</b> drop-down list.
Payin Amount	[Mandatory, Numeric, 13 ,Two] Type the payin amount to be debited from the CASA account in the TD account currency.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the transaction amount in the transaction currency.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the Compounding Frequency as per the product level.
Int Payout Frequency	[Conditional, Drop down] This field displays the Payout Frequency as per the product level. Payout Frequency will be enabled and mandatory for Payout type TDs only. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Monthly and disabled.
Base for Rate	[Mandatory, Drop down] Select the base for rate. The options are: • Incremental Amount
	Cumulative For The Deposit



	Cumulative For All Deposits
	If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Incremental Amount and disabled.
Existing PAN / Aadhaar Reference	[Display] This field displays the PAN number / Aadhaar Reference number of primary customer of the account. This field is displayed when account number is entered and tabbed out. If PAN is available for the primary customer in the Customer Master, default it in "Existing PAN/Aadhaar Reference". If not, check if Aadhaar number of the primary customer is available in the system. If yes, default it in this field.
PAN / Aadhaar Reference for Transaction	<ul> <li>[Alphanumeric, 12]</li> <li>If neither PAN, nor Aadhaar is maintained for the primary customer, the field "PAN/Aadhaar Reference for Transaction" will be mandatory. It will accept PAN or Aadhaar as input, whichever the depositor chooses to furnish for the transaction. The validation for this field will be- <ol> <li>Check the length of the value entered. If it is neither 10 nor 12 characters long, the transaction will not be allowed</li> <li>If the string entered is a 10 character alphanumeric value, check if it is as per prescribed PAN format. The PAN number should be entered in the 'AAAAAnnnA' format, where 'A' is the alphabetic part and n is the numeric part.</li> <li>If the above validation for PAN fails, check if the entered field is of length 12 and numeric. If yes, it is to be recognized as Aadhaar number and the transaction is to be allowed</li> <li>If both the above validations fail or if no value is entered, transaction will not be allowed.</li> </ol> </li> </ul>
Form 60 / 61	[Optional, Drop-down] Select the value from the drop-down list. The options are:
	• Form 60
	None
	This field is applicable if <b>Existing PAN / Aadhaar Reference</b> and <b>PAN / Aadhaar Reference for Transaction</b> fields is not provided.
Maturity Date Factor	[Mandatory, Radio Button] Click on the appropriate option. The options are:
	• Term
	Maturity Date
Term	
Value Date	[Display] This field displays the value date of the TD. The value date signifies the date from which the life of the TD starts i.e. the date from which the TD is effective.
Term	[Conditional, Numeric, Four, Four] Type the term in months and days for which the TD is being initiated. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits specified at the product level.



	This field is enabled if the <b>Term</b> option is selected in the <b>Maturity Date Factor</b> field.
Int Start Date	[Display] This field displays the interest start date. It is same as the value date.
Maturity Date	[Conditional, Search List, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the date on which the new deposit will mature from the Search List. The interest start date determines the maturity date of the deposit. This field is enabled if the <b>Maturity Date</b> option is selected in the <b>Maturity Date Factor</b> field.
Next Int Pay Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest pay date. Depending on the Interest Payout Frequency interval specified, the system calculates the next interest due date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Payout Date = 31/03/2019.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This field displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any. This field will be displayed as zero if the product Class is annuity.
Annuity Amount	[Display] This field displays the annuity amount that will be payed to the customer on the payout frequency for the annuity deposit type of account.
Deposit Number	[Display] This field displays the deposit number of the customer. The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
User Ref No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number.
Txn. Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration for the transaction. The system displays the default narration "Payin By Cash". You can modify the narration, if required.
Business Acquirer ID	[Mandatory, Input] Select the business acquirer id from the Search List. By default,the system displays the teller id who has performed the transaction.
Rate	
Interest Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of interest for the new TD account.



Product Variance	[Display] This field displays the product variance. The product variance is the interest variance defined at the product level for the slab in which TD principal balance and term fits in.
Deposit Variance	[Mandatory, Numeric, Two] Type the deposit variance defined for the particular term deposit under the TD account. The variance specified should be within the minimum and maximum variance specified at the product level.
Net Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the interest is paid against the deposit. Net Rate = Interest Rate (At deposit level) + Deposit Variance + Product Variance The net rate should be within the minimum and maximum interest rate, specified at the product level.
Scheme Variance	[Display] This field displays the scheme variance.
Scheme Rate	[Display] This field displays the scheme rate.
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. AER is the annualized rate of return which the bank pays to the customer. It is a regulatory requirement that the bank publishes the AER for the entire deposits product as a part of the product brochures as well as when interest is finally paid out to the customer, the AER is to be published along with the actual interest rate which is paid to the customer. So for all deposits, including CASA, Term Deposits, Notice and structured deposits AER should be computed and displayed. The calculation of the AER depends on the number of compounding cycles and also the rate of the deposit. AER is calculated at the time of account opening. AER is re-calculated whenever there is a change in the interest rate for the deposits.
Next Int. Comp. Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest compounding date. Depending on the Interest Compounding Frequency duration specified, the system calculates the next interest compounding date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Compounding Date = 31/01/2019.
Payout Instructions De	tails
Interest Payout Mode	[Mandatory , Drop-Down] Select the interest payout mode from the drop-down list. The options are:
	Pay By Cheque

Transfer to Savings Account



	Transfer to GL Account
Interest Payout Mode	[Conditional, Numeric, 14] Type the CASA account number to which the interest payout is to be transferred. The name of CASA account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to Savings Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Interest Payout Mode</b> drop-down list.
Interest Payout GL	[Conditional, Numeric, 10] Type the GL account number to which the interest payout is to be transferred. The name of GL account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to GL Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Interest Payout Mode</b> drop-down list.
Maturity Instructions	<ul> <li>[Mandatory , Drop-Down]</li> <li>Select the maturity instructions from the drop-down list.</li> <li>If it is an interest payout product, (interest payout frequency other than at maturity), then,</li> <li>The options displayed will be: <ul> <li>No Instructions</li> <li>Redeem Principal - In this case, Principal will be redeemed at Maturity</li> <li>Renew Principal - In this case, Principal will be renewed at Maturity</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
	If interest payout is at maturity, then, The options displayed will be: • No Instructions • Redeem Principal and Interest - In this case, Principal and
	<ul> <li>Interest will be redeemed at Maturity</li> <li>Renew Principal &amp; Interest – In this case, principal will be renewed. Any pending interest will get added to principal provided flag 'Add pending interest to Principal on Maturity' is checked.</li> <li>Renew Principal and Redeem Interest - In this case, Principal will be renewed and Interest will be redeemed at Maturity.</li> </ul>
	Maturity amount gets captured at the time of payin to TD account. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Redeem Principal and will be disabled.
Pay Mode	<ul> <li>[Conditional, Drop-Down]</li> <li>Select the mode of payment from the drop-down list.</li> <li>The options are: <ul> <li>No Instructions</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
	Pay By Uneque

• Transfer to Savings Account

	Transfer to GL Account
	This field is enabled, if <b>Redeem Principal</b> option is selected from the <b>Maturity Instructions</b> drop-down list.
	If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.
	If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.
Payout CASA	[Conditional, Numeric, 16] Type the CASA account number to which the payout is to be transferred. The name of CASA account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to Savings Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Pay Mode</b> drop-down list. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.
Payout GL	[Conditional, Numeric, 14] Type the GL account number to which the payout is to be transferred. The name of GL account holder is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is enabled and mandatory, if <b>Transfer to GL Account</b> option is selected from the <b>Pay Mode</b> drop-down list. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key.
- 4. Enter the payin amount.
- 5. Click on the appropriate maturity date factor.
- 6. Enter the other relevant details.

# Quick Payin by Cash

1402 ×				
TD Quick Payin by Cash				 Ok Close Clear
* Account Number	703000000001287 AUTO PERSON1	Account Cov	INR T	
Principal Balance	INR ▼ ₹0.00	* Txn Ccy	INR V	
Acy Rate	1.00000	* Txn Rate	1.00000	
* Payin Amount	₹1,000.00	Txn Amount	₹1,000.00	
* Compounding Frequency	Quarterly V	* Int Payout Frequency	At Maturity V	
* Base for Rate	Incremental Amount	Existing PAN/Aadhaar Reference:		
PAN/Aadhaar No. for Transaction:		Form 60/61 :	¥	
Maturity Date Factor	Term Maturity Date			
Term		Rate		
Value Date	15/12/2018	Interest Rate	0.00000	
* Term	0 Months Days	Product Variance	0.00000	
* Int Start Date	15/12/2018	* Deposit Variance	0.00000	
* Maturity Date		Net Rate	0.00000	
Next Int Pay Date		Scheme Variance	0.00000	
Maturity Amount	₹0.00	Scheme Rate	0.00000	
Deposit Number		Annual Equivalent Rate	0.00000	
User Ref No.		Next Int Comp. Date		
* Txn Narrative	Initial Payin By CASH			
* Business Acquirer ID	TRANGA03			
* watanty amount is calculated without consi	Netting tax.			
Payout Instruction Details				
* Interest Payout Mode	T			
* Maturity Instructions	<b>T</b>			
* Pay Mode	T			



- 7. Click OK.
- 8. The system displays the message "Authorization Required. Do You want to continue?". Click **Yes**.
- 9. The system displays the Authorization Reason screen.
- 10. Enter the relevant information and click Grant.
- 11. The system displays the transaction sequence number. The transaction sequence number is a system generated number that uniquely identifies each transaction performed by a teller and can be used for tracking the transaction. Click **OK**.
- 12. The system displays the **Document Receipt** screen.
- Select the receipt you want to print and click OK.
   OR
   Click Cancel.



# 2.4 6505 - TD Initial Payin by Cheque

Using this option, you can deposit a cheque in the customer's term deposit account as pay-in. This option offers a quicker solution for term deposit pay-in.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

## Modes Available

Not Applicable

## To perform quick payin by cheque

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code 6505 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Transfer > Quick Payin By Cheque.
- 2. The system displays the Quick Payin By Cheque screen.

# **Quick Payin By Cheque**

0303 X				
TD Initial Payin by Cheque				Clear
* Account No.		Account Ccy	•	
Principal Balance	T	* Txn Ccy	¥	
Acy Rate		* Txn Rate		
Payin Amount		* Txn Amount		
* Compounding Frequency	T	* Int Payout Frequency	•	
* Base for Rate	Incremental Amount			
* Maturity Date Factor	<ul> <li>Term</li> <li>Maturity Date</li> </ul>			
Term		Rate		
Value Date	15/12/2018	Interest Rate	0.00000	
* Term	0 Months 0 Days	Product Variance	0.00000	
* Int. Start Date	15/12/2018	* Deposit Variance	0.00000	
* Maturity Date	01/01/1800	Net Rate	0.00000	
Next Int. Pay Date	01/01/1800	Scheme Variance	0.00000	
Maturity Amount	0.00	Scheme Rate	0.00000	
Deposit Number		Annual Equivalent Rate	0.00000	
User Ref No.		Next Int. Comp. Date	01/01/1800	
* Txn. Narrative	Initial Payin By Cheque	* Business Acquirer ID	TRANGA03	٩,
# Maturity Amount is calculated without consi	dering tax.			
Payout Instruction Details				
* Interest Payout Mode	T			
Interest Payout CASA				
Interest Payout GL				
Maturity Instructions	¥			
* Pay Mode	T			
Payout CASA				
GL Account No.				

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number in which you want to do the pay-in. The name of the account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD, the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.



Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the principal balance of the TD account. Principal balance is the sum of the principal amount of all the deposits, falling under a single TD account. The account currency is displayed in the adjacent field.
Txn Ccy	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the transaction currency from the drop-down list. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the account currency is converted into the account currency, based on the defined transaction rate.
Acy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Txn Rate	[Conditional, Numeric, Three] Type the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. If the transaction currency is set to non INR, this field will default to an appropriate exchange rate with respect to local currency. If the transaction currency is INR and EUR this field will not be allowed to be edited. This field is default to 1 when transaction currency is INR. This field is enabled for editing if the option other than <b>INR</b> and <b>EUR</b> is selected in <b>Txn Ccy</b> drop-down list.
Payin Amount	[Display] This field displays the initial amount which the customer has to deposit.
Txn Amount	[Mandatory,Numeric,13,Two] Type the transaction amount.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the Compounding Frequency as per the entry in the product level
Int Payout Frequency	[Conditional, Drop down] This field displays the Payout Frequency as per the product level. Payout Frequency will be enabled and mandatory for Payout type TDs only. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Monthly and disabled.
Base for Rate	<ul> <li>[Mandatory, Drop down]</li> <li>Select the base for rate value. The options are: <ul> <li>Incremental Amount</li> <li>Cumulative For The Deposit</li> <li>Cumulative For All Deposits</li> </ul> </li> <li>If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Incremental Amount and disabled.</li> </ul>
Maturity Date Factor	[Mandatory, Radio Button] Click on the appropriate option. The options are:



	• Term
	Maturity Date
Term	
Value Date	[Display] This field displays the value date of the TD. The value date signifies the date from which the life of the TD starts i.e. the date from which the TD is effective.
Term	[Conditional, Numeric, Four, Four] Type the term in months and days for which the TD is being initiated. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits specified at the product level. This field is enabled if the <b>Term</b> option is selected in the <b>Maturity Date</b> <b>Factor</b> field.
Int. Start Date	[Display] This field displays the interest start date. It is same as value date.
Maturity Date	[Conditional, Date picker, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the date on which the new deposit will mature from the Date Picker. The interest start date determines the maturity date of the deposit. This field is enabled if the <b>Maturity Date</b> option is selected in the <b>Maturity Date Factor</b> field.
Next Int. Pay Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest pay date. Depending on the Interest Payout Frequency interval specified, the system calculates the next interest due date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Payout Date = 31/03/2019.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This field displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any. This field will be displayed as zero if the product Class is annuity.
Annuity Amount	[Display] This field displays the annuity amount that will be payed to the customer on the payout frequency for the annuity deposit type of account.
Deposit Number	[Display] This field displays the deposit number. The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
User Ref No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number.



Txn. Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration for the transaction. By default the system displays <b>Payin By Cheque</b> .
Rate	
Interest Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of interest for the new TD account.
Product Variance	[Display] This field displays the product variance. The product variance is the interest variance defined at the product level for the slab in which TD principal balance and term fits in.
Deposit Variance	[Mandatory, Numeric, Two] Type the deposit variance defined for the particular term deposit under the TD account. The variance specified should be within the minimum and maximum variance specified at the product level.
Net Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the interest is paid against the deposit. Net Rate = Interest Rate (At deposit level) +
	Deposit Variance + Product Variance
	The net rate should be within the minimum and maximum interest rate, specified at the product level.
Scheme Variance	[Display] This field displays the scheme variance.
Scheme Rate	[Display] This field displays the scheme rate.
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. AER is the annualized rate of return which the bank pays to the customer. It is a regulatory requirement that the bank publishes the AER for the entire deposits product as a part of the product brochures as well as when interest is finally paid out to the customer, the AER is to be published along with the actual interest rate which is paid to the customer. So for all deposits, including CASA, Term Deposits, Notice and structured deposits AER should be computed and displayed. The calculation of the AER depends on the number of compounding cycles and also the rate of the deposit. AER is calculated at the time of account opening. AER is re-calculated whenever there is a change in the interest rate for the deposits.
Next Int. Comp. Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest compounding date. Depending on the Interest Compounding Frequency duration specified, the system calculates the next interest compounding date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Compounding Date = 31/01/2019.



Business Acquirer ID	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the business acquirer id from the Search List. By default, the system displays the teller id who has performed the transaction.
Payout Instructions Det	ails
Interest Payout Mode	[Mandatory , Drop-Down] Select the interest payout mode from the drop-down list. The options are:
	Pay By Cheque
	Transfer to CASA Account
	Transfer to GL Account
Interest Payout CASA	[Conditional] This field is enabled only if Interest payout mode is 'Transfer to CASA Account'. Enter the CASA account to which interest will be paid out.
Interest Payout GL	[Conditional] This field is enabled only if Interest payout mode is 'Transfer to GL Account'. Enter the GL account to which interest will be paid out.
Maturity Instructions	[Mandatory , Drop-Down] Select the maturity instructions from the drop-down list. If it is an interest payout product, (interest payout frequency other than at maturity), then, The options displayed will be:
	No Instructions
	<ul> <li>Redeem Principal - In this case, Principal will be redeemed at Maturity</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Renew Principal - In this case, Principal will be renewed at Maturity</li> </ul>
	If interest payout is at maturity), then, The options displayed will be:
	No Instructions
	<ul> <li>Redeem Principal and Interest - In this case, Principal and Interest will be redeemed at Maturity</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Renew Principal &amp; Interest – In this case, principal will be renewed. Any pending interest will get added to principal provided flag 'Add pending interest to Principal on Maturity' is checked.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Renew Principal and Redeem Interest - In this case, Principal will be renewed and Interest will be redeemed at Maturity.</li> </ul>
	Maturity amount gets captured at the time of payin to TD account. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to Redeem Principal and will be disabled.
Pay Mode	[Conditional, Drop-Down]



	Select the mode of payment from the drop-down list. The options are:
	No Instructions
	Pay By Cheque
	Transfer to CASA Account
	Transfer to GL Account
	This field is enabled, if <b>Redeem Principal</b> option is selected from the <b>Maturity Instructions</b> drop-down list. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.
Payout CASA	[Conditional] This field is enabled only of Maturity Instructions is 'Redeem Principal' and Pay mode is 'Transfer to CASA'. Enter the CASA account to which maturity proceeds of the deposit will be transferred. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.
GL Account No.	[Conditional] This field is enabled only of Maturity Instructions is 'Redeem Principal' and Pay mode is 'Transfer to GL Account. Enter the GL account to which maturity proceeds of the deposit will be transferred. If the Product Class is Annuity Deposit, this field will be defaulted to values selected in the Interest payout mode and will be disabled.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **<Tab>** or **<Enter>** key.
- 4. Click on the appropriate maturity date factor.
- 5. Enter the other relevant details.

# Quick Payin By Cheque

505 ×				
D Initial Payin by Cheque				Ok Ok
* Account No.		Account Ccy	•	
Principal Balance	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	* Txn Ccy	•	
Acy Rate		* Txn Rate		
Payin Amount		* Txn Amount		
* Compounding Frequency	¥	* Int Payout Frequency	•	
* Base for Rate	Incremental Amount			
* Maturity Date Factor	Term Maturity Date			
Term		Rate		
Value Date	15/12/2018	Interest Rate	0.00000	
* Term	0 Months 0 Days	Product Variance	0.00000	
* Int. Start Date	15/12/2018	* Deposit Variance	0.00000	
* Maturity Date	01/01/1800	Net Rate	0.00000	
Next Int. Pay Date	01/01/1800	Scheme Variance	0.00000	
Maturity Amount	0.00	Scheme Rate	0.00000	
Deposit Number		Annual Equivalent Rate	0.00000	
User Ref No.		Next Int. Comp. Date	01/01/1800	
* Txn. Narrative	Initial Payin By Cheque	Business Acquirer ID	TRANGA03	0
# Maturity Amount is calculated without consid	lering tax.			
Payout Instruction Details				
* Interest Payout Mode	¥			
Interest Payout CASA				
Interest Payout GL				
Maturity Instructions	<b>•</b>			
* Pay Mode	¥			
Payout CASA				
GL Account No.				

6. Enter the relevant details and click the **Validate** button. The system displays the message "Validation Procedure Completed".



- 7. Click the **Ok** button. The system displays the main screen.
- 8. Click the Instrument link.
- 9. Enter the relevant details and click the Ok button. The system displays the main screen
- 10. Click the **Ok** button.
- 11. The system displays the message "Authorization Required. Do You want to continue?". Click the **OK** button.
- 12. The system displays the Authorization Reason screen.
- 13. Enter the relevant information and click the **Grant** button.
- 14. The system displays the transaction sequence number. The transaction sequence number is a system generated number that uniquely identifies each transaction performed by a teller and can be used for tracking the transaction. Click the **Ok** button.
- 15. The system displays the **Document Receipt** screen.
- Select the receipt you want to print and click the Ok button.
   OR
   Click the Cancel button.

Note 1: For more Information on UDF, Document Receipt and Instrument refer to the Common Screens option available in the Oracle FLEXCUBE Introduction User Manual Note 2: For more information on Authorization refer to the Oracle FLEXCUBE Introduction User Manual.



# 3. Interest Payout Transaction



# 3.1 7018 - TD Interest Payout Enquiry

Interest plan supported by **Oracle FLEXCUBE** comprises of fixed or floating interest rates, flexiinterest management and different interest payout modes.

Following are the interest rate types:

- Fixed Rate: You can specify a flat fixed rate. The interest rate specified at the time of TD opening is treated as final contractual rate until the deposit matures.
- Floating Rate: To apply a floating interest rate, it should be linked to an Interest Index Code. Thus, the interest rate at the account level varies with the changes in the index level rate.

Using this option, you can pay interest on time deposit. After viewing the interest to be paid out, you can proceed to perform this interest payment transaction by choosing the appropriate mode of payout.

Note: DD limit amount breach as an exception will be made overrideable in this screen.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

- BAM09 Issuer Maintenance
- STM59 Settlement Bank Parameters
- BAM97 Currency Code Cross Reference
- BAM20 Bank Codes Maintenance
- 8051 CASA Account Opening
- IV001 Stock Transaction
- SCM01 SC Package Definition
- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To Enquire about interest payout

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code 7018 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Interest Payout Enquiry.
- 2. You will be navigated to the TD Interest Payout Enquiry screen.



# **TD Interest Payout Enquiry**

TD Interest Payout Enquiry * Account No. * Account Co: * Payout Mode * Payout Mode Tratefer To CAS. * Payout Mode Tratefer To CAS. * Clube * Clube
Total Interest Payout     State 2
* Account No. 703000000018844 AUTO PERSON1 Account Ccy INR • * Deposit No. 2 * Payout Mode Transfer To CASy • Total Interest 592.00 Tex Calculated 0.00 Net Interest Payout 592.00
Account Ccv NR    Deposit No.  Payout Mod Transfer To CAS:  Total Interest Payout Net Interest Payout S52.00
* Deposit No. 2 * Payout Mode Transfer To CAS / ¥ Total Interest 592.00 Tax. Calculated 0.00 Net Interest Payout 592.00
* Payout Mode Transfer To CAS: * Total Interest 592.00 Tax Calculated 0.00 Net Interest Payout 592.00
Total Interest     592.00       Tax: Calculated     0.00       Net Interest Payout     592.00
Tax: Calculated     0.00       Net Interest Payout     592.00
Net Interest Payout 592.00

Field Name	Description	
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number for which the interest has to be paid out. The name of the account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.	
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the currency assigned to a Loan product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.	
Deposit No	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the term deposit number from the Search List. You can select the Deposit Number for which the interest needs to be paid, in case of deposit level payout.	
Payout Mode	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the payment mode of TD from the drop-down list. The options are: • Bankers Cheque • Cash • Demand Draft • Transfer to GL Account • Transfer to Loans Account • Transfer to Savings Account • Transfer to TD Product	
Total Interest	[Display] This field displays the total interest amount when you enter the TD	



	account number and deposit number.
Tax Calculated on Withdrawal	[Display] This field displays the tax amount which will be deducted from the total interest amount when you enter the TD account number and deposit number.
Net Interest Payout	[Display] This field displays the interest payout amount when you enter the TD account number and deposit number (in case of deposit level payout).

The above screen displays the interest that is payable after deduction of tax for the 1st deposit for TD account no 09990230000113.

This screen can also be used as an interest pay out screen for the TD. The transaction for transfer of this interest is carried on a separate screen.

- 3. Enter the account number and select the deposit no from the Search List.
- 4. Select the payout mode from the drop-down list.

# **TD Interest Payout Enquiry**

<u>7018</u> ×				
TD Interest Payout Enquiry		0	2	
		7018	Step 2	
* Account No. 703000000018844	AUTO PERSON1			
Account Ccy INR V	]			
* Deposit No. 2	9			
* Payout Mode Transfer To CAS/ V				
Total Interest 592.00	]			
Tax Calculated 0.00	]			
Net Interest Payout 592.00	]			

- 5. Click the Ok button.
- 6. The system displays the message "Do You Want to continue?". Click the Ok button.
- 7. Depending upon the payout mode selected the system will display the relevant transaction screen. For example, if you select **Cash** from the **Payout Mode** drop-down list then the system will display that screen.
- 8. Enter the required information in the displayed screen.



# TD Interest Payout by BC- 1304

7018 ×					
TD Interest Payout by BC			2		
		7018	1304		
Account No * Account Ccy * Deposit No	703000000018054 TEST AUTO IND CU				
* Bank Code Cheque Ccy	• • •				
Acct Ccy Rate Int Payout Amt Tax Calculated	1.00000 2,837.30 0.00		Cheque Ccy Rate	1.00000	
Net Interest Payout Charges (Lcy) BC Amount	2,837.30				
* BC Date BC No			Serial No Routing No		
* Beneficiary Name * Beneficiary Address 1 Beneficiary Address 2			Passport / IC No		
Beneficiary Address 3 User Reference No					
Narrative Purchaser Name	ID Interest Payout By BC				

# **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Account No	[Display] This field displays the account number as specified in the <b>TD Interest</b> <b>Payout Enquiry</b> screen. The name of the TD account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries are posted in the account in the account currency. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.
Deposit No	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the interest needs to be paid, as specified in the <b>TD Interest Payout Enquiry</b> screen.
Bank Code	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the bank code of the bank, on which the BC will be drawn from the drop-down list. A list of banks on which the BC can be issued is maintained in <b>Issuer</b> <b>Code Maintenance</b> option A bank usually issues a BC of its own bank branch.
Cheque Ccy	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the cheque currency in which the BC will be issued from the Search List.
Acct Ccy Rate	[Display]



	This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. If the account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Cheque Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the cheque currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. The teller's right to change the cheque currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the cheque currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Int Payout Amt	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
Tax Calculated	[Display] This field displays the tax amount which will be deducted from the total interest amount when you enter the TD account number and deposit number.
Net Interest Payout	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
Charges (Lcy)	[Display] This field displays the charges levied for issuing the BC. The charges will be denominated in the local currency of the bank. If the charges pertain to our bank, they are attached at the Transaction Mnemonic level. For charges levied by issuer, the attachment is done at <b>Issuer Master Maintenance</b> . Such charges are deducted from the interest payout amount and the BC is issued for the net amount.
BC Amount	[Display] This field displays the transaction amount to be paid in the cheque currency. The transaction amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts. The transaction amount is converted into the cheque currency for the payout of the transaction amount.
BC Date	[Mandatory, dd/mm/yyyy] Type the issue date of the BC that will be printed on the instrument. This date will be the posting date.
Serial No	[Display] This field displays the serial number of the BC. At the time of issue, for a remittance instrument such as a BC or DD, the system generates a serial number that includes the branch code. The serial number for each instrument type is maintained separately.



	On reversal of an instrument issue, the instrument serial number is not reused for the next instrument issue. When an instrument comes into clearing, it may be referred to with an MICR number, which needs to be maintained for each instrument, if it is expected through an inward clearing batch. If the teller liquidates an instrument, the instrument serial number enables the system to track the instrument uniquely.
BC No	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 12] Type the MICR number. For every remittance instrument, it is necessary to maintain an MICR number. The MICR number will be printed on the instrument, if the instrument is expected to come in for inward clearing. A cross reference is maintained with the system-generated serial number, to enable the system to track the instrument.
Routing No	[Mandatory, Numeric, Nine] Type the routing number against which the cheque has been drawn. The routing number is the combination of the bank code and the branch code. The combination can be obtained from the <b>Routing Branch</b> <b>Maintenance</b> option.
	Routing Number = Sector Code / Bank Code + Branch Code
	For a cheque deposited, this routing number is used by the system to determine the float days and thus the value date of the instrument. The system may not allow a bank's own cheques to be deposited, thus encouraging the internal bank transactions to be done through transfer of funds. This feature is bank configurable.
Beneficiary Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the name of the beneficiary of the BC.
Passport / IC No.	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 14] Type the passport/IC number collected from the beneficiary of the BC.
Beneficiary Address	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the contact address of the beneficiary.
User Reference No	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number assigned to the customer.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration. This field displays the default narration, based on the transaction. The user can change the narration, if required.
Purchaser Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 60] Type the Purchaser Name. For Individual customers - Short name of the Primary customer will be defaulted. For all others (Corporate and Bank customers) - Account title will be displayed by default. The defaulted values will be editable.

The above screen displays the transfer of INR 2,837 as interest, after deduction of tax . The total interest amount is 2,837.



The amount is being paid to the customer via pay order. The beneficiary of this pay order is Mr. AutoPersonwho lives at the textile building in Nyloc, Kansas. The pay order is drawn on Bank of America.

#### Exercise

For an account in your bank, enter the TD account number and choose the suitable deposit. The interest payable before and after tax will be displayed. Choose the payout option and make the payment of interest to the customer.

# **TD Interest Payout by Cash - 1302**

718     192         * Account No.     703000000100565         * Account Ccy     INR         * Deposit No     3         * Acct Cry Rate     100000         * Acct Cry Rate     100000         * Tra Cry NR     *         * Acct Cry Rate     100000         * Tra Cry Rate     100000         * Narrative     NTEREST PAID - CASH	J Interest Payout by Casi	ı		2	
*Account No. 70300000018654, TEST AUTO IND CUST Account Coy INR • *Deposit No 3 *Acct Coy Rate 1000000 Int Payout Amount €654.00 Ton Amount €654.00 Tax Calculated ₹0.00 Net Interest Payout User Reference No Narrative INTEREST PAID - CASH			7018	1302	
Account Coy INR	* Account No .	703000000018054 TEST AUTO IND CUS	Т		
* Deposit No         3           * Acct Cop Rate         1.00000           Int Peyoud Amount         ₹854.00           Tax Calculated         ₹0.00           Net Interest Payout         ₹854.00           User Reference No            * Narrative         INTEREST PAID - CASH	Account Ccy	INR 🔻		* Txn Ccy INR 🔻	
*Act Ccy Rate 1.0000 Int Payout Amount ₹854.00 Ton Amount ₹854.00 Tax Calculated ₹0.00 Net Interest Payout ₹854.00 User Reference No *Narrative INTEREST PAID - CASH	* Deposit No	3			
Int Payout Amount Ton Amount Te54.00 Tax Calculated Ton Amount Tax Calculated Ton Net Interest Payout Te54.00 User Reference N INTEREST PAID - CASH	* Acct Ccy Rate	1.00000		* Txn Ccy Rate 1.00000	
Txn Amount  Tax Calculated  To 0:00 Net Interest Payout  T854:00 User Raference No Narrative  INTEREST PAID - CASH	Int Payout Amount	₹854.00			
Tax Calculated	Txn Amount	₹854.00			
Net Interest Payout 1854.00 User Raterence No * Narrative INTEREST PAID - CASH	Tax Calculated	₹0.00			
User Reference No  Narrative INTEREST PAID - CASH	Net Interest Payout	₹854.00			
* Narrative INTEREST PAID - CASH	User Reference No				
	* Narrative	INTEREST PAID - CASH			

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the account number as specified in the <b>TD Interest</b> <b>Payout Enquiry</b> screen. The name of the TD account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries are posted in the account in the account currency. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the currency assigned to a Loan product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.
Txn Ccy	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the currency of the cheque from the drop-down list. This field, by default, displays the account currency as the transaction currency.
Deposit No	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the interest needs to



	be paid.
Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The teller's right to change the account currency rate within a range is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the account currency and the local currency are same, the field takes the default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Txn Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The teller's right to change the transaction currency rate within range is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the transaction currency and the local currency are same, the field takes the default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Int Payout Amount	[Display] This field displays the net interest amount. The net interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency is the difference between the total interest amount and the tax calculated on the same.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid, in the transaction currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts. The interest amount is converted into the transaction currency for the payout of the interest.
Tax Calculated	[Display] This field displays the tax amount which will be deducted from the total interest amount when you enter the TD account number and deposit number.
Net Interest Payout	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
User Reference No	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number assigned to the customer.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration. This field displays the default narration, based on the transaction. The user can change the narration, if required.

The above screen displays the transfer of INR 854 as interest.

The amount is being paid in cash to the customer.

# Exercise

For an account in your bank, enter the TD account number and choose the suitable deposit. The interest payable before and after tax will be displayed. Choose the payout option and make the payment of interest to the customer.

7018 ×				
TD Interest Payout by DD			2	Clear OK Close Clear
		7018	1307	
Account No.	703000000019007 AUTO PERSON 270			
* Account Ccy	INR 🔻			
* Deposit No.	3842			
* Payable Branch	Q			
* Bank Code	0			
Cheque Ccy	•			
* Acct Ccy Rate	1.00000		* Cheque Ccy Rate	1.00000
* Int Payout Amt	₹3.20			
Tax Calculated	₹0.00			
Net Interest Payout	₹3.20			
Charges (Lcy)				
Cheque Amount				
* Cheque Date	15/12/2018		Serial No.	
Micr No.			Routing No.	
* Beneficiary Name			Passport / IC No.	
* Ponoficiary Addr				
Address line 2				
Address line 3				
User Reference No.				
* Narrative	TD. Interest Payout By DD.			
* Purchaser Name		1		
		1		

# TD Interest Payout by DD - 1307

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the account number as specified in the <b>TD Interest</b> <b>Payout Enquiry</b> screen. The name of the TD account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries are posted in the account in the account currency. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number, for which the interest needs to be paid, as specified in the <b>TD Interest Payout Enquiry</b> screen.
Payable Branch	[Optional, Search List] Select the branch name and the location of the bank/branch at which the DD is payable from the Search List.



Bank Code	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the bank code of the bank, on which the DD is drawn from the drop-down list. A list of banks on which the DD can be issued is maintained in <b>Issuer Maintenance</b> (Task Code: BAM09) option.		
Cheque Ccy	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the cheque currency in which the DD will be issued from the Search List. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the cheque currency is converted into the account currency, based on the defined transaction rate.		
Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The teller's right to change the account currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.		
Cheque Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the cheque currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. The teller's right to change the cheque currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the cheque currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.		
Int Payout Amt	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts		
Tax Calculated	[Display] This field displays the tax amount which will be deducted from the total interest amount when you enter the TD account number and deposit number.		
Net Interest Payout	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.		
Charges (Lcy)	[Display] This field displays the charges levied for issuing the DD. The charges will be calculated in the local currency of the bank. If the charges pertain to our bank, they are attached at the Transaction Mnemonic level. For charges levied by issuer, the attachment is done at Issuer Master Maintenance. Such charges are deducted from the interest payout amount and the DD is issued for the net amount.		
Cheque Amount	[Display]		



	This field displays the transaction amount to be paid in the cheque currency.
	The transaction amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts. The transaction amount is converted into the cheque currency for the payout of the transaction amount.
Cheque Date	[Mandatory, dd/mm/yyyy] Type the issue date of the DD that will be printed on the instrument. This date will be the posting date.
Serial No.	[Display] This field displays the serial number. At the time of issue, for a remittance instrument such as a BC or DD, the system generates a serial number that includes the branch code. The serial number for each instrument type is maintained separately. On reversal of an instrument issue, the instrument serial number is not reused for the next instrument issue. When an instrument comes into clearing, it may be referred to with an MICR number, which needs to be maintained for each instrument, if it is expected through an inward clearing batch. If the teller liquidates an instrument, the instrument serial number enables the system to track the instrument uniquely.
Micr No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 12] Type the MICR number. For every remittance instrument, it is necessary to maintain an MICR number. The MICR number will be printed on the instrument, if the instrument is expected to come in for inward clearing. A cross reference is maintained with the system-generated serial number, to enable the system to track the instrument.
Routing No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, Nine] Type the routing number against which the cheque has been drawn. The routing number is the combination of the bank code and the branch code. The combination can be obtained from the <b>Routing Branch</b> <b>Maintenance</b> (Task Code: STM54) option.
	Routing Number = Sector Code / Bank Code + Branch Code
	For a cheque deposited, this routing number is used by the system to determine the float days and thus the value date of the instrument.
	For an inward clearing cheque this routing number should belong to the bank. The order, in which the codes in the routing number are to be entered, is determined by the set up at <b>Settlement Bank Parameters</b> (Task Code: STM59) option. The system may not allow a bank's own cheques to be deposited, thus encouraging the internal bank transactions to be done through transfer of funds. This feature is bank configurable.
Beneficiary Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the name of the beneficiary of the DD.
Passport/IC No.	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 14] Type the appropriate passport/IC number.

	This is the identification number, collected from the beneficiary of the DD.
Beneficiary Address 2, 3	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the contact address of the beneficiary.
User Reference No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number assigned to the customer.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration. This field displays the default narration, based on the transaction. The user can change the narration, if required.
Purchaser Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 60] Type the Purchaser Name. For Individual customers - Short name of the Primary customer will be defaulted. For all others (Corporate and Bank customers) - Account title will be displayed by default. The defaulted values will be editable.

The above screen displays the transfer of INR 854 as interest, after deduction of tax of the INR 0 transaction. The total interest amount is 854.

The amount is being paid to the customer's CASA account no 0996010001584. The beneficiary of this interest is Mr. Auto Person who lives at the textile building in Bangalore. The pay order is drawn on Bank of America.

## Exercise

For an account in your bank, enter the TD account number and choose the suitable deposit. The interest payable before and after tax will be displayed. Choose the demand draft option and make the payment of interest to the customer.

# **TD Interest Payout by Transfer to GL - 1331**

<u>7018</u> ×				
TD Interest Payout by Tran	nsfer to GL		2	Ok Close Clear
		7018	1331	
TD Acct No.	703000000018844 AUTO PERSON1			
* TD Acct Ccy	INR 🔻			
* GL Acct Ccy	INR V			
* GL Acct No.	252000004 OT Option Premium Payable	Q		
* TD Acct Ccy Rate	1.00000		* GL Acct Ccy Rate	1.00000
* Deposit No.	2			
Redemption Amount	₹592.00			
Tax Calculated	₹0.00			
Net Interest Payout	₹592.00			
GL Acct Amount	₹592.00			
* Narrative	TD. Interest Payout T			

# **Field Description**

Field Name

Description



TD Acct No.	[Display] This field displays the account number as specified in the <b>TD Interest</b> <b>Payout Enquiry</b> screen. The name of the TD account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.		
TD Acct Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.		
GL Acct Ccy	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the GL account currency in which the redemption payout will be done from the drop-down list. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the GL account currency is converted into the account currency, based on the defined transaction rate.		
GL Acct No.	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the GL account number from the Search List. The TD interest amount will be credited to this account.		
TD Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. The teller's right to change the account currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1 which cannot be modified.		
GL Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the GL account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. The teller's right to change the GL account currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the GL account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1 which cannot be modified.		
Deposit No	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the interest needs to be paid, as specified in the <b>TD Interest Payout Enquiry</b> screen.		
Redemption Amt	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount in the account currency. The redemption amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.		
Tax Calculated	[Display] This field displays the tax amount which will be deducted from the total interest amount when you enter the TD account number and deposit number.		



Net Interest Payout	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
GL Acct Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount converted into the GL account currency, to which the interest amount is credited. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts. The interest amount is converted into the GL account currency for the payout of the interest amount.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration.

The above screen displays the transfer of INR 854.00 as interest, after deduction of tax of the INR 0 transaction. The total interest amount is854.00.

The amount is being paid to the customer via Depositor Cash GL account of the bank.

## Exercise

For an account in your bank, enter the TD account number and choose the suitable deposit. The interest payable before and after tax will be displayed. Choose the payment to a GL account option and make the payment of interest to the customer.

# **TD Interest Payout by Transfer to Loans - 1329**

7018 ×					
TD Interest Payout by Tran	nsfer to Loans		7018	1329	Vert Close Clear
* TD Acct No.	703000000018844	AUTO PERSON1			
TD Acct Ccy	INR 🔻				
Deposit No	2				
* Loan Acct No.					
Loan Acct Ccy	INR 🔻				
TD Acct Ccy Rate	1.00000			Loan Acct Ccy Rate 1.00000	
Redemption Amt	592.00				
Tax Calculated	0.00				
Net Interest Payout	592.00				
* Loan Amount	592.00		_		
Narrative	TD. Interest Payout To	) Loan			

Field Name	Description
TD Acct No.	[Display] This field displays the account number as specified in the <b>TD Interest</b> <b>Payout Enquiry</b> screen. The name of the TD account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.


TD Acct Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the interest needs to be paid, as specified in the <b>TD Interest Payout Enquiry</b> screen.
Loans Acct No	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 14] Type the loans account number. The TD interest amount will be credited to this account.
Loans Acct Ccy	[Display] This field displays the loans account currency. This is the currency in which the interest payout will be done. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the loans account currency is converted into the account currency, based on the defined transaction rate.
TD Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. The teller's right to change the account currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Loan Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the loan account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. The teller's right to change the loans account currency value is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the loan account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Redemption Amt	[Display] This field displays the interest amount in the account currency. The redemption amount is calculated in the account currency to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
Tax Calculated	[Display] This field displays the tax amount which will be deducted from the total interest amount when you enter the TD account number and deposit number.
Net Interest Payout	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate



	the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
Loan Amount	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid in the loans account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts. The interest amount is converted into the loans account currency for the payout of the interest amount.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration.

#### **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the transfer of INR 2837.30 as interest, after deduction of tax of the INR 0 transaction. The total interest amount is 2837.30.

The amount is being paid to the customer's loan account no 09993510003262. The beneficiary of this interest is Mr. John Smith.

#### Exercise

For an account in your bank, enter the TD account number and choose the suitable deposit. The interest payable before and after tax will be displayed. Choose the demand draft option and make the payment of interest to the customer.

## **TD Interest Payout by Transfer to CASA - 1328**

<u>7018</u> ×				
TD Interest Payout by Tran	isfer to CASA	7018	1328	Close Clear
* TD Acct No. TD Acct Ccy Deposit No * CASA Acct No. CASA Acct Ccy TD Acct Ccy Rate Redemption Amt Tax Calculated Net Interest Payout * CASA Amount Narrative	703000000018844         AUTO PERSON1           INR         ▼           2		CASA Acct Ccy Rate 1.00000	

Field Name	Description
TD Acct No.	[Display] This field displays the account number as specified in the <b>TD Interest</b> <b>Payout Enquiry</b> screen. The name of the TD account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
TD Acct Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product



	level under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the interest needs to be paid, as specified in the <b>TD Interest Payout Enquiry</b> screen.
CASA Acct No.	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 14] Type the CASA account number. The TD interest amount will be credited to this account.
CASA Acct Ccy	[Display] This field displays the CASA account currency. This is the currency in which the interest will be paid. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the CASA account currency is converted into the account currency, based on the defined transaction rate.
TD Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. The teller's right to change the account currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
CASA Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the CASA account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. The teller's right to change the CASA account currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the CASA account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Redemption Amt	[Display] This field displays the TD interest amount to be credited to the savings account. The redemption amount is calculated in the account currency to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
Tax Calculated	[Display] This field displays the tax amount which will be deducted from the total interest amount, when you enter the TD account number and deposit number.
Net Interest Payout	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.



CASA Amount	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount converted into the CASA account currency, to which the interest amount is credited.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration.

The above screen displays the transfer of INR 2837.30 as interest, after deduction of tax of the INR 0 transaction. The total interest amount is 2837.30.

The amount is being paid to the customer via demand draft. The beneficiary of this interest is Mr. John Smith.

#### Exercise

For an account in your bank, enter the TD account number and choose the suitable deposit. The interest payable before and after tax will be displayed. Choose the CASA account option and make the payment of interest to the customer.

## TD Interest Payout by Transfer to TD - 1334



## **Field Description**

-

Field Name	Description
TD Acct No.	[Display] This field displays the account number as specified in the <b>TD Interest</b> <b>Payout Enquiry</b> screen. The name of the TD account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
Acct Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level under which the account is opened. All the entries are posted in the account, in the account currency. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.



To TD Acct No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number. The TD interest will be transferred to this account.
Txn Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency of the cheque. This field by default displays the account currency as the transaction currency. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the transaction currency is converted into the account currency, based on the defined transaction rate.
Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The teller's right to change the account currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Txn Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The teller's right to change the transaction currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the transaction currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Interest Payout Frequency	[Conditional, Drop down] This field displays the Payout Frequency as per the product level. Payout Frequency will be enabled and mandatory for Payout type TDs only.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the Compounding Frequency. This display depends upon the entry made at the product level.
Base Amount	[Display] This field displays the base amount.
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. It is the annualized rate of return which the bank pays to the customer. It is a regulatory requirement that the bank publishes the AER for the entire deposits product as a part of the product brochures as well as when the interest is finally paid out to the customer. The AER is to be published along with the actual interest rate which is paid to the customer.
Maturity Date Factor	[Mandatory, Radio Button] Click the option button to select the term or maturity date factor. If <b>Maturity Date</b> option is selected <b>FLEXCUBE</b> disables the <b>Term</b> field.



Payout Term	[Conditional, Numeric, Four] Type the term for which the TD is being maintained. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits and should be equivalent to a multiple of the incremental term that is specified at the product level.
Maturity Date	[Conditional, Search List, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the maturity date from the Search List. This field is enabled if the Maturity Date option is selected from the <b>Maturity Date Factor</b> field. The system will calculate the term by the difference between the maturity date and the value date and stamp the term in the related fields.
Int St Date	[Display] This field displays the interest start date.
Redemption Amt	[Display] This field displays the TD interest amount to be credited to the <b>To TD</b> <b>Account</b> in TD account currency.
Tax Calculated	[Display] This field displays the tax amount which will be deducted from the total interest amount when you enter the TD account number and deposit number.
Net Interest Payout	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the actual redemption amount converted in the <b>To</b> <b>TD Account</b> currency.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration.

## Exercise

For an account in your bank, enter the TD account number and choose the suitable deposit. The interest payable before and after tax will be displayed. Choose the transfer to TD account option and make the payment of interest to the account.



# 

## TD Interest Payout by Transfer To TD product -1337

Field Name	Description
TD Acct No.	[Display] This field displays the account number as specified in the <b>TD Interest</b> <b>Payout Enquiry</b> screen. The name of the TD account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
Acct Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries are posted in the account in the account currency. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.
To Product	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the name of the TD product from the Search list.
Txn Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency of the cheque. This field, by default, displays the account currency as the transaction currency. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the transaction currency is converted into the account currency, based on the defined transaction rate.
Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The teller's right to change the account currency rate is configurable at



	the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the account currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Txn Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The teller's right to change the transaction currency rate is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the transaction currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
Int Payout Frq	[Display] This field displays the interest payout frequency.
Compounding Frq	[Display] This field displays the compounding frequency set at the product level.
Base Amount	[Display] This field displays the base amount.
Annual Eqv Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. AER (Annual Equivalent Rate) is the annualized rate of return which the bank pays to the customer. The calculation of the AER depends on the number of compounding cycles and also the rate of the deposit. AER is calculated at the time of account opening. AER is re-calculated whenever there is a change in the interest rate for the deposits
Maturity Date Factor	[Mandatory, Radio Button] Click the option button to select the term or maturity date factor. If Maturity Date option is selected <b>FLEXCUBE</b> disables the Term field.
Payout Term	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 22] Type the term for which the TD is being maintained. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits and should be equivalent to a multiple of the incremental term that is specified at the product level.
Maturity Date	[Conditional, Search List, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the maturity date from the Search List. This field is enabled if the <b>Maturity Date</b> option is selected from the <b>Maturity Date Factor</b> field. The system will calculate the term by the difference between the maturity date and the value date and stamp the term in the related fields.
Int Start Date	[Display] This field displays the interest start date.
Int Payout Amount	[Display] This field displays the TD interest amount to be credited to the TD product in TD account currency.
Tax Calculated	[Display] This field displays the tax amount which will be deducted from the total interest amount when you enter the TD account number and deposit



number.

Net Interest Payout	[Display] This field displays the interest amount to be paid to the customer in the account currency. The interest amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the actual redemption amount converted in the TD product currency.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration.

- 9. Click the **OK** button.
- 10. The system displays the transaction sequence number. The transaction sequence number is system generated that uniquely identifies each transaction performed by a teller and can be used for tracking the transaction. Click the **Ok** button.
- 11. The system displays the **Document Receipt** screen.
- 12. If you want to print the receipt, select the record that needs to be printed. The system displays the message "Do you want to print the document". Click the **Ok** button.
- 13. The system displays the message "Printed Successfully?". Click the **Ok** button.
- 14. Click the **Cancel** button.
- 15. The system displays the serial number.

#### Exercise

For an account in your bank, enter the TD account number and choose the suitable deposit. The interest payable before and after tax will be displayed. Choose the transfer to TD account option and make the payment of interest to the account.



# 3.2 TD029 - TD Interest Adjustments

This transaction allows you to pay an interest amount, which is different from the amount stipulated by the bank. The amount specified in this screen may be greater or lesser than the interest amount. This change affects the amount of accrued interest against the term deposit in the current accrual cycle. The account is paid with the modified interest amount at the end of the payment or capitalization cycle. If the bank has paid more interest to the customer, that amount needs to be recovered. You can enter the recovered amount in this screen. If the amount is paid to the customer then **Interest Expense GL** is debited through this transaction while if the amount is recovered from the customer, the **Interest Payable GL** is credited.

## **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To perform TD interest adjustments

- In the Dashboard page, Enter Task code TD029 and click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TD Interest Adjustments.
- 2. You will be navigated to **TD Interest Adjustments** screen.

## **TD Interest Adjustments**

<u>TD029</u> ×			
TD Interest Adjustments			Ok Close Clear
* Account No.		* Org Deposit No.	٩,
Deposit No.		Renewal No.	
Transaction No.			
Short Name			
* Debit / Credit	¥		
* Adjustment Amount		]	
* Description			

Field Name	Description
Account No	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number.
Org Deposit No	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the deposit number on which the adjustment transaction is to be performed, from the Search List.
Deposit No	[Display] This field displays the deposit number. The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account.



	The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Renewal No	[Display] This field displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Transaction No	[Display] This field displays the transaction number of the TD account.
Short Name	[Display] This field displays the short name of the customer.
Adjustment Details	
Debit/Credit	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the debit or credit interest adjustment from the drop-down list.
	The options are:
	Credit
	• Debit
	A debit in the interest payable account will reduce the interest to be paid to the customer.
	The credit in the interest payable account will increase the banks interest liability.
	The debit entry for interest adjustment will take place if there is a credit entry for interest accrued on the account.
Adjustment Amount	[Mandatory, Numeric, 13, Two] Type the amount that has to be adjusted in the accrued amount. In case of debit interest adjustment there should be sufficient credit accrual available for setting off the debit.
Description	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the description of the transaction.
3. Enter the account nu	mber and press the <b>Tab or Enter</b> key.

- 4. Select the original deposit number from the list.
- 5. Select the debit/credit type from the list, and enter the adjustment amount and description.

## **TD Interest Adjustments**



TD029 ×			
TD Interest Adjustments			Ok Close Clear
* Account No.	703000000019757	* Org Deposit No.	7 0
Deposit No.	7	Renewal No.	1
Transaction No.			
Short Name	AUTO PERSON1		
* Debit / Credit	Credit •		
* Adjustment Amount	1,000.00 INR	]	
* Description			

- 6. Click OK.
- 7. The system displays the message "Authorization Required. Do you want to continue". Click **Yes**.
- 8. Interest gets adjusted once authorized.

The above screen displays the interest reduction of USD 2.60 for the first deposit under TD account no 7030000000019757 The debit interest adjustment will be effected during the end of day operations.

## Exercise

Reduce the interest amount to be paid for your test TD, using this screen.



# 3.3 TD039 - TD Multiple Payout Instructions

Customer has the flexibility to choose the payout amount and mode in which the redemption proceeds of a term deposit will be received, As per customer requirement multiple modes of payment for interest and principal can be selected. Payout instructions cannot be modified or inquired for the Product Class Annuity deposit.

The multiple payout options which can be set for :

- Interest earned
- Principal Amount
- Premature redemption

You can also set up TD payout instructions to an external account. The instructions can be set for a single or all the deposits in a TD account. In case of premature redemption of a deposit, the interest amount accrued till date will not be paid to the customer. And, if any tax is deducted on the interest amount paid to the customer, then the tax amount also is not refunded to the customer.

## **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

## Modes Available

Add, Modify, Delete Cancel, Amend, Authorize, Enquiry. For more information on the procedures of every mode, refer to **Standard Maintenance Procedures**.

## To add multiple payout instructions

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TD039 and click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TD Multiple Payout Instructions.
- 2. The system displays the TD Multiple Payout Instructions screen.

## **TD Multiple Payout Instructions**

(D039 ×							
TD Multiple Payout Instructio	ins			Add M	odify Delete Cancel /	Amend Authorize Enquiry	Copy Ok Close C
Account Number Branch Principal Balance Payout Details CASA Acct Ex	ternal Acct Loan Acct	GL Acct No. Reinve	st to New A Reinvest to E	Custo Accour Existi Bankers Cheque	Product	al A/c- NEFT External A/c- F	] ] RTG S Default Instructions
* Payout Ty Original Deposit Number Premature Payout M Premature Payout D	rpe	All D	Deposits	Payout F Payout Indicativ Apply Per	Currency cur	<b>v</b> <b>v</b> 000	
Org Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Priority	Pay Type	Amt/Percent	Net Amount	Pay Ccy
No items to display.							
Page 1 (0 items) K < 1	N N						,

Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16]



	Type the TD account number of the customer, for which the payout instructions have to be specified.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Branch	[Display] This field displays the home branch where the TD account is opened and maintained.
Product	[Display] This field displays the product code.
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the TD account principal balance.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency.

- 3. Click the Add button.
- 4. Enter the account number and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key. The system will fetch all the account information.

## **TD Multiple Payout Instructions**

0039 X																
FD Multiple F	Payout Ins	structions						Add	Modify Delete	Cancel	Amend	Authorize	Enquiry	Сору	Ok Close	Clea
	A	ccount Number	70300000001	112 🔍				Customer Nan	ne AUTO PERSON1							
		Branch	98001	MUI	MBAI			Produ	ict 302	FD-Resid	ent					
	P	rincipal Balance	20,0	00.00				Account Curren	cy INR 🔻							
Principal Summ	mary CAS	A Acct Exter	nal Acct Lo	an Acct	GL Acct No.	Reinvest to New Account	Reinvest to Existing Account	Bankers Cheque Demand	I Draft External A/c	C- NEFT	External A	A/c- RTGS	Default	Instruction	15	
							_									
		* Payout Type	Principal	٣		All Deposits	$\checkmark$									
	Orig	inal Deposit				Deposit No	<u> </u>	Payout Currency	y 🗸	*						
		Indicative Amount		000.00												
		indicative / unoun	4	,000.00												
Org D	Deposit No.	Ren	ewal No.	,000.00	Deposit No.	Priority	Pay Type	Amt/Percent	Net Amount		Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	nount	
Org D	Deposit No.	Ren	ewal No.	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Deposit No.	Priority 0	Pay Type 1 Percent	Amt/Percent 100	Net Amount 20	0,000.00	Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	nount 20,000.00	
Org D	Deposit No.	Ren	ewal No.		Deposit No.	Priority 0	Pay Type 1 Percent	Amt/Percent 100	Net Amount 20	0,000.00	Pa	ay Ccy		Pay Ar	nount 20,000.00	-
Org D	Deposit No.	Ren	ewal No.		Deposit No.	0	Pay Type 1 Percent	Amt/Percent 100	Net Amount 20	0,000.00	Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	nount 20,000.00	
Org D	Deposit No.	Ren	ewal No.		Deposit No.	Priority 0	Pay Type 1 Percent	Amt/Percent 100	Net Amount 20	0,000.00	Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	20,000.00	
Org D	Deposit No.	Ren	ewal No.		Deposit No.	Priority 0	Pay Type 1 Percent	Amt/Percent 100	Net Amount 20	0,000.00	Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	nount 20,000.00	
Org D	Deposit No.	Ren	ewal No.		Deposit No.	Priority 0	Pay Type 1 Percent	Amt/Percent 100	Net Amount 20	0,000.00	Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	nount 20,000.00	-
Org D	Deposit No.	Ren	swal No.	1	Deposit No.	0 Priority	Pay Type 1 Percent	Amt/Percent 100	Net Amount 20	0,000.00	Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	nount 20,000.00	
Org D	Deposit No.	Ren	ewal No.		Deposit No.	0 Priority	Pay Type 1 Percent	Amt/Percent 100	Net Amount 20	9,000.00	Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	nount 20,000.00	
Org D	Deposit No.	8) K < 1	wwal No.		Deposit No.	0 Priority	Pay Type 1 Percent	AntiPercent 100	Net Amount 20	0,000.00	Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	nount 20,000.00	
Org D Page 1 of 1 Add De	Deposit No.	Ren           a)         K         < 1	2 swal No.	1	Deposit No.	0	Pay Type 1 Percent	Amt/Percent 100	Net Amount 20	0,000.00	Pa	ау Ссу		Pay Ar	nount 20,000.00	

- 5. The system enables the **Payout Details** tab.
- 6. Select the payout type from the drop-down list.
- 7. Click on the pay mode, the drop-down will be active.
- 8. Select the payout frequency and payout mode from the drop-down list and select the payout date from the Search List. These fields are enabled depending on the selection of Payout Type.
- 9. Click the **Add** button to add a row.

## **Payout Details**

In the **Payout Details** tab, the **Payout Type** field facilitates you to specify whether the payout instruction is for

- Interest
- Principal amount
- Premature redemption

Depending on the criteria you choose for the payout type, the data fields will alter as explained below.

## **Principal Summary**

Ai	CCOUNT Number 7030000000 Branch 98001	013112 🔍						
Pri	Branch 98001				Customer Name	e AUTO PERSON1		
Pri		MUMBAI			Produc	t 302 FD-Resi	dent	
	incipal Balance	0,000.00			Account Currenc	y INR 🔻		
incipal Summary CAS/	A Acct External Acct	Loan Acct GL Acct No.	Reinvest to New Account Re	einvest to Existing Account	Bankers Cheque Demand	Draft External A/c- NEFT	External A/c- RTGS	Default Instructions
	Devent Turne Delevieral	-	Al Desertion 🗖					
	Payout Type Principal	•	All Deposits 🖌					
Origi Num	inal Deposit hber		Deposit No	Q	Payout Currency	•		
	Indicative Amount	20,000.00						
Org Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Priority	Pay Type	Amt/Percent	Net Amount	Pay Ccy	Pay Amount
		0	0 1	Percent	100	20.000.00		00.000.00

Field Name	Description
Payout Type	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the payout type as <b>Principal</b> from the drop-down list. The other options are: Interest Premature
	Principal
Payout Frequency	[Conditional, Drop down] This field displays the Payout Frequency as per the product level. Payout Frequency will be enabled and mandatory for Payout type TDs only.
All Deposits	[Checkbox] Select to view all deposits related to the account.
Deposit No.	[Optional, Search List] Select the TD number, to set the payout instruction to a single term deposit from the Search List. The Search List, lists all the deposits held under the TD account.
Indicative Amount	[Display] This field displays the indicative amount. The interest amount, if a single Term Deposit number is selected, this field displays the interest amount payable for that deposit along with the currency code.



If the **All Deposits** check box is selected, this field displays the sum total of Interest amount payable for the complete deposit under the TD account along with the currency code.

Inactive Amount	[Display]
	This field displays the inactive amount.

Column Name	Description
Org. Deposit No	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The Original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number. The Deposit Number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Priority	[Display] This column displays the payout instruction execution priority. The payout instruction for a term deposit or deposits will be carried out as per the priority. This priority number can be changed to alter the priority of a particular instruction.
Рау Туре	<ul> <li>[Optional, Drop-Down]</li> <li>Select the pay type from the drop-down list.</li> <li>The options are: <ul> <li>Fixed – a fixed payout amount is specified</li> <li>Percent – a % of the amount is specified</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Amt/Percent	<ul> <li>[Mandatory,Numeric,3] Type the amount or percentage value depending on the pay type selected.</li> <li>Percentage - Type a percentage, if the <b>Pay Type</b> is <b>Percent</b>. The value should be equal to or less than 100.</li> <li>[Mandatory,Numeric,13]</li> <li>Fixed - Type an amount, if the <b>Pay Type</b> is <b>Fixed</b>. The value should be less than the payout amount.</li> <li>For example, a customer is specifying payout instructions for the</li> </ul>



	interest earned on the TD and chooses the <b>Pay Type</b> as <b>Percentage</b> . The customer wants to transfer 75% of the interest amount to the loan account and the remaining amount to the CASA account. If the customer earns 1000 as interest amount in a year, 75% of 1000 i.e. 750 will get transferred to the loan account. The remaining 250 i.e. the remaining 25% will get transferred to the CASA account.
Net Amount	[Display] This column displays the available payout amount (principal or interest or premature), for which the payout transaction will be carried out. This amount is displayed in account currency.
Рау Ссу	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the currency in which the payout is conducted i.e. the transaction currency, from the drop-down list.
Pay Amount	[Display] This column displays the net payable amount in the pay currency after applying the conversion rate of local currency of the bank.
Pay Mode	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the payout mode from the drop-down list. The various Payment options are:
	• Cash
	Bankers Cheque
	Demand Draft
	CASA Account
	External Account
	• Loan Account
	GL Account
	Reinvest to New Account
	Reinvest to Existing Account
Total Amount	[Display] This column displays the Outstanding amount. This amount is derived at by deducting the payout amount from the net amount. Total Amount = Net Amount - Payout Amount
	This amount is displayed in account currency.

The above tab screen displays the maturity instructions being added on the principal amount for TD account number 703000000013112. The instructions are for the entire principal amount of USD 4,06,40,303.25. The entire amount on maturity is being reinvested to an existing account as a fresh deposit.

The various payment options are:

- Cash
- Bankers Cheque
- Demand Draft



- CASA Account
- External Account
- Loan Account
- GL Account
- Reinvest to New Account
- Reinvest to Existing Account

# Interest Summary

ct Loan Acct GL Acct No.	Reinvest to New Account F	Reinvest to Existing Account	Bankers Cheque Demand Dr	The second discussion		
				rant External A/C- NEFT	External A/c- RTGS	Default Instruc
est 🔻	All Deposits 🗹		Payout Frequency	T		
	Deposit No	्	Payout Currency	¥		
No. Deposit No.	Priority	Pay Type	Amt/Percent	Net Amount	Pay Ccy	Pay
0	0	1 Percent	100	0.00	INR	
	No. Deposit No.	Deposit No.         Priority           0         0         0	Deposit No         Pay Type           0         0         1	Deposit No.         Priority         Payout Currency           0         0         1         Percent         100	Deposit No.         Priority         Pay yout Currency         V           0         0         1         Percent         100         0.00	Deposit No.         Priority         Pay Out Currency         V           0         0         1         Percent         Net Amount         Pay Ccy

Field Name	Description
Payout Type	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the payout type as Interest from the drop-down list. The other options are:
	Principal
	Premature
	Interest
Payout Frequency	[Display] This field displays the interest payout frequency for the deposit, if a single term deposit is selected.
All Deposits	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>All Deposits</b> check box, to set up payout instructions for all the term deposits initiated under the TD account.
Deposit No.	[Optional, Search List] Select the TD number from the Search List, to apply the payout instruction to a single term deposit. The Search List, lists all the deposits held under the TD account.
Indicative Amount	[Display] This field displays the indicative amount. The interest amount, if a single Term Deposit number is selected, this



field displays the interest amount payable for that deposit along with the currency code.

If the **All Deposits** check box is selected, this field displays the sum total of Interest amount payable for the complete deposit under the TD account along with the currency code.

Column Name	Description
Org. Deposit No	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The Original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number. The Deposit Number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Priority	[Display] This column displays the payout instruction execution priority. The payout instruction for a term deposit or deposits will be carried out as per the priority. This priority number can be changed to alter the priority of a particular instruction.
Рау Туре	<ul> <li>[Optional, Drop-Down]</li> <li>Select the pay type from the drop-down list.</li> <li>The options are: <ul> <li>Fixed – a fixed payout amount is specified</li> <li>Percent – a % of the amount is specified</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Amt/Percent	<ul> <li>[Mandatory,Numeric,3]</li> <li>Type the amount or percentage value depending on the pay type selected.</li> <li>Percentage - Type a percentage, if the <b>Pay Type</b> is <b>Percent</b>. The value should be equal to or less than 100.</li> <li>[Mandatory,Numeric,13]</li> <li>Fixed - Type an amount, if the <b>Pay Type</b> is <b>Fixed</b>. The value should be less than the payout amount.</li> <li>For example, a customer is specifying payout instructions for the</li> </ul>
	interest earned on the TD and chooses the <b>Pay Type</b> as <b>Percentage</b> .

-



	The customer wants to transfer 75% of the interest amount to the loan account and the remaining amount to the CASA account. If the customer earns 1000 as interest amount in a year, 75% of 1000 i.e. 750 will get transferred to the loan account. The remaining 250 i.e. the remaining 25% will get transferred to the CASA account.
Net Amount	[Display] This column displays the available payout amount (principal or interest or premature), for which the payout transaction will be carried out. This amount is displayed in account currency.
Рау Ссу	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the currency in which the payout is conducted i.e. the transaction currency from the drop-down list.
Pay Amount	[Display] This column displays the net payable amount in the pay currency after applying the conversion rate of the local currency of the bank.
Pay Mode	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the payout mode from the drop-down list.
Total Amount	[Display] This column displays the Outstanding amount. This amount is derived at by deducting the payout amount from the net amount. Total Amount = Net Amount - Payout Amount This amount is displayed in account currency.

The above tab screen displays the maturity instructions being added on the principal amount for TD account number 703000000013112. The entire interest amount is on maturity being reinvested to an existing account as a fresh deposit.

The various payment options are:

- Cash
- Bankers Cheque
- Demand Draft
- CASA Account
- External Account
- Loan Account
- GL Account
- Reinvest to New Account
- Reinvest to Existing Account

## Exercise

For an existing account do the following:

For one deposit load maturity instructions for the principal and interest amount separately.

For another load the instructions on the entire amount for a premature redemption.

The various payment options are:



- Cash
- Bankers Cheque
- Demand Draft
- CASA Account
- External Account
- Loan Account
- GL Account
- Reinvest to New Account

## **Premature Summary**

	Account Number 7030	000000013112				Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1			
	Branch 9800	11 ML	IMBAI			Product	302 FD	I-Resident		
out Details Ci	ASA Acct External Act	ct Loan Acct	GL Acct No. Reinves	t to New Account Rein	west to Existing Account	Bankers Cheque De	emand Draft Exter	nal A/c- NEFT	External A/c- RTGS	Default Instructions
	* Payout Type Pi	remature 🔻		All Deposits 🗹						
	Original Deposit Number			Deposit No	Q	Payout Currency	٣			
Pr	remature Payout Mode	•				Indicative Amount	20,000.00			
P	Premature Payout Date 1	5/12/2018	Q			Apply Penalty Rate	✓			
P Org Deposit	Premature Payout Date 1! t No. Renew	5/12/2018 🛗	Q Deposit No.	Priority	Pay Type	Apply Penalty Rate Amt/Perce	ent N	et Amount	Pay Ccy	Pa
P Org Deposit o items to display.	Premature Payout Date 19 19 No. Renew	5/12/2018 🗰	Q Deposit No.	Priority	Рау Туре	Apply Penalty Rate Amt/Perce	ent N	et Amount	Pay Ccy	Pay
P Org Deposit o items to display.	Premature Payout Date 19	5/12/2018 🗰	C Deposit No.	Priority	Рау Туре	Apply Penalty Rate Amt/Perce	ent N	et Amount	Pay Ccy	Pay
P Org Deposit Io items to display.	remature Payout Date 11 1 No. Renev 1.	5/12/2018 🛗	Q Deposit No.	Priority	Рау Туре	Apply Penalty Rate Amt/Perce	ent N	et Amount	Pay Ccy	Pay
P Org Deposit Io items to display.	Yremature Payout Date 1: t No. Renew	5/12/2018 i i i i i val No.	Q Deposit No.	Priority	Рау Туре	Apply Penalty Rate Amt/Perce	ent N	et Amount	Pay Ccy	Pay
P Org Deposit Io items to display.	Yremature Payout Date 1: t No. Renew	5/12/2018 i i i i i i Val No.	Q Deposit No.	Priority	Рау Туре	Apply Penalty Rate Amt/Perce	ent N	et Amount	Pay Ccy	Pay
P Org Deposit Io items to display.	Yremature Payout Date 11: I No. Renew	5/12/2018 i i i i i wal No.	Q Deposit No.	Priority	Рау Туре	Apply Penalty Rate Amt/Perce	ent N	et Amount	Pay Ccy	Pay

Field Name	Description
Payout Type	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the payout type as Premature from the drop-down list. The other options are:
	Principal
	Interest
	Premature
All Deposits	[Display] This field displays whether the payout instructions is set up for all the term deposits initiated under the TD account.
Deposit No.	[Optional, Search List] Select the TD number, to apply the payout instruction to a single term deposit from the Search List. The Search List, lists all the deposits held under the TD account.
Payout Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the date on which the actual payout should take place, from the date editor. The payout date must be greater than the current date.
Indicative Amount	[Mandatory, Numeric, 13, Two]



	Type the indicative amount.
Payout Mode	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the redemption mode from the drop-down list. The options are:
	<ul> <li>Full - The entire deposit amount is redeemed</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Part - You can specify a part amount of the entire amount to be redeemed.</li> </ul>
	When the Payout Mode is selected as part redemption, the Payout Amount can be modified to specify the redemption amount.
Penalty Variance	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>Penalty Variance</b> check box, to apply the penalty variance defined at the TD product level. The penal interest payable on pre-mature redemption is given at the rate after reducing the penalty variance from the contracted interest rate.
Column Name	Description
Org. Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The Original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Priority	[Display] This column displays the payout instruction execution priority. The payout instruction for a term deposit or deposits will be carried out as per the priority. This priority number can be changed to alter the priority of a particular instruction.
Рау Туре	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the pay type from the drop-down list. The options are:
	<ul> <li>Percent – a % of the amount is specified</li> </ul>
•	• Fercent – a % of the amount is specified
Amt/Percent	[Mandatory,Numeric,3] This column displays the amount or percentage value depending on the



	pay type selected.
	<ul> <li>Percentage - Type a percentage, if the Pay Type is Percent. The value should be equal to or less than 100.</li> </ul>
	[Mandatory,Numeric,13]
	<ul> <li>Fixed - Type an amount, if the Pay Type is Fixed. The value should be less than the payout amount.</li> </ul>
	For example, a customer is specifying payout instructions for the interest earned on the TD and chooses the <b>Pay Type</b> as <b>Percentage</b> . The customer wants to transfer 75% of the interest amount to the loan account and the remaining amount to the CASA account. If the customer earns 1000 as interest amount in a year, 75% of 1000 i.e. 750 will get transferred to the loan account. The remaining 250 i.e. the remaining 25% will get transferred to the CASA account.
Net Amount	[Display] This column displays the net amount. The available payout amount (principal or interest or premature), for which the payout transaction will be carried out. This amount is displayed in account currency.
Рау Ссу	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the currency in which the payout is performed i.e. the transaction currency from the drop-down list.
Pay Amount	[Display] This column displays the net payable amount in the pay currency, after applying the conversion rate of local currency of the bank.
Pay Mode	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the payout mode from the drop-down list. The options are:
	• Cash
	Bankers Cheque
	Demand Draft
	CASA Account
	External Account
	Loan Account
	GL Account
	Reinvest to New Account
	Reinvest to Existing Account
Total Amount	[Display] This column displays the Outstanding amount. This amount is derived at by deducting the payout amount from the net amount.
	Total Amount = Net Amount - Payout Amount
	This amount is displayed in account currency.
Screen Description	



The above tab screen displays the premature redemption instructions being added on the interest amount for TD account no 00332000002296. The instructions is for the entire principal amount.

The various payment options are:

- Cash
- Bankers Cheque
- Demand Draft
- CASA Account
- External Account
- Loan Account
- GL Account
- Reinvest to New Account

## **Default Instructions**

/ ×												
Multiple Payout I	nstructions				Add Modify	Delete	Cancel	Amend	Authorize	Enquiry	Сору	Ok Close
Account	Number 7030000	000018154 🔍			(	Customer Nan	ne					
	Branch 98001	MUMBAI				Produ	ct 341		FCNR USD			
Principal	Balance	1,00,000.00			A	ccount Curren	USD	) 🔻				
CASA Acct Ex	ternal Acct Loar	Acct GL Acct No	. Reinvest to	New Reinvest to Exis	Bankers Chec	que Dema	nd Draft	Externa	A/c- NE	Externa	I A/c- RT	. Default Instru
Org Deposit No	Renewal No	Deposit No	Principal	Princ. Instruction	1	Int. Amount			int. Ins	struction	Rei	nvest Product
1	1	1	100000	1	1980.555555555555	556610522419	2142486	572265625	1		0	
Page 1 of 1 (1 of 1 ite	ms) K < 1	х х										

## **Field Description**

Column Name	Description
Org. Deposit No	[Display] This column displays the term deposit number of the TD account.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of

deposits created out of the source deposit either

due to renewals or the payouts.



Deposit No.

Principal

**Princ. Instruction** 

along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit. [Display] This column displays the deposit number. The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.

This field

[Display] This column displays the principal amount of the term deposit or all deposits initiated under the TD account.

[Display] This column displays the payout instruction for the matured principal as defined at the product level. If no



Int. Amount

Int. Instruction

**Reinvest Product** 

instructions are maintained at the account level, then the default instructions are executed.

[Display] This column displays the interest amount.

[Display] This column displays the payout instruction for interest accrued as defined at the product level.

[Display] This column displays the reinvested product code. The TD product code is the product under which the matured principal amount of the deposit will be reinvested, as defined at the product level. If no instructions are maintained at the account level, then the default instructions are executed.

## **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the default instructions for maturity that have been captured for TD account no 00332000002296 at the time of account opening. These instructions can be overridden anytime during the life cycle of the TD account.



- 8. Based on the pay mode selected in the **Pay Mode** column, the system enables the appropriate tab.
- 9. Enter the appropriate information in the various tabs.

## **CASA Acct**

39 ×												
Multiple Paye	out Instruction	ns					Add Modify D	elete	Cancel Am	end Authorize	Enquiry Copy	Ok Close Ci
	Account Number	703000000013	112 🔍				Customer N	ame A	AUTO PERSON	N1		
	Branch	98001	MUMBAI	98001			Pro	duct 1	10005	Savings Account -	Liability	
	Principal Balance	20,00	0.00				Account Curr	ency I	INR 🔻			
Principal Summary	CASA Acct	External Acct	Loan Acct	GL Acct No.	Reinvest to New	Reinvest to Existi	Bankers Cheque	Der	mand Draft	External A/c- NEF1	External A/c- RT	GS Default Inst
	Benificiary Aci	ct 7010000000	13759									
	Customer Nam	AUTO PERSO	N1									
Save Cance												

## **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Beneficiary A/C	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the CASA account number from the Search List. The interest or principal or premature redemption amount will be credited to this account.
	<b>Note</b> : When you select the Beneficiary Account , system checks whether transfer is allowed between the given product code and the product of the beneficiary
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the CASA Account.

## **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the option when the maturity amount will be transferred to a CASA account number 053001000047633. The entire amount will be transferred on maturity to the defined CASA account.



## **Bankers Cheque**

TD039 ×					
TD Multiple Payout Instruction	าร		Add Modify Delete	Cancel Amend Authorize Enqu	uiry Copy Ok Close Clear
Account Number	703000000013112		Customer Name Al	UTO PERSON1	
Branch	98001 MUMBAI		Product 30	02 FD-Resident	
Principal Balance	20,000.00		Account Currency	NR 🔻	
Principal Summary CASA Acct	External Acct Loan Acct GL Acct No.	Reinvest to New Reinvest to Existi.	Bankers Cheque Dem	nand Draft External A/c- NEFT	External A/c- RTGS Default Inst >
TD Amount	20,000.00 20,000.00	Acct Currency INR T Txn Currency INR T		TD Rate 1 Txn Rate 1	
* Issuer Cod * Beneficiary Nam * Beneficiary Addres * Count Automatic BC Issu Save Cancel	AUTO PERSON1     AUTO PERSON1     AUTO     PUNE     V     V     IN     O		* State MA * Zap 123 * Purchaser Name AU	HARASHTRA 3456 TTO PERSON	

Field Name	Description
TD Amount	[Display] This field displays the principal amount of the term deposit or all deposits initiated under the TD Account.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened.
TD Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount in the transaction currency. The transaction currency is the currency in which the customer wants to transact. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the customer wants redemption amount to be paid in EUR (Euro), EUR is the transaction currency.
Txn Currency	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the currency of the cheque.</li> <li>This field, by default, displays the account currency as the transaction currency.</li> <li>While posting the transaction entries to the account, the transaction currency is converted into the account currency and for posting the GL entries it is converted into the local currency of the bank.</li> <li>For example, if the customer wants redemption amount to be paid in EUR (Euro), EUR is the transaction currency.</li> </ul>
Txn Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values



	must be defined and downloaded.
Issuer Code	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the issuer code from the Search List. The bank, on which the BC is to be drawn. A list of banks on which BC can be issued, is maintained in the <b>Issuer Code Maintenance</b> and is downloaded to the branch. Normally banks issue BC of their own bank.
Beneficiary Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 120] Type the name of the beneficiary.
Beneficiary Address	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the address details of the beneficiary.
City	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the town or city name where the beneficiary of the BC resides. This is also part of the address.
State	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the state name where the beneficiary of the BC resides. This is also part of the beneficiary address.
Country	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the country name where the beneficiary of the BC resides. This is also part of the beneficiary address.
Zip	[Mandatory, Numeric, 35] Type the zip code of the area where the beneficiary resides.
Automatic BC Issue	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>Automatic BC Issue</b> check box, if the user wants the BC to be generated automatically. The BC number will be generated automatically as a part of End of Day (EOD) process and the BC will be printed based on the supporting report generated. If this check box is not selected, only then the BC value is transferred to a different GL, and the BC is issued manually on the next day with the help of a report.
Purchaser Name	[Display] This field displays Purchaser name.

The above tab screen displays the option when the maturity amount will be issued as a pay order to the customer, Mr. Auto Person1. The entire amount will be transferred on maturity to a predefined GL account from where the pay order can be issued.



## **Demand Draft**

TD039 ×	
TD Multiple Payout Instructions	Add Modify Delete Cancel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close Clear
Account Number 70300000001312 Branch 90001 MUMBAI Principal Balance 20.000.00	Customer Name         AUTO         PERSON1           Product         302         FD-Resident           Account Currency         INR         •
Principal Summary CASA Acct External Acct Loan Acct GL Acct No. Reinvest to New Account Reinvest to Existing Account	Bankers Cheque Demand Draft External A/c- NEFT External A/c- RTGS Default Instructions
TD Amount 20,000.00 Act Currency INR  Txn Amount 20,000.00 Txn Currency INR  Issuer Code Payable Branch	TO Rate 1 Txn Rate 1
Beneficiary Name AUTO PERSON1 Beneficiary Address ADD1	
City PUNE Slate MAHARASHTRA	
Country IN 260 122355	
Automatic DD Issue * Purchaser Name AUTO PERSON Since Central	

Field Name	Description
TD Amount	[Display] This field displays the principal balance of a term deposit or all the term deposits initiated under the TD account.
Acct Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries are posted in the account in the account currency. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.
TD Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount in the transaction currency. The transaction currency is the currency in which the customer wants to transact. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the customer wants redemption amount to be paid in EUR (Euro), EUR is the transaction currency.
Txn Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency of the cheque. This field, by default, displays the account currency as the transaction currency. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the transaction currency is converted into the account currency, and for posting the GL

	entries it is converted into the local currency of the bank.
Txn Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Issuer Code	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the issuer code of the bank, on which the DD is to be drawn from the Search List. A list of banks on which DD can be issued, is maintained in the <b>Issuer</b> <b>Code Maintenance</b> and is downloaded to the branch. Normally banks issue DD of their own bank.
Payable Branch	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the bank/branch at which the DD is payable from the Search List
Beneficiary Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 120] Type the name of the beneficiary.
Beneficiary Address	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the address details of the beneficiary.
City	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the town or city name where the beneficiary of the DD resides. This is also part of the beneficiary address.
State	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the state name where the beneficiary of the DD resides. This is also part of the beneficiary address.
Country	[Mandatory, Drop Down] Select the country's name where the beneficiary of the DD resides, from the drop down. This is also part of the beneficiary address.
Zip	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the zip code of the area where the beneficiary resides.
Automatic DD Issue	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>Automatic DD Issue</b> check box, if the user wants the DD to be generated automatically. The DD number will be generated automatically as a part of End of Day (EOD) process, and the DD will be printed based on the supporting report generated. If this check box is not selected then only the DD value is transferred to a different GL, and the DD is issued manually on the next day with the help of a report.
Purchaser Name	[Display] This field displays Purchaser name.

The above tab screen displays the option when the maturity amount will be issued as a demand draft to the customer, Mr. Auto Person. The entire amount will be transferred on maturity to a predefined GL account from where the demand draft can be issued.

## Loan Acct

TD039 ×												
TD Multiple Payo	out Instruction	s					Add Modify Dele	te Cancel	Amend Authoria	e Enquiry	Сору	Ok Close Clear
Principal Summary	Account Number Branch Principal Balance CASA Acct	7030000000131 98001 20,000 External Acct	MUMBAI	GL Acct No.	Reinvest to New A	Reinvest to Existi	Customer Name Product Account Currency Bankers Cheque Di	AUTO PER 302 INR emand Draft	SON1 FD-Resident	External A	) //c- RTG S	Default Instructi 义
Save Cance	Benificiary Acc	đ	्				Customer Name					

## **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Beneficiary A/C	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the Loan account number from the Search List. The interest or principal or premature redemption amount will be credited to this account.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the loan account.

## **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the option when the transfer amount on maturity would be transferred to a loan account no 0036190000044 of the customer, Mr. George Abraham. The entire amount will be transferred on maturity the loan account.

## **GL Acct**

TD039 ×										
TD Multiple Payout Instru	uctions					Add Modify	Delete Cancel Am	end Authorize Er	nquiry Copy Ok	Close Clear
Acco	ount Number 7	703000000013112	L.			Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1			
	Branch 9	98001 M	UMBAI			Product	302 FD-Reside	ent		
Princi	ipal Balance	20,000.00				Account Currency	INR T			
Principal Summary CASAA	Acct Extern	al Acct Loan Acct	GL Acct No.	Reinvest to New Account	Reinvest to Existing Account	Bankers Cheque Demand D	raft External A/c- NEFT	External A/c- RTG	Default Instructions	
GI	L Acct Number	244000005	Q							
	GL Description	Money Market Borrow	ings in LCY							
Save Cancel										

Field Name	Description
GL Account Number	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the GL account number from the Search List. The interest or principal or premature redemption amount will be credited to this account.
GL Description	[Display] This field displays the description of the selected GL account.

The above tab screen displays the option when the transfer amount on maturity would be transferred to a GL account. The entire amount will be transferred on maturity the GL account.

## **Reinvest to Existing Account**

maniple i ayout manaciona		
Account Number 703000000018464		Customer Name AUTO PERSON1
Branch 98001 MUMBAI		Product 300 FD-Resident
Principal Balance 5,000.00		Account Currency INR V
incipal Summary CASA Acct External Acct Loan Acct GL Ac	t No. Reinvest to New Account Reinvest to Existing Account	t Bankers Cheque Demand Draft External A/c- NEFT External A/c- RTGS Default Instruct
TD Amount 5.000.00	Acct Currency INR V	TD Rate 1
Txn Amount 5,000.00	Txn Currency INR V	Txn Rate 1
Account Number 703000000018464	Next Auto Renewa	al with Original Deposit
Variance	16111	
Renewal Term in Months 0	Days 0	
Next Maturity Date 01/08/2023		
Payout Frequency 🔹		Compounding Frequency
Bace for Rate Incremental Amount	T	

Field Name	Description
TD Amount	[Display] This field displays the principal amount of the term deposit or all deposits under the TD Account.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency.
TD Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount in the transaction currency.
Txn Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency of the cheque. This field, by default, displays the account currency as the transaction currency.
Txn Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is



	converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Account Number	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the TD account under which the new TD is to be initiated from the Search List.
Next Auto Renewal With Original Deposit Term	[Optional, Check Box] Select this check box to auto renew the existing deposit with the original term.
Variance	[Optional, Numeric, Three, Five] Type the interest variance. The interest variance is validated against the minimum and the maximum variance defined at the product level. It also validates if the interest rate + variance is within the minimum and maximum interest ceiling defined in the <b>TD Product Master</b> .
Renewal Term	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three, Three] Type the term for which the deposit has to be renewed. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits and should be equivalent to the incremental term that is specified at the product level.
Next Maturity Date	[Display] This field displays the next maturity date. The next maturity date changes depending on the number of days entered in <b>Renewal Term</b> field.
Payout Frequency	[Display] This field displays the time interval at which the interest for TD will be paid out.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the compounding frequency.
Base for rate	[Display] This field displays the base for rate.

The above tab screen displays the option when the transfer amount on maturity would be reinvested to an existing account. The deposit on maturity will be added to TD account no 00332000002296 as a new deposit for a period of 6 months.



## **Reinvest to New Account**

D Multiple Payout Instructions			Add Modify Delete Cancel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy OK Close Cle
Account Number Branch Principal Balance Principal Summary CASA Acct Extt	T03000000013112         C           98001         MUMBAI           20,000.00         mal Acct           GL Acct No.         GL Acct No.	Reinvest to New Account Reinvest to Existing Account	Customer Name AUTO PERSON1 Product 302 FD-Resident Account Currency INR • Bankers Chego Demand Orat External A/c-NEFT External A/c-RTG 5 Default Instructions
TD Amount Txn Amount	ch 98001 Q MUMBAI 20,000.00 20,000.00	Acct Currency INR  Txn Currency INR	Customer Category TD Rate 1 T/m Rate 1
Produ Varian Da Compounding Frequen	ct	0,	Staff Reneval Term in Months Payout Frequency Base for Rate Incremental Amount
Save Cancel			

Field Name	Description
Branch	[Mandatory, Numeric, Five, Search List] Type the TD account branch code.
Customer category	[Display] This field displays the category of the customer.
TD Amount	[Display] This field displays the principal amount of the term deposit or all deposits initiated under the TD Account.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency.
TD Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount in the transaction currency. The transaction currency is the currency in which the customer wants to transact. For example, if the customer wants redemption amount to be paid in EUR (Euro), EUR is the transaction currency.
Txn Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency of the cheque. This field, by default, displays the account currency as the transaction currency. While posting the transaction entries to the account, the transaction



	currency is converted into the account currency and for posting the GL entries it is converted into the local currency of the bank. For example, if the customer wants redemption amount to be paid in EUR (Euro), EUR is the transaction currency.
Txn Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Product	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the TD product code number under which the TD account is opened from the Search List.
Staff	[Optional, Check Box] Select the Staff check box, if the customer is the staff of the bank.
Variance	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three, Six] Type the interest variance. The interest variance is validated against the minimum and the maximum variance defined at the product level. It also validates if the interest rate + variance is within the minimum and maximum interest ceiling defined in the <b>TD Product Master</b> .
Renewal Term	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three, Three] Type the term for which the TD is being maintained. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits and should be equivalent to the incremental term that is specified at the product level.
Payout Frequency	[Display] This field displays the time interval, at which the interest for TD will be paid out.
Base for rate	[Display] This field displays the base amount.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the compounding frequency.


# External A/c - NEFT

TD039 ×			
TD Multiple Payout Instructions		Add Mo	odify Delete Cancel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close Clear
Account Number	703000000013112	Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1
Branch	98001 MUMBAI	Product	302 FD-Resident
Principal Balance	20,000.00	Account Currency	INR V
Principal Summary CASA Acct Exter	nal Acct Loan Acct GL Acct No. Reinvest to New Account	Reinvest to Existing Account Bankers Cheque Deman	d Draft External A/c- NEFT External A/c- RTGS Default Instructions
* Payment Transaction Code	N06	Payment Type	OP
Sender Details			
Sender's Acct Number	703000000013112	Sender's Acct Type	Ŧ
* Acct Currency: (4488)	INR		
Sender Bank Details			
* Sending Branch IFSC Code: (5756)	DEMO0000189 Look-Up	* Originator of Remittance : ( 7002 )	Q.
Sender to Receiver Information : (7495)	DEMO BANK LIMITED		
	MUMBAI 98001		
Beneficiary Details			
Panaficiani Acet Number : (8081)		Panafician/ Customer Name : (8001)	
Reneficiary Acct Type : (6310)	<b>.</b>	Beneficiary Customer Address (5565)	
Beneficiary Branch IFSC Code (5569)	Look-Up	/	
Mobile/Ema	•		
Mobile N			
Email I	d		
Save Cancel			
			×

Field Name	Description	
Payment Transaction Code	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the payment transaction code from the Search List.	
Payment Type	[Display] This field displays the payment type based on the selected payment transaction code.	
Sender's Details		
Sender's Account Number	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 14] Type the account number from which the payment is originated. It can be an external account number. By default the system displays the TD account number for which the instruction is being maintained. The account number is mapped to the Sending Customer Account Number (6021) field in the NEFT message (NO6).	
Sender's Account Type	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the account type from the drop-down list. The options are as follows: <ul> <li>10 - Savings Bank</li> <li>11 - Current Account</li> <li>12 - Overdraft</li> <li>13 - Cash Credit</li> <li>14 - Loan Account</li> <li>40 - NRE</li> <li>52 - Credit Card</li> </ul>	
Account Currency	[Display]	

(4488)	This field displays the account currency.	
Sender Bank Details		
Sending Branch IFSC Code (5756)	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 11] Type the sending branch IFSC code. These codes are maintained in the <b>Bank Branch Directory</b> (Task Code : PM004) option.	
Sender to Receiver Information (7495)	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the information from the sender to the receiver.	
Originator of Remittance (7002)	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 35 , Four Lines, Search List] Type the sending customer account details or select it from the Search List.	
Beneficiary Details		
Beneficiary Acct Number (6061)	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 14] Type the beneficiary account number to which the outgoing payment transaction is to be sent.	
Beneficiary Customer Name (6081)	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 35] Type the receiving customer's account name.	
Beneficiary Acct Type (6310)	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the beneficiary account type from the drop-down list. The options are as follows: • 10 - Savings Bank • 11 - Current Account • 12 - Overdraft • 13 - Cash Credit • 14 - Loan Account • 40 - NRE • 52 - Credit Card This is the receiving customer's account type.	
Beneficiary Customer Address (5565)	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35, Four Lines] Type the address of the beneficiary customer .	
Beneficiary Branch IFSC Code (5569)	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric,11, Lookup] Type the beneficiary branch's IFSC code. It is a unique code used for NEFT and RTGS.	
Mobile/Email	[Mandatory, Dropdown] Select Email or Mobile form the dropdown list.	
Mobile No.	[Conditional] Type the Mobile number.	
Email ID.	[Conditional] Type the Email ID.	



# External A/c - RTGS

Iultiple Payout Instructions		Add Modify	y Delete Cancel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close
Account Number	703000000013112 🔍	Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1
Branch	98001 MUMBAI	Product	302 FD-Resident
Principal Balance	20,000.00	Account Currency	INR T
incipal Summary CASA Acct Extern	al Acct Loan Acct GL Acct No.	Reinvest to New Account Reinvest to Existing Account Bankers Cheque Demand D	Oraft External A/c- NEFT External A/c- RTGS Default Instructions
* Payment Transaction Code	R41	Payment Type	OP
* Acct Currency: (4488)	INR		
Sender Details			
* Ordering Customer Details: (5500)	٩,	Beneficiary Customer IFSC Code	Look-Up
		* Beneficiary Customer Acct Number: (5661)	
		* Beneficiary Customer Name: (5561)	
		Beneficiary Customer Address: (5561)	
Reneficiany Detaile			
* Ordering Institution		Sender to Receiver Information Code: (7495)	T
01001112 1101000		Code Info : (7495)	
Ordering Institution IFSC: (5517)	DEM00000189 Look-Up	Additional Info 1; (7495)	
Ordering Institution Details: (5516)	DEMO BANK LIMITED	Additional Info 2: (7495)	
	MUMBAI 98001	Additional Info 3: (7495)	
		Additional Info 4: (7495)	
		Additional Info 5: (7495)	
Savo Cancol			
Save Cancer			



Field Name	Description	
Payment Transaction Code	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the payment transaction code from the Search List.	
Payment Type	[Display] This field displays the payment type based on the selected payment transaction code.	
Account Currency (4488)	[Display] This field displays the currency of the account.	
Ordering Customer Details (5500)	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 35, 4 lines, Search List] Type the sender's bank account number, name of the sender and address or select it from the Search List.	
Receiver Address	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric,11] Type the IFSC code of the beneficiary bank receiving the remittance.	
Beneficiary Customer Account Number (5561)	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 34] Type the beneficiary customer's account number.	
Beneficiary Customer Details (5561)	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 35, 4 lines] Type the details of the beneficiary customer.	
Ordering Institution	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the ordering institution from the drop-down list. The options are:	
	• 5517	
	• 5516	
Ordering Institution IFSC (5517)	[Conditional, Alphanumeric,11, Lookup] Type the ordering institution IFSC code. It is the sending branch's IFSC. This field is enabled if the <b>5517</b> option is selected in the <b>Ordering</b> <b>Institution</b> drop-down list.	
Ordering Institution Details (5516)	[Conditional, Alphanumeric, 35, 3 lines] Type the ordering institution details such as the name of the exchange house and intermediary institution from which originating banks have received the money. This field is enabled if the <b>5516</b> option is selected in the <b>Ordering</b> <b>Institution</b> drop-down list.	
Sender to Receiver Info Code (7495)	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the sender receiver information code from the drop-down list. The options are: • NRE	
	• FAST	
	URGENT	
Code Info (7495)	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 25] Type the code related information.	
Additional Info	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35]	



#### **1,2,3,4,5 (7495)** Type additional information related to the code.

- 10. Click the **Save** button. The system displays the relevant **Payout Detail** screen.
- 11. Click the **Ok** button.
- 12. The system displays the message "Record Added...Authorisation Pending...Click Ok to Continue". Click the **OK** button.
- 13. The multiple payout instructions are added once the record is authorised.



# 4. Redemption



# 4.1 7201 - TD Redemption Enquiry

**Oracle FLEXCUBE** provides the customer with the facility to redeem the deposit on instruction before its maturity date. This is termed as premature redemption.

A premature redemption can be done for a part or full deposit amount. A partial or premature redemption of any term deposit can be done, if it is permitted at the product level. **FLEXCUBE** will allow a TD opened today to be redeemed on the day of account opening. Both part and full redemption will be supported on the day of TD creation. Multiple part redemptions will not be allowed on a single day.

This option enables you to directly redeem a term deposit and transfer the proceeds to Cash, CASA Account, GL Account, Quick Redemption by BC, Quick Redemption by DD, Quick Redemption By Reinvesting Existing Account TD, and Quick Redemption By Reinvesting to New Account.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To redeem a TD account by CASA UBS

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code 7201 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Cash > TD Redemption Enquiry
- 2. You will be navigated to TD Redemption Enquiry screen.

#### **TD Redemption Enquiry**

7201 ×				
TD Redemption Enquiry	0 —	2		- Ok Close Clear
	7201	Step 2		
* Account Number		Uncollected Principal	0.00	
Account Ccy	<b>T</b>	Uncollected Interest	0.00	
* Redemption Mode	Ŧ	Redemption Amount	0.00	
* Redemption Type	T	Lien Amount	0.00	
* Deposit No.	Q.	Principal Balance	0.00	
Original Deposit No.		Penalty Income	0.00	
Current Receipt No.		Uncollected Principal [+]	0.00	
Renewal No.		Uncollected Interest [+]	0.00	
Apply Penal Interest 🗸		PMI on Uncollected Principal [+]	0.00	
Special Penalty Rate	0.00	PMI on Uncollected Interest [+]	0.00	
Account Status		Penalty Interest on Principal [+]	0.00	
Interest Rate Applicable	0.00	Additional Penalty Amount [-]	0.00	
		Pro-rata Interest Deducted [-]	0.00	
		Tax Deducted 1 [-]	0.00	
		Tax Deducted 2 [-]	0.00	
		Service Charge Deduction [-]	0.00	
		Net Proceeds	0.00	
ield Description				
icia Boooripaoli				
Field Name	Description			

Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number which is to be redeemed The name of the account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.	
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.	
Redemption Mode	<ul> <li>[Mandatory, Drop-Down]</li> <li>Select the redemption mode from the drop-down list.</li> <li>The options in the list are: <ul> <li>Transfer By Cash - Using this option you can redeem a term deposit and encash the proceeds directly.</li> <li>Transfer To CASA - Using this option you can redeem a term deposit and Transfer the Redemption amount to Casa Account.</li> <li>Transfer To GL - Using this option you can redeem a term deposit and Transfer the Redemption amount to GL Account.</li> <li>Quick Redemption By BC</li> <li>Quick Redemption By Reinvesting Existing Account TD</li> <li>Quick Redemption By Reinvesting to New Account</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	
Redemption Type	<ul> <li>[Mandatory, Drop-Down]</li> <li>Select the redemption mode from the drop-down list.</li> <li>The options in the list are: <ul> <li>Full Redemption - The entire deposit amount is redeemed.</li> <li>Part Redemption - You can specify a part of the entire deposit amount to be redeemed.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	
Deposit No.	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the term deposit number from the Search List that is to be redeemed.	
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the original deposit number. The original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number but will retain the original deposit number of the source deposit.	
Current Receipt No.	[Display] This field displays the current receipt number.	
Renewal No.	[Display] This field displays the renewal number of the TD.	
Apply Penal Interest	[Check Box, Optional] You can select the check box if special penalty rate is to be added.	
Special Penalty Rate	[Conditional, Numeric, Three, Five] Type the special penalty rate. This field accepts negative rate	



Account Status	[Display] The field displays the account status.
Interest Rate Applicable	[Display] This field displays the interest rate applicable for the TD.
Uncollected Principal	[Display] This field displays the matured deposit amount for which the redemption mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer. Amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, are to be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field.
Uncollected Interest	[Display] This field displays the interest for which the payout mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer. Interest amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, should be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field.
Redemption Amount	[Conditional, Numeric, 13, Two] Type the amount of the term deposit that is to be redeemed. This field is enabled if <b>Part Redemption</b> is selected as <b>Redemption</b> <b>Mode.</b>
Lien Amount	[Display] This field displays the total lien amount placed on the deposit.
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the matured Principal amount left uncollected with the bank, and which has no specific payout instructions.
Penalty Income	[Display] This field displays the penalty amount. It is calculated based on the penalty factor defined at the TD bank parameter level. It is the percentage amount for the interest applicable. The modification of the penalty amount is dependent on the minimum and maximum variance limit set at the TD Bank Parameter Level (TDM04) option.
+ Uncollected Principal	[Display] This field displays the matured deposit amount for which the redemption mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer. Amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, should be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field. For example, a deposit is matured and the payout mode is defined as cash. The redemption procedures are complete but the cash is not collected by the customer. In this case, the amount is displayed as principal due.
+ Uncollected Interest	[Display] This field displays the interest for which the payout mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer. This is applicable for non-cumulative deposits. Interest amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, are to be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field.



+ PMI On Uncollected Principal	[Display] This field displays the post-maturity interest earned on the matured uncollected principal. Post Maturity Interest (PMI) is the interest earned on matured deposits, for the grace period or between the deposit maturity date and the renewal date (if the renewal is done within the grace period). PMI will be paid to the customer if the Maturity Option is defined as No instructions at the product level.
+ PMI On Uncollected Interest	[Display] This field displays the post-maturity interest earned on the uncollected Interest Post Maturity Interest (PMI) is the interest earned on matured deposits, for the grace period or between the deposit maturity date and the renewal date (if the renewal is done within the grace period). PMI will be paid to the customer if the Maturity Option is defined as No instructions at the product level.
+ Penalty Interest On Principal	[Display] This field displays the penalty interest on the principal, if penalty is charged for early redemption.
- Additional Penalty Amount	[Display] This field displays the additional penalty amount.
- Pro-rata Interest Deducted	[Display] This field displays the interest, which is already paid or compounded against the deposit amount, which is being redeemed. While redeeming an amount, the system calculates the interest payable from the Interest Start Date to the date of redemption. The interest, which is already paid to the customer or compounded to the principal, i.e. the pro-rata interest, is deducted from the redemption amount. If no interest has been paid to the customer prior to the redemption date, the value of this field will be zero. For example, for a deposit of 10,000 made on 1st January '09, an interest of 100 is paid every month. If this deposit is to be prematurely redeemed on 31st May '09, the system calculates the interest payable for this deposit from 1st January '09 to 31st May '09. Therefore, the interest to be paid will be calculated at 500, out of which 400 is already paid to the customer. This interest, which is already paid to the customer, is deducted from the amount to be redeemed. 400 is the pro rata interest.
- Tax Deducted 1	[Display] This field displays the tax 1 for the amount to be redeemed. The tax proceeds are to be recovered from the customer. The bank will deduct this tax amount from the redemption proceeds. The tax is calculated based on the tax code 1 attached to the account at the time of account opening.
- Tax Deducted 2	[Display] This field displays the tax 2 for the amount to be redeemed. The tax is calculated based on the tax code 2 attached to the account at the time of account opening.
- Service Charge Deduction	[Display] This field displays the Service Charge charged on the redemption



Transaction.

Net Proceeds[Display]This field displays the net amount to be redeemed. This amount is<br/>calculated by adding and deducting the interest (due, uncollected or pro<br/>rata), principal (due, uncollected) and tax (if applicable) from the redeem<br/>amount. This is the amount, which will be paid to the customer.

- 3. Enter the account number and select the redemption mode from the list.
- Select the deposit number from the Search List. Incase of premature redemption, the system displays the message " Premature Redemption of Term Deposit. Do you want to continue?". Click OK to continue.
- 5. Select the Redemption mode from the list.
- 5. For partial redemption, enter the redemption amount.
- 6. Select the Apply Penal Interest check box if special penalty variance is to be added.

Redemption Enquiry		1 2		Ok Close Cle
		7201 Step 2		
* Account Number	703000000002020 AUTO PERSON1	Uncollected Principal	0.00	
Account Ccy	INR 🔻	Uncollected Interest	0.00	
* Redemption Mode	Transfer By Cash 🔹	Redemption Amount	0.00	
* Redemption Type	Full Redemption V	Lien Amount	0.00	
* Deposit No.	Q.	Principal Balance	0.00	
Original Deposit No.		Penalty Income	0.00	
Current Receipt No.		Uncollected Principal [+]	0.00	
Renewal No.		Uncollected Interest [+]	0.00	
Apply Penal Interest	✓	PMI on Uncollected Principal [+]	0.00	
Special Penalty Rate	0.00	PMI on Uncollected Interest [+]	0.00	
Account Status		Penalty Interest on Principal [+]	0.00	
Interest Rate Applicable	0.00	Additional Penalty Amount [-]	0.00	
		Pro-rata Interest Deducted [-]	0.00	
		Tax Deducted 1 [-]	0.00	
		Tax Deducted 2 [-]	0.00	
		Service Charge Deduction [-]	₹0.00	
		Net Proceeds	0.00	

- 7. Click OK.
- 8. The system displays the message "Do You want to continue?".
- 9. Click OK. The system displays the Quick Redemption By Cash screen.

**Quick Redemption By Cash - 1310** 



7201 ×					
Quick Redemption By Cash		0	2		Close Clear
		7201	1310		
* Account Number	703000000002020 AUTO PERSON1				
Account Ccy	INR Y		* Txn Ccy	INR ¥	
* Acy Rate	1.00000		* Txn Rate	1.00000	
Deposit No.	1		Redemption Amount	20,000.00	
Redemption Proceeds	₹20,371.00	Tot	al Redemption by Cash Today	0.00	
Txn Amount	20,371.00		Apply Penal Interest	$\checkmark$	
User Ref No.	23342		Penalty Variance	0.00	
* Txn. Narrative	FD PREMATURE REPYT - CASH-MUMBAI 98001-MU		Redemption Mode	Full Redemption V	



Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Display] This field displays the TD account number. The name of the account holder is displayed in the adjacent field.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the account currency for the transaction.
Txn Ccy	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the transaction currency of the account from the drop- down list.
Acy Rate	[Display] This field displays the account currency rate.
Txn Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number selected in the <b>TD</b> <b>Redemption Enquiry</b> screen.
Redemption Amount	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount.
Redemption Proceeds	[Display] This field displays the redemption proceeds which is the sum of redemption amount and interest.
Total Redemption by Cash Today	[Display] This field displays the Total deposit amount redeemed by cash today.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the transaction amount. The transaction amount depends on the Transaction Currency selected. When transaction currency is selected, the transaction amount is derived using the appropriate currency conversion rate.
Apply Penal Interest	[Display] This field displays if check box is checked on Parent screen.
User Ref No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number.
Penalty Variance	[Display] This field displays whether any special penalty variance is added or not.
Txn Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration. This field displays the default narration, based on the transaction. You can change the narration if required.



[Display] This field displays the mode of redemption. The mode of redemption can be full or partial.

# Quick Redemption By CASA - 1312

7201 ×					
Quick Redemption by CASA		0	2		Ok Close Clear
		7201	1312		
* CASA Account Number	701000000003187 AUTO PERSON1	Q			
* CASA Acct Ccy	INR T		* CASA Acct Ccy Rate	1.00000	
Deposit No.	1		* TD Acct Ccy Rate	1.00000	
Redemption Proceeds	₹20,222.00		Redemption Amount	₹20,000.00	
Txn Amount	₹20,222.00		Apply Penal Interest	$\checkmark$	
User Ref No.	88997755		Penalty Variance	2.00	
* Txn Narrative	FD Pre-Mature Redemption Trfr. to Casa		Redemption Mode	Full Redemption <b>T</b>	

Field Name	Description
CASA Account Number	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the CASA account number from the Search List, to which the redemption of TD is to be done. The name of the customer is displayed in the adjacent field.
CASA Acct Ccy	[Display] This field displays the TD account currency.
CASA Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the TD account currency.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number selected in the <b>TD Redemption</b> <b>Enquiry</b> screen.
TD Acct Ccy Rate.	[Display] This field displays the TD account currency rate.
Redemption Proceeds	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount.
Redemption Amount	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the transaction amount. The transaction amount depends on the Transaction Currency selected. When the transaction currency is selected, the transaction amount is derived using the appropriate currency conversion rate.



Apply Penal Interest	[Display] This field displays if check box is checked on Parent screen.
User Ref No.	[Display] This field displays the user reference number.
Penalty Variance	[Display] This field displays whether any special penalty variance is added or not.
TXn Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration. This field displays the default narration, based on the transaction. The user can change the narration if required.
Redemption Mode	[Display] This field displays the mode of redemption. The mode of redemption can be full or partial.

# Quick Redemption By GL - 1318

7201 ×				
Quick Redemption by GL		7201	1318	v Ok Close Clear
* GL Account Coy * GL Account Number * Acy Rate Deposit No. Redemption Proceeds Txn Amount User Ret No. * Txn Narrative	INR         V           24420024         NEFT Inward Settlement GL           1         00000           1         20.222.00           20.222.00         TD REDEMPTION BY GL	7201	* Tan Rate 1.0000 Redemption Amount ₹20,000.0 Apply Penal Interest Penalty Variance 2.0 Redemption Mode Full Redemption *	



Field Name	Description
GL Account Ccy	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the GL account currency from the drop-down list. By default this field displays "INR" as GL account currency.
GL Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric] Enter the GL account number to which the redemption of TD is to be done. The GL name is displayed in the adjacent field.
Acy Rate	[Display] This field displays the account currency rate.
Txn Rate	[Conditional, Numeric 2, Five] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. The teller's right to change the transaction currency rate value, is configurable at the bank level. If such rights are not assigned to the teller, this field becomes non-editable. If the transaction currency and the local currency are the same, the field takes a default value as 1, which cannot be modified.
GL Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the GL currency is converted to the local currency of the bank.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number selected in the <b>TD Redemption</b> <b>Enquiry</b> screen.
Redemption Amount	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount.
Redemption Proceeds	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount.
Apply Penal Interest	[Display] This field displays if check box is checked on Parent screen.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the transaction amount. The transaction amount depends on the Transaction Currency selected. When transaction currency is selected, the transaction amount is derived using the appropriate currency conversion rate.
Penalty Variance	[Display] This field displays whether any special penalty variance is added or not.
User Ref No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number.
Redemption Mode	[Display] This field displays the mode of redemption. The mode of redemption can be full or partial.
Txn Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 120]



Type the narration.

This field displays the default narration, based on the transaction. You can change the narration if required.

#### TD Quick Redemption by BC - 1311

Account No. 70300 Deposit No. Txn Ccy. INR * Acct. Ccy. INR Redemption Proceeds	000000002020 AUTO PERSON1	7201 1311 * Bank Code Txn Ccy Rate	DEMO BANK ▼ 1.00000	
Account No. 70300 Deposit No. Txn Ccy. INR * Acct. Ccy. INR Redemption Proceeds	AUTO PERSON1	* Bank Code Txn Ccy Rate	DEMO BANK ▼ 1.00000	
Deposit No. Txn Ccy. * Acct. Ccy. Redemption Proceeds	1 ▼ Q	* Bank Code Txn Ccy Rate	DEMO BANK V 1.00000	
Txn Ccy. INR * Acct. Ccy. INR Redemption Proceeds	▼ Q	Txn Ccy Rate	1.00000	
* Acct. Ccy. INR Redemption Proceeds	<b>V</b>			
Redemption Proceeds		* Acct. Ccy Rate	1.00000	
	₹20,413.00	Redemption Amount	₹20,000.00	
* Txn Amount	₹20,413.00	Apply Penal Interest	$\checkmark$	
Issue Date 15/12	2/2018	Serial No.		
Instrument No.		Routing No.	600240002	
* Beneficiary Name AUTC	O PERSON1	Passport / IC No.	71DCE537CEA7312F	
Beneficiary Address 1 ADD1	1	Penalty Variance	0.00	
Beneficiary Address 2		Redemption Mode	Quick Redemptio 🔻	
Beneficiary Address 3		User Reference No.		
* Narrative FD PI	PREMATURE RE			
* Purchaser Name				



Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the TD account number.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number.
Bank Code	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the bank code from the drop-down list.
Txn Ccy	[Display] This field displays the transaction currency.
Txn Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate for the transaction currency.
Acct Ccy	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the account currency from the Search List.
Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate for the account currency.
Redemption Proceeds	[Display] This field displays the redeem amount in transaction currency.
Redemption Amount	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount based on the redeem amount entered.
Apply Penal Interest	[Display] This field displays if check box is checked on Parent screen.
Issue Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the BC is issued.
Serial No.	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the serial number.</li> <li>For a remittance instrument such as a BC or DD, the system generates a serial number that includes the branch code. The serial number for each instrument type is maintained separately. On reversal of an instrument issue the instrument serial number is not reused for the next instrument issue.</li> <li>When an instrument comes into clearing, it may be referred to with an MICR number, which needs to be maintained for each instrument, if it is expected through an inward clearing batch. If the teller liquidates an instrument, the instrument serial number enables the system to track the instrument uniquely.</li> </ul>
Instrument No.	[Optional, Numeric, 12] Type the Instrument number. This number is printed on the instrument, if the instrument is expected to come in for inward clearing. A cross reference is maintained with the system-generated serial number, to enable the system to track the instrument.
Routing No.	[Display]



	This field displays the routing number.
Beneficiary Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the name of the beneficiary.
Passport / IC No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 30] Type the passport/IC number for the identification of the beneficiary.
Beneficiary Address 1,2,3	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35, Three Lines] Type the address details of the beneficiary. The first line is mandatory.
Penalty Variance	[Display] This field displays whether any special penalty variance is added or not.
Redemption Mode	[Display] This field displays the mode of redemption. The mode of redemption can be full or partial.
User Reference No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the transaction narration. By default, the system displays <b>Quick Redemption by BC</b> .
Purchaser Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 60] Type the Purchaser Name. For Individual customers - Short name of the Primary customer will be defaulted. For all others (Corporate and Bank customers) - Account title will be displayed by default. The defaulted values will be editable.

### Quick Redemption by DD - 1332

<u>7201</u> ×					
TD Redemption Payout by DI	C		2		
		7201	1332		VK Close Clear
Account No.	703000000016561	AUTO PERSON1	Deposit No	1	
Payable Branch Code			٩,		
* Bank Code	0				
Txn Ccy	•	0	Txn Ccy Rat	•	
* Acct Ccy	INR 🔻		Acct Ccy Rat	•	
Redeemption Proceeds	20,000.00		* Txn Amour	t	
Issue Date	01/01/1800		Serial No.		
Instrument No.			Routing No.		
* Beneficiary Name			Passport / IC No		
Redemption Amt.	0.00		Apply Penal Interes	t 🖌	
Redemption Mode	Full Redemption v				
Beneficiary Addr.			Penalty Variance	0.00	
Address 1					
Address 2					
User Reference No.					
* Narrative	Quick Redemption By	DD.			
* Purchaser Name					

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the TD account number.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number.
Payable Branch Code	[Display] This field displays the branch code at which the DD is payable.
Payable Branch Name	[Display] This field displays the branch name at which the DD is payable.
Bank Code	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the bank code from the Search list.
Txn Ccy	[Display] This field displays the transaction currency.
Txn Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate for the transaction currency.
Acct Ccy	[Mandatory, Dropdown list] Select the account currency from the dropdown List.
Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate for the account currency.
Redemption Proceeds	[Display] This field displays the redeem amount.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount to be redeemed.
Issue Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the DD is issued.
Serial No.	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the serial number.</li> <li>For a remittance instrument such as a BC or DD, the system generates a serial number that includes the branch code. The serial number for each instrument type is maintained separately. On reversal of an instrument issue the instrument serial number is not reused for the next instrument issue.</li> <li>When an instrument comes into clearing, it may be referred to with an MICR number, which needs to be maintained for each instrument, if it is expected through an inward clearing batch. If the teller liquidates an instrument, the instrument serial number enables the system to track the instrument uniquely.</li> </ul>
Instrument No.	[Optional, Numeric, 12] This field displays the MICR number The MICR number is a number which is necessary for every remittance instrument. The MICR number will be printed on the instrument, if the instrument is expected to come in for inward clearing. A cross reference is maintained with the system-generated serial number, to enable the system to track the instrument.



Routing No.	[Display] This field displays the routing number.
Beneficiary Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the name of the beneficiary.
Passport / IC No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 30] Type the passport/IC number for the identification of the beneficiary.
Redemption Amt.	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount.
Apply Penal Interest	[Display] This field displays if check box is checked on Parent screen.
Beneficiary Address 1,2	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 35, Three Lines] Type the address details of the beneficiary. The first line is mandatory.
Penalty Variance	[Display] This field displays whether any special penalty variance is added or not.
Redemption Mode	[Display] This field displays the mode of redemption. The mode of redemption can be full or partial.
User Reference No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration. By default, the system displays <b>Quick Redemption By DD</b> .
Purchaser Name	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 60] Type the Purchaser Name. For Individual customers - Short name of the Primary customer will be defaulted. For all others (Corporate and Bank customers) - Account title will be displayed by default. The defaulted values will be editable.

#### **Quick Redemption by Reinvest to Existing Account - 1333**







Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Display] This field displays the TD account number.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the account currency.
Account Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of account currency.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number
Redemption Proceeds	[Display] This field displays the redemption proceeds based on the redemption amount entered in the <b>Redemption Enquiry</b> screen.
To Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 14, Search List] Type the account number to which the amount needs to be redeemed or select it from the Search List.
To Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the account currency for the account number selected in the corresponding field
To Account Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the account currency rate for the account number selected in the corresponding field.
Payin Amount	[Display] This field displays the payin amount.
To Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the compounding frequency.
Int Payout Frequency	[Conditional, Drop down] This field displays the Payout Frequency as per the product level. Payout Frequency will be enabled and mandatory for Payout type TDs only.
Base for rate	[Display] This field displays the base for rate.
Maturity Date Factor	[Mandatory, Radio Button] Click the appropriate option to select the term or maturity date factor. If <b>Maturity Date</b> option is selected <b>FLEXCUBE</b> disables the <b>Term</b> field.
Term	
Value Date	[Display] This field displays the value date.
Term	[Conditional, Numeric, Two] Type the term for which the TD is being renewed.

	The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits specified at the product level. This field is enabled if <b>Term</b> is selected in <b>Maturity DateFactor</b> field.
Int. Start Date	[Display] This field displays the interest start date. It is same as the value date.
Rate	
Interest Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of interest for the new TD account. The interest should be within the product limits.
Product Variance	[Display] This field displays the interest variance, defined under the <b>Product</b> - <b>Rate Maintenance</b> for the slab under which TD principal balance and term falls.
Deposit Variance	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three, Six] Type the interest variance for the new term deposit initiated under the new TD account. The variance specified should be within the minimum and maximum variance specified at the product level. Based on the product definition made for the field <b>Auto/ Force Renew</b> <b>With Deposit Variance</b> in <b>TD Product Master</b> (Task Code: TDM01) option, the deposit variance will be carried forward to the deposits created by auto / force renewal.
Maturity Date	[Conditional, Search List, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the date on which the new deposit will mature from the Search List. This field is enabled if <b>Maturity Date</b> is selected in the <b>Maturity Date</b> <b>Factor</b> field.
Net Rate	[Display] This field displays the net rate at which interest is paid against the deposit. Net Rate = Interest Rate (At deposit level) + Deposit Variance + Product Variance The net rate specified should be within the minimum and maximum variance specified at the product level.
Next Int. Pay Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest due date. Depending on the Interest Payout Frequency interval specified, the system calculates the next interest due date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Payout Date = 31/03/2019
Scheme Variance	[Display] This field displays the interest variance applicable on the scheme.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This field displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit.



	This amount is inclusive of the TSD, if any.
Scheme Rate	[Display] This field displays the interest rate applicable on the scheme.
User Ref No.	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the user reference number which is used to identify the transaction.
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. AER (Annual Equivalent Rate) is the annualized rate of return which the bank pays to the customer.
Txn. Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the transaction narrative. By default, the system displays <b>Redemption to Existing Account</b> .
Next Int. Comp. Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest compounding date. Depending on the Interest Compounding Frequency duration specified, the system calculates the next interest compounding date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Compounding Date = 31/01/2019

### Quick Redemption by Reinvest to New Account - 1336

7201 ×					
Quick Redemption by Reinvest	to New Account	( <b>\</b>	2		
		7204	1226		E V Close Clear
		7201	1000		
Account Number	703000000001397 AUTO PERSON1				
Account Ccy	INR V				
Acy Rate	1.00000		Redemption Amount	5,000.00	
Deposit No	1		Apply Penal Interest	<ul> <li>Image: A start of the start of</li></ul>	
Redemption Proceeds	₹5,029.60		Penalty Variance	1.00	
* To Product		0	Redemption Mode	Full Redemption V	
To Account Ccy	INR V		* To Account Ccy Rate	1.00000	
To Account Number			To Deposit No		
Payin Amount	₹5,029.60				
Compounding Frequency	Quarterly v		* Int Payout Frequency	At Maturity 🔹 🔻	
* Base for Rate	Incremental Amo 🔻				
Maturity Date Factor	Term Maturity Date				
Term		Rate			
Value Date	15/12/2018		Interest Rate	0.00000	
* Term	0 Months Days		Product Variance	0.00000	
* Int. Start Date	15/12/2018		* Deposit Variance	0.00000	
Maturity Date			Net Rate	0.00000	
Next Int. Pay Date			Scheme Variance	0.00000	
Maturity Amount	₹0.00		Scheme Rate	0.00000	
User Ref No			Annual Equivalent Rate	0.00000	
* Txn. Narrative	Redemption To New Account		Next Int. Comp. Date	<b></b>	
	# Maturity Amount is calculated without considering tax.				



Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Display] This field displays the TD account number.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the account currency.
Acy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of account currency.
Redemption Amount	[Display] This field displays the redemption amount.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number.
Apply Penal Interest	[Display] This field displays if check box is checked on Parent screen.
Redemption Proceeds	[Display] This field displays the redemption proceeds.
Penalty Variance	[Display] This field displays whether any special penalty variance is added or not.
To Product	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three, Search List] Select the product code in which the premature redemption amount of the deposit is to be reinvested from the Search List.
Redemption Mode	[Display] This field displays the mode of redemption. The mode of redemption can be full or partial.
To Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the account currency for the account number selected in the corresponding field
To Account Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the account currency rate for the account number selected in the corresponding field.
To Account Number	[Display] This field displays the account number.
To Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number.
Payin Amount	[Display] This field displays the payin amount.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the compounding frequency selected at the product level.
Int Payout Frequency	[Conditional, Drop down] This field displays the Payout Frequency as per the product level. Payout Frequency will be enabled and mandatory for Payout type TDs only.



Base for Rate	[Display] This field displays the base for rate.
Maturity Date Factor	[Mandatory, Radio Button] Click the appropriate option to select the term or maturity date factor. If <b>Maturity Date</b> option is selected <b>FLEXCUBE</b> disables the <b>Term</b> field.
Term	
Value Date	[Display] This field displays the value date for TD.
Term	[Conditional, Numeric, Two] Type the term for which the TD is being renewed. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits specified at the product level. This field is enabled if <b>Term</b> is selected in <b>Maturity DateFactor</b> field.
Int. Start Date	[Display] This field displays the interest start date. It is same as the value date.
Maturity Date	[Conditional, Search List, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the date on which the new deposit will mature from the Search List. This field is enabled if <b>Maturity Date</b> is selected in the <b>Maturity Date</b> <b>Factor</b> field.
Rate	
Interest Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of interest for the new TD account. The interest should be within the product limits.
Product Variance	[Display] This field displays the interest variance, defined under the <b>Product</b> - <b>Rate Maintenance</b> for the slab under which TD principal balance and term falls.
Deposit Variance	[Mandatory, Numeric, Three, Six] Type the interest variance for the new term deposit initiated under the new TD account. The variance specified should be within the minimum and maximum variance specified at the product level. Based on the product definition made for the field <b>Auto/ Force Renew</b> <b>With Deposit Variance</b> in <b>TD Product Master</b> (Task Code: TDM01) option, the deposit variance will be carried forward to the deposits created by auto / force renewal.
Net Rate	[Display] This field displays the net rate at which interest is paid against the deposit.
	Net Rate = Interest Rate (At deposit level) + Deposit Variance + Product Variance
	The net rate specified should be within the minimum and maximum variance specified at the product level.
Scheme Variance	[Display]



	This field displays the interest variance applicable on the scheme.			
Scheme Rate	[Display] This field displays the interest rate applicable on the scheme.			
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. AER (Annual Equivalent Rate) is the annualized rate of return which the bank pays to the customer.			
Next Int. Pay Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest due date. Depending on the Interest Payout Frequency interval specified, the system calculates the next interest due date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Payout Date = 31/03/2019			
Next Int. Comp. Date	[Display] This field displays the next interest compounding date. Depending on the Interest Compounding Frequency duration specified, the system calculates the next interest compounding date. Consider the following example: Interest Payout Frequency = Quarterly Interest Compounding Frequency = Monthly Deposit initiated date = 31/12/2018 Next Interest Compounding Date = 31/01/2019			
Maturity Amount	[Display] This field displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any.			
User Ref No	[Optional, Numeric, 40] Type the user reference number which is used to identify the transaction.			
Txn. Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the transaction narrative. By default, the system displays <b>Redemption to New Account</b> .			
10. Click <b>OK</b> .				
11. The system displays <b>Continue</b> .	the message "Authorization Required. Do you want to continue?". Click			
12. The system displays	the Authorization Reason screen.			
3. Enter the relevant information and click <b>Grant</b> .				

14. The system displays the transaction sequence number. The transaction number is a system generated number that uniquely identifies each transaction performed by a teller and can be used for tracking the transaction. Click **OK**.

Note: For more information on Authorization refer to the Oracle FLEXCUBE Introduction User Manual.



# 5. Renewal



# 5.1 7202 - TD Renewal Enquiry

Using this option a deposit that has matured after a defined time period can be renewed. If maturity instruction of a term deposit is defined as **Renew Principal** and/or **Interest**, the term deposit is automatically renewed by the system on the date of maturity.

If no maturity instructions are specified for the term deposit, then the status changes to **Matured Deposit**. Such deposits can be renewed in this option.

If term deposit is renewed after maturity within grace days defined at product level, the term deposit renewal can be effective from the date of maturity of the term deposit. If such renewal is done after grace days,term deposit renewal is done from the current process date.

This is explained using an example below:

Date of Maturity of TD account	10 <sup>th</sup> October 2018
Grace days defined for the product	10 days

If customer comes for renewal of the TD before 20<sup>th</sup> October 2018, the TD renewal can be done from the date of maturity i.e. value date for the renewal can be 10<sup>th</sup> October 2018.

If customer comes for renewal of the TD after 20<sup>th</sup> October 2018, say on 25<sup>th</sup> October 2018, the TD renewal will be done from the current date i.e. 25<sup>th</sup> October 2018.

If a deposit matures on a holiday and if online renewal is done using this option, on the immediate working day but with the value date as the current process date and not the original maturity date (the holiday), interest will be provided to the customer. Holiday period interest will not be given to the customers if Online renewal of a deposit is done within the grace days defined and if renewal is done after grace days, the holiday period interest along with the PMI interest (if applicable) will be given.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To perform online renewal of TD

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code 7202 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TD Renewal Enquiry.
- 2. You will be navigated to the **TD Renewal Enquiry** screen.



# **TD Renewal Enquiry**

7202 ×						
TD Renewal Enquiry			1	(2)		_ 1
		7	7202	Step 2		-
* Account No.						
Account Ccy	•					- 1
Deposit No.		Q				- 1
Value Date	30/11/2018	•				- 1
Principal Due	0.00					- 1
Interest Due [+]	0.00					- 1
Uncollected Principal [+]	0.00					- 1
Uncollected Interest [+]	0.00					- 1
PMI on Principal [+]	0.00					- 1
PMI on Interest [+]	0.00					- 1
Tax Withheld [-]	0.00					- 1
Renewal Amount						- 1
						- 1
						- 1
						- 1
						- 1
						- 1
						- 1
						- 1

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number, which is to be renewed online.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product, under which the account is opened. All the entries are posted in the account in the account currency. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.
Deposit No.	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the term deposit number to be renewed from the Search List.
Value Date	<ul> <li>[Mandatory, Search List, dd/mm/yyyy]</li> <li>Select the value date from the Search List.</li> <li>The value date signifies the date from which the life of the TD starts i.e. the date from which the TD is effective. The interest calculations for a TD will start from this date. The system by default displays the current date as the value date.</li> <li>The value date is validated against the grace period defined at the product level.</li> <li>If the matured deposit is renewed during the grace period, the value date can be the maturity date or any other date within the grace period.</li> <li>If the matured deposit is renewed after the grace period, the value date will be the current date.</li> </ul>
Principal Due	[Display] This field displays the matured principal amount left uncollected with the bank, and which has no specific payout instructions.
Interest Due	[Display]



	This field displays the Interest amount left uncollected with the bank, and which has no specific payout instructions.					
Uncollected Principal	[Display] This field displays the matured deposit amount for which the redemption mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer. Amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, should be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field. For example, a deposit is matured and the payout mode is defined as cash. The redemption procedures are complete but the cash is not collected by the customer. In this case, the amount is displayed as principal due.					
Uncollected Interest	[Display] This field displays the interest for which the payout mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer. This is applicable for non-cumulative deposits. Interest amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, are to be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field.					
PMI on Principal	[Display] This field displays the post-maturity interest earned on the matured uncollected principal. Post Maturity Interest (PMI) is the interest earned on matured deposits, for the grace period or between the deposit maturity date and the renewal date (if the renewal is done within the grace period). PMI will be paid to the customer if the <b>Maturity Option</b> is defined as <b>No</b> <b>instructions</b> at the product level.					
PMI on Interest	[Display] This field displays the post-maturity interest earned on uncollected interest. PMI will be paid to the customer if the <b>Payout Option</b> is defined as <b>No</b> <b>instructions</b> at the product level.					
Tax Withheld	[Display] This field displays the tax deducted for the matured deposit amount which is to be renewed. This tax is accrued but not remitted to the government. The tax is deducted on the basis of tax deduction frequency defined at the product level and the tax code attached to the account at the time of account opening.					
Renewal Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount for which the deposit is being renewed This amount is calculated by adding and deducting the interest (due, PMI), principal (due) and tax (if applicable) from the deposit amount.					
3. Enter the account nu	imber and press the <b>Tab or Enter</b> key.					
4. Select the deposit nu	. Select the deposit number and the value date from the Search List.					

- 5. Click **OK**.
- 6. The system displays the message "Do you want to continue?".

# **TD Renewal Enquiry**

7202 ×				
TD Renewal Enquiry		0 —	(2)	
		7202	Step 2	Vk Close Clear
* Account No.	703000000012832 AU	TO PERSON1		
Account Ccy	INR T			
* Deposit No.	2			
Value Date	30/09/2018			
Principal Due	0.00			
Interest Due [+]	0.00			
Uncollected Principal [+]	10,000.00			
Uncollected Interest [+]	19.00			
PMI on Principal [+]	₹0.00			
PMI on Interest [+]	₹0.00			
Tax Withheld [-]	₹0.00			
Renewal Amount				

#### **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the online renewal of the deposit number 1 under TD account number 703000000012832 for the principal amount of INR 10,00.00 and interest amount of INR 19.

The final amount after necessary additions of interest and deductions of charges to the principal is taken up by the system for renewal.

#### Exercise

For an existing deposit perform a renewal transaction the said instructions will be carried out on maturity.

- 7. Click OK.
- 8. The system displays the TD Post Maturity Renew screen.
- 9. Select the base amount, enter the renewal term and the interest variance.

#### **TD Post Maturity Renewal - 1316**

7202 ×					
TD Post Maturity Renewal			2		Ok Close Clear
		7202	1316		
* Interest Payout Frequency	Monthly •			* Compunding Frequency	At Maturity 🔻
* Base Amount	Incremental Amount			Renewal Amount	1,007.00
Maturity Date Factor	<ul> <li>Term</li> <li>Maturity Date</li> </ul>				
* Renewal Term	0 Mths 30 Days				
Maturity Date	31/12/2018				
Interest Rate	7.50000			* Interest Variance	0.00000
Product Variance	1.00000			Net Interest	8.50000
Annual Equivalent Rate	8.50000				
Narrative	TD POST MATURITY RENEW				
* Business Acquirer ID	TSMITAB01				

Field Name	Description
Interest Payout	[Conditional, Drop down]
Frequency	This field displays the Payout Frequency as per the product level.



	Payout Frequency will be enabled and mandatory for Payout type TDs only.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the time interval at which the interest earned on the term deposit principal is compounded to the principal.
Base Amount	[Display] This field displays the Base Amount for the deposit.
Renewal Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount for which the deposit is being renewed.
Maturity Date Factor	[Mandatory, Radio Button] Click the option button to select the term or maturity date factor.
Renewal Term	[Conditional, Numeric, Four, Four] Type the term for which the TD is being renewed. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits and should be equivalent to the incremental term that is specified at the product level. The renewal term in months and days should be less than or equal to 1000. This field is enabled if <b>Term</b> option is selected in the <b>Maturity Date</b> <b>Factor</b> field.
Maturity Date	[Display] This field displays the maturity date for the new deposit. This field is enabled if <b>Maturity Date</b> option is selected in the <b>Maturity</b> <b>Date Factor</b> field.
Interest Rate	[Display] This field displays the interest rate applicable for the renewed TD. This rate should be within the interest ceiling defined at the product level.
Interest Variance	[Mandatory, Numeric, Two, Five] Type the interest variance. The interest variance validated against the minimum and the maximum variance defined at the product level. It also validates if the interest rate + variance is within the minimum and maximum interest ceiling defined in the <b>TD Product Master</b> (Task Code: TDM01) option.
Product Variance	[Display] This column displays the product variance. The product variance is the interest variance defined at the product level for the slab in which TD principal balance and term fits in.
Net Interest	[Display] This field displays the net interest. Net Interest = Interest Rate (at deposit level) + Interest Variance + Product Variance. The net rate should be within the minimum and maximum interest rate specified at the product level.
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. AER (Annual Equivalent Rate) is the annualized rate of return which the



	bank pays to the customer. The calculation of the AER depends on the number of compounding cycles and also the rate of the deposit. AER is calculated at the time of account opening. AER is re-calculated whenever there is a change in the interest rate for the deposits.
Narrative	[Display] This field displays the narration for the transaction.
Business Acquirer ID	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the business acquirer ID, to save the business acquirer details for the particular transaction, from the Search List. The system by default displays the ID of the teller who has logged in. The Search List displays the list of users linked to the system.

- 10. Click **OK**.
- 11. The system displays the message " Authorisation required. Do You Want to continue?". Click **Continue**.
- 12. The system displays the Authorization Reason screen.
- 13. Enter the relevant information and click the **Grant** button.
- 14. The system displays the transaction sequence number. The transaction sequence number is a system generated number that uniquely identifies each transaction performed by a teller and can be used for tracking the transaction. Click **OK**.
- 15. The system displays the **Documents** screen.
- Select the receipt you want to print and click OK.
   OR
   Click Cancel.

#### **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the online renewal after maturity for deposit number 2 under TD account number 703000000012832 for the customer Mr. Auto Person 1. The final amount of INR 10,019.00 after necessary additions of interest and deductions of charges to the principal is taken up by the system for renewal.

#### Exercise

For an existing deposit perform a post maturity renewal transaction. The interest compounding and payout frequency can be defined in the same screen. The deposit will be renewed under the same account.



# 6. Other Transactions


# 6.1 7020 - TD Balance Enquiry

Customers can make inquires on term deposit balances at any given time during the life of the deposit.

Using this option, you can view the balances in term deposits till date, interest receivable in case of account closure on current date and also view tax details with the projected tax amount for the accrued interest amount.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To inquire about the balance in a TD account

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code 7020 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Balance Enquiry.
- 2. You will be navigated to **TD Balance Enquiry** screen.

#### **TD Balance Enquiry**

7020 ×					
TD Balance Enquiry					V Ok Close Clear
* Account No.	703000000012872 AUTO PERSON1	Account Ccy	INR 🔻		
* Deposit No.	2 4	Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1		
Deposit Status	OPEN REGULAR	Closeout Balance	₹25,004.00		
Units	2500000 x 0.01	Units		x 0.00	
Annual Equivalent Rate	3.54620	Projected Interest	₹293.12		
Principal Balance	₹25,000.00	Maturity Amount	₹25,886.00		
Interest Withheld (Blocked)	₹0.00	Uncollected Balance	₹0.00		
Interest Paid to Date (Net of Tax)	₹0.00	Lien Amount	₹0.00		
Tax 1	1.00	Maturity Date	30/11/2019		
Tax 2	0.00	Deposit Date	30/11/2018		
Rate of Interest	3.50000	Value Date	30/11/2018		
Accrued Interest	2.00	Projected Tax1 on Accrued int	0.00		
Net Accrued Interest	2.00	Projected Tax2 on Accrued int	0.00		

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer for which you want to check the balance details.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account



	currency.
Deposit No.	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the term deposit number from the Search List, for which you want to check the balance.
Customer Name	[Display]
	This field displays the short name of the customer who holds the TD account.
Deposit Status	[Display] This field displays the current status of the account. The options are:
	<ul> <li>Regular – This account is a regular account that is opened for various transactions.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Account Opened Today - This account is opened on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Closed – This account includes those deposits that have matured and redeemed. Thus this account is closed.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Account Closed Today - This account has been closed on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Unclaimed - This account has remained unclaimed by the customer.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Matured - This account has matured.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Account Blocked - This account is blocked.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Forced Renewal - This account is marked for lien and thus has been force renewed.</li> </ul>
Closeout Balance	[Display] This field displays the deposit amount that will be given to the customer if the TD is closed on the current transaction date.
Units	[Display] This field displays the principal balance as a multiple of incremental amount defined at the product level. This flexibility of the system enables the bank to accept amounts in multiples of the incremental unit. For example, Incremental Unit defined for the product = 0.01 Principal = 4550.88 Units = 455088 X 0.01
Annual Equivalent Rate	[Display] This field displays the annual equivalent rate. AER (Annual Equivalent Rate) is the annualized rate of return which the bank pays to the customer. The calculation of the AER depends on the number of compounding cycles and also the rate of the deposit. AER is calculated at the time of account opening. AER is re-calculated whenever there is a change in the interest rate for the deposits.
Projected Interest	[Display] This field displays the projected interest.



Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the principal amount of the TD. For a <b>Normal Discounted</b> and <b>True Discounted</b> product, the principal balance will be the maturity amount.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This column displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any.
Interest Withheld (Blocked)	[Display] This field displays the interest amount from the current interest payout cycle, which is withheld by the bank. If the TD account is blocked, the interest will be accrued but not paid to the customer. These interest proceeds are reflected in this field.
Uncollected Balance	[Display] This field displays the interest for which the payout mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer. Interest amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, should be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field.
Interest Paid To Date (Net of Tax)	[Display] This field displays the interest paid to the customer till date.
Lien Amount	[Display] This field displays the lien amount, if there is a lien marked on the deposit.
Tax 1	[Display] This field displays the Tax 1 set by the bank that will be applicable to the account. The Tax 1 depends on the type of customer and the account.
Maturity Date	[Display] This field displays the maturity date for the new deposit.
Tax 2	[Display] This field displays the Tax 2 set by the bank that will be applicable to the account. The Tax 2 depends on the type of customer and the account. It can be calculated as tax on tax.
Deposit Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the deposit was made.
Rate of Interest	[Display] This field displays the rate of interest applicable to the selected deposit.
Value Date	[Display] This field displays the value date of the TD. This is the date from which the TD is effective. The interest calculations for a TD will start from this date.
Accrued Interest	[Display] This field displays the interest accrued from the last compounding date to the last accrual date.
Projected Tax1 on	[Display]



Accrued int	This field displays the tax 1 applicable on the accrued interest.
Net Accrued Interest	[Display] This field displays the net accrued interest. Net accrued interest is calculated by deducting projected tax 1 and projected tax 2.
Projected Tax2 on Accrued int	[Display] This field displays the tax 2 applicable on the accrued interest.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **Tab or Enter** key.
- 4. Select the deposit number and then select from the Search List. Press the Tab or Enter key.
- 5. Click OK.
- 6. The system displays the TD balance details.

# **TD Balance Enquiry**

#### 7020 × TD Balance Enquiry V Close Clear \* Account No. 703000000012872 AUTO PERSON1 Account Ccy INR . \* Deposit No. 2 Customer Name AUTO PERSON1 OPEN REGULAR ₹25,004.00 Closeout Balance Deposit Status 2500000 x Units 0.01 Units 0.00 Annual Equivalent Rate 3.54620 Projected Interest ₹293.12 Principal Balance ₹25,000.00 ₹25,886.00 Maturity Amount est Withheld (Blocked) ₹0.00 ollected Balance ₹0.00 Interest Paid to Date (Net of Tax) ₹0.00 Lien Amount ₹0.00 1.00 Maturity Date 30/11/2019 İ Tax 1 Tax 2 0.00 Deposit Date 30/11/2018 Rate of Interest 3.50000 Value Date 30/11/2018 2.00 Accrued Interest Projected Tax1 on Accrued int 0.00 Net Accrued Interest 2.00 ected Tax2 on Accrued int 0.00

#### 7. Click Close.

#### **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the balance under deposit number 2 for TD account no 7030000000012872. The deposit is for INR 25,000.00 and is held in 25 units of 10,000 each.

The account is due to mature on 30/11/2019 and is currently held at an interest rate of 0.2%.

#### Exercise

For an existing TD account perform a balance enquiry. Check the number of units the deposit is held under and the maturity date.



# 6.2 TDM07 - TD Investment Calculator

Using this option, you can calculate the interest which a customer is likely to earn during the life of the term deposit. As per the customer's requirements you can make suggestions for a suitable product to ensure complete satisfaction, before the money is deposited in the bank.

The **Output Screen** tab displays the interest payout, interest compounding date and the tax information.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- TDM01 TD Product Master
- TD060 TD Product Rates

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To use investment calculator

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code TDM07 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Investment Calculator.
- 2. You will be navigated to the TD Investment Calculator screen.

### **TD Investment Calculator**

TDM07 ×					
TD Investment Calculator					Ok Close Clear
* Product Code 304	Name	FD-Resident - Monthly Compounding	Currency	INR V	
Amount					
Minimum 10.00	Maximum	0 99 99 99 99 99 99 0	Incremental	0.01	
T		00,00,00,00,00,000.0		0.01	
Ierm					
Term Unit Combination V	Minimum	12 Months		1 Days	
	Maximum	96 Months		0 Days	
	Incremental	0 Months		1 Days	
Interest					
Companying Fragmancy Monthly	Payout Fromporty	Nono/At Moturity	Discounting Turo	Not Discounted	
Compounding requercy Monally	Tayout requercy	NonerActividianty Y	Discounting Type	Not Discounted	
Input Screen Output Screen					
Amount 0.00	Initial Amount	Maturity Amount			
Deposit Date 15/12/2018	* Deposit Term	0 Months		0 Days	
Maturity Date 01/01/1800	Variance	0.00000	Rate		
* Discounted Int Payout Frg Monthly V	* Tax Code 1	•			
Index / Rate 💌	* Tax Code 2	•			
Output Parameters					
Distant Defense	Later Davies	0.00		0.00	
Tax 1 0.00	Initial Payin	0.00	Maturity Interest	0.00	
1dX 1 0.00	187.2	0.00	Maturity Amount	0.00	•

Field Name	Description
Product Code	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the TD Product code for which you wish to calculate the earnings on investment, from the Search List.
Name	[Display] This field displays the name assigned to the TD product, as defined at the product level.



	This is the product under which the TD account is opened.
Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.
Amount	
Minimum	[Display] This field displays the minimum amount defined at the product level, that a customer can invest for the TD Product
Maximum	[Display] This field displays the maximum amount defined at the product level, that a customer can invest in the given TD Product.
Incremental	[Display] This field displays the incremental amount defined at the product level. The deposit amount can be increased in the multiples of the defined incremental value. For example, Minimum Amount = 5000 Maximum Amount = 15000 Incremental = 1000 The deposit can be initiated for minimum 5000 and it can be incremented only in slabs of 1000. So a deposit can be incremented to 6000 or 7000 but not 5500 or 6500.
Term	
Term Unit	[Display] This field displays the investment term unit as defined at the product level. The duration can be in months or days.
Minimum	[Display] This field displays the minimum term defined at the product level, for which investment can be made for TD Product.
Maximum	[Display] This field displays the maximum term defined at the product level, for which the investment can be made for TD Product.
Incremental	[Display] This filed displays the incremental term defined at the product level. The deposit term can be increased in the multiples of the defined incremental value. For example, Minimum Term: Months = 1 month Maximum Term: Months = 12 months Incremental Term: Months = 2 months The deposit can be initiated for minimum 1 month and it can be incremented only in slabs of 2 months. So a deposit term can be incremented to 3 or 5 months but not to 2 months.

Interest	
Compounding Frequency	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the interest compounding frequency from the drop-down list. The options are: • None/At Maturity • Monthly
	Bi-Monthly
	Quarterly
	Half-Yearly
	• Yearly
	This is the time interval at which the interest earned on the term deposit principal is compounded to the principal. The principle amount increases and hence the subsequent interest amount earned also increases.
Payout Frequency	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the interest payout frequency as defined at the product level from the drop-down list. The options are: • None/At Maturity
	Monthly
	Bi-Monthly
	Quarterly
	Half-Yearly
	Yearly
	This is the time interval at which the interest earned against the invested amount will be paid out.
Discounting Type	[Display] This field displays the discounting type of the TD product. The options are:
	<ul> <li>Not Discounted - In normal deposit, the initial amount is deposited and interest is calculated on the deposit amount.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Normal Discounted – In normal discounted deposit, the maturity amount is defined along with the interest rate and the initial amount is deposited. Only principal amount is discounted. Maturity value is decided based on interest calculation.</li> <li>True Discounted – In True discounted deposit, even the interest which will be received will be discounted further and reduced from the initial pay in amount of the normal discounted TD.</li> </ul>

The above screen is used to determine the maturity amount and the tax that may be deducted if the customer deposits a sum of INR 1,000,000.00 under a product code 304. The deposit will be placed for a period of 12 months and will be earning interest at a rate that is pre-defined at the account level (5%).

The customer is falling in the non tax bracket and hence a zero tax rate is used.

All the pre-defined product parameters are displayed in the transaction screen.



- 3. Select the product code from the Search List and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key.
- 4. Select the compounding frequency and payout frequency from the drop-down list.

# **TD Investment Calculator**

TDM07 ×			
TD Investment Calculator		Ok Close Clear	I
* Product Code 304	Name FD-Resident - Monthly Compounding	Currency INR V	
Minimum 10.00	Maximum 99,99,99,99,99,999.0	Incremental 0.01	
Term Unit Combination V	Minimum 12 Months Maximum 96 Months Incremental 0 Months	1 Days 0 Days 1 Days	
Compounding Frequency Monthly   Input Screen Output Screen	Payout Frequency None/At Maturity V	Discounting Type Not Discounted V	
* Amount 0.00 Depost Date 15/12/2018 Maturity Date 01/01/1800 * Discounted inf Payout Fra Index / Rate ▼ Output Parameters	Initial Amount Maturity Amount Ceposit Term Variance Tax Code 1 Tax Code 2 V	Rate ODays	
Principal Balance 0.00 Tax 1 0.00	Initial Payin 0.00 Tax 2 0.00	Maturity Interest 0.00 Maturity Amount 0.00	

- 5. The system displays the **Input Screen** tab.
- 6. Enter the required information in the tab.

# **Input Screen**

TDM07 ×			
TD Investment Calculator			Ok Close Clear
			·
* Product Code 304	Name FD-Resident - Monthly Compounding	Currency INR V	
Amount			
Minimum 10.00	Maximum 99 99 99 99 99 0	Incremental 0.01	
Tann		0.01	
10111			
Term Unit Combination V	Minimum 12 Months	1 Days	
	Maximum 96 Months	0 Days	
	Incremental 0 Months	1 Days	
Interest			
Compounding Frequency Monthly	Payout Frequency None/At Maturity	Discounting Type Not Discounted	
	, , ,,		
Input Screen Output Screen			
* Amount 0.00	O Initial Amount O Maturity Amount		
Deposit Date 15/12/2018	* Deposit Term 0 Months	0 Days	
Maturity Date 01/01/1800	Variance 0.00000	Rate	
* Discounted Int Payout Frg Monthly V	* Tax Code 1		
Index / Rate	* Tax Code 2		
Output Parameters			
Principal Balance 0.00	Initial Pavin 0.00	Maturity Interest 0.00	
Tax 1 0.00	Tax 2 0.00	Maturity Amount 0.00	
			*

Field Name	Description
Amount	[Mandatory, Numeric, 13,Two] Type the amount.



	The amount could either be the initial investment amount or the amount received on maturity.
Initial Amount	[Mandatory, Radio Button] Click <b>Initial Amount</b> to treat the entered amount as the initial investment amount. The investment calculations will be done accordingly. The system, by default selects this option.
Maturity Amount	[Mandatory, Radio button] Click <b>Maturity Amount</b> to treat the entered amount as the maturity amount you want to earn on the investment. The investment calculations will be done accordingly. You can select this option only if the product is of a normal discounted or true discounted type.
Deposit Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the deposit date from the date editor. The investment calculations for the deposit will be effective from the specified date.
Deposit Term	[Mandatory, Numeric, 22] Type the term for which the investment is being made. The term should be within the maximum and minimum limits and should be equivalent to the incremental term that is specified at the product level.
Maturity Date	[Display] This field displays the maturity date. The system calculates the maturity date based on the deposit date selected and the deposit term specified.
Variance	[Optional, Numeric, Three, Six] Type the interest variance. The interest variance should be within the maximum and minimum limits that are specified at the product level.
Discounted Int Payout Frq	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the discounted interest payout frequency for the deposit from the drop-down list. This field will be enabled only if the product is of the <b>Normal</b> <b>Discounted</b> or <b>True Discounted</b> type. The options are:
	<ul> <li>Monthly - The interest will be paid at the end of month.</li> </ul>
	Quarterly - The interest will be paid at the end of the quarter.
Index/Rate	[Display] This field displays the interest index code defined for the slab at the product rates level. This is the index code defined for the slab, in which the principal and term falls at the product level.
Tax Code 1	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the tax code 1 for the investment from the drop-down list. This field becomes editable if the amount entered in the <b>Amount</b> field is the initial investment deposit.

Tax Code 2	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the tax code 2 for the investment from the drop-down list. This field becomes editable if the amount entered in the <b>Amount</b> field is the initial investment deposit.
Output Parameters	
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the principal balance. The system calculates the principal amount that the customer needs to invest in the TD.
Initial Payin	[Display] This field displays the TD initial payin amount. The system calculates the TD initial payin amount, based on the input specified such as: amount, variance, term, and tax code.
Maturity Interest	[Display] This field displays the total interest earned on the TD investment during the term, till the maturity.
Tax 1	[Display] This field displays the tax 1 applicable to the interest earned on the invested amount.
Tax 2	[Display] This field displays the tax 2 applicable to the interest earned on the invested amount.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This field displays the total amount the customer will receive at the maturity. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any.

The above tab screen displays that the deposit will be placed for a period of 12 months and will be earning interest at a rate of 5% that is pre-defined at the account level.

The customer is falling in the non tax bracket and hence a 0 tax rate is used.

- 7. Click Ok.
- 8. The system displays the **Output Screen** tab.



# **Output Screen**

TDM07 ×					
TD Investment Ca	alculator				Ok Close Clear
* Product (	Code 304 Q	Name	FD-Resident - Monthly Compounding	Currency	INR •
Mini	imum 10.00	Maximum	99,99,99,99,99,999.0	Incremental	0.01
Term	n Unit Combination v	Minimum Maximum Incremental	12 Months 96 Months 0 Months		1 Days 0 Days 1 Days
Interest					
					1. ( )
Compounding Frequ	uency Monthly v	Payout Frequency	None/At Maturity V	Discounting Type	Not Discounted
Compounding Frequence	uency Monthly v	Payout Frequency	None/At Maturity V	Discounting Type	Not Liscounted
Compounding Frequencies Input Screen Outp	vency Monthly	Payout Frequency Interest Amount	None/At Maturity V	Discounting Type Tax Amount 2	Payout/Compounding
Compounding Frequence Outp	Dutt Screen Principal Balance	Payout Frequency Interest Amount	None/At Maturity 🔻	Discounting Type	Payout/Compounding
Compounding Freq. Input Screen Outp Date No data to display. Page 1 (0 of 0 item	wency     Monthly       put Screen   Principal Balance       N0   K	Payout Frequency	None/Al Maturity ¥	Discounting Type	Payout/Compounding
Compounding Free. Input Screen Outp Date No data to display. Page 1 (0 of 0 item	Image: second	Payout Frequency	None/Al Maturity  Tax Amount 1	Discounting Type	Payout/Compounding
Compounding Free. Input Screen Outp Date No data to display. Page 1 (0 of 0 item	Image: second	Payout Frequency	None/Al Maturity  Tax Amount 1	Discounting Type	Payout/Compounding
Compounding Free. Input Screen Outp Date No data to display. Page 1 (0 of 0 item	Image: second	Payout Frequency	None/Al Maturity  Tax Amount 1	Discounting Type	Payout/Compounding
Compounding Free. Input Screen Outp Date No data to display. Page 1 (0 of 0 item	Interface       Principal Balance       10)     K	Payout Frequency	NoneA3 Maturity   Tax Amount 1	Discounting Type	Payout/Compounding
Compounding Freq. Input Screen Outp Date No data to display. Page 1 (0 of 0 item	uency     Monthly       put Screen       Principal Balance	Payout Frequency	Tax Amount 1	Discounting Type	Payout/Compounding

# **Field Description**

Column Name	Description
Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the interest will be compounded to the principal, or paid to the customer.
Principal Balance	[Display] This column displays the TD Principal balance amount.
Interest Amount	[Display] This column displays the amount of interest either compounded to the principal, or paid to the customer.
Tax Amount 1	[Display] This column displays the tax amount, if applicable.
Tax Amount 2	[Display] This column displays the tax amount, if applicable.
Payout/ Compounding	[Display] This column displays the type of action is for interest compounding or payout.

### **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the output for the investment Enquiry. Since the interest payout and compounding frequency is at maturity the entire amount is displayed as payable on maturity.

#### Exercise

For an existing, product select a suitable amount, term and tax code. In the transaction screen all the basic product parameters will be displayed. Check the output parameters and advise the customer accordingly.

9. Click the **Close** button.



# 6.3 TD023 - TD Account Rates History Enquiry

Using this option you can view the interest rates applied to a term deposit during its life cycle.

If the interest rate is defined as **Fixed** at the product level then it displays the same interest rate for all deposits made under the term deposit account.

If the interest rate is defined as **Floating**, you can view the different rates applied to each deposit placed under the term deposit account.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- After defining the TD Product, TD Product Rates must be defined for the newly defined TD Product.
- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To view TD rates history

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code TD023 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Rates History Enquiry.
- 2. The system displays the TD Account Rates History Enquiry screen.

### **TD Account Rates History Enquiry**

TD023 ×										
TD Account Rat	es History Enqu	iiry								Ok Close Clear
Account Details										
	* Account No.	703000000020168	Q.			Customer Na	REILANCE IN	DUSTRIES		
	Customer ID	990100549				Pro	duct 304	FD-Reside	nt - Monthly Corr	
	Branch	9999				Deposit	NO. 1			
		Demo								
	From Date	01/11/2018				To D	Date 15/12/2018			
TD Rates Inquiry	Details	0	D			111 0.1		0	<b>B</b>	
Account No.	Original Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Principal Balance	Balance for Rate Earned	value Date	Maturity Date	Deposit Rate	Deposit variance	Deposit interest index
703000000020168	1	1	1	50,000.00	50,000.00	01/11/2018	01/11/2019	15.0	0.0	4001
•										) F
Page 1 of 1 (1 of 1	items) K < 1	к <								

Field Name	Description
Account Details	
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number.



Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Customer ID	[Display] This field displays the customer ID. A customer ID is an identification number generated by the system after customer addition is completed successfully. The number will be unique to a customer across the system and the customer search can be made on this basis. This is the number, which the system uses to track the customer. The system displays the customer ID, when the customer is validated.
Product	[Display] This field displays the TD product code along with the product name under which the TD account is opened.
Currency	[Display] This field displays the TD account currency.
Branch	[Display] This field displays the home branch where the TD account is opened and maintained.
Deposit No.	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the deposit number from the Search List. The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
From Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the start day from which you want to view the term deposit rates history, from the date editor.
To Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the end day up to which you want to view the term deposit rates history, from the date editor.
Column Name	Description
TD Rates Enquiry Detail	ls
Account No.	[Display] This column displays the TD account number as specified in the <b>TD</b> <b>Rates History Enquiry</b> screen.
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the term deposit number of the TD account.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the

Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number. The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Principal Balance	[Display] This column displays the principal amount of the TD.
Balance for Rate Earned	[Display] This column displays the base principal amount, which determines the rate of interest applicable for the deposit. The balance amount gets calculated on the basis of how it is defined at the TD Payin transaction. If the <b>Base for Rate</b> is defined as <b>Incremental</b> then the principal balance and the balance amount remains same. If Base for Rate is defined as <b>Cumulative for the Deposit</b> or <b>Cumulative for All the Deposits</b> then the principal amount and balance amount varies. Thus, the rate earned on all the deposits may increase.
Value Date	[Display] This column displays the value date. The value date is the date from which the term deposit is effective.
Maturity Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the deposit will mature.
Deposit Rate	[Display] This column displays the rate of interest applicable for the term deposit. The deposit rate is based on the term and the amount range defined at the product level.
Deposit Variance	[Display] This column displays the interest variance defined for the particular term deposit under the TD account. The variance specified should be within the minimum and maximum variance specified at the product level.
Deposit Interest Index	[Display] This column displays the interest index code applicable to the TD. This is the index code defined for the product against the slab in which TD principal and term fit in.
Product Variance	[Display] This column displays the <b>Interest Variance</b> defined under <b>Product</b> <b>Rate Maintenance</b> for the slab in which TD principal balance and term fit in.
Effective Date	[Display] This column displays the date from which the net rate (i.e. deposit rate + deposit variance + product variance) defined at the product level is effective.



- 3. Enter the account number and press the <Tab> or <Enter> key
- 4. Select the deposit number, from date, and to date from the Search List.
- 5. Click the **OK** button. The system displays the TD rates history details.

# **TD Rates History Enquiry**

10023 X										
TD Account Rat	es History Enqu	iiry								Ok Close Clear
Account Details										
	* Account No.	703000000020168				Customer N	ame REILANCE IN	DUSTRIES		
	Customer ID	990100549				Pro	duct 304	FD-Resider	nt - Monthly Corr	
	Currency	INR v				Deposi	t No. 1	Q.		
	Branch	9999								
		Demo								
	From Date	01/11/2018				To	Date 15/12/2018			
TD Rates Inquiry	Details									
Account No.	Original Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Principal Balance	Balance for Rate Earned	Value Date	Maturity Date	Deposit Rate	Deposit Variance	Deposit Interest Index
703000000020168	1	1	1	50,000.00	50,000.00	01/11/2018	01/11/2019	15.0	0.0	4001
•										
Page 1 of 1 (tof 1	items)   K < [1	× <1								

6. Click the **Close** button.

#### **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the history of rates that has been assigned to the deposit number 1 under TD account number 703000000020168.

The interest history is for the period 01/11/2018 to 15/12/2018 and is for deposit with a principal balance of INR 50,000 @15%.

#### Exercise

For an existing check the interest rates that has been assigned to various deposits on the account.



# 6.4 TD026 - Annuity Deposit - Payout Schedule Enquiry

Using this option, you can view the payout schedule generated for Annuity Deposit account. On selecting TD account number and deposit no, system displays the annuity amount that will be paid on the payout schedule date. In case of premature partial redemption of annuity deposit, this screen displays the new computed annuity amount in the schedule after redemption date. Also, Payout mode for annuity deposit can be modified from this screen.

### **Definition Prerequisites**

- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening
- Quick Payin of Deposit, by any mode

### Modes Available

Modify, Amend, Authorize and Inquiry

#### To modify the payout schedule generated for Annuity Deposit account

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code TD026 and click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquires > Annuity Deposit - Payout Schedule Enquiry.
- 2. The system displays the Annuity Deposit Payout Schedule Inquiry screen.

### Annuity Deposit - Payout Schedule Enquiry



Field Name	Description
Account No	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer for which you want to check the annuity deposit schedule details.
Deposit No.	[Mandatory, Pick List] Select the deposit number from the pick list.
Branch	[Display] This field displays the branch name.
Product Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the product, which is defined at the product level, under which the account is opened.
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the Outstanding Principal Balance.
Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency.
Term	[Display] This field displays the Term of the deposit.
Payout Frequency	[Display] This field displays the Payout Frequency of the TD.
Payout Mode	<ul> <li>[Display, Dropdown]</li> <li>This field displays the payout mode selected while doing payin. This field can be modified in Modify mode. Available value are <ul> <li>Pay By Cheque</li> <li>Transfer to Savings Account</li> <li>Transfer to GL Account.</li> </ul> </li> <li>On selecting Transfer to Savings Account, it is mandatory to input Payout CASA. On selecting Transfer to GL Account, it is mandatory to input Payout CASA.</li> </ul>
Payout CASA	[Display] This field displays the CASA account to which annuity amount is paid out, which can be changed in modify mode.
Payout GL	[Display] This field displays the GL account to which annuity amount is paid out, which can be changed in modify mode.
Column Name	Description
Serial No	[Display] This field displays the count of annuity payout.
Payout Date	[Display]



	This field displays the date of Annuity payout.
Annuity Amount	[Display] This field displays the Annuity Amount to be paid.
Principal	[Display] This field displays the Principal part of Annuity amount.
Interest	[Display] This field displays the Interest part of Annuity amount.
Outstanding Principal	[Display] This field displays the outstanding principal after reducing principal part of payout. Interest for subsequent schedule is computed on this outstanding principal.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key.
- 4. Select the Deposit number from the pick list.
- 5. Select the payout mode from the dorpdown.

# Annuity Deposit - Payout Schedule Enquiry

- 6. Input the Payout CASA account number or GL account number based on Payout mode selection.
- 7. Click Export to Excel to export schedule details to an excel. Click Ok.
- 8. Click the **Close** button.



# 6.5 TD031 - TD Audit Trail Enquiry

Using this option allows you can view the transactions performed on a term deposit account. You can also view the accounting entries of all transactions done against the account. This option helps you to keep a record of the transactions done on an individual's account.

Transaction details can be viewed at the account level and at the deposit level. Inter-bank transfer accounting entries are passed for transactions done at any other branch other than the home branch.

This screen shows the redemption details the next day.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- TDM01 TD Product Master
- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To view the transaction details

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TD031 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > Audit Trail Enquiry.
- 2. You will be navigated to TD Audit Trail Enquiry screen.

### **TD Audit Trail Enquiry**

TD031 ×				
TD Audit Trail Enquiry				Ok Close Clear
Account No.     Original Deposit No.     Cheque No.     From Date     O1101/1  Transactions     Details		All Deposits Deposit No. * Action * To Date	0 All • 01/01/1800	]
Customer Name	T	Account Currency Branch Name	<b></b>	۹.
Original Deposit No. Renewal No.	. Deposit No. Reference No. Va	ilue Date GL Code GL Name Txn	Description Dr / Cr	Acy Amount Lcy Amount
No data to display. Page 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1	ĸ			

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer, for which you want to view the transaction details.
All Deposits	[Optional, Check Box]



	Select the <b>All deposits</b> check box, to view the transactions done against all the individual term deposits in the account.				
Original Deposit No.	[Conditional, Search List] Select the original deposit number from the Search List. The term deposit number to view the transactions done against that particular term deposit. This field is disabled if the <b>All Deposits</b> check box is selected.				
Deposit No.	<ul> <li>[Conditional, Search List]</li> <li>Select the deposit number from the Search List.</li> <li>The running term deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account.</li> <li>The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account.</li> <li>It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.</li> <li>This field is disabled if the <b>All Deposits</b> check box is selected.</li> </ul>				
Cheque No.	[Optional, Numeric, 12] Type the cheque number to view the transactions done against a cheque. You can filter and view the transaction details done against a particular cheque.				
Action	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the appropriate action, to filter the TD account transactions that are displayed under TD audit trail, from the drop-down list. These options are:				
	• All				
	Interest Compounding				
	Transfer to Matured Deposits				
	Transfer to Unclaimed Deposits				
	Interest Accrual				
	Interest Payout				
	Tax on Accrued Interest				
	Redemption				
	Redemption Payout				
	Payin				
	Premature Redemption				
	Premature Redemption Reversal				
	Payin Reversal				
	Redemption Reversal				
	Renewal				
	Renewal Reversal				
	Interest Adjustment				
	Interest Reversal				
	I ax on Compounded Interest				

From Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the start date of the Enquiry from the Date editor. This date should not be greater than the to date. This field is validated against the start date of the deposit.
To Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the end date of the period for which the transaction details of the deposit are to be displayed from the Date editor.

- 3. Enter the account number and press Tab or Enter key.
- 4. Select the action from the list, and select the from date and to date from the Search List.
- 5. Click OK.
- 6. In the Transactions sub tab, you can view list of all transactions of the selected TD account and deposit number.

The above screen displays audit trail of all the transactions that has been performed on all the deposits under account number 5030000000586 for Keerthana.

### **Transactions**

The transactions tab displays the details such as original deposit number, renewal number, transaction description, etc.

*Account No. 703000000000044 All Deposits Original Deposit No. 0 Cheque No. *Action All *To Date 18/07/2018  Cheque No. *To Date 30/11/2018  Source State										
Customer Name         AUTO PERSON1         Account Currency         INR         V           Product Name         300 - FD-Resident         V         Branch Name         98001         MUMBAI 98001										
Original Dep	posit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Reference No.	Value Date	GL Code	GL Name	Txn. Description	Dr / Cr	Acy Amou
	1	1	1	1201	31/07/2018	244200005	TD Payment GL	Initial PayIn - 98001-MUMBAI - 703000000000644	с	
	1	1	1	1201	31/07/2018	244200005	TD Payment GL	Initial Payln - 98001-MUMBAI - 703000000000644	D	
	1	1	1	1201	31/07/2018	222000001	Fixed Deposits	Initial Payln - 98001-MUMBAI - 703000000000644	с	
	1	1	1	10002	31/07/2018	31000003	Interest Expenses on Term Deposits	Interest Accrual	D	
	1	1	1	10002	31/07/2018	242000004	Interest Accrued on Term Deposits	Interest Accrual	с	
Page 1	of 19 (1-5 of 1	93 items) K	< 1 2 3 4 5	; 19 > X						•

Field Name	Description
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency.



	For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.
Branch Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the home branch where the TD account is opened and maintained.
Product Name	[Display] This field displays the name assigned to the TD product, as defined at the product level. This is the product under which the TD account is opened.
Column Name	Description
Original Deposit No	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have the new deposit running number but will retain the original deposit number of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. The renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number for which the transaction is performed.
Reference No.	[Display] This column displays the reference number for which the transaction is performed.
Value Date	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the value date of the transaction.</li> <li>The value date signifies the date on which the transaction was committed.</li> <li>The value date and the transaction date is usually same. However a value date can be a previous date. The adjustment on the account takes place from the value date.</li> <li>For example: A TD matures on 10th July '04 and has a grace period of 15 days. The renewal transaction takes place on 16th July '04. 16th July is the transaction date. As the TD can be renewed from the maturity date, the value date for that transaction will be 10th July '04.</li> </ul>
GL Code	[Display] This column displays the GL code against which accounting entry is posted for every transaction.
GL Name	[Display] This column displays the GL name of the corresponding GL code.
Txn Description	[Display]



	This column displays the transaction description.
Dr / Cr	[Display] This column displays whether the transaction was a debit or a credit type of transaction.
Acy Amount	[Display] This column displays the amount in the account currency, as defined in the product definition. The transactions on the account are always taken on the account currency.
Lcy Amount	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the amount in the local currency.</li> <li>The local currency of the country where the bank is situated, is the local currency of the bank.</li> <li>If the account currency and the local currency are the same, the amounts displayed in the Acy Amount field and the Lcy Amount field will be the same. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.</li> </ul>

The above tab screen displays an audit trail of all the transactions that have been performed on all the deposits under account No. 70300000000644.

The enquiry is for a period 18/07/2018 to 30/11/2018. the transactions displayed are both customer initiated and system generated transactions.

- 7. Double-click the appropriate column link, to view the details.
- 8. The system displays the **Details** tab.

# **Details**

The details tab provides information on transaction details like who performed the transaction, the value date, payment mode, etc.

TD031 ×			
TD Audit Trail Enquiry			Ok Close Clear
* Account No. 7	703000000000644	All Deposits	
Original Deposit No.		Deposit No.	0
Cheque No.		* Action	All
* From Date	18/07/2018	* To Date	30/11/2018
Transactions Details			
Txn Date	01/01/1800	User Name	
Value Date		Batch No.	
Posting Date	01/01/1800	System Trace No.	
Mnemonic Code		SC Code	
Amount Acy		* Rate Acy to Lcy	
Amount Tcy		* Rate Tcy to Lcy	
Amount Lcy		BC / DD Serial No.	
Transaction Brn. Code		Cheque No.	
Transfer Branch No.		Debit / Credit	
Transfer Account No.		Bank Routing No.	
GL Branch	98001	Authoriser	
Description		Payment Mode	•

Field Name	Description
Tran Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the transaction has been executed.
User Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the teller/operator who entered the transaction. If the transaction is a system run process, this field displays the user name as system.
Value Date	[Display] This field displays the value date of the transaction.
Batch No.	[Display] This field displays the batch under which the transaction has been processed during the EOD.
Posting Date	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the posting date of the transaction.</li> <li>The posting date is the date on which the transaction is posted to the accounts.</li> <li>Usually the transaction date and the posting date is the same, except where the transaction date is a bank holiday.</li> <li>For example: The monthly interest for a TD is paid on the last day of the month. In the month of July, if the date on which the payout has to take place, i.e. 31st July is a holiday, the bank will accrue the interest on the 29th and the payout will take place on the 1st of August.</li> <li>In this case the transaction date will be 1st August and the posting date will be 29th July.</li> </ul>
System Trace No.	[Display] This field displays the <b>System Reference Audit Trail Number</b> generated by the system for the transaction.
Mnemonic Code	[Display] This field displays the transaction mnemonic code through which this transaction has been entered.
SC Code	[Display] This field displays the service charge code, if service charges are levied to the transaction. The bank may levy service charges when the transaction is done through a banker's cheque or a demand draft.
Amount Acy	[Display] This field displays the amount in the account currency, as defined in the product definition. The transactions on the account are always taken on the account currency. The amount is calculated in the account currency, to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
Rate Acy to Lcy	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Amount Tcy	[Display]



	This field displays the amount in the transaction currency. The transaction currency is the currency in which the customer wants to transact. The exchange rate values are defined and downloaded from FCC. For example: If the customer wants redemption amount to be paid in EUR (Euro), EUR will be the transaction currency.			
Rate Tcy to Lcy	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.			
Amount Lcy	[Display] This field displays the amount in the local currency.			
BC/DD Serial No.	[Display] This field displays the BC/DD serial number. This serial number will be applied to the Interest, Redemption, Maturity Payout.			
Transaction Brn. Code	[Display] This field displays the branch code where the transaction was executed.			
Cheque No.	[Display] This field displays the cheque number, if the initial deposit, interest payout or the redemption amount is remitted by cheque.			
Transfer Branch No.	[Display] This field displays the branch code where the TD is being transferred, in case of a TD transfer.			
Debit/Credit	[Display] This field displays whether the transaction is a debit or credit type of transaction, based on the type of transaction performed and the transaction mnemonic.			
Transfer Account No.	[Display] This field displays the account number where the TD is being transferred, in case of a TD transfer.			
Bank Routing No.	[Display] This field displays the routing number. The routing number is the combination of the bank code and the branch code.			
GL Branch	[Display] This field displays the branch code to which the GL amount is transferred.			
Authoriser	[Display] This field displays the identification of the person who authorised the transaction.			
Description	[Display] This field displays the description of the transaction.			
Payment Mode	[Display] This field displays the mode of payment for the transaction.			



The above tab screen displays an audit trail of all the transactions that have been performed on all the deposits under account no 703000000000644.

The screen displays the detailed description of the TD payin transaction. The transaction is a debit for INR.500 and was authorized by the supervisor SYSSUPER.

#### Exercise

For an existing TD account check the audit trail transactions for the last 3 months. Double click the transaction in the **Transaction** tab screen, to view the transaction details in the **Details** tab screen.

9. Click Close.



# 6.6 TD037 - TD Account Ledger Enquiry

Using this option, you can view the transactions done against a term deposit account, within the specified start date and end date. Customer can ask for the transaction details done on their account at any time during the life of the term deposit. You can use this option to provide the transaction details.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- After defining the TD Product, TD Product Rates must be defined for the newly defined TD Product.
- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening

### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To view the TD account ledger

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TD037 and click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Account Ledger Enquiry.
- 2. You will be navigated to **TD Account Ledger Enquiry** screen.

### **TD Account Ledger Enquiry**

1D037 ×							
TD Account Ledger Enquiry							Ok Close Clear
* Account No.					All Deposits 🗸		
Deposit No. 0	Q.						
Start Date 01/0	1/1950				End Date 30/11/2018		
Transactions Details							
Customer Name				Accor	unt Currency 🔻		
Account Status	*			В	Iranch Name		Q.
Product Name	٣						
Original Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Date	Dr / Cr	Acy Amount	Lcy Amount	Description
No data to display.							
rage ( (o or o items) K ( 1 ) /							

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number for which the account ledger Enquiry has to be done.
All Deposits	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>All deposits</b> check box, to view the transactions done against all the individual term deposits in the account.



Deposit No.	[Conditional, Search List] Select the term deposit number to view the transactions done against that particular term deposit from the Search List. This field is disabled if the <b>All Deposits</b> check box is selected.
Start Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the start date of the Enquiry from the Date editor. This date should not be greater than the end date. This field is validated against the start date of the deposit.
End Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the end date of the period for which the transaction details of the deposit will be displayed from the date editor.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **Tab** or **Enter** key.
- 4. Enter the start date and end date.

# TD Account Ledger Enquiry

							Ok Close Clea
703000000011569					All Deposits	~	
0					End Date	30/11/2018	
							Least 1
me AUTO PERSON1				Accou	nt Currency	INP ¥	]
tus Account Open	*			Br	anch Name	98001	MUMBAI
me 304 - FD-Resident - Mor	nthly Comp: V						
Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Date	Dr / Cr	Acy Amount	Lcy Am	ount	Description
1	1	25/07/2018	с	50,000.00		50,000.00	Initial PayIn - 98001-MUMBAI - 703000000011569
1	2	30/09/2018	С	5,000.00		5,000.00	Initial Payln - 99975-NAGPUR - 703000000011569
1	2	12/10/2018	D	25.00		25.00	703000000011569:INT PAYOUT
1	2	12/10/2018	D	5,000.00		5,000.00	703000000011569.PRINC PAYOUT
1	3	01/11/2018	С	10,000.00		10,000.00	Initial Payin FD -sanity test - 701000000006403
	703000000011569         Q           0         0101/1950         Imme           AUTO PERSON1         ms         Account Open           as Account Open         1           304 - FD-Resident - Mo         1           1         1           1         1           1         1           1         1	703000000011569         ↓           0         0           01/01/1950         ●           ass         Account Open           x         Account Open           1         ▼           1         1           1         1           1         2           1         1           2         1           3         3	T850000000011569            0         0           0.101/1950         0           ACCURT Open         •           me         304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp •           Renewal No.         Deposit No.         Dale           1         1         25/07/2018           1         2         30/09/2019           1         2         12/10/2018           1         3         01/11/2018           1         >         3	Image: Part of the second s	Image: F83000000011569         Image: F80001         F8000000011569         Image: F80001         F8000000011569         Image: F8000000000000000000000000000000000000	1         2         2007/2018         C         Account Currency Branch Name           1         1         2507/2018         C         50.00.00           1         1         2         3009/2018         C         50.00.00           1         1         2         12/10/2018         D         50.00.00           1         1         2         12/10/2018         D         50.00.00           1         1         2         11/10/2018         D         50.00.00           1         3         01/11/2018         D         50.00.00         1	Image: No.         Date         Dr / Cr         Account Currency         IMR         IMR         Image: No.         Renewal No.         Date         Dr / Cr         Account Currency         IMR         Image: No.         Renewal No.         Date         Dr / Cr         Account Currency         IMR         Image: No.         Renewal No.         Date         Dr / Cr         Account Currency         IMR         Image: No.         Renewal No.         Date         Dr / Cr         Account Currency         IMR         Image: No.         Renewal No.         Date         Dr / Cr         Account Currency         IMR         Image: No.         Renewal No.         Source No.         Lcy Amount         Lcy Amount<

#### **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the ledger transactions that have been executed on the account no 703000000011569 for Mr. Auto Person1. The transactions are for the period 01/01/1950 to 30/11/2018.

- 5. Click OK.
- 6. You can view Transaction details in the Transactions tab.

# **Transactions**

Transactions tab displays the details of the transactions in a TD account.

037 ×						
D Account Ledger Enquiry						Ok Close Clea
* Account N Deposit N Start Da Transactions Details	0. 703000000011569 0. 0 10 01/01/1950				All Deposits  Characteristic All Deposits  Ch	
Customer N Account St Product N	ame AUTO PERSON1 atus Account Open ame 304 - FD-Resident - Monthly Comp	¥ ¥		Accol B	INR  Tranch Name  98001	Mumbai
Original Deposit No.	Renewal No. Depo	sit No. Date	Dr / Cr	Acy Amount	Lcy Amount	Description
1	1	1 25/07/2018	c c	50,000.00	50,000.00	Initial PayIn - 98001-MUMBAI - 703000000011569
2	1	2 30/09/2018	C	5,000.00	5,000.00	Initial PayIn - 99975-NAGPUR - 703000000011569
2	1	2 12/10/2018	D	25.00	25.00	703000000011569:INT PAYOUT
2	1	2 12/10/2018	D	5,000.00	5,000.00	703000000011569:PRINC PAYOUT
3	1	3 01/11/2018	С	10,000.00	10,000.00	Initial Payin FD -sanity test - 701000000006403
Page 1 of1 (I-5 of5 ltems) K <	1 > ×					

Field Name	Description						
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.						
Account Currency	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened.</li> <li>All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency.</li> <li>For example: If the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.</li> </ul>						
Account Status	[Display] This field displays the current status of the account. The options are:						
	<ul> <li>Regular - This account is a regular account opened for various transactions.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Account Opened Today - This account is opened on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>						
	Closed - This account is closed.						
	<ul> <li>Account Closed Today - This account has been closed on the day of the transaction.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Unclaimed - This account has remained unclaimed by the customer.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Matured - This account has matured.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Account Blocked - This account is blocked.</li> </ul>						
	<ul> <li>Forced Renewal - This account is marked for lien and thus has been force renewed.</li> </ul>						



Branch Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the home branch where the TD account is initiated and maintained.
Product Name	[Display] This field displays the name assigned to the TD product, as defined at the product level. This is the product under which the TD account is opened.
Column Name	Description
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number of the TD account.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the running term deposit number. This signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Date	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the value date of the transaction.</li> <li>The value date signifies the date on which the transaction had taken place.</li> <li>The value date and the transaction date is usually the same. However a value date can be a previous date. The adjustment on the account takes place from the value date.</li> <li>For example: A TD matures on 10th of July '04 and has a grace period of 15 days. The renewal transaction takes place on 16th of July '04. 16th July is the transaction date. As the TD can be renewed from the maturity date, the value date for that transaction will be 10th July '04</li> </ul>
Dr / Cr	[Display] This column displays the debit or credit type of transaction, based on the type of transaction performed and the transaction mnemonic.
Acy Amount	[Display] This column displays the amount in the account currency. The amount is calculated in the account currency to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts. The exchange rate values are defined and downloaded from FCC.
Lcy Amount	[Display] This column displays the amount in the local currency. The local currency of the country where the bank is situated, is the local currency of the bank. If the account currency and the local currency are the same, the amounts displayed in the <b>Acy Amount</b> field and the <b>Lcy Amount</b> field will be the same. The exchange rate values must be defined and



	downloaded. For example: If the bank is situated in U.S.A., the local currency of the bank will be USD.
Description	[Display] This field displays description of transaction details.

The above tab screen displays the ledger transactions that have been executed on the account no 70300000000074 for Ms.Vandana. The transactions are for the period 01/01/1950 to 30/11/2018. The screen displays all the customer initiated or account related transactions that have been executed on all the deposits.

The enquiry can also be done for individual deposits.

.

7. Double-click the appropriate row link, to view the **Details** tab.

### **Details**

Details tab displays the various details of the TD account.

TD037 ×						
TD Account	Ledger Er	nquiry				Ok Close Clear
		* Account No. Deposit No. Start Date	70300000011569 0 01/01/1950	All Deposits End Date	30/11/2018	
Transactions	Details					
		Txn Date Value Date	03/08/2018  25/07/2018  25/07/2018	User Name Batch No. Suitem Viceo No.	33008	
	n	Inemonic Code	1021	Service Charge Code	0	
		Amount Acy	50,000.00 INR	* Rate Acy to Lcy	1.00000	
		Amount Tcy	50,000.00 INR	* Rate Tcy to Lcy	1.00000	
		Amount Lcy	50,000.00 INR	Cheque No.	000000000000	
		Xfer Branch	0	Bank Routing No.	0	
	x	fer Account No.		Authoriser	OJSUBODHS2	
		Description	Initial PayIn - 98001-MUMBAI - 7030000000011569			

Field Name	Description
Txn Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the transaction has been done. This is a system generated date.
Value Date	[Display] This field displays the value date of the transaction.
Posting Date	[Display] This field displays the posting date of the transaction. The posting date is the date on which the transaction is posted to the accounts.



	Usually the transaction date and the posting date is the same, except in the cases where the transaction date is a bank holiday. For example, the interest for a TD is paid monthly on the last day of the month. In the month of July, if the date on which the payout has to take place, i.e. 31st July is a holiday, the bank will accrue the interest on the 29th and the payout will take place on the 1st of August. In this case the transaction date will be 1st August and the posting date will be 29th July.
Mnemonic Code	[Display] This field displays the transaction mnemonic code through which this transaction has been made.
Amount Acy	[Display] This field displays the amount in the account currency. Account currency is the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. The amount is calculated in the account currency to facilitate the bank to make relevant entries in their respective accounts.
Amount TCY	[Display] This field displays the amount in the transaction currency. The transaction currency is the currency in which the customer wants to transact. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded. For example: If the customer wants redemption amount to be paid in EUR (Euro), EUR is the transaction currency.
Amount Lcy	[Display] This field displays the amount in the local currency.
Tran Branch	[Display] This field displays the branch code where the transaction was executed.
Xfer Branch	[Display] This field displays the branch code to which the TD is being transferred, in case of a TD transfer.
Xfer Account No.	[Display] This field displays the account number to which the TD is being transferred, in case of a TD transfer.
Description	[Display] This field displays the description of the transaction.
User Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the teller/operator who entered the transaction. If the transaction is a system run process, this field displays the user name as system.
Batch No.	[Display] This field displays the batch under which the transaction has been processed during the EOD.
System Trace No.	[Display] This field displays the system reference audit trail number generated by the system for the transaction.



Service Charge Code	[Display] This field displays the service charge code, if service charges are levied to the transaction. The bank may levy service charges when the transaction is done through a banker's cheque or a demand draft.
Rate Acy to Lcy	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values are defined and downloaded from FCC.
Rate Tcy to Lcy	[Display] This field displays the rate at which the transaction currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Cheque No.	[Display] This field displays the cheque number if the initial deposit, interest payout, or the redemption amount is remitted by cheque.
Debit/Credit	[Display] This field displays the debit or credit type of transaction, based on the type of transaction performed and the transaction mnemonic.
Bank Routing No.	[Display] This field displays the routing number of the instrument, if a transaction is done by cheque. The routing number is the combination of the bank code and the branch code.
Authoriser	[Display] This field displays the identification of the person who authorised the transaction.

8. Click Close.

#### **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the details for each of the transactions that have been displayed in the **Transaction** tab screen. Double click the transaction in the **Transaction** tab screen to view the details of the transaction the **Details** tab screen.

#### Exercise

For an existing customer from your bank, select a suitable account and for any of the deposit under the account check the ledger transactions. Double click the transaction to view the details of the displayed transactions.



# 6.7 TD040 - TD Maturity Amount History

A customer would like to view the maturity details during the term of the deposit.

Using this option you can view the maturity details, maturity amount details for the deposits under a term deposit account. You can also view the details for a selected deposit and the details about premature redemption.

This screen does not show the details of deposits renewed today. A disclaimer will be shown on the screen saying "Deposits renewed today will not be available for Enquiry"

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- After defining the TD Product, TD Product Rates must be defined for the newly defined TD Product.
- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To view TD maturity amount history

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code TD040 and then click 
   or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Maturity Amount History.
- 2. You will be navigated to TD Maturity Amount History screen.

#### **TD Maturity Amount History**

TD040 ×										
TD Maturity Amount Hi	story								Ok	Close Clear
* Account N Principal E	lumber Branch alance	0.00				Customer Name Product Account Currency		•		
Maturity Amount Summary	Maturity Amount	Details								
Original Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Calculation Date	Principal Amount	Maturity Date	Maturity Amo	unt			
No data to display.										
Page 1 (0 of 0 items)	< 1 > >									
# Deposits renewed today will	not be available for o	enquiry								

Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number for which you want to check the maturity amount details.



Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Branch	[Display] This field displays the name of the home branch where the TD account is initiated and maintained.
Product	[Display] This field displays the code and name assigned to the TD product, as defined at the product level. This is the product under which the TD account is opened.
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the principal balance of the TD account. Principal balance is the sum total of the principal amount of all the deposits falling under a single TD account.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example: If the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.

3. Enter the account number and press the **Tab or Enter** key.

# **TD Maturity Amount History**

Account Number 7030000000019757 Customer Name AUTO PERS							RSON	1		
1	Branch MUMBAI	98001				Product	304		FD-Resident - Monthly Compounding	
Principal B	alance	2,62,500.00			Acc	ount Currency	INR	•		
urity Amount Summary	Maturity Amour	it Details								
Driginal Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Calculation Date	Principal Amount	Maturity Date	Maturity Amou	int			
	1	1	01/11/2018	987.99	16/11/2018		994.99			
2	1	2	01/11/2018	12,500.00	01/11/2019	14	4,507.00			
3	1	3	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	57	,466.00			
1	1	4	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	57	,466.00			
5	1	5	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	57	,466.00			
i .	1	6	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	57	,466.00			
,	1	7	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	57	7,466.00			
Page 1 of 1 (1-7 of 7 iten	ns) K < 1	к <								
osits renewed today will	not be available fo	r enquiry								

# **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the maturity amount that is paid on the TD account no 703000000019757 for Mr. Auto Person1. The principal amount is INR 2,62,500.00.

Fields like calculate date, principal amount, etc. will be updated when the deposit is opened or prematurely broken.

#### Exercise

Use this screen to inquire on a TD which has matured.

4. Click OK. The system displays the details in the Maturity Amount Summary tab.

# **Maturity Amount Summary**

This tab displays a summary of the maturity amount of the account.

Account	Number 7030000	000019757			Customer N	ustomer Name AUTO PERS			(SON1	
	Branch MUMBAI	98001				Product	304		FD-Resident - Monthly Compounding	
Principal	Balance	2,62,500.00			Account	t Currency	INR	•		
y Amount Summary	Maturity Amou	nt Details								
jinal Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Calculation Date	Principal Amount	Maturity Date Mat	turity Amo	unt			
	1	1	01/11/2018	987.99	16/11/2018		994.99			
	1	2	01/11/2018	12,500.00	01/11/2019	1	4,507.00			
	1	3	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	5	7,466.00			
	1	4	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	5	7,466.00			
	1	5	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	5	7,466.00			
	1	6	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	5	7,466.00			
	1	7	01/11/2018	50,000.00	01/11/2019	5	7,466.00			
e 1 of 1 (1-7 of 7 ite	ms) K < 1	к <								
is renewed today Wi	i not be available to	or enquiry								

Column Name	Description						
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number of the TD account.						
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. The renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.						
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number. The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.						
Calculate Date	[Display] This column displays the date, which is used for calculating the maturity amount. This date could be the start date of a new deposit, or the date on which the deposit was partially redeemed. For example, Deposit Initiated = 24/10/2018						


	Principal Amount = 780000 Maturity Date = 24/04/2019 Maturity Amount = 791731.40 Here the deposit initiated date i.e. 24/10/2018 is the calculate date. Now assume there is a premature part redemption for this deposit: Part Redemption Date = 31/12/2018 Principal Amount = 80000 Maturity Date = 24/04/2019 Maturity Amount = 81136.21 Here the part redemption Date i.e. 31/12/2018 is the calculate date.
Principal Amount	[Display] This column displays the principal amount of the term deposit.
Maturity Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the deposit will mature.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This column displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any.

- 5. Double-click the appropriate column in the **Maturity Amount Summary** tab, to view the maturity amount details of the selected deposit.
- 6. The system displays the Maturity Amount Details tab.

# **Maturity Amount Details**

This tab displays the details of the maturity amount of the account.

Acco	unt Number 7030000000	19757		Customer Name	AUTO PERSON	1	]
	Branch MUMBAI 980	01		Product	304	FD-Resident - Monthly Compounding	
Princ	ipal Balance 2,62	,500.00		Account Currency	INR 🔻		
urity Amount Summ	ary Maturity Amount D	etails					
Deposit Number	1						
Calculation Date	Principal Amount	Maturity Date	Maturity Amount				
1/11/2018	987.99	16/11/2018	994.99				
1/11/2018	987.99	16/11/2018	994.99				
lage 1 of 1 (1 of 1 )	987.99 tems) K < 1 > will not be available for er	16/11/2018 거	994.99				
in/11/2018	987.99	16/11/2018	994.99				
11/11/2018 age 1 of 1 (1 of 1	997.99	16/11/2018 거	994.99				
age 1 of 1 (1 of 1 )	997.99	16/11/2018	994.99				
age 1 of 1 (1 of 1)	997.99 tems) K < 1 > will not be available for er	16/11/2018	994.99				
age 1 of 1 (1 of 1)	997.99 tems) K < 1 > will not be available for er	16/11/2018	994.99				
age 1 of 1 (1 of 1 i	997.99 Items) K < 1 > will not be available for er	16/11/2018	994.99				
age 1 of 1 (1 of 1)	997.99 Items) K < 1 > will not be available for er	16/11/2018	994.99				
age 1 of 1 (1 of 1)	997.99 Items) K < 1 > will not be available for er	16/11/2018	994.99				

Field Name	Description
Deposit Number	[Display]



This field displays the deposit number.

Column Name	Description
Calculation Date	[Display] This column displays the date, which is used for calculating the maturity amount.
Principal Amount	[Display] This column displays the principal amount of the term deposit.
Maturity Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the deposit will mature.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This column displays the total amount to be received on the maturity of the deposit. This amount is inclusive of TDS, if any.

7. Click **Close** to exit the screen.



# 6.8 TD041 - TD Deposit Certificate Enquiry

You can view the certificate details for a deposit using this option. The Enquiry gives you details about the certificates issued along with the certificate number. You can check the details of the initial as well as duplicate certificates. The details provided are principal amount, maturity amount, total deposit amount, denomination amount, maturity date, etc.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

- After defining the TD Product, TD Product Rates must be defined for the newly defined TD Product.
- TD043 TD Certificate Printing
- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To view TD deposit certificate Enquiry

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code TD041 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Deposit Certificate Enquiry.
- 2. You will be navigated to the TD Deposit Certificate Enquiry screen.

# **TD Deposit Certificate Enquiry**

Certificat					Debo	SILINUITIDEI		
Certificate Number Certificate Type Initial					Cust	mer Name		
		•						
Account Currency		<b>v</b>	Product					
oposit Cortificato Dotaile								
eposit Certificate Details								
Account No.	Original Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Certificate No.	Issue Date	Principal Amt.	Maturity Amt.	Total Depo
No items to display.								

Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer, for whom the TD certificate Enquiry is to be conducted.
Deposit Number	[Optional, Search List] Select the deposit number, for which you want to conduct the certificate Enquiry from the Search List. The Deposit Number signifies the number of deposits opened in an



	account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Certificate Number	[Optional, Numeric, 12] Type the certificate number, if you wish to see the details for particular deposit certificate number.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Certificate Type	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the certificate type from the drop-down list. The options are:
	<ul> <li>Initial - The certificate issued is the initial certificate for the deposit</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Duplicate - The certificate issued is a duplicate of the initial certificate for the deposit</li> </ul>
	By Default , the system displays the certificate type as Initial.
Branch	[Display] This field displays the home branch where the TD account is opened and maintained.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries are posted in the account in the account currency. For example, if the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency, by default.
Product	[Display] This field displays the name assigned to the TD product, as defined at the product level. This is the product under which the TD account is opened.
Column Name	Description
Deposit Certificate Detai	ls
Account No.	[Display] This column displays the account number as specified in the <b>TD</b> <b>Deposit Certificate Enquiry</b> screen.
Original Deposit No	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display]

-



	This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the original deposit number.</li> <li>The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account.</li> <li>The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.</li> <li>This field displays the certificate number as specified in the <b>TD Deposit Certificate Enquiry</b> screen.</li> </ul>
Certificate No.	[Display] This column displays the certificate number of the deposit which has been issued.
Issue Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the certificate is issued.
Principal Amt.	[Display] This column displays the principal amount of the deposit.
Maturity Amt.	[Display] This column displays the deposit maturity amount. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any.
Total Deposit Amt.	[Display] This column displays the sum total of principal amount of all the deposits initiated and maintained under the TD account.
Denomination Amt.	[Display] This column displays the denomination in which the certificates are printed.
Maturity Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the deposit will mature.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key.
- 4. Select the deposit number from the Search List.
- 5. Enter the certificate number and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key.

# **TD Deposit Certificate Enquiry**



sposit Certifica	te Enquiry								End	luire Close
*,	Account Number	703000000011479					Deposit Number	1	Q	
Ce	rtificate Number	10001					Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1		
	Certificate Type	Initial	•				Branch	98001	MUMBAI	
A	count Currency	INR •	•				Product	304	FD-Resident - M	Ionthly Compour
Account No.	Original Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Certificate No.	Issue Date	Principal Amt.	Maturity Amt.	Total Deposit Amt.	Denomination Amt.	Maturity Date
Account No.	Original Depent No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Certificate No.	Issue	Principal Amt.	Maturity Amt.	Total Deposit Amt.	Denomination	Maturity Date
703000000011479	1	1	1	10001	2018-09-	₹11,000,00	₹11.043.00	₹11.000.00	0.0	2019-10-12
				10001	30	C11,000.00	(11,040.00	(11,000.00	0.0	2010-10-13
				10001	30	C11,000.00	(1),040.00	01,000.00	0.0	2010-10-13

6. Click **Enquire**. The system displays the TD deposit certificate details in the **Deposit Certificate Details** tab.

# **Deposit Certificate Details**

P	ccount Number	703000000011479					Deposit Number	1	<u> </u>	
Ce	tificate Number	r 10001 Customer Name								
	Certificate Type	Initial V Branch						98001	MUMBAI	
Account Currency		INR 🔻					Product	304	FD-Resident - Monthly Compour	
7020000000011470				10001	20	<11,000.00	<11,045.00	<11,000.00	0.0	2010-10-13
7020000000044470				10001	20	<11,000.00	<11,043.00	< 11,000.00	0.0	2018-10-13
703000000011479	'				30		I			
703000000011479	,	· · · · ·			50					
703000000011479		`			30					
703000000011479					30		I			
703000000011479					30		I			



Column Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This column displays the account number as specified in the TD Deposit Certificate Enquiry screen.
Original Deposit No	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit.
Renewal No	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. Renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the original deposit number.</li> <li>The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account.</li> <li>The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.</li> <li>This field displays the certificate number as specified in the <b>TD Deposit Certificate Enquiry</b> screen.</li> </ul>
Certificate No.	[Display] This column displays the certificate number of the deposit which has been issued.
Issue Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the certificate is issued.
Principal Amount	[Display] This column displays the principal amount of the deposit.
Maturity Amount	[Display] This column displays the deposit maturity amount. This amount is inclusive of the TDS, if any.
Total Deposit Amt.	[Display] This column displays the sum total of principal amount of all the deposits initiated and maintained under the TD account.
Denomination Amt.	[Display] This column displays the denomination in which the certificates are printed.
Maturity Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which the deposit will mature.

7. Click the **Close** button.

# **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the certificate details that have been issued for TD account no 7030000000011479. The certificate is issued for a principal amount of INR 11,000 on the 1st deposit.

# Exercise

For an existing TD account check if a certificate has been issued using the above option. The screen will display the date of issue, the amount and the deposit for which the certificate has been issued.



# 6.9 TD042 - TD Interest and Principal Payment History

A customer would like to inquire about the interest and principal payout details during the term of the deposit.

Using this option you can view the details of the interest payout and principal redemption done for the deposits under a term deposit account. You can view the payout details for all the deposits under a term deposit account or for an individual deposit. You can also view the details for a selected payout mode.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To view interest and principal payment history

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TD042 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Interest and Principal Payment History.
- 2. You will be navigated to TD Interest and Principal Payment History screen.

# **TD Interest and Principal Payment History**

TD042 ×									
TD Interest and F	Principal Pay	ment History	(						Enquire Close Clear
	* Account No.					Customer Name			<b>^</b>
	Branch			୍		Product			
F	Principal Balance	01/01/1900	5.00			Account Currency	V 1/01/1900		
	All Deposits	01/01/1800				* Deposit No.	Q		
	Payout Mode		•						
Pay Summary Pa	ay History Pay	Details							
Srl No.	Origin	al Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Payment Type	Interest/Principal Amount	OutStanding Amount	Tax 1	Tax 2
No items to display									
4									•
✓ Page 1 (0 of 0 iter	ms) K K	l > x							•

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number, for which you want to view the interest and principal payment history.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Branch	[Display] This field displays the name of the home branch in which the TD account is opened and maintained.



Product	[Display] This field displays the name assigned to the TD product, as defined at the product level. This is the product under which the TD account is opened.
Principal Balance	[Display] This field displays the TD account principal balance i.e. the sum total of the principal balance of all the term deposits held under the TD account.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened. All the entries posted in the account are in the account currency. For example: If the currency assigned to a TD product is USD (US Dollar), the account opened under that product has USD as its account currency.
From Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the start date of the Enquiry from the date editor. This date should not be greater than the end date. This field is validated against the start date of the deposit.
To Date	[Mandatory, Dat, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the end date of the Enquiry from the date editor.
All Deposits	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>All Deposits</b> check box to view the interest and principal history for all the individual deposits under the TD account.
Deposit No.	[Conditional, Search List] Select the term deposit number to view the transactions done against that particular term deposit from the Search List. This field is disabled if the <b>All Deposits</b> check box is selected.
Payout Mode	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the payout mode in which the interest and the principal is paid from the drop-down list. The options are:
	• Cash
	Bankers Cheque
	Add To Principal on Maturity
	Transfer to CASA
	Transfer to External Account
	Transfer to Loan
	Demand Draft
	Iranster to GL
	Keinvest to Other Account
	Reinvest to Uther Product
Screen Description	

The Enquiry of the payment of interest and principal for TD account no 703000000012502.



The interest and principal was paid in cash for all deposits between the period 25/07/2018 to 30/11/2018.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **Tab or Enter** key.
- 4. Select the appropriate from date and to date from the Search List, the deposit number and the payout mode from the list.

# **TD Interest and Principal Payment History**

* Accr	ount No. 703000000012	2502			Customer Name	UTO PERSON1		
	Branch 98001	MUMBAI	Q		Product 3	04 FD-Resider	nt - Monthly Compounding	
Principal	Balance 50.0	00.00			Account Currency	NR V		
• Err	om Date 25/07/2018	<b></b>			* To Date	5/12/2018		
All (	Deposits 🗸				* Deposit No.			
Payo	ut Mode Cash	•						
ummary Pay Histor	rv Pav Details							
Srl No.	Original Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Payment Type	Interest/Principal Amount	OutStanding Amount	Tax 1	Tax 2

- 5. Select the appropriate record in the pay summary tab and then click **Enquire**.
- 6. The system displays the interest and principal payment history in the various tabs.

# **Pay Summary**

The Pay Summary tab displays the summary of the principal and interest.

	ount No. 7030000000125	502			Customer Name	AUTO PERSON1		
	Branch 98001	ich 98001 MUMBAI C			Product 304		nt - Monthly Compounding	
Principal Balance 50,000.00 Account Currency			INR 🔻					
* Fr	om Date 25/07/2018	<b>#</b>			* To Date	15/12/2018		
All	All Deposits 🗸							
Payo	out Mode	¥						
Davi Histor	nu Dav Dataila							
Pay Histo	iy Pay Details							
Srl No.	Original Deposit No.	Renewal No.	Deposit No.	Payment Type	Interest/Principal Amou	t OutStanding Amount	Tax 1	Tax 2
1	3	1	3	Principal	11,000.0	0.00	0.00	
2	3	1	3	Normal Interest	68.	0 0.00	0.00	
3	3	2	6	Normal Interest	68.0	0 0.00	0.00	
4	3	2	6	Principal	11,000.0	0 0.00	0.00	
-	3	3	9	Normal Interest	54.4	0 0.00	0.00	
5	3	3	9	Principal	11,000.0	0 0.00	13.60	
6		4	12	Normal Interest	54.4	0 0.00	0.00	
5 6 7	3				11,000 (	0.00	13.60	
5 6 7 8	3	4	12	Principal	11,000.		10.00	

Column Name	Description
Sr. No.	[Display] This column displays the serial number. The serial number is the row number generated for the deposit



	information.
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The original deposit number is the source, or the parent deposit number from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout, or due to renewal. It will have a new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit number of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. The renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number. The deposit number signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Payment Type	[Display] This column displays the payment type. The payment is either for the interest earned on the deposit or the redeemed principal deposit
Interest/Principal Amount	[Display] This column displays the available principal amount of the deposit. In case of redemption, this amount will be principal amount balance after the redemption.
Interest/Principal Amount Outstanding Amount	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the available principal amount of the deposit.</li> <li>In case of redemption, this amount will be principal amount balance after the redemption.</li> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the deposit amount or the interest for which the payment mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer.</li> <li>Amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, should be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field.</li> <li>For example: A deposit is redeemed and the payout mode is defined as cash. The redemption procedures are complete but the cash is not collected by the customer. In this case, the amount is displayed as Outstanding amount.</li> </ul>
Interest/Principal Amount Outstanding Amount Tax 1	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the available principal amount of the deposit.</li> <li>In case of redemption, this amount will be principal amount balance after the redemption.</li> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the deposit amount or the interest for which the payment mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer.</li> <li>Amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, should be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field.</li> <li>For example: A deposit is redeemed and the payout mode is defined as cash. The redemption procedures are complete but the cash is not collected by the customer. In this case, the amount is displayed as Outstanding amount.</li> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the amount of tax deducted on the interest earned on the deposit.</li> </ul>
Interest/Principal Amount Outstanding Amount Tax 1 Tax 2	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the available principal amount of the deposit. In case of redemption, this amount will be principal amount balance after the redemption.</li> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the deposit amount or the interest for which the payment mode is specified, but the proceeds are not collected by the customer.</li> <li>Amounts, which have payout instructions specified as cash, DD or BC, should be personally collected by the customer. These uncollected proceeds are displayed in this field.</li> <li>For example: A deposit is redeemed and the payout mode is defined as cash. The redemption procedures are complete but the cash is not collected by the customer. In this case, the amount is displayed as Outstanding amount.</li> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the amount of tax deducted on the interest earned on the deposit.</li> </ul>



	through a banker's cheque or a demand draft.
Interest Rate	[Display] This column displays the rate at which interest is calculated for the deposit. This rate should be within the interest ceiling defined at the product level.
Status	[Display] This column displays the status of the payout transaction. The various statuses are paid and unpaid.
Interest Index Code	[Display] This column displays the interest index code applicable to the TD. This is the index code defined for the product against the slab in which TD principal and term fit in.

# **Screen Description**

The Enquiry of the payment of interest and principal for TD account no 703000000012502. The principal amount of INR 50,000.00 and the interest amount of INR 11000 was paid in cash to the customer.

The account will also be charged a service charge of INR3.00 for each of the transactions.

7. Double-click a record to enable the remaining two tabs.

# **Pay History**

This tab displays the history of the account.

	ount No. 703000000012502			Custor	ner Name AUTO PERSON	11	
Principal	Balance 50,000.00		<b>Q</b>	Account	Currency INR V	FD-Resident - Monthly C	compounding
* Fi	om Date 25/07/2018				To Date 15/12/2018		
All	Deposits 🖌			* Di	eposit No.	<u> </u> ्	
Payo	out Mode	*					
mary Pay Histo	ry Pay Details						
Srl No.	Pay Mode	Pay Currency	Account Rate	Txn Rate	TD Amount	Pay Amount	Net Amount
1	Reinvest to Existing Account	INR	1.00	1.00	11,000.00	11,000.00	11,000.00

Column Name	Description
Sr. No.	[Display] This column displays the serial number. The serial number is the number generated for the deposit information.
Pay Mode	[Display] This column displays the payment mode through which the interest and principal was paid.



Pay Currency	[Display] This column displays the currency in which the payout is conducted i.e. the transaction currency. The transaction currency is the currency in which the customer wants to transact. For example: If the customer wants payment amount to be paid in EUR (Euro), EUR will be the transaction currency.
Account Rate	[Display] This column displays the rate at which the account currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Txn Rate	[Display] This column displays the rate at which the pay currency is converted to the local currency of the bank. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
TD Amount	[Display] This column displays the TD amount i.e. the sum total of the principal balance of all the term deposits held under the TD account.
Pay Amount	[Display] This column displays the net payable amount displayed in the pay currency after applying the conversion rate of local currency of the bank. The payment amount is converted into the transaction currency for the payout of the amount. The exchange rate values must be defined and downloaded.
Net Amount	[Display] This column displays the net amount that will be paid to the customer. This amount is calculated by adding Outstanding amount and deducting the various interest amounts from the payable amount.

# **Screen Description**

The Enquiry of the payment of interest and principal for TD account no. 703000000012502. The entire amount of principal and interest is being reinvested to a new account for the customer.

# **Pay Details**



# This tab displays the details of the account.

TD042 ×					
TD Interest and Principal Payr	nent History	Enquire Close Clear			
* Account No.	703000000012502	Customer Name AUTO PERSON1			
Branch	98001 MUMBAI Q	Product 304 FD-Resident - Monthly Compounding			
Principal Balance	50,000.00	Account Currency INR V			
* From Date	25/07/2018	* To Date 15/12/2018			
All Deposits	Al Deposits 🖌				
Payout Mode	•				
Pay Summary Pay History Pay	Details				
From Date	15/09/2018	To Date 30/09/2018			
Beneficiary Name	AUTO PERSON1	Beneficiary Acct 703000000012502			
New Product	304 FD-Resident - Monthly Compoun	Product Variance 0.00000			
Payable Branch	98001 MUMBAI Q	New Deposit No. 6			
Deposit Interest Rate	15.00000	Deposit Variance 0.00000			
Reinvest Date	30/09/2018	Reinvest Type Auto 🔻			
Reinvest Term	0 Months 15 Days	Maturity Date 15/10/2018			
Compounding Frequency	Monthly <b>v</b>	Routing No. 0			
Payout Freqency	At Maturity	Discounted Amount 0.00000			
Base Amount for Rate	Incremental Amount	Ref Doc No.			
Issuer Code	T				

Field Name	Description
From Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the deposit is initiated. This is the start date of the deposit.
To Date	[Display] This field displays the maturity date for the deposit.
Beneficiary Name	[Display] This field displays the beneficiary name.
Beneficiary Acct	[Display] This field displays the account number of the beneficiary. This is the account to which the payout proceeds will be transferred, in case the payout mode is <b>Transfer to External account</b> or <b>Transfer to</b> <b>CASA</b> or <b>Transfer to Loan</b> account.
New Product	[Display] This field displays the product code and the name, if the payout proceeds are reinvested into a new TD product
Product Variance	[Display] This field displays the product variance. The product variance is the interest variance defined at the <b>TD Product</b> <b>Rate Maintenance</b> (Task Code: TD060) option for the slab in which the deposit principal balance and term fits in.
Payable Branch	[Display] This field displays the payable branch, if the payout mode is through DD.
New Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the new deposit number, if the payout proceeds are reinvested into new or existing account.
Deposit Interest Rate	[Display]



	This field displays the deposit interest rate. This is the rate of interest for the new deposit, if payout proceeds are reinvested.
Deposit Variance	[Display] This field displays the deposit variance. If payout proceeds are reinvested, the interest variance for the new deposit initiated is displayed. The specified variance should be within the minimum and maximum variance limit specified at the product level.
Reinvest Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the payout proceeds are reinvested into new or existing account.
Reinvest Type	[Display] This field displays the type of reinvestment. The payout proceeds are reinvested into new or existing account.
Reinvest Term	[Display] This field displays the duration of the deposit, if reinvested.
Maturity Date	[Display] This field displays the maturity date of the new deposit, if reinvested.
Compounding Frequency	[Display] This field displays the time interval at which the interest earned on the term deposit will be compounded to the principal, if the payout proceeds are reinvested.
Routing No.	[Display] This field displays the routing number of the bank issuing the DD or BC.
Payout Frequency	[Display] This field displays the time interval at which the interest earned on the deposit will be paid out, if the payout proceeds are reinvested.
Discounted Amount	[Display] This field displays the discounted deposit amount. For discounted deposits, the customer allows the deposits to receive a pre-defined maturity amount. For example: A customer wants to earn a maturity amount of 10,000. The bank will consider the interest adjustments and calculate the initial payment amount, the customer needs to make. In this case, the maturity amount and the interest are fixed.
Base Amount for rate	[Display] This field displays the base amount for rate. The base amount for rate is incremental, cumulative for the deposit, or cumulative of all deposits, if the payout proceeds are reinvested.
Ref Doc No.	[Display] This field displays the instrument serial number, in case, the payout proceeds are in the form of a cheque, or DD, or BC. A serial number is a system generated number that includes the branch code. The instrument serial number enables the system to track the instrument uniquely.

# Issuer Code[Display]This field displays the issuer code of the DD or BC, if payout proceeds<br/>are in the form of a DD or BC.

# **Screen Description**

The details of the payment of Interest and principal for TD account no. 703000000012502.

The entire amount of principal and interest is being reinvested to a new account for the customer.

# Exercise

Do a payout on a TD account to a CASA account and use this screen to inquire on the transaction.

8. Click Close.



# 6.10 TD050 - TD Interest Enquiry

Using this option you can view the complete history of interest calculated and the details of the rules applied on a term deposit account and RD account. You can view the interest details for all deposits or for a selected deposit.

As a part of relationship pricing, the bank may provide rule based variances for the term deposit interest.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

# Modes Available

Not Applicable

# To view the TD interest details

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code TD050 and click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > Time Deposit Enquiry.
- 2. The system displays the **TD Interest Enquiry** screen.

# **TD Interest Enquiry**

* Acco All D * St sit Details Rule D	uunt No. 703000000011539 beposits 🖌 art Date 25/07/2018 💼 etails	<b>b</b>			Deposit No. 0 * End Date 15/12/2018		
Deposit No.	Interest Base	Effective Rate	Interest Variance	Interest Amount	Interest Type	Rule Applied	Number of Days
	1 50000.0	15.0	0.0	493.15	N	0	24
:	2 20000.0	15.0	0.0	197.26	N	0	24
	1 997.4500122070312	0.0	0.0	0.00	P	0	31
	1 50509.6015625	15.0	0.0	643.48	N	0	31
:	2 20204.0	15.0	0.0	257.39	N	0	31
:	2 20409.599609375	15.0	0.0	50.33	N	0	6
	1 51024.0	15.0	0.0	125.81	N	0	6
	1 994.8800048828125	0.0	0.0	0.00	P	0	30
:	3 100.0	0.0	0.0	0.00	P	0	31
	3 10000.0	17.0	2.0	4.66	N	0	1

# **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 14] Type the TD account number.
All Deposits	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>All Deposits</b> check box to perform Enquiry for all deposits.
Deposit No.	[Conditional, Search List] Select the deposit number of the TD from the Search List. This field is disabled if the <b>All Deposits</b> check box is selected.
Start Date	[Mandatory, Date Picker, dd/mm/yyyy] This field displays the start date from which the interest details are to be



viewed. The start date should be less than the process date.

End Date[Mandatory, Date Picker, dd/mm/yyyy]This field displays the date up to which interest details are to be viewed.<br/>The end date should be less than the process date.

#### **Screen Description**

The above screen displays the TD interest that has been paid on deposit number 1 under TD account no 703000000011539. The interest Enquiry is for the period 25/07/2018 to 15/12/2018.

There are different rules for interest calculation that are attached to each account as per the relationship pricing rules that may be applicable to each deposit.

The interest rates and amounts are displayed as applicable.

- 3. Enter the TD account number and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key.
- 4. Select the all deposits check box or the deposit number from the Search List.
- 5. Select the start date and end date from the Search List.

#### **TD Interest Enquiry**

* Accou All De * Star sit Details Rule De	int No. 703000000011539 eposits rt Date 25/07/2018 tails				Deposit No. 0 * End Date 15/12/2018		
Deposit No.	Interest Base	Effective Rate	Interest Variance	Interest Amount	Interest Type	Rule Applied	Number of Days
1	50000.0	15.0	0.0	493.15	N	0	24
2	20000.0	15.0	0.0	197.26	N	0	24
1	997.4500122070312	0.0	0.0	0.00	P	0	31
1	50509.6015625	15.0	0.0	643.48	N	0	31
2	20204.0	15.0	0.0	257.39	N	0	31
2	20409.599609375	15.0	0.0	50.33	N	0	6
1	51024.0	15.0	0.0	125.81	N	0	6
1	994.8800048828125	0.0	0.0	0.00	Р	0	30
3	100.0	0.0	0.0	0.00	Р	0	31
3	10000.0	17.0	2.0	4.66	N	0	1

- 6. Click the **Enquire** button.
- 7. The system displays the **Deposit Details** tab.

#### **Deposit Details**

The deposit details tab displays information about the interest base, effective rate, interest variance, etc.



erest Eng	luiry							Enquire Clos
sit Details	* Account I All Depo * Start D Rule Detail	No. 703000000011539 sits ✓ ate 25/07/2018 Is	]			Deposit No. 0 * End Date 15/12/2018		
Deposit N	lo.	Interest Base	Effective Rate	Interest Variance	Interest Amount	Interest Type	Rule Applied	Number of Days
	1	50000.0	15.0	0.0	493.15	N	0	24
	2	20000.0	15.0	0.0	197.26	N	0	24
	1	997.4500122070312	0.0	0.0	0.00	P	0	31
	1	50509.6015625	15.0	0.0	643.48	N	0	31
2		20204.0	15.0	0.0	257.39	N	0	31
	2	20409.599609375	15.0	0.0	50.33	N	0	6
	1	51024.0	15.0	0.0	125.81	N	0	6
1		994.8800048828125	0.0	0.0	0.00	P	0	30
		100.0	0.0	0.0	0.00	P	0	31
	3	3 100.0						

# **Field Description**

Column Name	Description
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number of the TD.
Interest Base	[Display] This column displays the base interest applicable on the TD.
Effective Rate	[Display] This column displays the net rate applicable on the TD.
Interest Variance	[Display] This column displays the interest variance defined at the account level.
Interest Amount	[Display] This column displays the interest amount applicable on the TD
Interest Type	[Display] This column displays the interest type applicable on the TD. The options are:
	N - Normal
	<ul> <li>P - Penalty. The numeric attached to "P" signifies the historical sequence of the penalty charged .For eg P1/ P2</li> </ul>
	M - Maturity
Rule Applied	[Display] This column displays the rule applied to the TD account.
Number of Days	[Display] This column displays the interest base used for number of days to calculate the interest amount.

# **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the interest rates and amounts which are applicable.

- 8. Double-click the Rule Applied link to enable the Rule Details tab.
- 9. The system displays the rules applied to the particular deposit number.

# **Rule Details**

The rule details tab displays information about the condition number for the rule, value before rule evaluation, etc.

TD050 ×								
TD Interest En	quiry							Enquire Close Clear
	* Account Ne All Deposit * Start Dat	o. 70300000001 s ✔ e 25/07/2018	1539		Deposit N * End Da	o. 0 te 15/12/2018	] <	Â
Deposit Details	Rule Details							
Rule		Condition No.	Reason Text	Original Value	Rule Effect	Final Value		
No items to disp Page 1 (0 of 0	litems) K	< <b>1</b> > ×						
								-

# **Field Description**

Column Name	Description
Rule	[Display] This column displays the name of the rule applied to the TD account.
Condition No.	[Display] This column displays the valid condition number for the rule which was satisfied for this interest computation.
Reason Text	[Display] This column displays the reason for the value returned by the rule.
Original Value	[Display] This column displays the value before the rule evaluation.
Rule Effective	[Display] This column displays the rule applicable on the TD.
Final Value	[Display] This column displays the net rate applicable on the TD.

10. Click the **Close** button.

#### **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the TD interest that has been paid on deposit 1 under TD account no 703000000011539. The interest Enquiry is for the period 25/07/2018 to 15/12/2018.

On the basis of the rules applicable, the same will be displayed in this screen.

#### Exercise

For an existing account check the interest payment history and the rules that are attached to each deposit. The interest figures can be verified against the interest paid fields in the audit trail or ledger enquiry for the account.



# 6.11 TD044 - TD Transactions Enquiry

Using this option, you can view the details of the transactions preformed on a term deposit account. Details of a particular deposit number can be viewed by selecting the original deposit number. If the original deposit number is not mentioned, the system displays all the transactions performed on an account.

TD transactions Enquiry will show the redemption details online after the newly created TD is redeemed.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### **Modes Available**

Not Applicable

#### To view the TD transaction

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TD044 and click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TD Transaction Enquiry.
- 2. The system displays the TD Transaction Enquiry screen.

# **TD Transactions Enquiry**

ransaction	* Account Numbe Product Name Org Deposit No * Start Date s Details	r 703000000019007 e 301 - FD-Resident 1 1 0 15/09/2018	۷			Customer Name AUTO PERSON 270 Branch Name 99975 C 1 Deposit No. 1 * End Date 15/12/2018	Account Curre	ncy INR T
Sr No.	Туре	Org Dep No.	Dep No.	Post Date	Txn Date	Narration	Ref. Number	Txn Amount
1	TCD	1	1	15/09/2018	14/09/2018	Initial PayIn - 99975-NAGPUR - 703000000019007	3312620180915008200000017	₹407.44
2	TIA	1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Interest Compounding	3280320181015855100030003	₹358.00
3	TIA	1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	:-Tax Entry	3280320181015855100030003	₹71.60
4		1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Interest at Payout	3280320181015855100030008	₹358.00
5		1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Tax for on accr/comp/payout + Yr End Tax	3280320181015855100030008	₹71.60
6		1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Principal At Maturity	3280320181015155100030000	₹25,000.00
7	TBA	1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Int Payout From Acct 7030000000019007-1	3280320181015784600030000	₹286.40
8	TBA	1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Principal Auto Redemption - Reinvest	3280320181015814600030004	₹25,000.00
_								



Field Name	Description
Account Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD Account.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency assigned to the product at the product level, under which the account is opened.
Product Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the product, which is defined at the product level, under which the account is opened.
Branch Name	[Display, Search List] This field displays the branch name where the TD account is opened and maintained.
Org Deposit No.	[Optional, Search List] Select the original deposit number along with the Deposit No. from the Search List. The original deposit number is the source or the parent deposit no from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the running term deposit number. It signifies the number of deposits opened in an account. The deposit number is incremented every time a new deposit is created in an account. It may or may not be created due to interest payout or renewal.
Start Date	[Mandatory, Date Picker, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the startdate from the Date Picker. The start date should be greater than deposit date.
End Date	[Mandatory, Date Picker, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the end date from the Date Picker. The end date should be greater than start date.
Column Name	Description
Srl.No.	[Display] This field displays the Running Serial Number.
Туре	[Display] This field displays the Transaction literal.
Org Deposit No.	[Display] The original deposit number is the source or the parent deposit no from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit no of the source deposit.
Dep No.	[Display]



	This field displays the name of the product, which is defined at the product level, under which the account is opened.
Post Date	[Display] This field displays the FC Posting Date of the transaction.
Txn Date	[Display] This field displays the System date on which the transaction was done.
Narration	[Display] This field displays the Transaction Narration.
Ref Number	[Display] This field displays the Transaction Reference Number.
Txn Amount	[Display] This field displays the Transaction Amount.
Cr Dr	[Display] Credit/Debit Indicator.
Balance	[Display] This field displays the Running balance.
Teller	[Display] This field displays the User ID of the Teller who has done the transaction.

- 3. Enter the account number and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key.
- 4. Select the start date and end date from the Search List.
- 5. Click the **Enquiry** button.

# **TD Transactions Enquiry**

Sr.No.         Type         Org Dep No.         Dep No.         Peot Date         Txn Date         Narration         Ref. Number         Txn Amount           1         TCD         1         1         15092018         14092018         1111111         331262018091500820000017         331262018091500820000017         331262018091500820000017         6400           2         TA          1         151702018         011702018         1111111         32832018101858510003008         6725           3         TAA          1         1         151702018         011702018         17400110         32832018101585510003008         6725           4            1         151702018         011702018         17400110         32832018101585510003008         6725           5            1         151702018         011702018         17400110         32832018101585510003008         6725           6            1         151702018         011702018         17400110         32832018101585510003008         6725           6           1         1         151702018         011702018         1740404         3283203181015855	ansactior	Product Name Org Deposit No * Start Date 15 Details	301 - FD-Resident 1 15/09/2018	¥			Branch Name 99975 Deposit No. 1 * End Date 15/12/2018	THIRUVANANTHAPU	
1         TCD         1         15/99/2918         14/99/2918         19/97-54/6/PUR - 7030000001         33126291809150020000017         €40           2         TiA         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         10/10/2018         3312629180907         331262918090500         ₹35           3         TiA         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         1/10/2018         328032018101585510000000         ₹75           4         C         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         1/10/2018         328032018101585510000000         ₹75           5         C         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Tax: Enry machine at Psyout         328032018101585510000000         ₹75           5         C         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Tax: Enry machine at Psyout         3280320181015855100000000         ₹75           6         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Tax: Enry machine at Psyout         32803201810158551000000000         ₹75           6         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Principid/4 Maurbury         32803201810158551000000000         ₹75	Sr No.	Туре	Org Dep No.	Dep No.	Post Date	Txn Date	Narration	Ref. Number	Txn Amount
2         TA         1         111/10/2018         01/10/2018         Interest Compounding         3289320161015855100030003         ₹35           3         TA         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         -Tax.Entry         5280320161015855100030003         ₹73           4         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         -Tax.Entry         5280320161015855100030008         ₹73           5         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Tax for on accidomplayout +YF.End         3280320161015855100030008         ₹73           6         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Tax for on accidomplayout +YF.End         3280320161015855100030008         ₹73	1	TCD	1	1	15/09/2018	14/09/2018	Initial Payln - 99975-NAGPUR -	3312620180915008200000017	₹407.44
3         TIA         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         :Tax Entry         3280320181015855100030003         ₹7           4         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Interest Payout         3280320181015855100030008         ₹25           5         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Tax for an act/complayout = YF End         328032018101585510003008         ₹75           6         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Tax for an act/complayout = YF End         328032018101585510003008         ₹75	2	TIA	1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Interest Compounding	3280320181015855100030003	₹358.00
4         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         10/10/2018         22803/2018/1019585100000008         ₹35           5         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Tark for na activity phayout + YY End         32803/2018/1015855100030008         ₹75           6         1         1         15/10/2018         01/10/2018         Tark for na activity phayout + YY End         32803/2018/1015855100030008         ₹75	3	TIA	1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	:-Tax Entry	3280320181015855100030003	₹71.60
5         1         1         15/102/018         01/102/018         Tax Tax         To macc/compley/out + Yr End Tax         3280320181015855100030008         ₹7           6         1         1         15/102/018         01/102/018         Principal At Maturity         3280320181015155100030000         ₹25,00	4		1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Interest at Payout	3280320181015855100030008	₹358.00
6 1 1 15/10/2018 01/10/2018 Principal At Maturity 3280320181015155100030000 ₹25,00	5		1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Tax for on accr/comp/payout + Yr End Tax	3280320181015855100030008	₹71.60
	6		1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Principal At Maturity	3280320181015155100030000	₹25,000.00
7 TBA 1 15/10/2018 01/10/2018 Int Payout From Acct 3280320181015784600030000 ₹280	7	TBA	1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Int Payout From Acct 703000000019007-1	3280320181015784600030000	₹286.40
8 TBA 1 1 15/10/2018 01/10/2018 Principal Auto Redemption - Reinvest 3280320181015814600030004 ₹25,00	8	TBA	1	1	15/10/2018	01/10/2018	Principal Auto Redemption - Reinvest	3280320181015814600030004	₹25,000.00

6. Click the **Close** button.



# 6.12 TD030 - TD External Lien History Enquiry

Using this screen you can Enquiry the external TD lien history. This option displays the details of addition, modifications and deletion of the TD accounts.

If the data is modified by uploaded option, then the same should be shown in the external lien Enquiry.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening
- BA431 LINE OF BUSINESS (LOB) MASTER

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

# To Enquiry the external lien history

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code TD030 and click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TD External Lien History Enquiry.
- 2. The system displays the TD External Lien History Enquiry screen.

# **TD External Lien History Enquiry**

TD External Lien History Enquiry											
Account No. 703000000000644 Customer Name AUTO PERSON1							Deposit No.	5	٩.		
Lien Date	Expiry	/ Date	Lien Amount		Description	Maturity Instruction	Department Code	Department Name	In Favour Of :ID/Name	Collateral Code	Collateral Name
1 15/12/2018	15/	01/2019	100.00	test		Force Renew			990100786	0	
2 15/12/2018	15/	01/2019	100.00	test		Force Renew				0	
2 15/12/2018	15/	01/2020	100.00	test		Force Renew				0	
2 15/12/2018	16/	01/2020	200.00	test		Force Renew	1	AUTO LOANS	53532	6	TD
2 15/12/2018	16/	01/2020	200.00	test		Force Renew	1	AUTO LOANS	53532	6	TD
1 15/12/2018	15/	12/2019	100.00	test		Force Renew			990100786	0	
											•
of 1 (1-6 of 6 items)	к К	1 >	K								
	Iten Histo           * Acc           Custom           1           15/12/2018           2           15/12/2018           2           15/12/2018           2           15/12/2018           1           15/12/2018           1           15/12/2018           of 1           (1-6 of 6 items)	Lien History Enq           * Account No. Customer Name           1         15/12/2018           1         15/12/2018           2         15/12/2018           2         15/12/2018           2         15/12/2018           2         15/12/2018           2         15/12/2018           1         15/12/2018           1         15/12/2018           1         15/12/2018           1         15/12/2018           1         15/12/2018	Lien History Enquiry           * Account No.         703000           Customer Name         ALTO F           1         15/12/2018         15/01/2019           2         15/12/2018         15/01/2019           2         15/12/2018         15/01/2020           1         15/12/2018         16/01/2020           2         15/12/2018         16/01/2020           2         15/12/2018         16/01/2020           1         15/12/2018         15/01/2020           1         15/12/2018         15/01/2020           1         15/12/2018         15/01/2020           of 1         (1-6 of 6 items)         K         <	Image: Series of the	Image: Second Lien History Enquiry           * Account No.         703000000000644           Customer Name         AUTO PERSON1           1         15/12/2018         15/01/2019         100.00           2         15/12/2018         15/01/2019         100.00         test           2         15/12/2018         15/01/2020         100.00         test           2         15/12/2018         15/01/2020         200.00         test           2         15/12/2018         16/01/2020         200.00         test           2         15/12/2018         15/01/2020         200.00         test           2         15/12/2018         15/01/2020         200.00         test           2         15/12/2018         15/01/2020         200.00         test           1         15/12/2018         15/12/2019         100.00         test           of1         (1-6 of 6 items)         K< <	Lien History Enquiry       * Account No.       Customer Name       AUTO PERSON1       1       15/12/2018       15/12/2019       100.000       test	Lien History Enquiry         * Account No:       70300000000644         Customer Name       AUTO PERSON1         1       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew         2       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew         2       15/12/2018       15/01/2020       200.00       test       Force Renew         2       15/12/2018       16/01/2020       200.00       test       Force Renew         2       15/12/2018       16/01/2020       200.00       test       Force Renew         1       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew         1       15/12/2018       15/01/2020       200.00       test       Force Renew         1       15/12/2018       15/12/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew         of1       (1-6 of 6 items)       K<	Lien History Enquiry         * Account No:       70300000000644         Customer Name       AUTO PERSON1         1       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew         2       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew       1         2       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew       1         2       15/12/2018       16/01/2020       200.00       test       Force Renew       1         2       15/12/2018       16/01/2020       200.00       test       Force Renew       1         1       15/12/2018       16/01/2020       200.00       test       Force Renew       1         2       15/12/2018       16/01/2020       200.00       test       Force Renew       1         1       15/12/2018       15/12/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew       1         of1       (1-8 of 6 items)       K       1       > X       1       > X	Lien History Enquiry       * Account No:       T0300000006644       Deposition         Customer Name       AUTO PERSON1         Deposition         1       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew           2       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew            2       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew             2       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew	Image: Second No. 10000000000644 Customer Name AUTO PERSON1       Deposit No. 5         Lien Date       Expiry Date       Lien Amount       Description       Maturity Instruction       Description       Description <t< td=""><td>* Account No.       70300000000544 Customer Name       Deposit No.          <ul> <li> </li> </ul>          1       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew          <ul> <li>             15/12/2018</li> <li>             15/01/2020</li> <li>             100.00</li> <li>             1est</li> <li>             Force Renew</li> <li>             10100000000000000000000000</li></ul></td></t<>	* Account No.       70300000000544 Customer Name       Deposit No. <ul> <li> </li> </ul> 1       15/12/2018       15/01/2019       100.00       test       Force Renew <ul> <li>             15/12/2018</li> <li>             15/01/2020</li> <li>             100.00</li> <li>             1est</li> <li>             Force Renew</li> <li>             10100000000000000000000000</li></ul>

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the account number.
Deposit No.	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the deposit number from the Search List.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the customer name.
Lien Number	[Display] This field displays the lien number.



Lien Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the lien is marked. The system by default displays the current date as the lien start date.
Expiry Date	[Display] This field displays the date on which the lien will expire. The system by default displays the deposit maturity date as the expiry date.
Lien Amount	[Display] This field displays the lien amount for which the lien will be marked on the TD.
Description	[Display] This field displays the description of the lien.
Maturity Instructions	[Display] This field displays the maturity instruction as force renew. A deposit marked for lien is force renewed on maturity irrespective of the maturity instruction defined at the product or account level.
Department Code	[Display] This field displays the department code. The department code is maintained using the BA431 - LINE OF BUSINESS (LOB) MASTER option.
Department Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the department.
In favour of : ID/Name	[Display] This field displays the ID or Name.
Collateral Code	[Display] This field displays code of the collateral.
Collateral Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the collateral.
Reason For Lien	[Display] This column displays the reason for the lien to be marked on the deposit.
Propagate	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This column displays the propagate option.</li> <li>If the propagate option is enabled for the lien, then the field displays Y.</li> <li>If the Principal + Interest option is selected in the Lien Allowed field at the product level and the Propagate check box is checked at the Collateral level, then this option increases the drawing power of the customer.</li> <li>This option is available only for internal lien.</li> <li>For example, a lien is marked on a TD of 1,00,000 against the drawing power of the CASA account. The drawing power is specified as 50% of the TD. The compounding frequency is yearly and payout is at maturity.</li> <li>For the first year the drawing power of the customer will be 50% of 1,00,000 i.e. 50,000. At the end of the year the customer earns an interest of 5,000, which will be added to the principal because of compounding effect. The principal will now be 1,05,000. Thus, the drawing power will increase to 50% of 1,05,000 i.e. 52,500.</li> </ul>



Principal Lien Amount	[Display] This field displays the principal lien amount.
Interest Lien Amount	[Display] This field displays the Interest Lien amount.
Link Reference Serial No.	[Display] This column displays the link reference serial number.
Serial No.	[Display] This field displays the Serial No.
Purpose Of Lien	[Display] This column displays the purpose of lien.
Maker ID	[Display] This column displays the maker ID.
Checker ID	[Display] This column displays the checker ID.
Action	[Display] This column displays the action taken.
Maintenance Date Time	[Display] This column displays the maintenance date and time

- 3. Enter the account number and press <<**Tab** >>.
- 4. Select the deposit number from the Search List. The system displays the external lien history of the account number.
- 5. Click the **Close** button.



# 7. Tax Processing



# 7.1 TDS03 - TDS Tax Waiver

Using this option you can define tax waiver for term deposit and RD account(s)of a customer. The tax waiver can be maintained for a specified period. This maintenance is to be done for all accounts of a customer who is exempted from TDS. If the tax waiver is defined for an account, tax is not computed on the interest earned.

If **Tax Deduction at Source Flag** is defined as **No Tax**, at the product level, then by default no tax will be deducted from the term deposit account.

If **Tax Deduction at Source Flag** is defined as **Accrued**, at the product level then tax is calculated on the basis of accrued interest. In case customer seeks waiver of tax for a specific period, then you can define the period to waive the tax. The Tax Waiver is a yearly maintenance and relevant document for claiming exemption as per applicable taxation rule needs to be provided.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Add, Modify, Delete, Cancel, Amend, Authorize, Enquiry. For more information on the procedures of every mode, refer to **Standard Maintenance Procedures**.

#### To add tax waiver details

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TDS03 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TDS Tax Waiver.
- 2. You will be navigated to the TDS Tax Waiver screen.

|--|

TDE02 V

TDS Tax	Waiver					Add	Modify Delete	Cancel An	nend Authorize	Enquiry	Copy Ok C	lose Clear
	* Search Criter	ria Customer Short Name	•				* Search Strin	g Auto	0			
	* Customer Nan	AUTO PERSON					* Customer I	D 990100617				
	Bran	ch 🔍				Tax Waiv	ed at Customer Leve	al 📃				
	* Financial Year (Sta	rt) 2018					* Form Submitte	d				
Income	Tax No./Aadhaar Referen	ce										
*Please che	ck if the income is within t	he threshold limit for the selecte	ed criteria before m	aintaining waiver.								
Module	Account No.	Account Title	Deposit No.	Waiver From	Waiver To	Tax Waived	Unique Identific	ation Number	Waiver	Reason	Maker ID	Checker
No items t	o display.											
•												•
Page 1 (	) of 0 items) K <	1 > >										

Field Name	Description
Search Criteria	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the criteria to search for the customer from the drop-down list. The options are:



	Customer Short Name: Short name of the customer.
	<ul> <li>Customer Ic: Customer Identification criteria (IC) arrived at by the bank during customer addition.</li> </ul>
	• <b>Customer Id</b> : Unique identification given by the bank.
Search String	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 20] Type the search string to search for a customer, corresponding to the search criteria selected in the <b>Search Criteria</b> field. If the search criterion is specified as customers' short name or IC then any of the letter(s) of the letter of the short name or IC can be entered. The system displays the Search List of all those customers having those letters in their respective criteria. Choose the appropriate customer from the existing customer list. For example, The customer's short name is George Abraham. One can search the above customer by entering 'Geo' in the search string field.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the full name of the customer.
Customer ID	[Display] This field displays the customer identification number.
Branch	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the branch code from the drop-down list.
Tax Waived at Customer Level	[Optional, Check Box] Select the <b>Tax Waived at Customer Level</b> check box to waive the tax on all the existing deposits, and the deposit(s) opened in future for the respective period. The waiver will be applicable for all the accounts under the customer ID.
Financial Year (Start)	[Mandatory, Numeric, Four] Type the financial year for which the tax is to be waived.
Form Submitted	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the type of form submitted from the drop-down list. The options are:
	Form 15G for Female
	Form 15G for Male
	Form 15H
	• Form 15HH
	Others
Income Tax No. / Aadhaar Reference	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 20] This field displays the identification number of the customer provided by the Income Tax Department for the purpose of tracking tax liabilities, as captured in CIM09 - Customer Information Master Maintenance. For customers who have PAN maintained in the system, it will be fetched and displayed in this field. For customers who have not furnished PAN, but have Aadhaar maintained in the system, if the parameter to accept Aadhaar instead of PAN has been enabled in ba_regulatory_params Aadhaar number will be fetched and displayed in this field. If neither PAN nor Aadhaar has been maintained for the customer,



# waiver will not be allowed.

Column Name	Description
Module	[Display] This column displays the module to which the account number belong to.
Account No.	[Display] This column displays the TD/RD account number of the customer.
Account Title	[Display] This column displays the account title.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit number.
Waiver From	[Display] This column displays the period for which the waiver is applicable. The field is maintained in the <b>Bank Master Maintenance</b> option.
Waiver To	[Display] This column displays the period up to which the waiver will be applicable. The field is maintained in the <b>Bank Master Maintenance</b> option.
Tax Waived	[Optional, Check Box] Select the check box corresponding to the deposit for which tax is to be waived.
Unique Identification Number	[Display] A Unique Identification Number (UIN) will be generated on authorization and displayed.
Waiver Reason	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the waiver reason. By default the system displays the reason based on the type of form submitted. You can change the reason, if required.
Maker ID	[Display] This field displays the ID of the User who has done the last maintenance.
Checker ID	[Display] This field displays the ID of the Supervisor who has authorized the last maintenance.
Last MNT Date	[Display] This field displays the date of the last maintenance.

# Exercise

For a customer of your bank, select a suitable ID that has existing deposits under it. For the same select the flag waiver option and note that tax will be exempt for all accounts under that ID. Approve the transaction. All the deposits under that ID will be exempt from tax for the period defined by you.



- 3. Click Add.
- 4. Select the search criteria from the list.
- 5. Type the search string and press the **Tab or Enter** key and select the customer from the Search List. The selected customer's detail appears in the relevant fields.
- 6. Select the branch code from the list.
- 7. Enter the financial year and press the **Tab or Enter** key.
- 8. Select the form submitted from the list. They system displays the tax waiver details.
- 9. Click OK.
- 10. The system displays the message "Record Added Authorization Pending". Click **OK**.
- 11. The tax waiver details are added once the record is authorised.
- 12. A Unique Identification Number (UIN) will be generated on authorization and displayed.



# 7.2 TDS10 - TDS Remittance

Using this option you can mark the tax deducted against interest paid on current and savings account, RD or term deposit accounts, as remitted to government.

The date of remittance and challan number for remittance is marked against the total tax deducted within the mentioned dates. You can define TDS tax codes with corresponding rates and the exemption limit above which the tax rate is applicable using the **Tax Codes Maintenance** (Task Code: BAM30) option.

# **Definition Prerequisites**

- Bank Master Maintenance
- TDS transactions in the account

#### Modes Available

Add, Enquiry. For more information on the procedures of every mode, refer to **Standard Maintenance Procedures**.

# To add TDS remittance details

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task Code TDS10 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TDS Remittance.
- 2. You will be navigated to **TDS Remittance** screen.

# TDS Remittance

TDS10 ×		
TDS Remittance		Add Modify Delete Cancel Amend Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close Clear
Add Enquire		
Challan Number		
All Branches		Branch Name
Тах Туре	<b>•</b>	Tax Code
Date of Remittance	01/01/1800	
Details of Remittance		]
Base Tax		Base Tax
Additional Tax 1		Additional Tax 1
Additional Tax 2		Additional Tax 2
Remitted Tax in Lcy for Deposits		Remitted Tax in Lcy for CASA
Cheque / DD Number		

- 3. Click Add.
- Enter the branch name and then select from the Search List. OR Select the All Branches check box.
- Select the tax code from the Search List. OR Select the tax type from the drop-down list.



- 6. Enter the period of tax deduction.
- 7. Enter the challan details.

# Add

The user can enter details of tax type, challan number and date of remittance for a branch in the **Add** tab.

DS Remittance		Add Modify Delete Cancel Amer	nd Authorize Enquiry	Copy Ok	Close Clea
Add Enquire					
All Branches		* Branch Name	999 Q NE	W DELHI	0
Remit by Tax Code	Q	Remit by Tax Type	Tax 1-Base Tax	•	
Period of Tax Deduction					
From Date	01/06/2017	To Date	01/06/2018		
Int and Tax Deduction for Deposits		Int and Tax Deduction for CASA			
Number of Accounts		Number of Accounts			
Base Tax		Base Tax			
Additional Tax 1		Additional Tax 1			
Additional Tax 2		Additional Tax 2			
Total TDS in Lcy		Total TDS in Lcy			
Number of Customers		Number of Customers			
Challan Details					
* Challan Number		Cheque / DD Number			
* Date of Remittance	01/01/1800	Details of Remittance			

Field Name	Description
All Branches	[Optional, Check Box] Select the check box if remittance is to be marked for all the branches.
Branch Name	[Conditional, Numeric, Four, Search List] Type the branch code or select it from the Search List. The branch name is displayed in the adjacent field. This field is disabled if the <b>All Branches</b> check box is selected.
It is mandatory to select a	option either from Remit By Tax Code or Remit By Tax Type field.
Remit By Tax Code	[Optional, Search List] Select the tax code on the basis of which the remittance is to be marked, from the Search List.
Remit By Tax Type	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the type of tax based on which the remittance is to be marked from the drop-down list. The options are:
	• Tax 1 - Base Tax
	Tax 1 - Additional Tax 1
	Tax 1 - Additional Tax 2
	• Tax 2 - Base Tax
	Tax 2 - Additional Tax 1



- Tax 2 Additional Tax 2
- All

# Period of Tax Deduction

These fields display the period for which the TDS is being remitted.

From Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the date, from which tax deduction will take place, from the date editor.	
To Date	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Select the date, till which tax deduction will take place, from the Date editor.	
Int. and Tax Deduction for Deposits		
Number of Accounts	[Display] This field displays the number of TD accounts for which the total interest has to be paid.	
Base Tax	[Display] This field displays the base tax. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to base tax under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).	
Additional Tax 1	[Display] This field displays the additional tax 1. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to additional tax 1 under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).	
Additional Tax 2	[Display] This field displays the additional tax 2. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to additional tax 2 under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).	
Total TDS in Lcy	[Display] This field displays the total tax on the interest accrued that has to be remitted to the government authority.	
Number of Customers	[Display] This field displays the number of customers for whom TDS has to be remitted.	
Int. and Tax Deduction for CASA		
Number of Accounts	[Display] This field displays the number of CASA accounts for which the total interest has to be paid.	
Base Tax	[Display] This field displays the base tax. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to base tax under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).	
Additional Tax 1	[Display] This field displays the additional tax 1. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to additional tax 1 under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).	



Additional Tax 2	[Display] This field displays the additional tax 2. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to additional tax 2 under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).
Total TDS in Lcy	[Display] This field displays the total tax on the interest accrued that has to be remitted to the government authority.
Number of Customers	[Display] This field displays the number of customers for whom TDS has to be remitted.
Challan Details	
Challan Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 10] Type the challan number.
Cheque /DD Number	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 20] Type the cheque or DD number issued while remitting TDS.
Date of Remittance	[Mandatory, Search List, dd/mm/yyyy] Type the date on which the TDS on interest is remitted or select it from the Search List. This is the date on which the bank will remit funds from the TDS GL and transfer it to the concerned government authority. This field updates the FCCORE - Bank Parameters Maintenance (Task Code: STDFCBNK) option in the Corporate module
Details of Remittance	[Optional, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the remittance details.

# **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the details of accounts for which tax was paid to the government and the period for which the tax was deducted (01/06/2017-01/07/2018). The total number TD and CASA accounts are displayed separately along with the total amount deducted.

# Exercise

For a branch in your bank, once the TDS payments are made to the tax authorities. Perform a TDS remittance transaction. Details such as Invoice Number, branch code will have to be input. The tax amount etc will be picked from the database by the system.

- 8. Click **OK**.
- 9. The system displays the message "Record Added". Click OK.

# To view the TDS remittance details

- 1. Click Enquire.
- 2. The system enables the **Enquire** tab.
- 3. Enter the challan number.
- 4. Select the branch code from the Search List. OR

Select the All Branches check box.
- Select the tax type from the list.
   OR
   Select the tax code from the Search List.
- 6. Enter the date of remittance and press the **Tab or Enter** key.
- 7. The system displays the TDS remittance details.

## Enquire

This tab displays the details of tax type, challan number and the date of remittance for a branch.

Add       Enquire         Challan Number       Branches         All Branches       Branch Name         Tax Type       Tax Code         Date of Remittance       01/01/1800         Details of Remittance       Base Tax         Base Tax       Base Tax         Additional Tax 1       Additional Tax 1         Additional Tax 2       Additional Tax 2         Remitted Tax in Lcy for Deposits       Remitted Tax in Lcy for CASA	DS Re	emittance		Add Modify Delete Cancel Amer	nd Authorize Enquiry Copy Ok Close
Challan Number   Ail Branches   Tax Type   Tax Type   Obtate of Remittance   Obtate of Remittance   Details of Remittance   Base Tax   Additional Tax 1   Additional Tax 2   Additional Tax 2   Additional Tax 2   Cheque / DD Number	Add	Enquire			
All Branches Branch Name 999 NEW DELHI     Tax Type Tax Code 5 0   Date of Remittance   Dotals of Remittance 01/01/1800 1   Details of Remittance   Base Tax Base Tax Base Tax   Additional Tax 1 Additional Tax 1   Additional Tax 2 Additional Tax 2   Remitted Tax in Lcy for Deposits Remitted Tax in Lcy for CASA		Challan Number			
Tax Code   Date of Remittance   Details of Remittance   Base Tax   Base Tax   Base Tax   Additional Tax 1   Additional Tax 2   Additional Tax 2   Remitted Tax in Lcy for Deposits   Cheque / DD Number		All Branches		Branch Name	999 Q NEW DELHI
Date of Remittance   Details of Remittance   Base Tax   Base Tax   Additional Tax 1   Additional Tax 1   Additional Tax 2   Remitted Tax in Lcy for Deposits   Cheque / DD Number		Тах Туре	T	Tax Code	5 0
Details of Remittance       Base Tax         Base Tax       Base Tax         Additional Tax 1       Additional Tax 1         Additional Tax 2       Additional Tax 2         Remitted Tax in Lcy for Deposits       Remitted Tax in Lcy for CASA         Cheque / DD Number       Image: Cheque / DD Number		Date of Remittance	01/01/1800		
Base Tax     Image: Constraint of the co		Details of Remittance		]	
Additional Tax 1       Additional Tax 1         Additional Tax 2       Additional Tax 2         Remitted Tax in Lcy for Deposits       Remitted Tax in Lcy for CASA         Cheque / DD Number       Image: Cheque / Chequ		Base Tax		Base Tax	
Additional Tax 2 Additional Tax 2 Remitted Tax in Lcy for CASA Cheque / DD Number		Additional Tax 1		Additional Tax 1	
Remitted Tax in Lcy for CASA		Additional Tax 2		Additional Tax 2	
Cheque / DD Number		Remitted Tax in Lcy for Deposits		Remitted Tax in Lcy for CASA	
		Cheque / DD Number			

Field Name	Description
Challan Number	[Mandatory, Numeric, 10] Type the challan number.
All Branches	[Optional, Check Box] Select this checkbox to view the TDS remittance details for all the branches.
Branch Name	[Conditional, Numeric, Four, Search List] Select the branch code from the Search List. This field is disabled if the <b>All Branches</b> check box is selected.
It is mandatory to select	a option either from <b>Remit By Tax Code</b> or <b>Remit By Tax Type</b> field.
Тах Туре	[Optional, Drop-Down] Select the type of tax based on which the remittance is to be marked from the drop-down list. The options are:
	• Tax 1 - Base Tax
	Tax 1 - Additional Tax1
	Tax 1 - Additional Tax2
	• Tax 2 - Base Tax



	Tax 2 - Additional Tax1
	Tax 2 - Additional Tax2
	• All
Tax Code	[Optional, Search List] Select the tax code from the Search List.
Date of Remittance	[Mandatory, Date editor, dd/mm/yyyy] Type the date on which the TDS on interest is remitted or select it from the Date editor. This is date on which the bank will remit funds from the TDS GL and transfer it to the concerned government authority. This field updates the <b>Bank Master Maintenance</b> (Task Code: BAM08) option.
Details of Remittance	[Display] This field displays the details of the remittance.
Base Tax	[Display] This field displays the base tax. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to base tax under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).
Additional Tax 1	[Display] This field displays the additional tax 1. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to Additional Tax 1 under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).
Additional Tax 2	[Display] This field displays the additional tax 2. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to additional tax 2 under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).
Remitted Tax in Lcy for Deposits	[Display] This field displays the remitted tax amount in the local currency for TD/RD accounts.
Base Tax	[Display] This field displays the base tax. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to base tax under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).
Additional Tax 1	[Display] This field displays the additional tax 1. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to Additional Tax 1 under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).
Additional Tax 2	[Display] This field displays the additional tax 2. It is the amount of tax which is remitted with respect to Additional Tax 2 under a specific tax structure (Tax 1 or Tax 2).
Remitted Tax in Lcy for CASA	[Display] This field displays the remitted tax amount in the local currency for time deposit accounts.
Cheque / DD	[Display]

#### Number

This field displays the cheque or DD number.

#### **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the details like invoice number and branch of TDS deduction for Tax1. The date of remittance of the tax is defined on the basis of which the accounts will get updated as tax paid to the government.

8. Click Close.



# 7.3 TDS11 - TDS Enquiry

Using this option you can inquire a detailed break-up of the tax deducted from a customer. The details of all such deductions across all accounts can be traced in various sections in this screen.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening
- TDM04 TD Bank Parameters Maintenance
- TDS transactions in the account

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To perform TDS Enquiry

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TDS11 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TDS Enquiry.
- 2. You will be navigated to **TDS Enquiry** screen.

#### **TDS Enquiry**

Search Sting Auto     Search Sting Auto     Customer Name     Customer Short Name     Customer Short Name     Customer Short Name     Customer Name	•• • • • • •									
Customer Name Customer ND Section Code Custom	* Search Criteria	Customer Short Name	•			* Search String	Auto	<u> </u>		
Branch Code 99975 Caccount No. 703000000019007 Account Wise Details Deposit Wise Details Interest & Tax Details Tax Computation Details Tax Recovery Details Bank / Branch Level Int Tax Borrowed Details Refund Details Inch Code Branch Name Section Code Tax Code PAN/Aadhaar Flag Cumulative Gross Interest Interest Waived Tax Due Unrecovered Tax Tax Remitted Tax data to display.	* Financial Year (Start)	2018 Q				Customer ID	990100201			
ch Wise Details Account Wise Details Deposit Wise Details Interest & Tax Details Tax Computation Details Tax Recovery Details Bank / Branch Level Int Tax Borrowed Details Refund Details nch Code Branch Name Section Code Tax Code PAN/Aadhaar Flag Cumulative Gross Interest Interest Waived Tax Due Unrecovered Tax Tax Remitted Tax data to display.	Branch Code	99975				Account No.	703000000019007			
anch Code Branch Name Section Code Tax Code PAN/Aadhaar Flag Cumulative Gross Interest Interest Waived Tax Due Unrecovered Tax Tax Remitted Tax dafa to display.	ach Wise Details Account Wi	se Details Deposit	Wise Details	Interest & Tax Details	Tax Computation Details Tax	Recovery Details	Bank / Branch Leve	el Int Tax Borrow	ved Details Refun	d Details
anan due pranch name section due raxioue panoaunan nay cumulane diossimerest interest wared raxible omedoreed raxina raxiemitted razi data to display.	mah Cada - Branah Nama	Section Code	Tax Code	DAN/Andhanr Flag	Cumulativa Cross Interact	Interact Make	d Tax Duo	Uprocovered Tax	Tax Domitted	Tax
data to display.	anch coue Branch Name	Section Code	Tax Coue	PAN/Aduliaal Flay	Cumulative Gross interest	Interest warve	u lax Due	Offictovered Tax	lax Remitted	10.5
	data to display.									
	data to display.									
je 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1 > x	data to display. ge 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1	> х		_	_					
e 1 (o or u rems) K < (1) > X	data to display. ge 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1	] >		_	_		_	_		
le 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1 > X	data to display. je 1 (0 of 0 items) K <	к <								
le 1 (d'of u tems) K < 1 > X	data to display.	K <	_	_	_	_	_	_		
e 1 (0 or 0 stems) K < 1 > x	data to display. e 1 (0 of 0 items) K <	K <		_	_	_	_	_		
■ 1 (0 of 0 /tems) K < 1 > x	data to display. e 1 (0 of 0 items) K <	K <		_		_	_	_		
<b>i</b> 1 (0 of 0 items)   K < 1 > →	data to display.	>		_				-		
■ 1 (0 of 0 /tems) K < 1 > x	data to display. e 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1	K <	_			_	_	_		
1 (() of 0 (tems)   K < [1] > >	tata to display. a 1 (0 of 0 items) K < [1	× <				_	_			
1 (() of 0 (dems)   K < [1] > 3	data to display.	× ×		_		_	_			
<b>1</b> ( ∪ of 0 /tems)   K < [1] > 3	data to display. e 1 (0 of 0 ltems)   K < [1	] > X								
■ 1 (0 of 0 items)   K < [1] > 3	data to display.	× ×								
e 1 (0 010 items)   K < 1 > 3	data to display. e 1 (0 of 0 items) K < [1	K <								
e 1 (0 or 0 tems) K (1) > X	data to display.	× <								
e 1 (0 of 0 tems) K (1) > X	data to display.	K <								
e 1 (0 010 items) K ( 1 ) X	data to display.	×								

Field Name	Description
Search Criteria	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the search criteria to search for the customer from the drop-down list. The options are:
	<ul> <li>Customer Short Name: Short name of the customer.</li> <li>Customer IC: Customer Identification criteria (IC) arrived at by the bank during customer addition.</li> <li>Customer ID: Unique identification given by the bank</li> </ul>



Search String	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 20, Search List] Type a search string according to the selected search criteria. If the search criterion is specified as customer's short name or IC then the beginning letter of the short name or IC can be entered. The Search List will pop up. Choose the beneficiary from the existing customer list. For example, The customer's name is John S Winter. In this case you can specify the short name as Joh.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD account.
Customer ID	[Display] This field displays the unique customer number generated by <b>Oracle</b> <b>FLEXCUBE</b> as a combination of Customer IC and customer type.
Financial Year (start)	[Mandatory, Search List] Select the financial year for which you want to make the TDS Enquiry from the date editor.
Branch Code	[Optional, Search List] Select the branch code from the Search List.
Account No.	[Optional, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number of the customer.

The above screen displays the details for Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) for the customer ID 990100561.

This is the first step which displays information under the customer ID.

#### Exercise

Chose an account where the tax has been deducted. Use this screen to view the TDS details of the account.

- 3. Select the search criteria from the list.
- 4. Enter the search string and press the **Tab or Enter** key and select the customer from the Search List. The selected customer's detail appears in the relevant fields.
- 5. Select the financial year and branch code from the Search List.

#### **TDS Enquiry**

<u>TD\$11</u> ×														
TDS E	inquiry												Enquire	Close Clear
	* C * Finan	Search Criteria Customer Name cial Year (Start)	Customer St	ort Name	v			]	* Searce * Cust	ch String [ tomer ID [	Auto 990100561	Q		
		Branch Code	99975						Acc	ount No.	703000000019007			
Branc	h Wise Details	Account Wi	se Details	Deposit Wi	se Details	Interest & Tax Deta	ils Tax Com	putation Details	Tax Recovery	Details	Bank / Branch Leve	I Int Tax B	orrowed Details R	efund Details
Bran	ch Code	Branch Name	Section	n Code	Tax Code	PAN/Aadhaar	Flag Cum	ulative Gross Inte	erest Intere	est Waived	Tax Due	Unrecovered	Tax Tax Remitte	d Tax Refu
No d	ata to display.													
Page	1 (0 of 0 items	s) K < 1	к <											•

6. Click Enquire. The system displays the Branch Wise Details tab.

# **Branch Wise Details**

This tab displays the branch wise details of the account.

<u>1</u> ×									
S Enquiry								Enquire C	lose Cle
* Search Criteria * Customer Name	Customer Short Name	¥			* Search String * Customer ID	Auto 990100561			
* Financial Year (Start) Branch Code	2018 Q 99975 Q				Account No.	703000000019007	]		
ranch Wise Details Account Wi	se Details Deposit W	vise Details In	nterest & Tax Details	Tax Computation Details	Tax Recovery Details	Bank / Branch Leve	el Int Tax Borrow	ed Details Refun	d Details
Branch Code Branch Name	Section Code	Tax Code	PAN/Aadhaar Flag	Cumulative Gross Intere	st Interest Waive	d Tax Due	Unrecovered Tax	Tax Remitted	Tax Re
No data to display.									
rage 1 (0 of 0 items) K < 1	K <								

Column Name	Description
Branch Code	[Display] This field displays the branch code .
Branch Name	[Display] This column displays name of the branch as per the code.
Section Code	[Display] This field displays the section code to which the tax belong to.
Tax Code	[Display]



	This column displays tax code applied.
PAN / Aadhaar Flag	[Display] For customers who have maintained PAN in the system, this flag will be checked. For customers who have not furnished PAN, but have Aadhaar maintained in the system, if the parameter to accept Aadhaar instead of PAN has been enabled in ba_regulatory_params, the flag will be displayed as checked.
Cumulative Gross Interest	[Display] This field displays the Cumulative Gross Interest value.
Interest Waived	[Display] This field displays the Interest amount waived.
Tax Due	[Display] This field displays the tax amount due.
Unrecovered Tax	[Display] This column displays the Tax deducted at source amount due on the interest earnings, but not deducted during the financial year.
Tax Remitted	[Display] This field displays the tax remitted.
Tax Refunded	[Display] This field displays the tax refunded.
Excess Tax	[Display] This field displays the excess tax paid.

## AccountWise Details

This tab displays the details of the tax deducted, remitted, unrecovered, interest waived, etc. in the account.

In the 'Branch wise details' screen, click **Branch code** to view account wise details.

anch Wise	* Search Criteria Cu     * Customer Name     * Financial Year (Start)     Branch Code 999	2018 Q 2018 Q 975 Q Details Deposit 1	Vise Details Inter	rest & Tax Details	Tax Computation Det	Search String Au     Customer ID 99     Account No. 70 ails Tax Recovery Details	to 0100561 30000000019007 Bank / Branch Level Ir	ıt Tax Bo	rrowed Details Refu	nd Details
lodule	Account No.	Tax Waived*	Section Code	Tax Code	PAN/Aadhaar Flag	Cumulative Gross Interest	Interest Waived	Tax Due	Unrecovered Tax	Tax Re
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	358.00	0.00	71.60	0.00	71.60
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	1,014.00	0.00	202.80	0.00	202.80
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	10,644.00	0.00	2,128.80	0.00	2,128.0
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	505.00	0.00	101.00	0.00	67.20
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	1,014.00	0.00	202.80	0.00	202.80
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	1,014.00	0.00	202.80	0.00	202.80
D	703000000019007	N	194A	201	N	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
				·	·					+



### **Field Description**

Column Name	Description
Module	[Display]
	This field displays the module
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the account numbers of all the TD accounts of the customer, maintained in a particular branch.
Tax Waived	[Display] This column displays whether the tax has been waived or not.
Section Code	[Display] This field displays the section code to which the tax belong to.
Tax Code	[Display] This column displays tax code applied.
PAN / Aadhaar Flag	[Display] For customers who have maintained PAN in the system, this flag will be checked. For customers who have not furnished PAN, but have Aadhaar maintained in the system, if the parameter to accept Aadhaar instead of PAN has been enabled in ba_regulatory_params, the flag will be displayed as checked.
Cumulative Gross Interest	[Display] This field displays the Cumulative Gross Interest value.
Interest Waived	[Display] This field displays the Interest amount waived.
Tax Due	[Display] This field displays the tax amount due.
Unrecovered Tax	[Display] This column displays the Tax deducted at source amount due on the interest earnings, but not deducted during the financial year.
Tax Remitted	[Display] This field displays the tax remitted.
Tax Refunded	[Display] This field displays the tax refunded.
Excess Tax	[Display] This field displays the excess tax paid.

#### **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the details for Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) for the customer ID 990100561 for Mr. Auto Person.

This is the third step which displays information under the TD account number 703000000019007.

7. Double-click the appropriate column link in the **AccountWise Details** tab, to view the **DepositWise details** tab.



# **Deposit Wise Details**

This tab displays the details of the tax deducted, remitted, unrecovered, interest waived, etc. in the deposit.

* Ser * Cust * Financial B anch Wise Details	tomer Name I Year (Start) 99975	r Short Name	¥						
	Account Wise Details	Deposit Wise De	etails Interest	t & Tax Details Tax Co	* Sear Cus Acc mputation Details Tax Recove	ch String Auto tomer ID 990100561 ount No. 70300000000 ry Details Bank / Br	019007 anch Level Int.	Tax Borrowed Det	tails Refund Detailt
Deposit No. Tax	Account No. 703000	Section Code	Tax Code	PAN/Aadhaar Flag	Cumulative Gross Interest	Interest Waived	Tax Due	Unrecovered Tax	Recovered Tax
I N		194A	201	N	358.00	0.00	71.60	0.00	71.60
2 N		194A	201	N	1,014.00	0.00	202.80	0.00	202.80
3 N		194A	201	N	10,644.00	0.00	2,128.80	0.00	2,128.80
1 N		194A	201	N	505.00	0.00	101.00	0.00	101.00
1289 N		194A	201	N	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
5 N		194A	201	N	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
30 N		194A	201	N	10,644.00	0.00	2,128.80	0.00	2,128.80
141 N		194A	201	N	4.00	0.00	0.80	0.00	0.80
3 N		194A	201	N	1,014.00	0.00	202.80	0.00	202.80
216 N		194A	201	N	10,644.00	0.00	2,128.80	0.00	2,128.80

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the TD account number under which the deposit(s) are initiated and maintained.
Column Name	Description
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the all the deposit numbers maintained under the TD account
Tax Waived (Y/N)	[Display] This column displays whether the tax has been waived or not.
Section Code	[Display] This field displays the section code to which the tax belong to.
Tax Code	[Display] This column displays tax code applied.
PAN / Aadhaar Flag	[Display] For customers who have maintained PAN in the system, this flag will be checked. For customers who have not furnished PAN, but have Aadhaar maintained in the system, if the parameter to accept Aadhaar instead of PAN has been enabled in ba_regulatory_params, the flag will be displayed as checked.
Cumulative Gross	[Display]



Interest	This field displays the Cumulative Gross Interest value.
Interest Waived	[Display] This field displays the Interest amount waived.
Tax Due	[Display] This field displays the tax amount due.
Unrecovered Tax	[Display] This column displays the Tax deducted at source amount due on the interest earnings, but not deducted during the financial year.
Recovered Tax	[Display] This field displays the recovered tax.
Tax Remitted	[Display] This field displays the tax remitted.
Tax Refunded	[Display] This field displays the tax refunded.
Excess Tax	[Display] This field displays the excess tax amount.
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the original deposit number.
Renewal No.	[Display] This field displays the renewal number.

The above tab screen displays the details for Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) for the customer ID 990100561 for Mr. Auto Person.

This is the fourth step which displays information for all the deposits under the TD account no. 7030000000019007.

8. Double-click the appropriate column link in the **DepositWise Details** tab, to enable the **Txn** details, **Tax Details View** and **Projected Income View** tabs.

#### **Interest & Tax Details**

The **Txn Details** tab displays the details of the TDS amount, tax code and the taxable interest amount earned on the deposit.



TDS11 >	ĸ										
TDS E	Enquiry									Enquire	Close Clear
	* S • Cu	search Criteria Cu	ustomer Short Name	٣				* Search String * Customer ID	Auto Q 990100561		
	* Financi	al Year (Start) Branch Code 99	2018 0					Account No.	703000000019007		
Bran	ch Wise Details	Account Wise D	Details Deposit Wi	se Details	Interest & Tax Details	Tax Compute	ation Details	Tax Recovery Details	Bank / Branch Level Int. Details	Tax Borrowed Details	Refund Dr 📏
		Account No. 7	03000000019007					Deposit No.	1		
		* Currency IN	NR					* Tax Currency	INR		
		* Section 1	194A					* PAN/Aadhaar	N		
		* Tax Code 2	201					* Waiver	N		
	Posting Date	Event I	Description	Tran	saction Amount	Тах					
No	data to display.										
Page	e 1 (0 of 0 items)	K < 1	к								

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the TD account number under which the deposit(s) are initiated and maintained.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the TDS transaction is being viewed.
Currency	[Display] This field displays the TD account currency.
Tax Currency	[Display] This field displays the tax currency.
Section	[Display] This field displays the section of the tax act.
PAN/Aadhaar	[Display] This field displays the PAN number.
Tax Code	[Display] This column displays the tax code applicable to the TD account.
Waiver	[Display] This field displays if the tax is waived or not
Column Name	Description
Posting Date	[Display] This column displays the process date. The process date signifies the date from which the TD is effective.

Event Description	[Display] This column displays the event description.
Transaction Amount	[Display] This column displays the taxable interest amount earned on the deposit.
Тах	[Display] This column displays the amount of tax deducted at source for the TD account.

The above tab screen displays the details for Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) for the customer ID 990100561 for Mr. Auto Person.

This is the fifth step which displays information under each deposit.

#### Exercise

For one of your customers, select the customer ID and complete an Enquiry for the TDS that will be due for deduction under the customer ID.

#### **Tax Computation Details View**

This tab displays the tax computation details.

TDS11 ×			
TDS Enquiry			Enquire Close Clear
* Search Criteria	Customer ID v	* Search String	990100561
* Customer Name	AUTO PERSON 270	* Customer ID	990100561
* Financial Year (Start)	2018 Q		
Branch Code	99975 O NAGPLIR	Account No.	703000000018814
518101 0000			
Branch Wise Details Account Wise D	Details Deposit Wise Details Interest & Tax Details	Tax Computation Details Tax Recovery Details Bank / Bra	anch Level Int. Details Tax Borrowed Details Refund Details
Account No.	703000000018814	Deposit No.	1
Currency	INR	Tax Currency	INR
Section	194A	PAN/Aadhaar	N
Tax Code	201	Waiver	N
Posting Date	01/01/1800	Transaction Amount	0.00
Tax Base (A)	0.00	Waiver Limit	0.00
	Cumulative Gross Interest		
Tax Code Exemption Limit	0.00	Branch Level Interest	0.00
Bank Level Interest	0.00		
Tax Rate (%)(B)	0.00	Additional Tax 1 Tax Rate (%) (F)	0.00
Additional Tax 2 Tax Rate (%) (H)	0.00	Tax Computed New (Base) (C=AxB%)	0.00
Tax Computed Old (Base)(D)	0.00	Additional Tax 2 Calculation Method	
			1. (Base Method : (I = ExH%))
			2. (Additional Tax 1 Method : (I=GXH%)) 3. (Base + Additional Tax 1 Method : (I=
			(E+G)xH%))
Base Tax for Transaction (E = C-D)	0.00		
Additional Tax 1 for Transaction (G=ExF%)	0.00	Additional Tax-2 for Transaction (I)	0.00
Base Tax Refund (J)	0.00	Additional Tax 1 Refund (K)	0.00
Additional Tax 2 Refund (L)	0.00	Base Tax Borrowed from Self (M)	0.00
Additional Tax 1 Borrowed Self (N)	0.00	Additional Tax 2 Borrowed Self (O)	0.00
Base Tax Borrowed Others (P)	0.00	Additional Tax 2 Borrowed Others (R)	0.00
Additional Tax 1 Borrowed Others(Q)	0.00	Base Tax Due (E+J-M-P)	0.00
Additional Tax 1 Due (G+K-N-Q)	0.00	Additional Tax 2 Due (I+L-O-R)	0.00
Roce Toy Dire (E+1)	0.00	Additional Tay 1 Due (G+K)	0.00

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the selected Deposit account number.
Deposit No	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the Tax computation details is being viewed.



Currency	[Display] This column displays the account currency.
Tax Currency	[Display] This field displays the tax currency.
Section	[Display] This field displays the section to which the tax record belongs to.
PAN/Aadhaar	[Display] This field displays 'Y" if it pertains to PAN period and "N" if it pertains to No PAN period.
Tax Code	[Display] This field displays the applicable tax code.
Waiver	[Display] This field displays if the tax is waived off for this account or not.
Posting Date	[Display] This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.
Transaction Amount	[Display] This field displays the interest amount earned on the deposit.
Tax Base (A):Cumulative Gross Interest	[Display] This field displays the total gross interest computed on the Account. This is the base amount for tax computation
Waiver Limit	[Display] This field displays the exemption limit, In case the account or customer has a waiver.
Tax Code Exemption Limit	[Display] This field displays the exemption limit for the applicable Tax Code when tax computation was done.
Branch Level Interest	[Display] This field displays the total Interest paid out for the taxable customer at the branch level
Bank Level Interest	[Display] This field displays the total Interest paid out for the taxable customer at the bank level.
Column Name	Description
Tax Rate(%) B	[Display] This field displays the applicable tax rate when computation was done
Additional Tax 1 Tax Rate(%)(F)	[Display] This field displays the rate of Additional Tax 1



	Computed New = Cumulative Gross Interest * Tax Rate)
Tax Computed Old (Base)(D)	[Display] This field displays the previous tax computed on the account.
Additional Tax 2 Calculation Method	<ul> <li>[Display]</li> <li>This field displays the method with which the TDS is calculated.</li> <li>Following are there methods available for calculation:.</li> <li>1. Base Method : (Additional Tax 2 for Transaction= Base Tax for Transaction* Additional Tax 2 Tax Rate(%))</li> <li>2. Additional Tax 1 Method: (Additional Tax 2 for Transaction= Additional Tax 1 for Transaction* Additional Tax 2 Tax Rate(%))</li> <li>3. Base + Additional Tax 1 Method: (Additional Tax 2 for Transaction=( Base Tax for Transaction + Additional Tax 1 for Transaction)* Additional Tax 2 Tax Rate(%))</li> </ul>
Base Tax for Transaction(E=C-D)	[Display] This field displays the base tax for the TDS transaction.(Base Tax for Transaction = Tax Computed New (Base)- Tax Computed Old(Base) (D))
Additional Tax1 for Transaction (G=E*F%)	[Display] This field displays the Additional Tax 1 calculated on the Base Tax Amount. (Additional Tax1 for Transaction =Base Tax for Transaction* Additional Tax 1 Tax Rate(%))
Additional Tax 2 for Transaction(I)	[Display] This field displays the Additional Tax 1 calculated on the Base Tax Amount. The calculation of it depends upon the method chosen in 'Additional Tax 2 Calculation Method' field
Base Tax Refund(J)	[Display] This column displays the base tax refund amount.
Additional Tax 1 Refund (K)	[Display] This column displays the additional tax 1 refund amount.
Additional Tax 2 Refund (L)	[Display] This column displays the additional tax 2 refund amount.
Base Tax Borrowed From Self (M)	[Display] This column displays the base tax borrowed from self value.
Additional Tax 1 Borrowed Self (N)	[Display] This column displays the additional tax 1 borrowed self value.
Additional Tax 2 Borrowed Self (O)	[Display] This column displays the additional tax 2 borrowed self value.
Base Tax Borrowed Others (P)	[Display] This field displays the base tax borrowed others value. Click this link to enable the Tax Borrowed Details tab
Additional Tax 1 Borrowed Others (Q)	[Display] This field displays the base tax 1 borrowed others value. Click this link to enable the Tax Borrowed Details tab.
Additional Tax 2	[Display]



Borrowed Others (R)	This field displays the base tax 2 borrowed others value. Click this link to enable the Tax Borrowed Details tab.
Base Tax Due (E+J-	[Display]
M- P)	This column displays the base tax due amount.
Additional Tax 1	[Display]
Due(G+K- N-Q)	This field displays the additional tax 1 due amount.
Additional Tax 2	[Display]
Due (I+L-O-R)	This field displays the additional tax 2 due amount.

## **Bank/Branch Level Interest Details**

This tab is used to view the branch level interest details.

TDS11 >	<								
TDS E	Enquiry								Enquire Close Clear
		Search Criteria	Customer	Short Name 🔻			* Search String	Auto	
	* c	ustomer Name					* Customer ID	990100561	
	* Finan	cial Year (Start)		2018 🔍					
		Branch Code	99975	Q			Account No.	703000000019007	
< 10	ch Wise Details	Account Wis	e Details	Deposit Wise Details	Interest & Tax Details	Tax Computation Details	Tax Recovery Details	Bank / Branch Level Int. Details	Tax Borrowed Details Refund Details
		Section	194A				Branch Code	99975	
Va	lue Date	PAN	Tax Code	Branch Code	Branch Name	Account No.	Deposit No. Ci	urrency Event Description	on Transaction Amount
No o	data to display.								
Page	e 1 (0 of 0 items	s) K < 1	× ×						

Field Name	Description
Section	[Display] This field displays the section to which the tax record belongs to.
Column Name	Description
Value Date	[Display] This column displays the date on which interest recalculation took place.



No PAN period.

Tax Code	[Display] This column displays the TDS 1 code.
Branch Code	[Display] This column displays the branch code .
Branch Name	[Display] This column displays name of the branch as per the code.
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the account numbers of all the TD/RD accounts of the customer, maintained in a particular branch.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the TDS transaction is being viewed.
Currency	[Display] This field displays the currency.
Event Descriptions	[Display] This column displays the projected interest income on TD at the time of interest recalculation event.
Transaction Amount	[Display] This column displays the projected interest income on TD at the time of interest recalculation event.

## **Tax Recovery Details**

This tab is used to view the tax recovery details.

OS Enquiry								Enquire Clo	se Cle
* Search Criteria	Customer Short Name	v		* Sear	ch String	Auto	0		
* Customer Name				* Cus	tomer ID	990100561			
* Financial Year (Start)	2018 🔍								
Branch Code	99975 🔍			Acc	ount No.	703000000019007	7		
C ich Wise Details Account Wi	e Details Deposit Wise	Details Interest & Tax Details	Tax Computation Details	Tax Recovery I	Details	Bank / Branch Lev	vel Int. Details	Tax Borrowed Details Ref	und Detai
Account No.	703000000019007			Dep	osit No.	1			
Currency	INR			Tax C	Currency	INR			
Section	194A			PAN//	Aadhaar (	N			
Tax Code	201				Waiver	Ν			
Posting Date Tax Reco	vered Tax Type I	ndicator Tax Refunded	Amount Tax Re	mit Date	Tax Rem	it Amount	Challan Numbe	er Recovery Bucke	t
15/10/2018 71.60	Tax1-Base Ta	x 0.00	15/10/201	8 7	1.60		1222245	interest	

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the selected Deposit account number.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the Tax computation details is being viewed.
Currency	[Display] This column displays the account currency.
Tax Currency	[Display] This field displays the tax currency.
Section	[Display] This field displays the section to which the tax record belongs to.
PAN/Aadhaar	[Display] This field displays 'Y" if it pertains to PAN period and "N" if it pertains to No PAN period.
Tax Code	[Display] This field displays the applicable tax code.
Waiver	[Display] This field displays if the tax is waived off for this account or not.
Column Name	Description
Column Name Posting Date	Description [Display] This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.
Column Name Posting Date Tax Recovered	Description         [Display]         This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.         [Display]         This field displays the tax amount recovered
Column Name Posting Date Tax Recovered Tax Type Indicator	Description         [Display]         This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.         [Display]         This field displays the tax amount recovered         [Display]         This field displays the tax type indicator.
Column Name Posting Date Tax Recovered Tax Type Indicator Tax Refunded Amount	Description         [Display]         This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.         [Display]         This field displays the tax amount recovered         [Display]         This field displays the tax type indicator.         [Display]         This field displays the tax type indicator.         [Display]         This field displays the Tax amount refunded.
Column Name Posting Date Tax Recovered Tax Type Indicator Tax Refunded Amount Tax Remit Date	Description         [Display]         This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.         [Display]         This field displays the tax amount recovered         [Display]         This field displays the tax type indicator.         [Display]         This field displays the Tax amount refunded.         [Display]         This field displays the Tax amount refunded.         [Display]         This field displays the tax remit date.
Column NamePosting DateTax RecoveredTax Type IndicatorTax RefundedAmountTax Remit DateTax Remit Amount	Description[Display] This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.[Display] This field displays the tax amount recovered[Display] This field displays the tax type indicator.[Display] This field displays the Tax amount refunded.[Display] This field displays the tax remit date.[Display] This field displays the tax remit date.[Display] This field displays the tax remit date.
Column NamePosting DateTax RecoveredTax Type IndicatorTax RefundedAmountTax Remit DateTax Remit AmountChallan Number	Description[Display] This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.[Display] This field displays the tax amount recovered[Display] This field displays the tax type indicator.[Display] This field displays the Tax amount refunded.[Display] This field displays the tax remit date.[Display] This field displays the tax remit date.[Display] This field displays the tax remit amount.[Display] This field displays the tax remit amount.[Display] This field displays the tax remit amount.[Display] This field displays the tax remit amount.
Column NamePosting DateTax RecoveredTax Type IndicatorTax Refunded AmountTax Remit DateTax Remit AmountChallan NumberRecovery Account	Description[Display]This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.[Display]This field displays the tax amount recovered[Display]This field displays the tax type indicator.[Display]This field displays the Tax amount refunded.[Display]This field displays the tax remit date.[Display]This field displays the tax remit date.[Display]This field displays the tax remit amount.[Display]This field displays the tax remit amount.[Display]This field displays the challan number.[Display]This field displays the recovery account



- Compounded Interest
- Principal

## **Tax Borrowed Details**

This tab is used to view the tax borrowed details of the customer.

TDS11 >	<											
TDS E	Enquiry										Enquire	Close Clear
		Search Criteria	Customer Short	Name v				* Search String	Auto	2		
	* c	ustomer Name						* Customer ID	990100561	-		
	* Finan	cial Year (Start)	2018	0								
		Branch Code	99975	٩ 🗌				Account No.	703000000019007			
< 10	ch Wise Details	Account Wis	e Details De	posit Wise Details	Interest & Tax Detail	s Tax Com	putation Details	Tax Recovery Details	Bank / Branch Level In	it. Details	Tax Borrowed Details	Refund Details
		Account No.	70300000001	9007				Deposit No.	1			
		Currency	INR					Tax Currency	INR			
		Section	194A					PAN/Aadhaar	Ν			
		Tax Code	201					Waiver	N			
		Posting Date	01/01/1800				Exc	ess Borrowed from Others	0.00			
i	Branch Code	Branc	h Name	Recovery Acc	count Tax	Borrowed						
No	data to display.											
Pag	e 1 (0 of 0 items	i) K < 1	к к									



Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the selected Deposit account number.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the Tax computation details is being viewed.
Currency	[Display] This column displays the account currency.
Tax Currency	[Display] This field displays the tax currency.
Section	[Display] This field displays the section to which the tax record belongs to.
PAN/Aadhaar	[Display] This field displays 'Y" if it pertains to PAN period and "N" if it pertains to No PAN period.
Tax Code	[Display] This field displays the applicable tax code.
Waiver	[Display] This field displays if the tax is waived off for this account or not.
Posting Date	[Display] This field displays the posting date of TDS transaction.
Excess Borrowed from Other	[Display] This field displays the excess tax that has been borrowed from other accounts.
Column Name	Description
Branch Code	[Display] This field displays the branch code where the customer maintains the TD account.
Branch Name	[Display] This field displays the short name of the branch code.
Recovery Amount	[Display] This field displays the recovery amount.
Tax Borrowed	[Display] This field displays the amount of excess tax borrowed from this deposit.

## **Refund Details**

This tab is used to view the tax refund details of the customer.



TDS11 >										
TDS E	Enquiry									Enquire Close Clear
		* Search Criteria	Customer ID	T			* Search String	990100125 Q		
		* Financial Year (Start)	2018 Q				Costonerio			
		Branch Code	98001 Q MUN	IBAI			Account No.			1
Bran	h Wise Details	Account Wise Details	Deposit Wise Details	Interest & Tax Details	Tax Computation Details	Tax Recovery Details	Bank / Branch Level Int. Details	Tax Borrowed Details	Refund Details	
		Account No.					Deposit No.	6		
		Currency	INR				Tax Currency	INR		
		Section	194A				PAN/Aadhaar	Y		
		Tax Code	2				Refund Amount	0.00		
	Posting Date	Refur	nd Mode	Account Number	Reference No	к.				
No o	lata to display.									
Page	1 (0 of 0 items	i) K < 1 > >	1							



Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the TD account number under which the deposits are initiated and maintained.
Deposit No.	[Display] This field displays the deposit number for which the TDS transaction is being viewed.
Currency	[Display] This column displays the TD account currency.
Tax Currency	[Display] This field displays the tax currency.
Section	[Display] This field displays the section to which the tax record belongs to.
PAN/Aadhaar	[Display] This field displays 'Y" if it pertains to PAN period and "N" if it pertains to No PAN period.
Tax Code	[Display] This field displays the applicable tax code.
Refund Amount	[Display] This field displays the amount refunded.
Posting Date	[Display] This field displays the posting date of the refund transaction.
Refund Mode	[Display] This field displays the refund mode. The options are: • CASA • Cash
Account Number	[Display] This field displays the account number to which refund has been made.
Reference No.	[Display] This field displays the reference number of the refund transaction.
9. Click Close.	



# 7.4 TDS12 - Tax Recovery

Using this option you can have a detailed break-up of the tax recovery against a customer.

If the tax is greater than the interest earned, the bank may need to ask the customer to provide another Current and savings or Loan account from where the extra tax amount could be remitted. You can make an Enquiry on customer wise, account wise or deposit wise details. The system provides the details like net interest, interest waived, TDS details, refund details, etc.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

- TDM04 TD Bank Parameters
- TDS transactions in the account

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To perform tax recovery

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TDS12 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > Tax Recovery.
- 2. The system displays the Tax Recovery screen.

#### Tax Recovery

Tax Recovery									Ok	Close Clea
CustomerWise Details	Search Criteria Custom     Customer Name AUTO P     Account No.     Date Taxable 01/01/11     AccountWise Details 1	er ID v ERSON 270 800 m DepositWise Details				* Search Strin * Customer I * Financial Yea	g 990100561 C 0 990100561 ir 2018 C			
Branch Code	Branch Name	Net Interest	Interest Waived	TDS Due 1	TDS Unrecovered 1	TDS Remitted 1	Refunded Amount 1	TDS Due 2	TDS Unrecovered 2	TDS Remitt
999	9 Demo	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
9997	5 THIRUVANANTHAPURAN	254375	0	50875	123.2	42968	0	0	0	
4										•
✓ Page 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 if	Items) K < 1 > >	Я								•
Page 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 i   Enquire	Items) K < 1 > >	я							-	Þ
Page 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 i     Enquire	items) K < 1 > >	Я								•
Page 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 i   Enquire	items) K < 1 > >	Я								•
Page 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 if     Enquire	items) K < 1 > >	И								•
Page 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 i Enquire	items) K < 1 > >	И								•

Field Name	Description
Search Criteria	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the search criteria to search for the customer from the drop-down list. The options are:
	Customer Short Name
	<ul> <li>Customer Ic - Customer Identification criteria (IC) arrived at by the bank during customer addition.</li> </ul>
	Customer Id - Unique identification given by the bank



Search String	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 20] Type the search string to search for a customer, corresponding to the search criteria selected in the <b>Search Criteria</b> field. If the search criterion is specified as customers' short name or IC then any of the letter(s) of the letter of the short name or IC can be entered. The system displays the Search List of all those customers having those letters in their respective criteria. Choose the appropriate customer from the existing customer list. For example, The customer's short name is George Abraham. One can search the above customer by entering 'Geo' in the search string field.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the customer name depending on the search string.
Customer ID	[Display] This field displays the unique customer number generated by FLEXCUBE Retail as a combination of customer IC and customer type.
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD account number. If a customer has only a single TD account at the bank, then that TD account number will be displayed here. The field will be blank in case where a customer has multiple TD accounts in the bank, across branches.
Financial Year	[Display] This field displays the financial year for the TDS Enquiry. By default the system displays the posting date year.
Date Taxable	[Display] This field displays the date from which the interest earned on the deposit falls in the taxable amount slab.

The above screen displays the first step in the recovery of tax for Mr. Auto Person under his customer ID 990100561 for the financial year 2018.

The search and recovery can be next drilled down to a customer level.

- 3. Select the search criteria from the drop-down list.
- 4. Type the search string and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key and select the customer from the Search List. The selected customer's detail appears in the relevant fields.

#### Tax Recovery

rds12 ×											
Tax Re	ecovery									Ok	Close Cle
Cus	tomerWise Details	Search Criteria Custom     Customer Name AUTO F     Account No.     Date Taxable 01/01/1      AccountWise Details	er ID v FERSON 270 800 m DepositWise Details				* Search Strin * Customer II * Financial Yea	g 990100561 C D 990100561 ar 2018 C	2		
	Branch Code	Branch Name	Net Interest	Interest Waived	TDS Due 1	TDS Unrecovered 1	TDS Remitted 1	Refunded Amount 1	TDS Due 2	TDS Unrecovered 2	TDS Remitt
	9999	Demo	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	99975	00075	254375	0	50875	122.2	42968	0	0	0	
		1 3557 5		Ŭ	000/0	Tab. d. d.		•		, v	
•						12.14					Þ
.∢ Pag	ye 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 lite	ms) K < 1 >	Я			1634		V			,
∢   Paç Er	pe 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 lite	ms) K < 1 >	Х			14.54					•

- 5. Click the **Enquiry** button.
- 6. The system displays the **CustomerWise Details** tab.

## **CustomerWise Details**

The **CustomerWise Details** tab displays the details of the tax deducted, remitted, unrecovered, etc. for the branch.

Recovery										
									Ok	Close
	* Search Criteria Custo	mer ID 🔻				* Search Strin	g 990100561	2		
	Customer Name AUTO	PERSON 270				* Customer I	D 990100561			
	Account No.					* Financial Yes	ar 2018	2		
	Date Taxable 01/01	/1800								
stomerWise Details	AccountWise Details	DepositWise Details								
Branch Code	Branch Name	Net Interest	Interest Waived	TDS Due 1	TDS Unrecovered 1	TDS Remitted 1	Refunded Amount 1	TDS Due 2	TDS Unrecovered 2	TDS Rer
9999	Demo	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
99975	99975	254375	0	50875	123.2	42968	0	0	0	
ge 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 ite	ms) K < 1 >	ĸ								
age 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 Ite	ms)   K < 1 >	к							_	
ige 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 ite inquire	ms) K < 1 >	Х							_	
age 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 ite inquire	ms) K < 1 >	ĸ							_	
age 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 ite Enquire	ms) K < 1 >	ĸ		_					_	
ige 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 lite inquire	ms)   K < [] >	х							_	
ge 1 of 1 (1-2 of 2 ite	ms)   K < <b>1</b> >	x							_	

Column Name	Description				
Branch Code	[Display] This column displays the branch code of the branch where the customer maintains the TD accounts.				
Branch Name	[Display] This column displays the name of the home branch where the TD is opened and maintained.				
Net Interest	[Display] This column displays the total interest earned on all the deposits, initiated under all TD accounts, within the branch.				



Interest Waived	[Display] This column displays the total interest amount earned on the deposits within a branch, for which tax is exempted.
TDS Due 1	[Display] This column displays the total amount due as TDS for the interest earned on all deposits, under a TD account, within a branch.
TDS Unrecovered 1	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount due on the interest earnings, but not deducted during the financial year.
TDS Remitted 1	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount paid to the agency that collects the tax.
Refunded Amount 1	[Display] This column displays the refunded amount 1. It is the tax amount which is refunded in Tax Refund (Task Code: TDS14) option.
TDS Due 2	[Display] This column displays the total amount due as TDS for the interest earned on all deposits, under a TD account, within a branch.
TDS Unrecovered 2	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount due on the interest earnings, but not deducted during the financial year.
TDS Remitted 2	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount paid to the agency that collects the tax.
Refunded Amount 2	[Display] This column displays the refunded amount 2. It is the tax amount which is refunded in Tax Refund (Task Code: TDS14) option.

The above tab screen displays the second step in the recovery of tax for Mr. Auto Person under his customer ID 990100561 for the financial year 2018.

It displays the tax that is recoverable under the branch code 9999.

The search and recovery can be next drilled down to a customer level.

7. Double-click the appropriate column link in the **CustomerWise Details** tab, to view the **AccountWise details** tab.

#### AccountWise Details

The **AccountWise Details** tab displays the details of the tax deducted, remitted, unrecovered, etc. in the account.



Search Unterg         Outcomer	Search Strag (98000051)       C         * Subtrame Name       * Count Na         Count Na       * Count Na         Date Taxabit (9500000000348)       * Financial Year         Depositives Details       * Count Na         Endote       * Depositives Details         Cocount Na       0         10000000000348       0         10000000000348       0         100000000000348       0         1000000000000000000000000000000000000									0		
Customer and Account No         Depositives Details         Customer ID         WorkNost           Def Taxable         0101/11000         **         *         2018         •           tomer/Niss Details         Account No         Depositives Details         *         TDS Unrecovered 1         TDS Standard Name         TDS Unrecovered 2         TDS Name	Customer ID       Workson         Account Na       * Francial Year         Date Taxade       0401/PEx0/PEx0         Date Taxade       PapostWise Details         Account Na       DepostWise Details         Module       Account Na         000000000000000000000000000000000000		Search Criteria Custome	er ID V				* Search Str	ing 990100561	Q,		
Account/Ns Details         Deposit/Vise Details         Deposit/Vise Details         Deposit/Vise Details         Control Vise Details         Deposit/Vise Details         Deposit/Vise Details         TDS Due 1         TDS Due 2         TDS	Account Ns       Open         Module       Account Ns       Depositive Details         Branch       1000       0 <th></th> <th>Customer Name AUTO PI</th> <th>ERSON 270</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Customer</th> <th>ID 990100561</th> <th>0</th> <th></th> <th></th>		Customer Name AUTO PI	ERSON 270				Customer	ID 990100561	0		
Normality         Openality         Openality <t< th=""><th>Count Non         Depositive Details           Bone Mise Details         Depositive Details           Module         Account No         Net Interest Waived         TOS Due 1         TOS Unecovered 1         TOS Remited 1         Refunded Amount 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Mise Over 42         TOS Mise Over 43         O</th><th></th><th>Account No.</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>Financial Y</th><th>2016</th><th>~</th><th></th><th></th></t<>	Count Non         Depositive Details           Bone Mise Details         Depositive Details           Module         Account No         Net Interest Waived         TOS Due 1         TOS Unecovered 1         TOS Remited 1         Refunded Amount 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Mise Over 42         TOS Mise Over 43         O		Account No.					Financial Y	2016	~		
Accountifying Details         Depositiving Details           Branch         9999         Open         TOS Une covered 1         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Une covered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Open         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Une covered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Open         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Une covered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Open         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Une covered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Open	Accountifies Details         Depositivies Details         Depositivies Details           Branch         9999         C         Demo         TOS Due 1         TOS Unecovered 1         TOS Remitted 1         Refunded Amount 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Direcovered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Direcovered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Direcovered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Remitted 2         TOS Direcovered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Direcovered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Remitted 2         TOS Direcovered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Remitted 2         TOS Direcovered 2         TOS Remitted 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Remitted 2         TOS Direcovered 2		Date facable 01/01/10									
Branch         Open         Demo         TDS Due 1         TDS Due 1         TDS Remitted 1         Refunded Amount 1         TDS Due 2         TDS Unecovered 2         TDS Remitted 1           Module         Account No         0 <t< th=""><th>Branch         Open           Module         Account No         Net Interest         Interest Waved         TDS Due 1         TDS Unrecovered 1         TDS Remitted 1         Refunded Amount 1         TDS Due 2         TDS Unrecovered 2         TDS Remitted 1           7030000000000448         0</th><th>stomerWise Details</th><th>AccountWise Details E</th><th>DepositWise Details</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th></t<>	Branch         Open           Module         Account No         Net Interest         Interest Waved         TDS Due 1         TDS Unrecovered 1         TDS Remitted 1         Refunded Amount 1         TDS Due 2         TDS Unrecovered 2         TDS Remitted 1           7030000000000448         0	stomerWise Details	AccountWise Details E	DepositWise Details								
Module         Account No         Met Interest         Interest Waived         TOS Due 1         TOS Unrecovered 1         TOS Remitted 1         Refunded Amount 1         TOS Due 2         TOS Nurecovered 2         TOS Nurecovered 2           1         7703000000000048         0	Module         Account No         Met Interest         Interest Waived         TDS Due 1         TDS Unrecovered 1         TDS Remitted 1         Refunded Amount 1         TDS Due 2         TDS Surecovered 2         TDS No           1         703000000002348         0         0.00         0 <th></th> <th>Branch 9999</th> <th>Q Demo</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>		Branch 9999	Q Demo								
173000000002348         0         0.00         0	1       1000000000000000000000000000000000000	Module	Account No	Net Interest	Interest Waived	TDS Due 1	TDS Unrecovered 1	TDS Remitted 1	Refunded Amount 1	TDS Due 2	TDS Unrecovered 2	TDS Ren
70300000000348         0         0.00         0	1       73000000000448       0		703000000020348	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	
77030000000020048 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0       0		703000000020348	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	$   _{1} = 1$ (1-3 of 3 liems) $   _{1} < \langle 1 \rangle >   _{1} >   _{1} >   _{1} >   _{1} = 1$		703000000020348	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	e 1 of 1 (t-3 of 3 litems)   K < 1 > X											
		ge 1 of 1 (1-3 of 3	3 items) K < 1 > >	4						_		
		je 1 of1 (1-3 of)	3 Roms) K < 1 > >	ч								

Field Name	Description
Branch	[Display] This field displays the branch from where the TD/RD account(s) are opened and maintained. By default the system displays the home branch of the TD account.
Column Name	Description
Module	[Display] This column displays the module the account number belong to .
Account No.	[Display] This column displays the account numbers of all the TD/RD accounts, maintained in a particular branch.
Net Interest	[Display] This column displays the total interest earned on all the deposits, initiated under the TD/RD account.
Interest Waived	[Display] This column displays the total interest earned on the deposits under the TD/RD account, for which tax is exempted.
TDS Due 1	[Display] This column displays the total amount due as Tax Deducted at Source 1 for all the interest earned on all deposits, under a TD/RD account.
TDS Unrecovered 1	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount 1 due on the interest earnings, but not deducted during the financial year.
TDS Remitted 1	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount 1 paid out to the agency collecting the tax.
Refunded Amount 1	[Display]



	This column displays the refunded amount 1. It is the tax amount which is refunded in <b>Tax Refund</b> (Task Code: TDS14) option.
TDS Due 2	[Display] This column displays the total amount due as Tax Deducted at Source 2 for all the interest earned on all deposits, under a TD account.
TDS Unrecovered 2	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount 2 due on the interest earnings, but not deducted during the financial year.
TDS Remitted 2	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount 2 paid out to the agency collecting the tax.
Income Projected	[Display] This column displays the projected interest. For a cumulative deposit, the projected interest is the interest that will be earned on the TD/RD for the full term. For a non-cumulative deposit, the projected interest will be the interest accrued after the last interest payout and before the maturity date of the deposit.
Refunded Amount 2	[Display] This column displays the refunded amount 2. It is the tax amount which is refunded in <b>Tax Refund</b> (Task Code: TDS14) option.

The above tab screen displays the third step in the recovery of tax for Mr. Auto Person under his customer ID 990100561 for the financial year 2018.

It displays the tax, if any, that is recoverable from the TD account number 703000000020348.

The search and recovery can be next drilled down to a deposit level.

8. Double-click the appropriate column link in the **CustomerWise Details** tab, to view the **DepositWise details** tab.

#### **DepositWise Details**

The **DepositWise Details** tab displays the details of the tax deducted, remitted, unrecovered, etc. in the deposit.





Field Name	Description
Branch	[Display] This field displays the home branch where the TD account(s) are opened and maintained.
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the appropriate TD account number under which the deposit(s) are initiated and maintained.
Recovery Account	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type a valid recovery account number. If the Tax Recovery field indicates a Y value then this field is enabled. Type the customer's CASA or Loan account number from which the tax amount has to be recovered.
Column Name	Description
Original Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the original deposit number. The original deposit number is the source or the parent deposit number, from which the new deposit is created due to interest payout or due to renewal. It will have new deposit running number, but will retain the original deposit number of the source deposit.
Renewal No.	[Display] This column displays the renewal number. The renewal number signifies the number of deposits created out of the source deposit either due to renewals or the payouts. This field along with the original deposit number can explain the chronology of a particular deposit.
Deposit No.	[Display] This column displays the deposit numbers of all the deposits maintained under the account.
Net Interest	[Display]

	This column displays the total interest earned on the deposit.
Interest Waived	[Display] This column displays the total interest earned on the deposit, for which tax is exempted.
TDS Due 1	[Display] This column displays the total amount 2 due as TDS for the complete interest earned on the deposit.
TDS Unrecovered 1	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount 1 due on the interest earnings, but not deducted during the financial year.
TDS Remitted 1	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount 1 paid to the agency collecting the tax.
Refunded Amount 1	[Display] This column displays the refunded amount 1. It is the tax amount which is refunded in <b>Tax Refund</b> (Task Code: TDS14) option.
TDS Due 2	[Display] This column displays the total amount 2 due as TDS for the complete interest earned on the deposit.
TDS Unrecovered 2	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount 2 due on the interest earnings but not deducted during the financial year.
TDS Remitted 2	[Display] This column displays the TDS amount 2 paid to the agency collecting the tax.
Tax Recover	[Toggle] The tax recovery column helps to check if there is any tax recovery balance for the account. If tax is recovered then the field displays <b>Y</b> value, else it displays <b>N</b> value.
Refunded Amount 2	[Display] This column displays the refunded amount 2. It is the tax amount which is refunded in <b>Tax Refund</b> (Task Code: TDS14) option.

The above tab screen displays the fourth step in the recovery of tax for Mr. Auto Person under his customer ID 990100561 for the financial year 2018.

It displays all the deposits under the account and tax recoverable, if tax is to be recovered then, a suitable CASA account must be defined in the recovery account field.

#### Exercise

For a customer, if there is any tax recoverable, then select the above option and mention the CASA account for recovery of the tax.



- 9. Click the **Tax Recovery** column to check any tax recovery balance for the account. If the value is **Y** then type the **Recovery Account**.
- 10. Enter the required information and click the **Ok** button.



# 7.5 TDS14 - Deposit Tax Refund

Using this option you can view the tax amount and exempted amount for a particular deposit. This maintenance also enables you to give tax refund of a particular amount which is deducted from the customer account.

#### **Definition Prerequisites**

• 8054 - Time Deposit Account Opening

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To perform TD tax refund

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TDS14 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Other Transactions > TD Tax Refund.
- 2. The system displays the **Deposit Tax Refund** screen.

#### Deposit Tax Refund

TD	\$14 ×									
D	eposit Tax Refund				1	2			Ok Close	Clear
					TDS14	Step 2				Cicai
	* Acc	count No.	703000000019007	AUTO PERSON 270						
	Produ	uct Name	301-FD-Resident			(	Customer ID 990100561			
	Account	Currency	INR							
	Deposit No	Тах	Amount(ACY)	Tax Amount(TCY)	Exempt Amount	Tax 1/Tax 2	Refund Mode	Refunded Amount(TCY)	Click To Refund	
	3175		202.80	202.80	2,52,635.76	Tax1-Base Tax	1	50	Click to Refund	-
	3255		202.80	202.80	2,53,679.09	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
	2501		2,128.80	2,128.80	2,53,679.09	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
	3018		202.80	202.80	2,50,550.04	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
	3096		202.80	202.80	2,51,592.77	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
	3418		202.80	202.80	2,55,766.82	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
	3336		202.80	202.80	2,54,722.77	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
	3501		202.80	202.80	2,56,811.25	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	-
	•									<b>&gt;</b>
	Page 1 of 2 (1-10 of 20 i	tems)	< < 1 2 →	к						

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the TD/RD account number.
Product Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the product.
Customer iD	[Display] This field displays the ID of the customer based on the account number entered in the corresponding field.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the type of account currency.
Column Name	Description



[Display] This field displays the deposit number.
[Display] This field displays the tax amount in account currency.
[Display] This field displays the tax amount in transaction currency.
[Display] This field displays the exemption amount.
[Display] This field displays the tax which is applicable.
[Mandatory, Drop Down] Select the refund mode from the drop-down list. The options are: • CASA
• Cash
• GL
[Display] This field displays the amount to be refunded in the transaction currency.
[Mandatory] Double click the link. System displays the Deposit Tax Refund screen depending on the selected refund mode.

3. Enter the account number and press the <Tab> or <Enter> key.

## TD Tax Refund

							Ok Close	1
			TDS14	Step 2				
* Ac	count No. 70300000001900	7 AUTO PERSON 270						
Prod	uct Name 301-FD-Resident				Customer ID 990100561			
Account	Currency INR							
Deposit No	Tax Amount(ACY)	Tax Amount(TCY)	Exempt Amount	Tax 1/Tax 2	Refund Mode	Refunded Amount(TCY)	Click To Refund	
3175	202.80	202.80	2,52,635.76	Tax1-Base Tax	1	50	Click to Refund	
3255	202.80	202.80	2,53,679.09	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
2501	2,128.80	2,128.80	2,53,679.09	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
3018	202.80	202.80	2,50,550.04	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
3096	202.80	202.80	2,51,592.77	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
3418	202.80	202.80	2,55,766.82	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
3336	202.80	202.80	2,54,722.77	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
3501	202.80	202.80	2,56,811.25	Tax1-Base Tax		0.00	Click to Refund	
1 of 2 (1-10 of 20 i	items) K < 1 2 >	ж						

- 4. Select the Refund mode from the drop-down list.
- 5. Double-click on the Click to Refund column. Click Ok to continue.
- 6. The system displays the **TD Tax Refund** screen depending on the selected refund mode.
- 7. Enter the required information in the appropriate screen.



## TD Tax Refund - to CASA - 1603

TDS14 ×				
TD Tax Refund - to CASA		TDS14	<b>2</b> 1603	V Ok Close Clear
* Account No. Account Coy Acct Ccy Rate * Refund Amount in Tax CCY Refund Amount in ACY Value Date * Narrative	701000000003717 AUTO PERSON1 INR ▼ 1.00000 €152.80 15/12/2018 mm TD/RD Tax Refund		* Tax Coy INR Tax Coy Rate	¥ 1.0000

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Mandatory, Numeric, 16] Type the CASA account number to which the amount is to be refunded.
Account Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency of the account.
Тах Ссу	[Display] This field displays the currency of the tax.
Acct Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of the account currency.
Tax Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of the tax currency.
Refund Amount in Tax CCY	[Mandatory, Numeric, 13, Two] Type the amount to be refunded in the tax currency.
Refund Amount in ACY	[Display] This field displays the amount to be refunded in the account currency.
Value Date	[Display] This field displays the value date.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration. By default system displays the narration, based on the transaction.



# TD Tax Refund to Cash - 1605

TDS14 ×					
TD Tax Refund to Cash			2		→ Ok Close Clear
		TDS14	1605		
Tax GL Acct Ccy	INR <b>v</b>		Txn Ccy	INR V	
Tax GL Ccy Rate			Txn Ccy Rate		
* Refund Amount in Tax Ccy	₹5,000.00				
Refund Amount in Destination Ccy	₹5,000.00				
* Reference No					
* Narrative	TD/RD Tax Refund:Cash				

Field Name	Description
Tax GL Acct Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency of the tax GL account.
Txn Ccy	[Display] This field displays the transaction currency.
Tax GL Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of the tax GL currency.
Txn Ccy Rate	[Display] This field displays the rate of the transaction currency.
Refund Amount in Tax CCY	[Mandatory, Numeric, 13, Two] Type the amount to be refunded in the tax currency.
Refund Amount in Destination CCY	[Display] This field displays the amount to be refunded in the destination currency.
Reference No.	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 12] Type the reference number. This field is provided to keep a reference number for the transaction, for future use.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration. By default system displays the narration, based on the transaction.



## TD Tax Refund to GL - 1604

TDS14 ×					
TD Tax Refund to GL		()	2		
		TDS14	160	4	
Tax GL Ccy	INR 🔻				
Destination GL Acct Ccy	INR V				
* Destination GL Acct No.			Q		
Tax GL Acct Ccy Rate	1.00000				
Destination GL Acct Ccy Rate	1.00000				
* Refund Amount in Tax CCY	₹5,000.00				
Refund Amount in Destination CCY	₹5,000.00				
* Reference No.					
* Narrative	TD/RD Tax Refund:GL. X	fer.			

Field Name	Description
Tax GL Ccy	[Display] This field displays the currency of the tax GL account.
Destination GL Acct	[Display]
Ccy	This field displays the currency of the destination GL account.
Destination GL Acct	[Mandatory, Search List]
No.	Select the account number of the destination GL from the Search List.
Tax GL Acct Ccy	[Display]
Rate	This field displays the currency rate of the tax GL account.
Destination GL Acct	[Display]
Ccy Rate	This field displays the currency rate of the destination GL account.
Refund Amount in	[Mandatory, Numeric, 13, Two]
Tax CCY	Type the amount to be refunded in the tax currency.
Refund Amount in Destination CCY	[Display] This field displays the amount to be refunded in the destination currency.
Reference No.	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 12] Type the reference number. This field is provided to keep a reference number for the transaction, for future use.
Narrative	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 40] Type the narration. By default system displays the narration, based on the transaction.



- 8. Click the **Ok** button.
- 9. The system displays the message 'Authorisation required. Do you Want to continue?'. Click the **Ok** button.
- 10. The system displays the Authorization Reason screen.
- 11. Enter the relevant information and click the **Grant** button.
- 12. The system displays the transaction sequence number. Click the **Ok** button.


# 7.6 TDS21 - TDS Enquiry Date Based

Using this option you can inquire a detailed break-up of the tax deducted from a customer. The details of all such deductions for a date range can be traced in various sections in this screen.

### **Definition Prerequisites**

- 8054 Time Deposit Account Opening
- TDS transactions in the account

#### Modes Available

Not Applicable

#### To perform TDS Enquiry

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TDS21 and then click <sup>Q</sup> or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Enquiries > TDS Enquiry Date Based.
- 2. You will be navigated to the TDS Enquiry Date Based screen.

#### **TDS Enquiry Date Based**

TDS21 ×	
TDS Enquiry Date Based	Ok Close Clear
* Search Criteria Customer Short Name ▼ * Search String  Customer Name  * Customer Name * Date from 01/01/1/800  Customer Wise Details Account Wise Details Txn Details	
Branch Code Branch Name Total Balance Interest Computed / Tax Deducted Tax Remitted TDS Refunded	
No items to display.	
rage 1 (d of or terms)   K < 1 > 3	

#### **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Search Criteria	[Mandatory, Drop-Down] Select the search criteria to search for the customer from the drop-down list. The options are:
	Customer Short Name: Short name of the customer.
	<ul> <li>Customer IC: Customer Identification criteria (IC) arrived at by the bank during customer addition.</li> </ul>
	Customer ID: Unique identification given by the bank.
Search String	[Mandatory, Alphanumeric, 20, Search List] Type a search string according to the selected search criteria. If the search criterion is specified as customer's short name or IC then



	the beginning letter of the short name or IC can be entered. The Search List will pop up. Choose the beneficiary from the existing customer list. For example, The customer's name is John S Winter. In this case you can specify the short name as Joh.
Customer Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the customer who holds the TD account.
Customer ID	[Display] This field displays the unique customer number generated by <b>Oracle</b> <b>FLEXCUBE</b> as a combination of Customer IC and customer type.
Date From	[Optional, Date editor] Type the from date or select from the date editor.
Date To	[Optional, Date editor] Type the to date or select from the date editor.
2 Soloot the approx	itoria from the list

- 3. Select the search criteria from the list.
- 4. Type the search string and press the **<Tab> or <Enter>** key and select the customer from the Search List. The selected customer's detail appears in the relevant fields.
- 5. In the date editor, Select the from date and to date.

# **TDS Enquiry Date Based**

1 ×							
Enquiry Date Base	ed						Ok Close
* Search * Custome * D	Criteria         Customer ID           ar Name         AUTO PERSON 270           ate from         01/01/1800	T		Se * C	arch String 990100561 ustomer ID 990100561 * Date to 15/12/2018		
Stomer Wise Details Ad	count Wise Details Txn Details Branch Name	Total Balance	Interest Computed /	Tax Deducted	Tax Remitted	TDS Refunded	
99975	THIRUVANANTHAPURAM 99975	₹53,86,877.57	₹2,54,375.00	₹50,751.80	₹42,968.00	₹0.00	

6. Click **OK**. The system displays the **Customer Wise Details** tab.

# **Customer Wise Details**

This tab displays the details of the tax deducted, remitted, refunded, etc..

Enquiry Date Base	ed								Ok Clos	e
* Search	Criteria Customer II	D	¥		Sea	arch String 99	90100561	۹.		
* Custom	er Name AUTO PERS	SON 270			* Cu	ustomer ID 99	90100561			
* 0	ate from 01/01/1800					Date to	5/12/2018			
omer Wise Details A	ccount Wise Details	Txn Details								
				Interest Computed /						
Branch Code	Branch Nar	me	Total Balance	Paid	Tax Deducted	Tax Rem	itted	TDS Refunded		
99975	THIRUVANANTHAPUF	RAM 99975	₹53,86,877.57	₹2,54,375.00	₹50,751.80	5	₹42,968.00	₹0.00	]	
99975	THIRUVANANTHAPUF	RAM 99975	₹53,86,877.57	₹2,54,375.00	₹50,751.80	र	₹42,968.00	₹0.00	]	

## **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Branch Code	[Display] This field displays the branch code where the customer maintains the TD accounts.
Branch Name	[Display] This field displays the name of the home branch where the TD is opened and maintained.
Total Balance	[Display] This field displays the total balance.
Interest Computed /Paid	[Display] This field displays the interest computed or paid.
Tax Deducted	[Display] This field displays the tax deducted.
Tax Remitted	[Display] This field displays the tax amount paid to the agency that collects the tax.
TDS Refunded	[Display] This field displays the amount of Tax which has been refunded.

#### **Screen Description**

The above tab screen displays the details for Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) for the customer ID 990100561.

This is the second step which displays information under the branch ID 9975.

7. Double-click the appropriate column link in the **CustomerWise Details** tab, to view the **AccountWise details** tab.

## **Account Wise Details**

This tab displays the details of the tax deducted, remitted, unrecovered, interest waived, etc. in the account.

* Custome	ate from 01/01/1800	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		* Custo	omer ID 990100561 Date to 15/12/2018	
omer Wise Details	Account Wise Details	xn Details				
Bra	nch Code 99975	THIRUVANANTHAPURAM				
Module	Account No.	Interest Computed / Paid	Tax Deducted	Tax Remitted	TDS Refunded	
)	703000000019007	₹1,79,017.00	₹35,803.40	₹30,525.60	₹0.00	
)	703000000018834	₹285.00	₹57.00	₹57.00	₹0.00	
)	703000000018814	₹74,303.00	₹14,860.60	₹12,385.40	₹0.00	
)	703000000018994	₹616.00	₹0.00	₹0.00	₹0.00	
)	703000000018984	₹154.00	₹30.80	₹0.00	₹0.00	

## **Field Description**

Column Name	Description
Branch Code	[Display] This field displays the branch code where the customer maintains the TD accounts.
Module	[Display] This field displays the module
Account No.	[Display] This column displays the account numbers of all the TD accounts of the customer, maintained in a particular branch.
Interest Computed /Paid	[Display] This field displays the interest computed or paid.
Tax Deducted	[Display] This field displays the tax deducted.
Tax Remitted	[Display] This field displays the tax amount paid to the agency that collects the tax.
TDS Refunded	[Display] This field displays the amount of Tax which has been refunded.

8. Double-click the appropriate column link in the **AccountWise Details** tab, to view the **Txn Details** tab.

# **Txn Details**

The **Txn Details** tab displays the details of the TDS amount, tax code and the taxable interest amount earned on the deposit.



Enquiry Da	te Based								Ok	Close
* * (	Search Criteria Customer ID ustomer Name AUTO PERSON 270	•			Searce * Cust	ch String 990100 tomer ID 990100	561			
	* Date from 01/01/1800					Date to 15/12/2	2018 🛗			
tomer Wise Det	ails Account Wise Details Txn Detai	ils								
	Account No. 703000000019007				Account C	urrency INR	•			
Process Date	Account No. 703000000019007 Event Description	Transaction Amount	Tax Rate	Tax Amount	Account C	Remit Date	▼ Challan No.	Amount	Amount	
Process Date 6/09/2018	Account No. 703000000019007 Event Description TD. Interest Compounding	Transaction Amount ₹1,014.00	Tax Rate ₹20.00	Tax Amount ₹202.80	Account C Tax Type Indicator Tax1-Base Tax	Remit Date	Challan No.     12345	Amount Refunded ₹0.00	Amount Remitted ₹202.80	<b>A</b>
Process Date 6/09/2018 7/09/2018	Account No. 703000000019007 Event Description TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding	Transaction Amount ₹1,014.00 ₹1,014.00	Tax Rate ₹20.00 ₹20.00	Tax Amount ₹202.80 ₹202.80	Account C Tax Type Indicator Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax	Remit Date           30/11/2018           30/11/2018	Challan No. 12345 12345	Amount Refunded ₹0.00	Amount Remitted ₹202.80 ₹202.80	
Process Date 6/09/2018 7/09/2018 8/09/2018	Account No. 703000000019007 Event Description TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding	Transaction Amount           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00	Tax Rate           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00	Tax Amount           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80	Account C Tax Type Indicator Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax	Remit Date           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018	<ul> <li>Challan No.</li> <li>12345</li> <li>12345</li> <li>12345</li> </ul>	Amount Refunded ₹0.00 ₹0.00	Amount Remitted ₹202.80 ₹202.80	-
Process Date 6/09/2018 7/09/2018 8/09/2018 9/09/2018	Account No. 703000000019007 Event Description TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding	Transaction Amount           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00	Tax Rate           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00	Tax Amount           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80	Account C Indicator Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax	Remit Date           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018	Challan No. 12345 12345 12345 12345 12345	Amount Refunded ₹0.00 ₹0.00 ₹0.00 ₹0.00	Amount Remitted ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80	*
Process Date 6/09/2018 7/09/2018 8/09/2018 9/09/2018 20/09/2018	Account No. 703000000019007 Event Description TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding	Transaction Amount           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00	Tax Rate           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00	Tax Amount           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80	Account C Tax Type Indicator Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax	Remit Date           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018	Challan No. 12345 12345 12345 12345 12345 12345	Amount Refunded ₹0.00 ₹0.00 ₹0.00 ₹0.00 ₹0.00	Amount Remitted ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80	*
Process Date 6/09/2018 7/09/2018 8/09/2018 9/09/2018 00/09/2018 11/09/2018	Account No. 7030000000019007 TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding	Transaction Amount           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00	Tax Rate           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00	Tax Amount           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80	Account C Tax Type Indicator Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax	Remit Date           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018	▼ Challan No. 12345 12345 12345 12345 12345 12345 12345	Amount Refunded ₹0.00 ₹0.00 ₹0.00 ₹0.00 ₹0.00 ₹0.00	Amount Remitted ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80	*
Process Date 6/09/2018 7/09/2018 8/09/2018 9/09/2018 20/09/2018 11/09/2018 22/09/2018	Account No. 703000000019007 Event Description TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding	Transaction Amount           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00           ₹1,014.00	Tax Rate           ₹20 00           ₹20 00           ₹20 00           ₹20 00           ₹20 00           ₹20 00           ₹20 00           ₹20 00           ₹20 00           ₹20 00	Tax Amount           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80	Account C Indicator Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax Tax1-Base Tax	INR           Remit Date           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018	Challan No.           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345           12345	Amount Refunded て0.00 て0.00 て0.00 て0.00 て0.00 て0.00	Amount Remitted ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80 ₹202.80	•
Process Date 6/09/2018 7/09/2018 8/09/2018 9/09/2018 10/09/2018 10/09/2018 10/09/2018 12/09/2018 13/09/2018	Account No. 703000000019007 Event Description TD. Interest Compounding TD. Interest Compounding	Transaction Amount           そ1,014.00           そ1,014.00	Tax Rate           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00           ₹20.00	Tax Amount           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80	Account C           Tax1-Base Tax           Tax1-Base Tax	INR           Remit Date           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018           30/11/2018	<ul> <li>Challan No.</li> <li>12345</li> </ul>	Amount Refunded て0.00 て0.00 て0.00 て0.00 て0.00 て0.00 て0.00 て0.00	Amount Remitted           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80           ₹202.80	

# **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Account No.	[Display] This field displays the TD account number under which the deposit(s) are initiated and maintained.
Account Currency	[Display] This field displays the TD account currency.
Column Name	Description
Process Date	[Display] This column displays the process date. The process date signifies the date from which the TD is effective.
Event Description	[Display] This column displays the event description.
Transaction Amount	[Display] This column displays the taxable interest amount earned on the deposit.
Tax Rate	[Display] This column displays the tax rate.
Tax Amount	[Display] This column displays the amount of tax deducted at source for the TD account.
Tax Type Indicator	[Display] This column displays the type of tax for the tax base. Example: Base Tax, Additional Tax 1, Additional Tax 2.
Remit Date	[Display] This column displays the date from which the TDS is paid to the tax- collecting agency.
Challan No	[Display]



	This column displays the challan number of the TDS remittance.
Amount Refunded	[Display] This column displays the refunded tax amount.
Amount Remitted	[Display] This column displays the remitted tax amount.

9. Click Close.



# 7.7 TDS30 - Tax Code - Reason Code Cross Reference Maintenance

This screen will be used to specify the Alternate tax code applicable for a customer type level base TDS Code and Reason code combination.

### **Definition Prerequisites**

- BAM30 Tax Codes Maintenance
- BAM40 Reason Code Maintenance

#### Modes Available

Add, Modify, Delete, Cancel, Amend, Authorize, Enquiry. For more information on the procedures of every mode, refer to **Standard Maintenance Procedures**.

## To perform Tax Code - Reason Code Cross Reference Maintenance

- In the Dashboard page, Enter the Task code TDS30 and then click or navigate through the menus to Front Office Transactions > Account Transactions > TD Account Transactions > Tax Processing > Tax Code Reason Code Cross Reference Maintenance.
- 2. The system displays the Tax Code Reason Code Cross Reference Maintenance screen.

# Tax Code - Reason Code Cross Reference Maintenance

TDS30 ×											
Tax Code - Reason Code Cross	Reference Maintenance	Add	Modify	Delete	Cancel	Amend	Authorize	Enquiry	Сору О	Close	Clear
* Tax Code	Q										
* Reason Code	Q										
* Alternate Tax Code	Q										

# **Field Description**

Field Name	Description
Tax Code	[Mandatory, Search List] Select tax code and description from Search List.
Reason Code	[Mandatory, Search List ] Select reason code and description from Search List.
Alternate Tax Code	[Mandatory, Search List] Select Alternate tax code and description from Search List.
3. Click Add.	

- 4. Select the tax code from the search list.
- 5. Select the reason code from the search list.
- 6. Select the alternate tax code other than tax code selected at step number 4 from the search list.



- 7. Click the **Ok** button.
- 8. The system displays the message "Record Added Authorization Pending". Click **OK**.
- 9. The TDS code and reason code cross reference details are added once the record is authorised.

